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Important Notice About Information Presented In This Prospectus

We include cross-references to captions in this prospectus where you can find further related
discussions. The following table of contents provides the pages on which these caplions are
located.
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Prospectus Summary

The following is a brief overview of the key aspects of the class A rotes, the class B notes and the
class C notes, which we refer to as the notes. You need to read ail of this prospectus to fully

understand the terms of the notes.

Series Structure

Class of Notes

Class A
Class B
Class C

Total

Antcipated Ratings:
Credit Enhancement:

Interest Rate:

Interest Accrual Method:
Interest Payment Dates:

First Interest Payment Date:

Scheduted Redemption Date;
Legal Final Redemptlon Date:
ClearancesSettlement:

Minlmum Denemination;
Tax Treatment:

ERISA Eligibie:

Initiof Principal
Batance % of Total
$900,000,000 90%
$50,000,000 5%
$50,000,000 5%
$1.000.000.000 100%
Chass A Notes Class 8 Notes Clos € Jeotes
“Aaa" from Moody's Al from Moody's “Baa}” from Mocdy's
and “AAA" from and “A” from Standard  and "BBA” from
Standard & Poor's & Poor's. Standard & Ppor's.
Subordination of the Subgrdination ot the Spread Account
clms B notes and class  class C notes.
 notew
Qne-month S0 One-month USD One-month USO

LIBOR, phrs Q.07 per
cent, annuglty, except
for the first Interest.
pertod, where LIBOR
wiil be based on the
hnear interpelation of
one-month and two-
manth USD LIBOR.
Actual/360.

The 15th day of each
talendar month.

17 lanuary 2006
Interest payment date,
17 November 2008
Interest

payment date.

15 November 2010
interest

payment date.
DYC/Euroclear/
Clearstream,
Lurernbeurg.
5100.000,

Debt for Lnlted States
federal Incotme Lix
purpotes, subject o
the Important
considerations
contained In “Material
United States Federal
income Tax
Consequences”.

Yes, subject to the
important
conslderations.

in "Certain ERISA and
other Conslderations™,

UBOR, phas 0.15 per
cent, annually, except
for the first interest
pericd, where LIBOR
will be based on the
lnear tnterpolation of
gne-month and two-
manth USD LIBOR
Attual/ 6.

The 15th day of each
calendar monih.

17 lanuary 2006
interest payment date,
17 Novernber 2008
wnterest

payment date.

15 November 2010
nterest

payiment date.
DTC/Euroclears
Chearstream,
Lunernbourg.
5100000

Debt for Lnited States
federal mcome tax
purposes, subject to
the impartaat
coniderations
contained In "'Materfel
United Stoles Federal
income Tax
Conseguences''.

Yes, subject to the
important
considerations

i “Certain ERISA and
other Considerations”,

LBOR, plus 0.28 per
cent. annualy, except
for the frst interest
period, where LIBOR
will be based on the
|tnear interpolation of
one-month and two-
month USD LIBOR.
Actual /360,

The 15th day of each
calendar month.

17 lanuary 2006
interest payment date.
17 November 2008
interest

payment date.

15 November 2010
Interest

payment date.
DTC/Eurociear/
Clearstream,
Luxernbourg,
5100000,

Debt for United $tates
federal income tax
purposes. subject to
the Impertant
consideratlons
contained in "Materia!
Urtited States Federal
income Tax
Consequences”.

Yes. subject ta the
impartant
considerations

n “Certom ERISA and
other Considerolions™.




Program Structural Sunnary

The following is a brief summary description of the Barclaycard securitisation program. of which
your notes will form a part.

Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC (called "Barclays™), has previously assigned all of its
present and future beneficial interest in receivables in designated revolving credit and charge card
accountts owned by Barclaycard and opened in the United Kingdom. Only the receivables were
assigned. The accounts were retained by Barclaycard.

The recelvabies were assigned to a speclal purpose company, incorporated in lersey, Channel
Islands, acting as receivables trustee. The receivables trustee holds the receivables on trust for
Barclaycard, as transferor beneficiary and excess interest beneficiary, and a special purpose
subsidiary of Barclays called the "MTN lssuer”, as Investor beneficiary. Barclaycard wiil transfer its
entitlernent to receive excess interest attributable to series 05-4 to the MTN Issuer,

The receivables trustee may issue muitipte series of investor certificates to the MTN issuer. Each
series of investor certificates will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the receivables trust.
They will entitle the MTN lIssuer to payments of interest and principal payable from collections on
the receivables,

The MTN Issuer will finance its acquisition of an undlvided beneficial interest in the receivables
trust, evidenced by the issuance of each series of investor certificates, by issuing series of limited
recourse medium term notes or certificates to Individual issuers and credit enhancement providers,
if any, The limited recourse nature of the medium term notes or certificates will ensure that the
MTN Issuer is only ever liable under a series of medium term notes or certificates for payments of
principal and interest equal to what is paid under the corresponding series of investor certificates.
The issuers, fn turn, will finance their purchases of each series of medium term notes or certificates
by issuing series of notes to investors. Your series of notes, series 05-4, will be the eleventh series
of notes issued under this program.




Structural Diagram of Barclays Bank PLC Securitisation Program

e

—
Pty .

1 Barclays Bank PLC will transfer excess interest altributable 1o series 05-4 to the M1N Issuer pursant 1o an agreement between beneficiaries.
2 Series 99-1 was repatd in fuli on 15 November 2002,




The Issuer

Gracechurch Card Funding {Ne. 11} PLC is a public limited company Incorporated in England and
Wales. Its registered office is at 1 Churchill Place, London E14 5HP. Its telephone number is +44
(03207 116 1000.

The issuer is a newly created special purpose company. One share of the issuer is held by a share
trustee under the terms of a share declaration of trust. The remalning issued shares of the issuer
are held by Gracechurch Card {Hcidings) Limited. The shares of Gracechurch Card (Holdings)
Limited are in turn held by SFM Corporate Services Limited as trustee for a charitabie trust. The
purpase of the issuer is to issue the notes which represent its asset-backed debt obligations, The
issuer will not engage in any unrelated activities.

This prospectus is given In compliance with the prospectus rules made by the UK Listing Authority
under the Financial Service and Markets Act 2000, as amended by the Prospectus Regulations 2005
(the “Prospectus Rules™ for the purposes of giving information about the issuer and the notes.
The issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this decument. To the best of the
knowledge and belief of the issuer, which has taken ail reasonable care to ensure that such fs the
case, the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect the import of such information. The issuer accepts responsibility
accordingly.

The Note Trustee, Principal Paying Agent and Agent Bank

The note trustee, principal paying agent and agent bank is The Bank of New York, acting through
its London branch. The note trustee will act as trustee for the noteholders under the trust deed.
The principal paying agent will make payments on the notes, The agent bank will calculate the
interest rate on the notes. The 8ank of New York, Londen &ranch’s address is One Canada Square,
tandon E14 5AL, United Kingdom. Uts telephone number is +44 (0)207 57C 1784.

The Notes
In this document, we are offering three classes of notes:

e class A floating rate asset-backed notes with an initial principal balance of $30G,000,000.
» class B floating rate asset-backed notes with an Initiai principal balance of $50,000,000.
e class € floating rate asset-backed notes with an inttial principal balance of $50,000,000.

The notes represent asset-backed debt obligations of the issuer. The notes are secured by
payments received by the issuer from the series 05-4 medium term note certificate and payments
received from the swap counterparty. The issuer's ability to make these payments will uitimately be
dependent upon collections Barclaycard receives on the receivables.

We will issue the notes under the trust deed. The notes will also be subject to a paying agency and
agent bank agreement. The security for the notes will be created under a deed of charge and a
pledge agreement between the issuer and the note trustee. The terms and conditions of the notes
will be cosmtained in the trust deed.

The class B notes will be subordinated to the class A notes. The class C notes will be subordinated
to both the class A notes and the class B notes.

If there is an event of default under the notes, the note trustee, on your behalf, can appoint a
receiver of the issuer who would continue to collect amounts paid by the MTN lssuer under the
series 05-4 medium term note certificate. The note trustee wauld also be ahle to sell the series 05-
4 medium term note certificate. In addition, pursuant to the frust deed, the note trustee may give
an enforcement notice to the issuer declaring the notes to be immediately due and payable. A
declaration that the notes have become immediately due and payable will not, of itself, accelerate
the timing or amcunt of redemption of the notes.

in this prospectus, we will refer to the owners of Interests in the class A notes, the class B notes
and the class € notes as the class A noteholders, the class B noteholders and the class €
noteholders, respectively, and together as the noteholders.

Previous Series
Ten previcus series of notes have been issued by 10 previous note Jssuers, Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 1} PLC through Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC respectively, in relation to
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the receivables trust. The first series, called series 99.1, was Issued on 23 Novernber 199% ang
repaid in November 2002. Series 99-1 is described in more detail at Appendix i. The second series,
catled 02-1, was issued on 24 October 2002. The third series, called 03-1, was issued on 8 April
2003. The fourth series, called 03-2, was issued on 13 June 2003. The fifth serles, calied 03-3, was
issued on 18 September 2003. The sixth series, cafled 04-1, was issued on 11 March 2004. The
seventh series, called 04-2 was issued on 23 November 2004. The eighth series, called 05-1, was
issued on 21 June 2005. The ninth series, called 05-2, was issued on 20 September 2005. The tenth
series, called 05-3, was issued on 20 October 2005, Series 02-1. Serfes 03-1, Series 03-2, Series 03
3, Series D4-1, Series 04-2, Series 05-1, Serles 05-2 and Series 05-3 are described in more detail at
Appendix G.

The proceeds of the series 99-1 notes were used by Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC to
purchase, respectively, correspending serles of medium term notes issued in three classes, which we
shail refer to as the "series 99-1 medium term notes”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The series 99-1
medium term notes issued by the MTN Issuer were called the class A medium term note, the class
B medium term note and the ciass C medium term note, respectively. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 39-1 medium term notes in the receivables trust by paying
the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an invester beneficiary with an aggregate
investor [nterest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the MTN Issuer to
payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The class A medium term note, the class B medium term note and the class ¢ medium term note
were each secured in favour of a trustee for the benefit of the secured creditors in relation to the
class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of series 99-1. The security for each class of
notes issued for series 99-1 was the class A medium term note, the class B medium term note and
the class C medium term note, respectively. Series 93-1 was finally repaid in full on the interest
payment date failing in November 2002

The proceeds of the series 02-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2} PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 02-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 02-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an Investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN lssuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 02-1 medium term note certificate is secured in favour of & trustee for the benefit of
the secured creditors in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of
series 02-1, The security for each class of notes issued for series 02-1 is the series 02-1 medium
term note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 02-1 will not be cross-
collateralised with the security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 03-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 03-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust, This aggregate Investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 03-1 medium term note certificate is secured in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the secured creditors in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of
series 03-1. The security for each class of notes issued for series 03-1 Is the series D3-1 medium
term note certificate, The security for the notes issued for series D3-1 is not cross-collateralised
with the security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-2 notes were used by Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"series 03-2 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 03-2 medium term note certificate in tihe receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivabies trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate Investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuzr 12 payments arising out of its entitfement to receivables in the receivables trust.

10




The series 03-2 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of serieg
03-2, The security for each class of notes issued for series 03-2 is the series 03-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 03-2 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 03-3 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"serles 03-3 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 03-3 medium term note certificate in the receivabies trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest In the receivables trust. This aggregate investor Interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust

The series 03-3 medlutn term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in refation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the ciass C notes of series
03-3. The security for each class of notes Issued for series 03-3 is the series 03-3 medium term
note certificate, The security for the notes issued for series 03-3 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 04-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding {Ne. 6} PLC to
purchase a corresponding serles medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"series 04-1 medium term note certificate”, issued by the MTN [ssuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the serles 04-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the recelvables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor Interest In the recelvables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series 04-1 medium term note certlficate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the roteholders in relatfon to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of series
04-1, The security for each class of notes Issued for series 04-1 is the series ¢4-1 medium term
note certificate. The securlty for the notes issued for series 04-1 is not cross-coliaterised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 04-2 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
"serfes 04-2 medium term note certificate,” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 04-2 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN lIssuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to receivables In the receivables trust.

The series 04-2 medivm lerm note certificate is charged In favour of a2 trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of serieg
04-2. The security for each class of notes issued for series 04-2 is the serles 04-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for sertes 04-2 is not cross-collateriatised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the series 05-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. B) PLC to
purchase 2 corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 05-1 medium term note certificate,” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
praceeds from the issue of the series 05-1 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the recelvables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest In the recelvables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of its entltlement to receivables in the receivables {rust.

The series 05-1 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the beneft of
the noteholders in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the class € notes of series
05-1. The security for each class of notes issued for series 05-1 is the series 05-1 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 05-1 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the serles 05-2 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 9) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 05-2 medium term note certificate” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN lssuer invested the
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proceeds from the issue of the series 05-2 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate investor interest entitles the
MTN lssuer to payments arising out of its entitlement to recelvables in the receivables trust.

The series 05-2 medium term note certificate is charged in favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the ¢lass A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes of serles
05-2. The security for each class of notes issued for series 05-2 is the series 05-2 medium term
note certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 05-2 is not cross-collaterallsed with the
security for your notes.

The proceeds of the serles 05-3 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC to
purchase a corresponding series medium term note certificate, which we shall refer to as the
“series 05-3 medium term note certificate” issued by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer invested the
proceeds from the issue of the series 05-3 medium term note certificate in the receivables trust by
paying the proceeds to the receivables trustee and becoming an investor beneficiary with an
aggregate investor interest in the receivables trust. This aggregate Investor interest entitles the
MTN Issuer to payments arising out of ils entitlement to receivables in the receivables trust.

The series (5-3 medium term note certificate is charged In favour of a trustee for the benefit of
the noteholders in relation to the class A notes, the class B notes and the tlass C notes of series
05-3. The security for each class of notes {ssued for series 05.3 is the serles 05-3 medium term
nate certificate. The security for the notes issued for series 05-3 is not cross-collateralised with the
security for your notes.

The Closing Date
We will issue the notes an or about 28 November 2005.

The MTN Issuer and Initial Investor Beneficiary

The MTN Issuer and the initial investor beneficiary is Barclaycard Funding PLC, a public limited
company incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is located at 1 Churchill Place,
London E14 SHP. The MTN Issuer is a subsidiary of Barclays.

The MTN issuer was established to Issue series of secured limited recourse medium term notes or
certificates under a programme.

The Medium Term Note Certificate

On the closing date, the MTN Jssuer wiil sell to the issuer one iimited recourse medium term note
certificate issued as a series under its medium term note er certificate programme. This limited
recourse medium term note certificate, in the amount of the sterling equivalent of $1,000,000,000,
using the fixed exchange rate in the swap agreements, will be called the series 05-4 medium term
rote certificate. The series 05-4 medium term note certificate {s governed by English Yaw and is
subject to the English courts in the event of proceedings relating to the series 05-4 medium term
note certificate.

The issuer will make payments of interest and princlpal on the class A notes, the class B notes and
the class C notes from payments of interest and principal made by the MTN issuer on the series
05-4 medium term note certificate, including MTN lIssuer additional interest payments, and from
amounts paid by the swap counterparty. The issuer will also make payment of the deferred
subscription price in respect of the series 05-4 medium terrm note certificate out of unutilised MTN
Issuer additional interest payments recelved by it.

If arn event of default occurs under the series 05-4 medium term note certificate, the security
trustee, or behalf of the issuer as holder of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate, may
appoint a recziver of the MTN Issuer who would continue to collect amounts paid on the investor
cartificais The security trustee would alse be able to sell the investor certificate. In addition,
: Series 05-24 Sopplement the security trustee may give an enforcement notice to the
3ring ihe s2ries 05-4 medium term note Certificate 1o be immediately due ang
ratipn thal the saries 05-4 megium term note certificate has cecome immediately
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due and payable will not, of itself. accelerate the timing or amount of redemption of the series 05-
4 medium term note certificate.

The Security Trustee

The security trustee is The Bank of New York. acting through its Londen branch. The security
trustee will act as trustee for the holder of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate under the
security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement.

The Receivables

The receivabies consist of amounts charged by cardholders to designated MasterCard* and VISA*
revolving credit and charge card accounts of Barclaycard originated or acquired in the United
Kingdom for the acquisition of merchandise, services and cash advances. The receivables also
include the periodic finance charges and fees charged to the credit and charge card accounts and
interchange.

The tnitial Transferor, Servicer, Trust Cash Manager, MTN Issuer Cash Manager and Excess Interest
Beneficiary

Barclays Bank PLC ariginates or acquires the credit and charge card receivables through its
business unit, Barclaycard. Barciaycard's principal place of business is located at 1234 Pavilion
Drive, Northampton NN4 735G, United Kingdom. Barclaycard has previously transferred its present
and future interest in the credit and charge card receivables to the receivables trustee.

Barelaycard is the Initial transferor of the receivables trust.

Barclaycard currently services the receivables in the receivables trust. Barclaycard may not resign as
servicer, but its appointment as servicer may be terminated and 2 successor servicer may be
appointed In its place if a servicer default occurs. In the future additional transferors, if any, may
act as co-servicers,

Barclaycard was also appointed as the initial trust cash manager to manage the bank accounts of
the receivables trustee for each series of investor certificates. Barclaycard may not resign as trust
cash manager, but Its appointment as trust cash manager may be terminated and a successor trust
cash manager may be appointed in its place if a trust cash manager default occurs. In the future
additional transferors, if any, may act as co-trust managers.

Barclaycard wlill be the excess interest beneficiary of the receivables trust, but will transfer its
entitfement to the portion of the excess interest attributable {o series §5-4 to the MTN Issuer
under an agreement between beneficiaries.

Barclays Bank PLC has also been appointed as MTN Issuer cash manager pursuant to the security
truyst deed and the MTN Issuer cash management agreement dated 23 November 1999. The MTN
Issuer cash manager may not resign unless its activities are no longer permissible under the
applicable law. No such resignation shall become effective until a successor MTN lssuer cash
manager shall have assumed the responsibitities and cbligations of the MTN Issuer cash manager.

Barclays Bank PLC is a bank incorparated in England and Wales and has a long term unsecured
debt rating of Aal by Moody's and AA by Standard and Poor's. Its head office is located at 1
Churchill Place, Lendon E14 5HP, United Kingdom. It is regulated in the United Kingdom by the
Financial Services Authority. Its telephone number is +44 (0)267 116 1000.

The Receivables Trustee

Gracechurch Receivables Trustee Limited, the receivables trustee, is a private limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of lersey, Channel Islands on 29 September 1959, Its
registered office is located at 26 New Street. St Heller, lersey IE2 3RA. The shares of the
receivables trustee are heid by a professional trustee company - not affiliated with Barclays — as
trustee on trust for charitable purposes. This means that any profits received by the receivables
trusiee, after income amaunts have been paid th meeting the costs and expenses of the receivables
trustee, will be available to be dividended to the trustee for distribution for charitable purposes or
to charities exclusively for charitable purposes selected at the discretion of the recelvables trustee,
The payments on your notes will not be affected by this arrangement. The receivables trustee acts
as trustee of the receivables trust.
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The Receivables Trust

The receivables trust was established on T November 1539 under the terms of a deciaration of
trust under which Barclays and the MTN Issuer each received an undivided interest in the trust
property equal to the proportion of their contributions to the receivables trust The declaration of
trust was amended and restated by a declaration of trust and trust cash management agreemert
on 23 November 1999, The declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement has been
and will be supplemented by series supptements for each series of investor certificates issued by
the receivables trust.

The receivables trustee has been established for the purpose of acguiring credit and charge card
receivables of Barclaycard and any additional transferors and to hotd those receivables and the
collections from them on trust for the beneficiarles under the terms of the receivables trust set out
in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and to make payments on the
investor certificates. The receivables trustee may issue other series of investor certificates,
representing undivided beneficial interests in the receivables trust, from time to time. The
receivables trustee may not engage in any unrelated activities.

The Investor Certificate

The MTN Issuer wiill pay the proceeds of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate to the
receivables trustee to acquire a separate, undivided beneficial interest in the receivables trust of
which ten (including series 05-4) are outstanding. This undivided beneficial Interest will be the
eleventh series of the receivables trust and will be represented by the investor certificate. The
receivables trustee may issue other series of investor certificate(s) from time to time.

The MTN Issuer will make payments of principal and interest on the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate from payments recetved on the investor certificate. The payments on the investor
certificate will be made from payments of principal and interest on the receivables,

The receivables trustee will be entitled 1o use the proceeds of the investor cerilficate paid to it by
the MTN issuer — together with monies paid to it by the other beneficiaries of the receivables trust
- to accept an offer by the transferor to assign to the receivables trustee the present and future
recelvables generated by the designated credit and charge card accounts of the transferor.

The investor certificate will entitle the MTN Issuer to recetve payment of a designated portion of
collections of the credit and charge card receivables assigned by the transferor to the receivables
trustee. The MTN Issuer will use those collections for the redemption of the series 05-4 medlum
term note certificate.

If a pay out event occurs, the rapid amortisation period or the regulated amertisation period may
begin, which could cause an early redemption of your notes. If Barclays as the transferor
beneficiary or the excess Interest beneficiary were to become insolvent, the receivables trustee may
be required to liquidate the receivables, In addition, some breaches of representations made by the
transferor will require the transferor to repurchase the receivables.

The Swap Counterparty

The swap counterparty for the notes will be Barclays Bank PLC, its investment banking division in
the United Kingdom. The swap counterparty’s address is 1 Churchili Place, London E14 5HP, United
Kingdem.

Swap Agreements

Barclaycard's cardholders will make payments to Barclaycard in pounds sterling. Accordingly,
payments on the investor certificate and the series 05-4 medium term note certificate will also be
made in sterling. 8¢ that you can receive payments on your rotes in United States dollars, the
issuer will enter into a swap agreement with the swap counterparty.

Under the swap agreement for the notes, the issuer will pay to the swap counterparty the sterling
amounts received on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate, less certain amounts
representing the issuer's costs and expenses and required earnings and less MTN lssuer additional
Interest oayments not reauired to pay amounts owing to the swap counterparty, and the swap
counterparty will convert thase sterling amounts into dollars.

Optionat Zzrlv Redemptior.
The issuer has the option to redeem all of the remaining notes when their principal balance is
reducec o less than 10 per cent. of their original principal balance,
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If an optional early redemption occurs, you will receive a f[inal distribution egual to the entire
unpaid principal balance of your notes plus any accrued and unpaid interest,

Notices

Any notlces that are required to be given by the term of your notes will be deemed to be validly
given if they are published in the Financial Times or another leading English language daily
newspapet in London.

United Kingdom Tax Status

Subject to important qualifications and conditions set out under “United Kingdom Taxation
Treatment of the Notes”, including as to final documentation and assumptions, Clifford Chance
Limited Liability Partnership, as speclal UK tax advisers, are of the opinion that:

& US. persons who have no connection with the United Kingdom will not be subject to United
Kingdom taxation in respect of payment of principal and interest on the notes as described
maore fully in the section of this prospectus headed “United Kingdom Taxation Treatment of
the Notes™;

e If and for s long as the notes are listed on the Cfficial List of the UK Listing Authority and
admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange no UK withhalding in respect of UK tax
will be reguired in respect of payments on the notes; if these condltions are not satisfied UK
withholding tax at the current rate of 20 per cent. may be required in respect of these
payments;

s If the notes do not continue to be so listed, an exemption from UK withholding tax may be
available where payments are made {inter afia} to a cempany resident within the United
Kingdom or, although not resident, carrylng on a trade in the United Kingdom and which
company brings the interest into account in computing its profits chargeable to corporation
tax. This is described in further detall in the sectlon of thls prospectus “United Kingdom
Taxation Treatment of the Notes™;

& No UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax is payable en the issue of the global notes or on
the issue or transfer of an individual note certificate;

& The MTN Issuer and the issuer will be subject to UK corporation tax, at 8 maximum rate of
currently 30 per cent., on the profit reflected in their respective profit and loss accounts
prepared (for tax purposes) in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice as
applicable in the UK for accounting periods ending on 31 December 2004 as increased by the
amounts of any son-deductible expenses or losses. The profit in the profit and loss account
(s0 prepared} should not exceed 0.01 per cent of the principal amount outstanding on the
medium term notes or certificates in the case of the MTN [ssuer, or on the notes in the case
of the issuer. Examples of non-deductible expenses and losses may include, for the MTN
Issuer: {1) amounts paid Dy the MTN Issuer to the receivables trustee to cover the receivables
trustee’s fees and expenses, and (2) any losses of principal which cannot be met out of excess
spread; and for the issuer, certain expenses relating to cash management: and

@ The existing rules which govern the corporation tax treatment of “securitisation companies”
(such as the MTN Issuer and the lssuer), as summarised above, will cease to apply as of the
end of 2006. HM Revenue and Customs ("HMRC") (the central UX taxing authority} are
currently consulting actively with the securitisation industry in order to determine what rules
should apply thereafter, and HMRC have indicated that they accept the desirability of
preserving tax neutrality for securitisation companies. However. no details are currently
available as to what the new replacement rules will be,

e  The receivables trustee will have no UK tax liabilities and accordingly, the receivables trustee
witl have no liability to UK tax in relation to amounts which it receives on behalf of the MTN
Issuer or amounts which it is obliged to pay to the MTN Issuer.

Subject to finalisation of documents, including those which are exhibits to the registraticn
statement of which this prospectus forms a part, in a form satisfactory to them and which is nat
inconsistent with the descriptions in this prospectus, Clifford Chance Limited Liability Partnership,
as special UK tax advisers, expect to give an opinion at closing by reference to the final
documentation and based on certain assumptions listed in that oplnion, which will cover in detaijt
the matters referred to under this heading "- United Kingdom Tax Status”. See "Risk Factors:
Taxoble Nature af the MTN lssuer and Issuer Could Cause a Loss on Your Notes™.
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United States Federal Income Fax Status

As is further described herein, Clifford Chance US. LLP, ("U.S. tax counsel™) is of the opinion that
each of the recelvables trust, the MTN Issuer and the issuer will not be subject to U.S. federal
income tax.

The issuer intends to ireat the notes as debt for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Each notehalder,
by hofding a beneficial interest in a note, will agree to conform to that treatment. However, no
ruling witl be obtained from the IRS on the characterisation of the notes for federal income tax
purposes. U.S. tax counsel is of the opinion that, although there is no governing authority
addressing the classification of securities similar to the notes, under current law, the notes will be
treated as indebtedness for U.S. federal incame tax purposes. Unlike a tax ruling, an opinion of LS.
tax counsel is not binding on the IRS, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend,
and that a court will pot ultimately hold, that the Class C notes, and Lo a lesser extent one ar
more ctasses of more senior notes because of their place in the capital structure of the issuer and
other equity features, are equity. If any of the classes of notes were treated as equity in, rather
than debt of, the issuer for LS. federal income tax purposes, United States holders of such notes
would be subject to taxation under rules described in “"Magteriol United States Federgl Income Tox
Considerations—United States Holders—Alternglive Tax Tredtment of Notes as Equity’” which could
cause adverse lax consequences upon sale, exchange, redemption. retirement or other taxable
disposition of, or the receipt of certain types of distributions by a United States holder of, such
notes.

U.S. tax counsel has prepared and reviewed the summary of US. federai Income tax considerations
in this prospectus and renders the U.5. federal income tax opinions contained in this prospectus.

See “Mgterial United States Federal income Tax Consequences”.

ERISA Considerations for investors

Subject to important considerations described under “Certain ERISA and other Considerations™ In
this prospectus, the notes are eligible for purchase by persons investing assets of employee benefit
plans or individual retirement accounts.

Ratings of the Notes

Each class of notes wiill be rated by Moody's Investors Services Limited and Standard & Poor's
Ratings Group. In this prospectus, we will refer to Moody's Investors Services Limited as Moody's
and Standard & Poor's Ratings Group as Standard & Poor’s. both of which we will refer to together
as the rating agencies.

On issue, the issuer expects the notes to be assigned the following ratings:

Closs A Class 8 Class €
Moody's Aaa Al Baal
Standard & Poor's AAA A BBB

Application for Admission to the Official List and Admission to Trading

The issuer has applled to have the notes listed on the Officlal List of the UK Listing Authority and
admitted to trading on the Londen Stock Exchange. The Issuer expects the notes to be approved
for listing on or about 22 November 2005,




Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors before deciding to invest in the notes

offered by this prospectus.

You May Not Be Able to Sell
Your Notes

Allocations of Charged-Off
Receivables Could Reduce Your
Payments

The Class B Notes and the Class
C Notes Bear Additionat Risk
Because They Are Subordinated

Inabitity of Noteholders to
Receive the Full Percentage
Allocation of Principal Collections
Durlng the Regulated
Amortisation Period Could Delay
Payments on Your Notes or
Cause a Loss on Your Notes

There currently is no secondary market for the notes. The
underwriters expect, but are not obligated, to make a market in
the notes. If no secondary market develops, you may not be able
to sefl your netes prier to maturity. We cannot offer any
assurance that one wilt develop or, if one does develop, that it
will continue.

We anticipate that the servicer will charge off or write off as
uncollectable some of the receivables. Each class of investor
interest In the receivables trust will be allocated a portion of those
charged-off receivabtes. If the amount of charged-off receivables
altocated to the Investor interest exceeds the amount of funds
available to cover those charge-offs, the investor interest will be
reduced. This could cause the holders of the notes to not receive
the full amount of principal and interest due to them. Any loss will
be borne by the notehalders in the order of subordination of the
notes, with the class C notes bearing the first losses, followed by
the class B notes and finally the class A notes. See “Series G5-4:
Defaulted Receivables: Investor Charge-Offs"; “Barclaycard and
the Barcloycard Portfolio: Delinquency Experience Securttised
Portfolio” and “Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Portfolio: Loss
Experience Securitised Portfolio,”

The class B notes are subordinated in right of payment of
principal and Interest to the class A notes. Principal payments to
the class B noteholders will not be made until the class A
notehelders are paid in full. On each payment date interest is paid
to the class A noteholders before payments of interest are made
to the class B notehclders, This could cause the class B
noteholders not to receive the full amount of principal or
Interest due to them.

The class C notes are subordinated in right of payment of
principal and interest to the class A notes and the class B notes.
Principal payments to the class C noteholders will not be made
until the class A noteholders and the class B noteholders are paid
in full. On each payment date interest is paid to the class A
noteholders and the class B noteholders before payments of
interest are made to the class C notehaolders. This could cause the
class C noteholders not to receive the full amount of principal or
interest due to them.

Some series 05-4 pay out events will cause the start of the
regulated amortisation period rather than the rapid amortisation
period. During a regulated amortisation period, not afl of the
principal collectlons allocated to the investor interest may be used
to make payments of principal to the MTN issuer as they would be
during a rapid amertisation period. Instead, principal payments 1o
the MTN Issuer - and thus ultimately on your notes — will be
limited to the controllted deposit amount. This could cause you te
receive payments of principal more slowly than you would during
a rapid amortisation period, Since some of the series 05-4 pay out
events that result in the start of a requlated amaortisation period
are caused by a deterioration in the performance of the
receivables, a delay in the principal payments on your notes
could expose you to an increased risk of fosses on your notes or a
delay in payment on your notes.
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Grouping of the MTN Issuer with
Barclays for Tax Purposes Could
leopardise the Bankruptcy
Remote Status of the MTN issuer
Causing an Early Redemption of
Your Ngtes or a Loass an Your
Notes

Issuance of Additional Series May
Adversely Affect Your Rights by
Diluting Your Voting Power

Contractual provisions will be contained in the securlty trust deed
and MTN ksuer cash management agreement and the other
agreements to which the MTN Issuer is a party by which the other
parties to those agreements agres not to take any actions against
the MTN Issuer that might ead to its bankrupicy, Furthermore,
the MTN Issuer will be contractually restricted from undertaking
any business other than in connection with the financings
described in this prospectus. In particular, the MTN Issuer will
be expressly prohibited from incurring any additional
indebtedness, having any employees, owning any premises and
establishing or acquiring any subsidiaries. Together, these
provisions ensure that the likelihood of the MTN Issuer
becoming Insolvent or bankrupt is remote.

Notwithstanding the steps that have been and may be taken to
ensure that the insolvency of the MTN Issuer will be rerncte. the
MTN Issuer is included in the Barclays Group registration for VAT
purposes. As a company included in that group registration,
broadly, it will be liable, on a joint and several basis wlith all other
companies in the VAT group registration, for the VAT liability of
the representative member of the VAT group - Barclays Bank PLC
- arising only during the MTN Issuer's period of membership.
Accordingly, these secondary liabilities for VAT could increase
the likelihood of the MTN issuer becoming Insolvent. In addition,
there are provisions in the UK tax code that are designed to
enable HMRC to collect corporation tax from one member of a
group where another member of the group has failed to discharge
certain taxes due and payable by it within a specified time period.

If the MTN Issuer were required to pay any VAT due from the
representative member of the Barclays VAT group or to become
liable for corporation tax liabilities of another member in the
Barclays Group, which the MTN Issuer was unable to meet, HMRC
could seek to put the MTN Issuer into insolvency. This could cause
an early redemption of your notes or a loss en your notes.

The MTN Issuer has issued ten previous series (of which nine
remain ouistanding as series 99-1 was repaid in Novermnber 2002)
and may issue additional series of medium term notes or
certificates in connection with the issuance of other series of
investor certificates. The hotder of the medium term notes or
certificates of each series - including the issuer - may require the
MTN Issuer, as investor beneficiary, to take action or direct
actions to be taken under the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement or a supplement. However, the consent
or approval of holders of a percentage of the total principal
balance of the medium term notes or certificates of all series
might be necessary to require or direct those actions. These
actions include terminating the appointment of the servicer under
the beneficiaries servicing agreement or the trust cash manager
under the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement. Thus, the holder of any new series of medium term
notes or certificates will have voting rights that will reduce the
percentage interest of the issuer as holder of the series 05-4
medlum term note certificate. Holders of medium term notes or
certificates of other series — or persons with the power to direct
their actions — may have interests that do not coincide with the
Interests of the issuer - or the persons with the power to direct
the issuer. This may restrict your ability to ultimately direct the
MTN tssuer to take the actions referred (o above.
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Insolvency of the Transferor May
Result in an Inability to
Repurchase Receivables

insalvency of the Issuer, the MTN
Issuer or the Receivables Trustee
Could Cause an Early Redemption
of Your Notes or a Loss on Your
Notes

Application of the Consumer
Credit Act 1974 and Other
Legislation May Impede
Collection Efforts and Could
Cause Earty Redemption of your
Notes or a Loss on your Notes

None of the MTN Issuer, the recelvables trustee or the issuer has
undertaken or will undertake any investigations, searches or other
actions to verify the details of the receivables — piier than steps
taken by the issuer to verify the details of the receivables that are
presented in this prospectus — or to establish the creditworthiness
of any cardholder on the designated accounts. The MTN Issuer,
receivables trustee and the issuer will rely soiely on the
representations given by the transferor tc the receivables
trustee about the receivables, the cardholders on the designated
accounts, the designated accounts and the effect of the
assignment of the receivables.

If any representation made by the transferor about the
receivables proves to have been incorrect when made, the
transferor will be required to repurchase the affected
receivables from the receivables trustee. If the transferor
becomes Bankrupt or insolvent, the recelvables trustee may be
unable to compel the transferor to repurchase receivables, and
you could incur a loss on your notes or an early redemptlon of
your notes.

The ability of each of the issuer, the MTN Issuer and the
receivables trustee to meet its obligations under the notes, the
series 05-4 medium teérm note certificate and the receivables
securitisation agreement and the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement will depend upon their continued
solvency.

A company that has assets in the United Kingdom will be insolvent
If its tiabilities exceed its assets or if it is unable to pay its debts as
they fall due. Each of the issuer, the MTN Issuer and the
receivables trustee have been structured so that the likelihood
of their becoming insolvent Is remote. Each of these entities will
be contractually restricted from undertaking any business pther
than in connectlon with the financings described In this
prospectus. They each will be expressly prohlbited from
incurring any additional indebtedness, having any employees,
owning any premises and establishing or acquiring any
subsidiaries. Contractual provisions will be contained in sach of
the agreements other than your notes, to which each of these
entities is @ party which will prohiblt the other parties to those
agreements from taking any actions against these entitles that
might lead to their insolvency. Together, these provisions help
ensure that the llkelihood of any of these entities becoming
insolvent or bankrupt is remote.

Notwithstanding these actions, it is still possible that the issuer,
the MTN Issuer or the receivables trustee could become insolvent,
If this were to occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an
carly redemption of your notes.

There is an increasing volume of legislation that is applicable to
consurmer credit in the United Kingdom. In addition, there are
proposals to amend existing legislation. Of particular importance
are the Consumer Credit Act 1974 (the “Consumer Credit Act™)
and the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1993
{the "Regulations™). The Consumer Credit Act and Regulations
are administered by, amongst others, the Office of Fair Trading
{the "OFT"). The Consumer Credit Act and Regulations apply, in
whole or in part, to the transactions o¢curring on the designated
accounts and to the credit or charge card agreements. The effect
of the application of the Consumer Credit Act and the Regulations
on the relevant underlying credit or charge card agreements may
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result in adverse consequences for your investment in the notes,
because of the possible unenforceabillty of, or possible liabilities
for misrepresentation or breach of contract in relation lo, an
underlying credit or charge card agreement.

As is common with many other UX credit card Issuers, some of
Barclaycard's credit and charge card agreements do not comply
in ali respects with the Consumer Credit Act, the Regulations or
other related legislation.

In addition, Barclaycard, in common with many other UK credit
card issuers, has received and expects to continue to receive
correspondence from and to have discussions with, the OFT in
relation to concerns the OFT may raise from time to time in
respect of compliance of Barclaycard's ¢redit and charge card
agreements with the Consumer Credit Act, the Regulations or
other related legislation, or any other concerns that the OFT may
have in respect of Barclaycard's credit and charge card
agreements or Barclaycard's advertising, marketing or
administration thereof.

if a credit or charge card agreement has not been executed or
modified in accordance with the Consumer Credit Act, it may be
unenforceable against a cardholder without a court order — and in
some instances may be completely unenforceable. The transferor
gives no guarantee that a court order could be obtained if
required.

With respect to those credit or charge card agreements which
may not be compliant, such that a court order could not be
obtained, the transferor estimates that thls would apply to less
than 1 per cent. of the aggregate principal receivables in the
designated accounts on 31 December 2004. Barclaycard does not
anticipate any material increase in the percentage of these
receivables in the securitised portfolio. In respect of those
accaunts that do not comply with the Consumer Credit Act it
will still be possible to collect payments and seek arrears from
cardholders who are falling behind with their payments, The
transferor will have no obligation to repay or account to a
cardholder for any paymenis received by a cardholder because of
this non-compliance with the Consumer Credit Act. However, if
losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and borne
by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based on
their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were to
occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redernption on your notes.

Transactions involving the use of a credit card in the United
Kingdom may constltute transactions under debtor-creditor-
supplier agreements for the purposes of section 75 of the
Consumer Credit Act. A debtor-creditor-supplier agreement
includes an agreement by which the creditor, with Xnowledge
of its purpose, advances funds to finance the debtar's purchase of
goods or services from a supplier.

Section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act provides that if a supplier
breackes a contract between the supplier and a cardholder in 2
transaction under certain debtor-creditor-supplier agreements,
or if the supplier makes a misrepresentation aboul the ¢ontract,
the creditor may also be liable to the cardholder for the breach or
misrepresentation. An example of a supplier's breach of contract
would include the supplier selling the cardholder merchandise
that Is defective or unsuitable for its purpose. In these
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Department of Trade and
Industry ("DTI") White Paper
dated December 2003 in
Connection with its Review of
Consumer Credit

Consumer Credit Regulations
made since the DT| published its
White Paper in Decermnber 2003

circumstances, the cardholder may have the right to reduce the
amount owed to the transferor under his or her credit or charge
card account. This right would survive the sale of the receivables
to the receivables trustee. As a result, the receivables trustee may
not receive the full amount otherwise owed by a cardholder.
However, the creditor will not be liable where the cash price of
the item or service supplied underlying the claim is £100 or less,
or greater than £30.000.

The recetvables trustee has agreed on a limited recourse basis to
indemnify the transferor for any loss suffered by the transferor
from a cardholder claim under section 75 of the Consumer Credit
Act. This indemnity cannot exceed the original outstanding
principal balance of the affected charges on a designated account.

The receivables trustee’s indemnity will be payable only from and
to the extent of excess spread on the receivables. Any amounts
that the transferor recovers from the supplier will reduce the
transferor's loss for purposes of the receivables trustee's
indemnity, This is described under “Series 05-4: Aggregate
Investor Indemnity Amount”. The transferor will have rights of
indemnity against suppliers under section 75 of the Consumer
Credit Act, The transferor may also be able to charge-back the
transaction in dispute to the supplier under the operating
regulations of VISA or MasterCard.

If the transferor's loss for purposes of the receivables trustee's
Indemnity exceeds the excess spread availabie to satisfy the loss,
the transferor interest in the receivables trust will be reduced by
the amount of the excess loss.

Satisfaction by the receivables trustee of any such indemnity
payment (as described above) could have the effect of reducing
or eliminating excess spread which might otherwise have been
available to the MTN Issuer. These consequences could result in
you Incurring a toss on your investment or an early redemption of
your notes,

In its White Paper dated December 2003, the DTi, the LK
Covernment departrment responsible for consumer credit,
indicated that the Government proposed to take varlous actions
to address matters of concern to it in this area, Since then a
number of changes have been rmade by subordinate legislation
under the Consumer Credit Act

Two sets of regulations that are particularly pertinent to
Barclaycard have been made during 2004 pursvant to the
Consumer Credit Act. The Consumer Credit {Advertisements)
Regulations 2004 ("Advertisements Regulations”) were made in
June 2004 and came into force on 31 October 2004, They replace
regulations made in the period 1989-2000 in relation to the
advertising of consumer credit. The Consumer Credit
{Agreements) (Amendment} Reguiations 2004 {'Agreements
Regulations™) were made in June 2004 and came into force on
31 May 2005.

The Advertisements Regulations contain a new statutory regime
governing the content of marketing materials that promote
consumer credit. The Advertisements Regulations require every
credit advertisement to be made in plain and intelligible language,
be easily legible or clearly audible as the case may require and
speclfy the name of the advertiser, The Advertisements
Regulations prescribe information that has te be included in a
credit advertisement. In addition, the Advertisements Regulations
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Consumer Credit Bill introduced
into Parliament on 18 May 2005

provide certain assumptions which must be applied when
calculating a total charge for credit and prescribe the manner
in which the total charge for credit and any stated annual
percentage rate must be disclosed, The Advertisements
Reguiations are, broadly observed, stricter than the regulations
that they have replaced. It is unclear whether they will make It
materially more difficult to originate new accounts, but It is
possible that that might be their effect.

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. If losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivabies trust. Accordingly, if this were
to occur, you coutd suffer & foss on your notes or an early
redemption on yeur notes.

The Agreements Regulations amend the Consumer Credit
{Agreements) Regulations 1983 (“1983 Regulations”). The
Agreements Regulations set out the order in which the
prescribed content of documents comprising a credit or charge
card agreement (Including any variations to such agreements
which create a modifying agreement under section 82(3) of the
Consumer Credit Act) Is to be given and the place of the signature
and separate boxes required under the 1983 Regulations and the
Agreements Regulations. An additional form of consent is
required by the Agreements Regulations where a cardholder
purchases certain insurance products on credit, In common with
the Advertisements Regulaticns, the Agreements Regulations
contain new prominence and legibility requirements and new
requirements in relation to the calculation and description of an
annual percentage rate,

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation 1o an
underlylng credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. I losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were
to occur, you could suffer a loss on your netes or an early
redemption on your notes.

Following the General Election held on 5 May 2005, the new
Covernment has introduced on 18 May 2005 a bill to amend the
Consumer Credit Act {the 'BIll'). The Bill is substantially in the
same form as a bill introduced in the last Parliament. That bill did
not gbiain sufficient Parliamentary time to become law before
Parliament was dissolved in order to hold the general electien.

The Bill, if enacted, will, inter alig, introduce Into the Consumer
Credit Act a concept of an “unfair relationship”. This appears to
be a broad concept. A court would be entitled to look at any
aspect of a credit relationship in order to determine whether
unfairness te the debtor exists. Under the Bill, remedies would
include requiring the creditor to pay back sums to the debtor that
had previously been paid by the debtor to the creditor. These
provisions of the Bill are intended to apply to all credit
agreements regardless of when entered into,

22




Propasal for a second EU
Directive relating to Consurmer
Credit

EU Directive concerning Unfair
Commercial Practices

Failure to Netify Cardhelders of
the Transfer of Receivables Could
Delay or Reduce Payments on
Your Notes

Tne Bill will also extend the ombudsman scheme under the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to licensees under the
Consumer Credit Act. The extension of the ombudsman scherne
will allow a cardholder who has a complaint to raise it with the
ombudsman, provided that the complaint falls within the
consumer credit jurisdiction conferred upen the ombudsman,

The possible unenforceability of, or poessible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlying credit or charge tard agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. If losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
barne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests In the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were
to oceur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

The European Commission made a propesal for a new consurner
credit directive in September 2002. The existing directive {87/
102/EEC) Is now regarded by the European Commission as out of
date. Progress on agreeing 2 new directive has been slow. On
7 October 2005, the Commission produced a second modified
proposal. The timetable for further developments is unclear,

Directive 2005/29/EC concerning unfair business to consumer
commerciat practices was made on 11 May 2005 This is a
directive of general application and is not confined to consumer
credit or other financial services. It is anticipated that the DT will
lead implernentation of this directive into UK law, The dtrective is
due to be implemented by 12 June 2007, coming into force (with
some transitional provisions) no later than 12 December 2007,
The directive is intended to achieve a high level of consumer
protection acrass the EU through harrnonization of relevant EU
laws. The directive has a substantial focus on advertising and sales
promotion practices. Whether its implementation would require
changes to, for example, the Advertisements Regulations remains
to be determined. Any such changes might have an adverse
Impact on the ability of credit and charge card issuers, such as
Barclaycard, to promote their products and services.

The possible unenforceability of, or possible liabilities for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in relation to an
underlylng credit or charge card agreement may result in
unrecoverable losses on accounts to which such agreements
apply. If losses arise on these accounts, they will be written off and
borne by the investor beneficiary and transferor beneficiary based
on their interests in the receivables trust. Accordingly, if this were
to occur, you could suffer a loss on your notes or an early
redemption on your notes.

The transfer by the transferor to the receivables trustee of the
benefit of the receivablies is gaverned by English law and does not
give the receivables trustee full legal titie to the receivables.
Motice to the cardholders of the transfer would perfect the legal
title of the receivables trustee to the receivables. The receivables
trustee has agreed that notice of the transfer will not be given to
cardholders unless the transferor’s long-term senior unsecured
indebtedness as rated by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or Fitch
were to fall below Baa2, BBB or BBB, respectively. The lack of
notice has several legal consequences that could delay or reduce
payments on your notes.
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Competition in the UK Credit
Card tndustry Could Lead to
Early Redemption of Your Notes

Social, Legal, Pofitical and
Economic Factors Affect Card
Payments and Are Unpredictable

Until notice is given to a cardholder, the cardholder wilt discharge
his or her obligation under the designated account by making
payment to the transferor,

Prior to the inselvency of the transferor, unless notice was given
to a cardholder who is a depositer or other creditor of the
transferor, equitable set-offs may accrue in favour of the
cardhotder against his or her obligation to make payments to
the transfercr under the designated account. These rights may
vesult in the receivables trustee receiving reduced payments on
the receivables. The transfer of the benefit of any receivables to
the receivables trustee will continue to be subject both to any
prior equities that a cardholder had and to any equities the
cardholder may become entitled to after the transfer. Where
notice of the transfer is given to a cardholder, however, some
rights of set-off may not arise after the date notice is given.

Failure to give notice to the cardholder means that the recelvables
trustee would not take priority over any interest of a later
encumbrancer or transferee of the transferor's rights who has no
notice of the transfer to the receivables trustee. This could lead to
a toss on your notes.

Failure to give notice to the cardholder also means that the
transferor or the cardholder can amend the card agreement
without obtaining the receivables trustee's consent. This could
adversely affect the recelvables trustee’s interest in the
receivables, which could lead to a loss on your notes.

The credit and charge card industry in the United Kingdom is
highly competitive. There is increased competitive use of
advertising, target marketing and pricing competition In interest
rates and cardholder fees as both traditional and new card issuers
seek to expand or enter the UK market and compete for
customers,

New card issuers may rely on customer toyalty and may have
particular ways of reaching and attracting customers. For
example, major supermarket retailers are promoting the use of
their own cards through extensive in-store campaigns and low
introductory interest rates, Also, in the last few years a number of
new card issuers have entered the UX market from the United
States and have sought to build market share primarily through
aggressive pricing. As a result of this competition, certan
competitors offer cards to selected customers at lower interest
rates than those offered by Barclaycard.

This competitive environment may affect the originator's ability
to ariginate new acccunts and generate new receivables. If the
rate at which new receivables are generated declines significantly
and if the transferor is unable 1o nominate additional accounts or
product lines for the receivables trust, a series 05-4 pay out event
could occur. A series 05-4 pay out event could result in an early
redemption of your notes.

Changes in card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the
card portfolio generally and the rate of defaults by cardholders
may result from a variety of social, legal, political and econornic
factors in the United Kingdom. Social factors Include changes in
public confidence levels, attitudes toward incurring debt and
perception of the use of credit and charge cards. Economic
factors include the rate of inflation, the unemployment rate and
relative interest rates offered for various types of loans. Political
factors include lobbying from interest groups, such as consumers
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Reduction in the Rate of
Interchange Caused by Potential
Adverse Regulatory Rulings May
Adversely Affect Payments on
Your Nates

and retailers, and gevernment inltiatives in consumer and related
affairs. There is currently significant political interest in the
consumer credit market and, in particular, credit cards. For
example, a recent report by the Treasury Select Committee in
credit card charges is placing significant public pressure on credit
card issuers to increase disclosure of charges. It is also calling for
the intreduction of a standardised approach to the calcufation of
interest rates, Since October 2003, the OFT has been investigating
the level of default charges applied by the credit card industry,
These are fees charged when a custemer pays late or goes over
their credit [Imit. Barclaycard, along with other credit card issuers,
has been cooperating with the Investigation. The OFT issued a
press release on 26th July 2005 stating that their provisfonal
conclusion was that these fees are excessive and need to be
reduced to be fair, The OFT gave Barclaycard, and seven other
credit card companies, three months to provide suitable
undertakings regarcding the basis of future default charges or
otherwise to address the concerns of the OFT. Barclaycard
responded to the OFT on 25th October 2005 further explaining
the positlon Barclaycard takes in respect of default fees. Over the
next months, it Is anticlpated that Barclays will continue to work
with the OFT to address its concerns. We are unable to determine
and have no basis on which to predict accurately whether, or to
what extent, soclal, legal, poitical or economic factors, including
the above-ngted QFT investigation and correspondence, will
affect the future use of credit, default rates, the yield on the card
partfolio generally or cardholder repayment patterns. In addition,
the Citlzens Advice Bureau has recently asked the OFT to consider
launching an Investigation In respect of the market for payment
protection insurance. We are unable to determine and have no
basis on which to predict accurately whether, or to what extent,
any potential OFT investigation in respect of payment protection
insurance would affect the yield on the card portfolio generally or
cardholder repayment patterns.

Barclaycard receives fees called “interchange” from the banks
that clear transactions for merchants as partial compensation for
amongst other things, taking credit risk and absorbing fraud
losses. See "The Receivables.” The OFT have been conducting an
exanination of whether the rates of Interchange paid by retallers
in respect of MasterCard credit and charge cards in the United
Kingdom are too high. In connection with this investigation, the
OFT have recently announced a decision with respect to an
agreement (which agreement is no longer in effect) regarding the
rate of interchange for MasterCard credit and charge cards. The
decision indicated that the agreement constituted a collective
agreement on price with respect to the level of interchange fees,
and akso stated that the agreement resulted In the unjustified
recovery of certain costs. The OFT have indicated that its
examination will consider the agreement currently in effect with
respect to rates of interchange to be paid in respect of
MasterCard credlt and charge cards. If an OFT decislon similar
to that reached regarding the ofd agreement is reached with
respect to the current agreement, or If agreement is reached on a
lower rate of interchange, such decision or agreement will
adwversely affect the yield on UK credit card portfolios. The OFT,
fellowing their announcement that they were investigating the
rates of interchange in respect of VISA cards, issued a statement
of objections on 19th October 2005 against VISA and VISA
members. According to the statement of objections, the OFT

25




Electrenic Commerce Directive

believes that, in a simitar way to the Mastercard interchange fees,
the VISA interchange fees restrict competition and breach
competition law. VISA and VISA members can now make oral
and written representations toe the OFT. The European
Commission issued a decision on 24 July 2002 concluding that
an exarnination of the level of cross-border interchange within
the European Unlon in respect of VISA credit and charge cards
was too high and required VISA to undertake a phased reduction
In the rate of interchange to be paid by retailers in the future. We
note that the European Commission will be free to re-examine
this issue after 31 December 2007, In addition, the European
Commission is presently investigating MasterCard's rules and
agreement, in particular on the interchange fees. A reduction in
the rate of interchange as a result of these findings could affect
the future yield on the card portfolfo and adversely affect
payment ¢n your notes.

With effect from (for the most part) 21 August 2002, the E-
Commerce Directive {the "ECD") has been effected in the Usnited
Kingdom by a number of statutory instruments and implementing
rules including, but not limited to, the Electronic Commerce {EC
Directive} Regulations 2002 (which apply to non-FSA regulated
enlities), the Electronic Commerce Directive {Financial Services
and Markets) Regulations 2002, as amended {which apply to FSA
regulated entities) and the creation of the Electronic Commerce
Directive sourcebook {"ECO"} in the FSA Handbook.

In essence the ECD aims to free up cross-border “information
sociely services” by requiring Member States to apply the
principle of "country of origin” regulation to services provided
using electronic means. “Information sociely services” are defined
as "any service normally provided for remuneration, at a distance
by means of electronic equipment for the processing {including
digital compression} and storage of data, and at the individual
request of a recipient of a service” and will therefore include {but
are not limited to) web-based online information. Under the
principle of “country of origin”, a firm providing cross-border
“information society services” must comply with the applicable
rules in the country from which it is providing the services and the
country into which it is providing the services cannot impose
additional restrictions. As such, in providing “information society
services” (whether in the UK or in another EEA state). the Seller
will be required to comply with applicable rules in the United
Kingdemn (including, but not limited to, the United Kingdom
financfal promations regime),

The ECD also requires Member States to impose disclosure and
other rules on firms offering "information society services' before
any contract is entered into. The information to be disclosed
includes, but is not limited to, contact details and background
information In respect of the service provider, a variety of
information which is required to be provided n a clear ang
unambiguous manner and disclosure of informaticn to the
recipient on how o conclude contractual arrangements.

Failure to comply with the ECO rules could result in, amongst
other things, disciplinary action by the FSA and possible claims
under section 150 of FSMA for breach of FSA rules. Under the
Electronic Commerce (EC Directive} Regulations 2002 the
Information disclosure requirements are enforceable, at the suit
of any recipient of a service, by an action against the service
provider for damages for breach of statutory duty. In addition,
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A Change in the Terms of the -
Receivables May Adversely Affect
the Amount or Timing of
Collections and May Cause an
Early Redemption of Your Notes
or a Downgrade of Your Notes

Pringipal on Your Notes May Be
Paid Earlier Than Expected -
Creating a Reinvestment Risk to
You — or Later than Expected

Credit Enhancement May Be
Insufficient to Prevent a Loss an
Your Notes

where a person has entered into 2 contract to which the
Electronic Commerce {EC Directive) Regulations 2002 apply and
the service provider has not made available means of allowing
him to identify and correct input errors prior to cencluding the
contract, the recipient will be entitled to rescind the contract
unless a court having jurisdiction in respect of the particular
contract orders otherwise on the application of the service
provider. The Electrenic Commerce {EC Directive) Regulations
2002 also enable an application to ke made for a court order to
stop an infringement of the information disclosure requirements
which harms the collective interests of consumers,

Only the recelvables arising under the designated accounts are
transferred to the receivables trustee. The originator will continue
to own those accounts. As the owner of the accounts, the
orlginator retains the right to change the terms of the accounts.
For example, the originator could change the monthly interest
rate, increase or reduce the credit limits on the accounts, reduce
or eliminate fees on the accounts or reduce the required
minimum monthly payment.

The orlginater may change the terms of the accounts to maintain
its competitive position In the UK credit and charge card industry.
Changes in interest and fees could lower the amount of finance
charge receivables generated by those accounts. This could cause
a pay out event to occur, which might cause an early redemption
of your notes. This could also cause a reduction in the credit
ratings on your notes.

The recelvables in the recelvatyles trust may be paid at any time
and we cannot assure you that new receivables will be generated
or will be generated at levels needed to maintain the receivables
trust. To prevent the early redemption of the notes, new
receivables must be generated and added to the receivables
trust or new accounts must be nominated for the receivables
trust. The recelvables trust is required to maintain a minimum
amount of receivables. The generation of new receivables or
receivables in new accounts Is affected by the originator's ability
to compete in the current industry environment and by
customers changing borrowing and payment patierns. If there is
a decline in the generation of new receivables or new accounts,
you may be repaid your principal before the expected date.

One factor that affects the level of finance charges and principal
collections Is the extent of convenience usage. Convenience use
means that the cardholders pay their account balances in full on
or prior to the due date. The cardholder, therefore, avoids all
finance charges on his or her account An increase in the
convenience usage by cardholders would decrease the effective
yield on the accounts and could cause a pay out event and
therefore possibly an early redemption of your notes.

No premium will be paid upon an early redemption of your notes.
If you receive principal on your notes earlier than expected, you
may not be able to reinvest the principal at a similar rate of
return.

Alternatively, a decrease in convenlence usage may reduce the
principal payment rate on the accounts. This could result in you
recelving the principal on your notes later than expected.

Credit enhancement for your notes is limited, The only assets that
will be available to make payment on your notes are the assets of
the issuer pledged to secure payment of your notes. If problems
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Issuance of Additionai Series by
the Receivables Trustee on Behalf
of the Receivables Trust May
Adversely Affect Payments on
Your Notes

Credit Quality of the Receivables
Trust's Assets May Be Eroded by
the Addition of New Accounts
Which Could Adversely Affect
Collections of Receivables

Interest Rate Payable an the
Series 05-4 Medium Term Note
Certificate May Increase Without
a Corresponding Change in Card
Rates Potentially Causing a Loss
on Your Notes or Early
Redemption of Your Notes

develop with the receivabtes, such as an increase In losses on the
receivables, or If there are problems in the collection and transfer
of the recelvables to the trust, or if the swap counterparty fails to
make payments on the swap agreement, it is possible that you
may not receive the full amount of interest and principal that you
would otherwise receive.

Serles 05-4 is the eleventh series (of which oniy ten {including
series 05-4) are outstanding} created within the receivables trust.
Additional series may fram time t¢ time be created within the
receivables trust. Any new series of investor certificates - and
medium term notes or certificates and notes — will also be payable
from the receivables in the recelvables trust. The principal terms
of any new series of investor certificates will be contained in a
new series supplernent to the declaration of trust and trust cash
mgnagement agreement. The terms of a new series contalned in
the new supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash
management will not be subject to your prior review or consent.

The principal terms of a new series may include methods for
determining investor percentages and allocating collectlons,
provislons creating different or additlonal security or other
credit enhancement for the new series, provisions subordinating
the new series to other series, and other amendments or
supplements to the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement that apply only to the new series. It is
a condition to the issuance of a new series that each rating agency
that has rated any debt ultimately payable from a prior series of
investor certificates that is outstanding - including your notes —
confirms In writing that the issuance of the new series will not
result In a reduction or withdrawal of its rating.

However, the terms of a new series could adversely affect the
timing and amounts of payments on any other outstanding series,
including sertes of which your notes are a part.

The transferor may designate additional credit or charge card
accounts as designated accounts and offer the receivables trustee
an assignment of the recelvables arising under the additicnal
accounts. The transferor may be required at times to nominate
additional accounts as designated acceunts, These accounts may
include accounts that were originated er acquired using criteria
that are different from those applicable to the accounts from
which recelvables were orlginally assigned to the receivables
trustee. For example, they could be originated at a different date
with different underwriting standards, or they could be acquired
from another Institutlon that used different underwriting
standards. Consequently, there can be no assurance that
accounts that become designated accounts in the future will
have the same credit quality as the designated accounts on the
closing date. This could adversely affect collections on the
receivables. If this occurred you could suffer a less on your notes.

In line with the rest of the UK market, Barclaycard may apply
differential interest rates to each product offering, some of which
may be fixed for predetermined periods. The majority of the
designated accounts have monthly interest rates that are
constant, except for Barclaycard's abifity to change the interest
rate at its discretion. The interest rate paid on the series 05-4
medium term note certificate will be based on the London
interbank offered rate for deposits in sterling, which changes
from time to time. Accordingly, the interest payable on the series
05-4 medium term note certificate could increase without a
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Commingling of Collections with
Transferor May Delay or Reduce
Payments on Your Notes

If the Transferor Opts to Treat a
Portien of Principal Receivables
as Finance Charge Recelvables,
an Early Redemption of Your
Notes Could Occur or Could Be
Delayed

Exercise of Regulatory Call
Option will Result in Mandatory
Call on Class B Notes and Class C
Notes

corresponding increase in the amount of finance charge
collections. 1f this occurred, you could suffer a loss on your
nctes or a pay out event could eccur causing an early redemption
of your notes.

Collections fromn cardhelders for the designated accounts and
other Barclaycard cardholders will initially be paid tc an operating
account of the transferor. The transferor has declared a trust over
the operating account in favour of the receivabies trustee for
collections that are deposited in it. Collections on the designated
accounts will be transferred to the trustee coflection account
within two business days of being identified.

For the limited time that collections on the designated accounts
are In the operating account, they may be commingled with other
funds of the transfercr or future beneficiaries and they may be
untraceable. Consequently, if the transferor were to become
insolvent, there may be a delay in the transfer of collections to the
receivables trustee if the transferer - or a liquidator or
administrator of the transferor - attempted to freeze the
operation of the operating account pending completion of any
rights of tracing. This could ultimately cause a delay or reduction
in the payments you receive on your notes.

The transferor may opt to cause a percentage of receivables that
would otherwise be treated as principal receivables to be treated
as finance charge receivabies. If the transferor were to exercise
this option, it could prevent a pay out event from occurring
because of a reduction of the pertfolio yield, which could delay an
early redemption of your notes at a time when the performance
of the receivables is deteriorating. Once this option is exercised,
the transferor may also reduce the percentage or stop using the
percentage at any time, However, this option, if exercised, will
reduce the aggregate amount of principal receivables, which may
increase the likelihood that the transferor will be required to
designate additionzl accounts from which receivables will be
assigned to the receivabtes trustee. If the transferor were unable
to designate additional accounts, a pay out event could occur and
you could recelve payments of principal on your notes before you
expect them.

In the event of the cccurrence of a regulatory call event (as
defined below}, the regulatory call eptlon (as defined below) is
required to be mandatorily exercised. If a regulatory call event
occurs, the Issuer shall as soon as practicable followlng the
occurrence of such regulatory call event by not less than thirty
and not more than sixty days prior notice to the note trustee and
noteholders call all, but not some only, of the class 8 notes and
the class C notes, such call to be exercisable on the interest
payment date following any such notice. On such interest
payment date following any such notice, If you are a holder of
class B notes and/or ctass C notes, you are required to sell all of
your class B notes and/or class C notes {as appticable) to the
issuer (or any assignee of the regulatory call option), pursuant to
the option granted to the issuer by the note trustee on your
behalf (see condition number 6 of the notes). Such notice must
confirm that there will be sufficient funds available to satisfy all
obligations in connection with the exercise of such call option.
The regulatory call option is granted to acquire afl, but not some
only, of the then outstanding class B notes and class € aotes, plus
accrued interest {if any} on them, for a purchase price equal to
the then par value of the class B notes and class C notes. This is
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If Optional Early Redemption
Occurs, It Will Result in an Early
Redemption of Your Notes
Creating a Reinvestment Risk

If Cardholders Are Concentrated
in a Geograghic Region,
Economlic Downturn in that
Ragian May Adversely Affect
Collections of Receivables

Adaption of the Euro by the
United Kingdom Would Have
Uncertain Effects on Your Notes

called the “regulatory call option”. A “regulatory call event”
means the deiivery to the Issuer and the note trustee of a notice
from Barclays Bank PLC which states that the regulatory capital
treatment for Barclays Bank PLC applicable in respect of the
transaction to which the issuance of the ¢lass B notes and class C
notes retates has become materially impaired by the
implementation of the reform of the 1988 Capital Accord (in
conjunction with proposals put forward by the Basel Cornmittee
on Banking Supervision and to be implemented for credit
institutions pursuant to the EU Capital Adequacy Directive).
immediately following the issuance of the notes. the issuer
intends to irrevocably novate its rights and obligations under the
regulatery call cotion to Barclays Bank PLC and accordingty in the
event of such assignment the exercise of the regulatory call
option will require you to seil your class B notes and/or class C
notes (as applicable} to Barclays Bank PLC.

When the total principal balance of the notes is reduced to less
than 10 per cent. of their originai principal balance, the issuer has
the option to redeem the notes in full. This early redemption may
result in an early return of your investment. No premium wlil be
paid in the event of an exercise of the early redemptlon option. If
you receive principal on your notes earlier than expected, you
may not be able to reinvest the principal at a rate of return similar
to that on your notes.

If the receivables trust has a high concentration of recelvables
from cardholders located in a single region, an economic
downturn in that region may have a magnified adverse effect
on the receivables trust because of that concentration. This
prospectus contzins a geographic breakdown of accounts and the
amount of receivables generated in the regions of the United
Kingdom. See “The Receivgbles: Geographic Distribution of
Accounts - Securitised Portfolio’.

As determined from postcode information for the location of
cardhotders as of 30 September 2005. the three largest
concentrations of cardholders as at 30 September 2005 were
Londen representing 19.1 per cent. of total owtstanding balances,
the South East of England with 16.5 per cent. of total outstanding
balances and the East of Fngland with 11.3 per cent. of total
outstanding balances. No other region currently accounts for
more than 8.9 per cent. of the outstanding balance of the
receivables, These concentration levels may change in the future.

Future adverse economic conditions affecting any of these
regions or any of the other regions, however, could adversely
affect the performance of the receivables which could resuit in a
loss an your notes.

Before your notes have matured, the eurp could become the
{awful currency of the United Kingdom. If that were to happen, all
amounts payabie on the series 05-4 medium term note certlficate
- including the sterling payments owed to the swap counterparty
on the swap agreements but not any dollar payments made by the
swap counterparty to the issuer — may become payable in euro. if
the series 05-4 medium term note certificate is outstanding when
the euro becomes the lawfui currency of the United Kingdom, we
intend to make payments on the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate and the swap agreements according to the then market
practice of payment on debis or, as the case may be, swaps. We
are uncertain what effect, if any, the adeption of the euvro by the
United Kingdcm may riave on your notes.
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Taxable Nature of the MTN
Issuer or the ssuer Could Cause
a Loss on Your Notes

As explalned in “Prospectus Summuary: United Kingdom Tax
Stgtus” above, the MTN Issuer and the issuer will be liable to UK
corporation tax at the maximum rate of currently 30 per cent. on
the profit reflected in their respective profit and loss accounts as
prepared (for tax purposes) in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice as applicable in the UK fer the
accounting perfods ending on 31 Decernber 2004 as increased to
take account of any non-deductible expenses or losses; which
profit before any such increase Is not expected to exceed 1 basis
point of the principal amount outstanding on the medium term
notes and certificates and the notes respectivety.

As also explained above, the United Xingdom tax authorities are
currently engaged in consultations with the securltisation industry
regarding changes to the tax rufes that are applicable to
“securitlsation companies” such as the MTN Issuer and the
issuer, with those changes being expected to take effect in relation
to the MTN issuer and the issuer as of the commencement of
2007. This is part of a wider review of the UK tax legislation, the
purpose of which Is to ensure that UK taxpayers do not suffer
unsystainable tax anomalies as a result of the transition to
accounting under international Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS™) {or under new UK accounting standards based on IFRS).
The UK tax authorities have Indicated over a considerable period
that their general policy is to preserve the tax neutrality of
securitisation companies such as the MTN Issuer and the issuer.
However, if the relevant revised tax rules, when introduced, do not
maintaln such tax neutrality, the MTN Issuer or the issuer, as the
case may be, may in consequence be subject to corporation tax on
a greater amaount, and you could suffer losses on your notes as a
result.

If the taxable profits of the MTN Issuer or the issuer are greater
than expected, because either the profit shown in the profit and
loss account as prepared (for tax purposes) in accordance with
generally accepted acceunting practice as applicable in the UK for
the accounting periods ending on 31 December 2004 is greater
than 1 basis point of the principal amount outstanding, or non-
deductible expenses or losses are greater than expected, the MTN
Issuer or the issuer, as the case may be, will be subject to
corporation tax on the greater amount at the maximum rate of
currently 30 per cent., and you could suffer lasses on your notes
as a result,

In order for the closing of the sale of the notes to occur, an
opinion must be obtained from LK tax advisers covering the
matters described under the heading “Frospectus Summary:
United Kingdom Tox Status” above, and In particular confirming
the expected tax treatment of the MTN lssuer and the issuer and
anatysing in detail the sorts of expenses which either entity can
incur which may not be deductible. Subject to finalisation of
documents including those which are exhlbits to the registration
statement of which this prospectus forms a part in a form which is
sat/sfactory to them and not inconsistent with the descriptions set
out in the body of this prospectus. Clifford Chance Limited
Liability Partnership, as special UK tax advisers, expect to deliver
this tax opinion which will allow the notes to be assigned the
appropriate rating.

The structure of the issue of the notes and the ratings which are
to be assigned to them are based on English law, regulatory,
accounting and administrative practice in effect as at the date of
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Change in the Taxable Nature ar
Basis of Taxation of the
Receivables Trustee, MTN Issuer
or Issuer Could Cause a Lass an
Your Notes

Limited Nature of Credit Ratings
Assigned to Your Notes

Ratings Can Be Lowered or
Withdrawn After You Purchase
Your Notes

this prospectus, and having due regard to the expected tax
treatment of the issuer and the MTN Issuer under United Kingdom
tax law and the published practice of HMRC in force or applied in
the United Kingdom as at the date of this prospectus. No¢
assurance can be glven as to the impact of any possible change to
English law, regulatory, accounting or administrative practice in
the United Kingdem or to United Kingdom tax law, or the
interpretation or administration thereof, or te the published
practice of HMRC, as applied 'n the United Kingdom after the date
of this prospectus.

If there Is a relevant change of law In the United Kingdom or
Jersey, or change of practice of HMRC, or change in the
accounting treatment of the MTN Issuer or the issuer, this
could result in the taxable profits of the MTN Issuer or the issuer
being greater than expected and you could suffer losses on your
notes as a rasult.

An opinion of UK tax advisers, however, is nat binding on HMRC
or the courts, and no specific transaction rudings on this issue will
be obtained from HMRC. In addition, there 5 no case law
autherity on a number of features of the transactions that raise
difficult questions.

Each credit ratlng assigned tc your notes reflects the rating
agency's assessment only of the likelihood that interest and
principal will be paid to you by the final redempticn date, not that
it will be pald when expected or scheduled. These ratings are
based ¢n the rating agencies’ determination of the value of the
receivables, the rellability of the payments on the receivables, the
creditworthlness of the swap counterparty and the availability of
credit enhancement.

The ratings do not address the following:

e theiikelihood that the principat or interest on your notes wilt
be redeemed or paid, as expected, on the scheduled
redemption dates;

& the possibility of the imposition of United Kingdom or
European withholding tax;

« the rarketabllity of the notes, or any market price; or

e that an investment in the notes Is a suitable investment for
You.

A rating is not a recommendation to purchase, hoid or sell notes.

Any rating agency may {ower its rating or withdraw its rating if, in
the sole judgement of the rating agency, the credit quality of the
notes has declined or is in question ar for other tangible and
intangible reasons, If any rating assigned to your notes is lowered
or withdrawn, the market vaiue of your notes may be reduced.

Pursuant to the swap agreemenis the swap counterparty may
assign the swap agreements to a replacernent swap counterparty
if the long-term credit rating of the swap counterparty is
withdrawn or reduced below “Ai” by Moody's or its short-term
credit rating is withdrawn or reduced below "P-1" by Moody's or
its short-term credit rating is reduced below “A-1+" by Standard
& Poor's and the swap counterparty has not remedied the evant
or conducted such other actions (such as collateralisation or the
obtaining of a guarantor) set out under the terms of the swap
agreements. We cannot assure you, however, that the swap
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Termination of the Swap
Agreements Could Result in an
Early Redemption of Your Maotes

Change in Law May Result in
Withholding Taxes on Swap
Payments or the Series 05-4
Medium Term Note

Certificate and this May Reduce
the Amount You Are Paid on
Your Notes

counterparty wiil be able to find a replacement counterparty and
asslgn the swap agreements In this event or that the ratings of
your notes will not be withdrawn ¢r reduced in this event,

A swap agreement may be terminated, but only if the issuer has
been directed to do so by the relevant noteholders, if as a result of
a change in applicable law, withholding taxes would be imposed —
by any jurisdiction - on payments to the issuer under the series
05-4 medium term note certificate or on any payments made or
required to be made to the issuer by the swap counterparty or by
the issuer to the swap counterparty under the swap agreement
and there are not any reasonable measures that the swap
counterparty or the issuer can take to aveid their imposition. In
addition, a swap agreement may be terminated, but only if the
issuer has been directed to do sp by the relevant noteholders, if as
a result of a change in applicable law, the issuer or any paying
agent has or will become obligated to deduct or withhold
amounts from payments on the related class of notes to be made
to any of the related noteholders on the next interest payment
date, for any tax, assessment or other governmental charge
imposed by the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or
taxing authority of the United Kingdom on the payments and
there are no reasonable measures the issuer can take to avoid the
tax or assessment.

A payment default by the swap counterparty or a default in the
payment in respect of interest by the issuer to the swap
counterparty, if funds are available to the issuer to make that
payment, will result in a termination of a swap agreement, The
swap agreements may also terminate following a materiat breach
of a representation or covenant by the swap counterparty, the
Insolvency of the issuer or the swap counterparty or changes in
law resulting in illegality.

The swap agreemeni may also be terminated if certain other
events described under "The Swap Agreements: Common
Provisions of the Swap Agreements” occur.

The termination without replacement of any of the swap
agreernents will result in an event of default under the notes
and a pay out event that results in a rapid amortisation period. We
cannot assure you that any of the swap agreements will not
terminate prior to the payment in full of the principal balance of
your notes. i any of the swap agreements terminates prior to the
payment in full of the principal balance of your notes, you could
receive payments of principal en your notes befere you expect
them.

The issuer and the swap counterparty will each represent and
warrant in each swap agreement that, under current applicable
lzw, each of them is entitled to make all payments required to be
made by them under the swap agreement free and clear of, and
without deduction for or on account of, any taxes, assessments or
other governmental charges ~ which we refer to as withholding
taxes. However, neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty will
be required to indemnify the other party for any withholding
taxes imposed on payments under a swap agreement as a result of
a change in applicable law.

If any withholding taxes would be imposed - by any jurisdiction —
on payments to the issuer under the series 05-4 medium term
note as a result of a change in applicable law, then the MTN Issuer
additional interest payments, to the extent available, wlll be
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Change in Law May Result in
Withholding Taxes on Your Notes
and this May Reduce the Amount
You Are Paid on Your Notes

Payment of an Early Termination
Payment to the Swap
Counterparty May Reduce
Payments on Your Notes

converted at the spot exchange rate in US doliars to cover the
shortfall in the amounts available for payment to the noteholders
caused by the arnount withheld. If the MTN lIssuer additional
interest payments are not sufficient to cover the shortfall, then
payments to first the class C noteholders, second the class B
noteholders and finally the class A noteholders will be reduced by
the amount withheld that is not covered by the MTN lssuer
additional interest payments.

W any withholding 1 would be imposed - by any jurisdiction - on
any payments made ot required to be made by the swap
counterparty to the issuer or by the issuer to the swap
counterparty under a swap agreement as a result of a change in
applicable taw and the obligation to deduct or withhold cannot be
avoided by the swap counterparty or the issuer, then the amount
to be paid by the other party will be reduced also pro rata by any
amount withheld for any withholding taxes. In that event the MTN
tssuer additional interest payments, to the extent availabte, will be
converted at the spot exchange rate in US dollars to cover the
shortfall In the amaounts available for payment to the notehciders
caused by the amount withheld. If the MTN Issuer additional
interest payments are not sufficient to cover the shortfall, then
payments to first the class C notehokders, second the class B
noteholders and finafly the class A noteholders will be reduced by
the amount withheld that Is not covered by the MTN Issier
additignal interest payments. See “The Swap Agreements —
Taxgtion”.

Alternatively, the issuer may terminate the swap agreement but
only if It has been directed to do so by the relevant noteholders.
See “The Swap Agreemenls’.

If any UK withholding taxes are imposed on any payments made
or required to be made by the issuer or any paying agent on any
ciass of notes, then payments to that class of noteholders will be
reduced pro rgta by any amount withheld for any withholding
taxes, and in addition, if the relevant nateholders so elect to direct
the issuer, the issuer will terminate the swap. See "The Swap
Agreements.”

If a swap agreement is terminated before its scheduled
termination date, the Issuer or the swap counterparty may be
lizble to make an early termination payment to the other party.
The amount of any early termination payment will be based on
the market value of the terminated swap agreement. This market
value will be computed on the basis of market quotations of the
cost of entering into a swap transaction with the same terms and
conditions that would have the effect of preserving the respective
full payment obligations of the parties. Any early termination
payment could, if the sterling/dollar exchange rate has changed
significantly, be substantial,

Any early termination payment made by the issuer to the swap
counterparty under a swap agreement will be made first from
MTN Issuer additional interest payments and second from
repayments of principal on the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate equal to the amount of principal repayments received
by the issuer on the series 05-4 rnedium term note certificate.
That could cause the sterling amounts available for conversion to
doltars, and possibly your payments, 1o be reduced - perhaps
substantially. if the amount of available MTN Issuer additional
interest payments and repayments of principat on the series 05-4
meditm term note certlficate is insufficient to pay the earfy
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You will not Receive Physical
Notes, Which May Cause Delays
in Distributions and Hamper Your
Ability to Pledge or Resell the
Notes

termination payment under the relevant swap agreement, the
batance of the early termination payment will be pald to the
extent that such amounts are available on the next interest
payment date together with interest See "The Swap
Agreements”.

Unless the global note certificates are exchanged for individual
note certificates, which witl only occur under a limited set of
circumstances, your beneficial ownership of the notes will only be
registered In  beook-entry form  with DTC, Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg. The tack of physical notes could,
among other things:

® result in payment delays on the notes because we will be
sending distributions on the notes to DTC, Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg instead of directly to you;

& make it difficult for you to pledge or otherwise grant security
over the notes if physical notes are required by the party
demanding the pledge or other security; and

# hinder your ability to reseli the notes because some investors
may be unwilling to buy notes that are not in physical form.



introduction

You can find a listing of the pages where terms used in this prospectus are defined under the
capticn “index Of Terms For Prospectus” beginning on page 169.

U.S. Dollar Presentation

Unless this prospectus provides a different rate, the translations of dollars into pounds sterling have
beep made at the rate of 0.5664, which is the closing price on 1 November 2005 for the dollar/
sterling exchange rate as displayed on the Bloomberg Service under USD-GEBP Currency HP. Using
this rate does not mean that pound sterling amounts actually represent those U.S, dollar amounts
or coudd be converted into U.S. dellars at that rate.

References throughout this document to "£", “pounds”, “sterling” or “pounds sterling” are to the
lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and MNorthern Ireland. References in this
document to “U.S.$", “$” “U.S. dollars” or “dollars” are to the lawful currency of the United States
of America. References in this document to "euro” or "€ are to the single currency introduced at
the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the
European Communities, as amended by the Treaty on Eurepean Union.

The following table sets forth the history of the dollar/steding exchange rates for the six most
recent manths and for the five most recent years.

Dotlar/Sterling Exchange Rate History!"

October  Sepltember August July lune May

2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005

Last® 0.5651 0.5665 0.5543 0.568% 0.5582 0.5503

Average® 0.5666 0.5533 05572 ¢.570% 0.5500 0.5395

High 0.5726 0.5678 0.5656 0.5756 05582 0.5503

Low 0.5604 0.5422 0.5510 0.5624 0.5449 0.5244
Yeor ended 31 December

2004 2009 2002 2001 2000

Last!® 0.5182 0.5600 0.6209 0.6875 0.6698

Average'? 0.5460 0.6120 0.6651 0.6943 0.6609

High 0.5460 0.6434 0.7101 0.7282 0.7153

Low 0.5182 ¢.5600 0.6209 0.6650 0.6047

Motes

(1) Data abtained from Bloomberg USD-GBP “CRNCY" HF screen (MId London Cumposite).
(2) Last is the closing exchange rate on the l2st business day of each of the periods indicated.
(3} Average Is the average daily exchange rate during the periods indicated.



The Issuer

The fssuer was formed in England and Wales on 7 September 2005 under the name of Purpleway
PLC with registered number 5555762 as a public company with limited liability under the
Companies Acts 1585 and 1589, which is also the primary legislation under which the issuer
operates. It passed a specfal resolution to change its name to Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne. 11)
PLC on 31 October 2005. Its registered office and principal place of business are located at 1
Churchill Place, London E14 5HP, United Kingdom (tel: 0207 1161000). The issuer has no
substdlaries.

The issuer was incorporated with an authorised share capital of £50,000, comprising 50,000
ordinary shares of £1 each. Two ordinary shares were allotted for cash, and fully paid, on
incorporation. On 31 October 2005, 49,998 ordinary shares were resolved to be allotted and on 31
Cctober 2005 were each guarter paid. 49,939 shares are held by Gracechurch Card {Heldings)
Limited and one share is held by a share trustee under the terms of a share declaration of trust. It
has a fiscal vear end date of 31 December. There Is no loan capital, borrowing, other indebtedness,
contingent llabilitles or guarantees as at the date of this prospectus in respect of this company.
There has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness, guarantees and contingent
llabilities and the Isswer has not traded since 7 September 2005.

The issuer was formed principally to:

&  issue the notes;

& enter into all financial arrangements in arder to issue the notes;
e purchase the series 05-4 medium term note certificate; and
L ]

enter lato all the documents necessary to purchase the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate,

Directors and Secretary

The following sets out the directors of the issuer and their business addresses and principal
activities, Because the issuer is organised as a special purpose company and will be largely passive,
it Is expected that the directors of the issuer in that capacity will participate in its management to
a limited extent.

Name Nationality Business Address Principal Activities

Paul Gerard Turner British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director,
Northampton NN4 75G Barclaycard

SFM Directors Limited British 35 Great St. Helen's, Director of special
Ltondon EC3A GAP purpose companles

SFM Directors (Ne. 2) Limited  British 35 Great St. Helen's, Director of speclal
London EC3A 6AP purpose companies

lchn Llewellyn-Jones is an alternate director to Paul Gerard Turner. His principal activity is Financial
Controller, Barclaycard. His business address is 1234 Pavilion Drive, Northampton NN4 75C.

The directors of SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors (No. 2) Limited are Jonathan Keighley,
James Macdonald and Robert Berry. Their principal activities include the provision of directors and
corporate management services to structured finance transactions as directors on the boards of
SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors (No, 2) Limited, The business address of the directors of
SFM Directors Limited and SFM Directors (No. 2) Limited is 35 Great St Helen's, London EC3A
BAP.

Barcosec Lirmited will provide the issuer with general secretarial, registrar and company
administration services. The fees of Barcosec Limited for providing such services will be in¢luded in
the MTN Issuer Costs Amounts. See “Series 05-4; Allocation, Calculation ond Distribution of Finance
Charge Colfections to the MTN Issuer”.



The secretary of the Issuer:

Name Business Address
Barcosec Limited 3 Churchill Place, London E14 5HP

The net proceeds of the sale of the notes converted into sterting under the swap agreement
together with a drawing under the expenses loan agreement will be used by the issuer to purchase
the series 05-4 medium term note certificate. The issuer will be prohibited by the trust deed and
the terms and conditions of the notes from engaging In butiness other than:

#  the business described In this prospectus;

®  preserving and exercising its rights under the notes, the deed of charge, the paying agency
and agent bank agreement, the trust deed, the expenses loan agreement the swap
agreements, the corporate services agreement and the underwriting agreements for the notes;
and

& purchasing the series 05-4 medium term note certificate.

The issuer’s ability to Incur, assume or guarantee debt will also be restricted by the trust deed and
the terms and conditions of the notes.

Barclays does not own, directty or indirectly, any of the share capital of the Issuer,

Capltalisation and Indebtedness

As at the date of this prospectus, the issuer has no loan capitel outstanding or created but
unissued. no term loans outstanding and no other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowings guaranteed or unguaranteed, secured or unsecured nor any contingent liabilities.

Two ordinary shares were ailotted for cash, and fully paid, on incorporation. On 31 October 2005,
49,998 ordinary shares were resolved to be aliotted, and on 31 October 2005 were each quarter
paid.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations

Sources of Capital and Liquidity
The issuer's saurce of capital will be the net proceeds of the offering of the notes.

The issuer's primary sources of liquidity will be payments of interest and principal on the series
05-4 medium term note certificate and borrowings under the expenses loan agreement.

Resuits of Operations

As of the date of this prospecius, the issuer does not have an cperating history. The 1ssuer has not
traded since its date of incorporation being 7 September 2005. Because the issuer does not have
an pperating history, we have not included in this prospectus any historical or pro forma ratio of
earnings to fixed charges. The earnings on the series 03-4 medium Llerm note certificate, the
interest costs of the notes and the related operating expenses will determine the issuer's results of
operations in the future. The incorne generated on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate
will be used to pay principal and interest on the notes.

Litigation

There are no, nor since the issuer's incorporation on 7 September 2005 have there been any.
governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or
threatened of which the issuer is aware, which may have, or have had in the recent past, a
significant effect on the Issuer's financial position or profitability.

Use Of Proceeds

The net proceeds of the issue of the notes will be $998,175,000. The fees and commissions pavable
on the issue of the notes in an amount equal to 51825000 will be deducted from the gross
proceeds of the issue. The issuer will use its reasonable endeavours to make a drawing under the
experses loan agreement of at least an amount equal to the fees and commissions payable on the
notes, such tnat the net proceeds and such expenses loan drawing will in aggregate be equa! to
$1,060,000,0600. The issuer will use the net proceeds of the issue of the notes converted into
sterling under Tre swap agreements together with the drawing under the expenses loan agreernent
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to purchase the series 05-4 medium term note certificate from the MTN Ilssuer on or about 28
Novemnber 2005 - called the "dlesing date”

Expenses Loan Agreement

On the closing date, the issuer - as borrower - will enter intc a lean agreement with Barclays - as
lender — under which Barclays will lend to the issuer up to a maximum amount of £2,400,000 to
be used by the issuer to meet its costs and expenses relating to issuing the notes, This loan
agreement is called the "expenses loan agreement”. The amount outstanding under the expenses
lpan agreement will bear interest at the rate of one-month sterling LIBOR plus a margin of 1,35
per cent. per annum. The payment of interest under the expenses toan agreement will be paid
monthiy on each distribution date. To the extent the Issuer has insufficlent funds left after making
all payments of principal and Interest on the notes, the amount of that interest will be deferred
until the next distribution date. The principal amount outstanding under the expenses loan
agreement will not fall due for repayment uatil all principal, interest and other amounts due on the
notes have been paid in full. The principal amount outstanding under the expenses loan agreement
will be repaid out of amounts received by the issuer on the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate, which will Include MTN Issuer additional interest amounts,
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The MTN Issuer

The MTN Issuer was formed in England and Wales on )3 August 1990 as Barshelfco (No. 28)

Limited, with registered number 2530163, as a company with limited liability under the Companies

Acts 1985 and 1989, which is the primary legislation under which the MTN Issuer operates. It re-

registered as a public limited company and changed its name to Barclaycard Funding PLC on 19

October 1499, its registered office and princlpal place of business are located at 1 Churchill Place,

London £14 5HP, United Kingdom {tel: 0207 1161000). The MTN Issuer has an interest in a non-

qualifying special purpose entity the results of which are included In the financial statements of the

MTN Issuer.

The MTN Issuer has a fiscal year end of 31 December. The board of directors approved a change

in the fiscal year end from 14 Decemnber to 31 Decemnber to align the fiscal year end with that of

Barclays Bank PLC. All reports after 14 December 2002 have been and will be prepared on the

basis of the new fiscal year. The period from 15 December 2002 to 31 December 2002 is less than

one month and is covered in the annual report for the period ended 37 December 2003.

The comparability of the 2004 information with the prior pericd, as presented, has been impacted

by the factors noted below that are not attributale to the transition period arising on change fn

the fiscal year end.

On 15 November 2002 the $1bn series 99-1 asset backed notes that were consclidated in the

financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC were redeemed in fuil.

When compared to the corresponding prior perlods, the financial information for 2003 therefore

excludes interest and other fees in respect of series 99-1 together with foreign exchange

differences on the series 99-1 asset backed notes In issue and the gains and losses on derivative

instruments that matured on the redemption of the series 99-1 notes,

The series 02-1, series 03.1, serles 03-2, serles 03-3, serlfes 04-1 and serles 04-2 issued after

14 December 2002 and that are still in issue as at 31 December 2004 are not consolidated in the

financial statements of the MTN Issuer.

The MTN Issuer was formed principally to:

®  issue medium term notes ¢r certificates from time to time in series;

e enter into the financial arrangements to issue the medium term notes or certificates:

e purchase series of investor certlficates from time to time representing a beneficial interest in
the receivables trust; and

. enter into the documents and exercise its powers connected to the above.

The MTN Issuer has not engaged in any activities since its Incorporation cther than the above.

The £12,502 called up share capltal of the MTN lIssuer comprises 49,998 ordinary £1 shares that

have been authorised, ssued and quarter called and paid and 2 ordinary {1 shares that have been

authorised, Issued and fully paid up.

Barclays holds 75 per cent. of the issued share capltal of the MTN Issuer, representing 51 per cent.

of the issued voting share capital and a 49 per cent. entitlement to distributable profits. The

remaining share capital /s held by Structured Finance Management Limited.

The annual accounts of the MTN Issuer for the last three financial years have been audited.

Capitalisation and Indebtedness

Set out below is the unaudited capitalisation and indebtedness statement of the MTN Issuer as at
the date of this prospectus extracted without material adjustment from its audited financial
statements as at 31 December 2004 under UK GAAP adjusted for the serles 05-1 medium term
note certificate issued on 21 June 2005, series 05-2 medium term note certificate issued on 20
September 2005, series 05-3 medium term note certificate issued on 20 October 2005 and series
05-4 medium term note certificate to be issued on 28 November 2005
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Share Capital
Total authorised and issued share capital (being 2 fully paid shares and 37,498 quarter

paid A ordinary shares and 12,500 quarter paid B ordinary shares) £12,50?2
Loan Note Certificate (issued 18 October 2002)"**

£643,624,895 series 02-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £643,624,895
Loan Note Certificate {issued 8 April 2003)***

E637,064,407 series 03-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 £637,064.407
Loan Note Certificate {issued 19 June 2003)***

£599,448,507 series 03-2 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2006 £593,448,507
Loan Note Certificate (issued 18 September 2003)***

£628,140,704 series 03-3 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2006 £628,140,704
Loan Note Certificate {issued 11 March 2004)***

£404,312,668 series 04-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £404,312,668
Loan Note Certificate {issued 23 November 2004)***

£405.405.405 series 04-2 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2007 £405,405,4G5
Accrued fees and charges 264,492
Interest payable 8450511
Capitatisatlon and indebtedness as at 31 December 2004 3,326,764,091
Loan Note Certificate (issued 21 June 2005)***

£824,764,942 series 05-1 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 £824,764.942
Loan Note Certificate {issued 20 September 2005)***

£815,239,545" series 05-2 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 £815,239,545
Loan Note Certificate {issued 20 October 2005)***

£1,273,702,000 series 05-3 floating rate mediurm term note certificate due 2010 £1,273,702,000
Loan Note Certificate (now being issued)***

£583,600,817* series 05-4 floating rate medium term note certificate due 2008 E583,600.817
Taotal capitalisation and Indebtedness £6,824,071,395

* This amount is the sterling equivalent, converted using the exchange rate referred to under “U5. Dolar Presentation”. The actual
sterling principal amount of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate will be the sterling equivalent of 51,000,000,000, using
the fixed exchange rate in the swap agreements.

=** Under US GAAP, the Loan Note Certificates described above (Series 0Z-1, Series 03-1, Series 03.2, Series 03-3, Series 04-1.
Serfes D4-2, Serles 05.1, Series §5-2, Series 05-3 and Series 05-4) have been derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer.
Each of the Loan Notes is issued on a secured basis.

There are no other outstanding loans or subscriptions, allotrments or options in respect of the MTN
Issuer. Save as disclosed herein, as at the date of this prospectus, the MTN lssuer has no loan
capital outstanding. There are ho guarantees, other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowings guaranteed or unguaranteed, secured or unsecured, no unsecured or guaranteed issued
loan capital or contingent liabilities in respect of the MTN Issuer,

There is no goodwill in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer, nor will any gecdwill need to be
written off upon the issue of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate,




Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Barclaycard Funding PLC and its subsidiary (together the “Group") are
fundamental t¢ understanding management's discussion and analysis of results of operations and
financial conditions. The Group has identlfied two policies as being signlficant because they require
marnagerment to make subjective and/or complex judgerents about matters that are inherently
uncertain,

fa) Derfvatives

The fair value of cross currency swaps used by the Group is determined using a discounted cash
flow model as quoted marked prices are not available, Since these swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No.133 due to the lack of underlying documentation, the derivatives are
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value with changes reflected in the income statement. The
main areas of judgement in applying this model are estimating future cash flows and choosing an
appropriate discount rate for the instrument. The use of different pricing models and assumptions
could produce materially different estimates of fair value. This will result in changes in the carrying
value of the derivative on the balance sheet and therefore a different amount reported in the
income statement.

{b) Derecognition of financial assets

where Barclaycard Funding PLC is a transferor of financial assets to an SPE, the assets sold are
derecognised and the SPE is not consolldated on its balance sheet when the assets are: (1) legally
Isofated from the Company's creditors, {2} the accounting criteria for a sale are met, and (3) the
SPE is a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) under SFAS 140. When an SPE does not meet the
formal definition of a QSPE, the decision whether or not to consolidate depends on the applicable
accouniing principles for non-GSPEs, inctuding a judgmental determination regarding the nature
and amount of investment made by third parties in the SPE,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The MTN Issuer was formed principally to issue medium term notes or certificates in series (and to
enter into the financial arrangements for such [ssue) and to purchase series of investor certificates
from time to time representing a beneficlal interest In the receivables trust (and to enter into
documentation and exercise powers in refation to such issue and purchase). The MTN Issuer has
not engaged in any activities since its Incorporation other than the above.

Unless otherwise specified, the setected financial statistics and the results presented and discussed
below in relation to the MTN lIssuer are both presented on a consclidated basis under US CAAP.
The MTN Issuer had no operations prior to the issuance of the series 99-1 medium term notes in
MNovemnber 1999 and accordingly all selected financial statistics and results presented and discussed
below are from this date.

The earnings on its interest in the receivabies trust property, the interest costs of the issued term
advances it pays to the issuer pursuant to the series (05-4 medium term note certificate and the
interest costs of the previous term advances it pays o the previous issuers pursuant to the series
02.1, 03-1, 03-2, G3-3, G4-1, 04-2, 05-3, 05-2 and 05-3 medium term notes and the related
operating expenses are the principal components of the MTN issuer's results of operations. The
income generated on its interest in the trust property will be used to pay interest and repay
principal on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate to the issuer and on the series 02-1, §3-
1, 03-2, 03-3, 04-3, 04-2, 05-1, 05-2 and 05-3 medium term note certificates to the previous
issuers,
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The following are selected financial data in relation to the MTN Issuer. Other than the dollar/
sterling exchange rate information, the financial data has been extracted, without material
adjustment, from its audited financial statements for the year ended 14 December 2002, the
audited financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2003, the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 and from its unaudited interim financial
statements for the period ended 30 lune 2005. The dollar/sterling exchange rates have been
extracted from Bloomberg Service under USD-GBP Currency HP.

Perlod ended Year ended Period ended Year ended
30 lune 31 Decernber 37 December 14 December
2005 2004 2002 2002
Net income 83,268 146,437 54,340 16717
Common stock 12,502 12,502 12,502 12,502
Nurmber of shares. 50000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Dividend per share — 28 20 Nil
Sharghalders’ equity 118772 35,505 29,068 34128
Average shareholders’ equity LIAL) 32287 31598 32,020
Total assets 389.020 313573 k19,186 169.626
Average total assets 351,297 466,380 394 406 345,706,924
Net income as a percentage of
- Average 1013 assels 24%. 1% 24% 0.005%
- Average sharehaides’ equity 108% 454% NP 52%
Average shargholders’ equity as a percentage of average total assets 2% . T 8% 0.009%
Average LIS dollar exchange rale used In preparing the accounts
(being the average daily exchange rate during the year ended 31
December (or, with regard to the perind ended 30 June 2005, from
1 lanuary 2005 to 30 June 2005)) 0.3240 0.5460 06120 0.6661
Closing US dollar exchange rate at 31 December (or, with regard to the
perlod ended 30 June 2005, at 30 june 2005) 05576 05182 05600 0.6209

High 1S dollar exchange rate during the year ended 31 December (or,
with regard to the perlod ended 30 June 2005, from 1 January
2005 to 30 June 2005) @L.5576 0.5640 0.6434 o710

Low US dollar exchange rate during the year ended 31 December {or,

with regard to the period ended 30 june 2005, from 1 lanuary

2005 to 30 June 2005) 05188 05182 0.5600 0.6209
{1} Average shareholders’ equity Is calculated as the average of the opening and closing shareholders' equity for the period.

{2} Average total assets Is calculated as the average of the opening and closing assets for the period.

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the MTN Issuer is as follows: (a) for the period ended 30
June 2005, 101.46%; (b) for the year ended 37 December 2004, 101.25%; (c} for the period endeg
31 December 2003, 102.21%; {d) for the year ended 14 Decemnber 2002, 292.50%; (e} for the vear
ended 14 December 2001, 147,11%; {f} for the year ended 14 December 2000, 220.75%. The ratio
of earnings to fixed charges is calculated as the ratio of total revenue to servicing fees and interest
payable for the period.

The changes In net income, shareholders' equity and total assets (and hence to average
shareholders’ equity and average total assets) between 2001 and 2002 were predominately
attributable to (a) the redemption of the Series 99-1 Loan Capital on 15 November 2002 and (b)
the issue of the Series 02-1 Loan MNote Certificates on 24 October 2002 (driving increases in net
income but with the Loan Note Certificate being derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN
issuer).

The changes in net income, shareholders’ equity and total assets (and hence to average
shareholders' equity and average total assets) between the year ended 14 December 2004 and the
period ended 31 December 2003 were predominanty attributable to (a) the redemption of the
Series 99-1 Lean Cepital on 15 November 2002; {b} the issue of the Series 02-1 Loan Note
Certificate on 24 October 2002 (driving increases in net income for the fulf period in 2003); and
(¢) the issue of the Series 03-1, Series 03-2 and Series 03-3 Loan MNote Certificates on 8 April 2003,
19 June 2003 and 18 September 2003 respectively (driving increases in net income during 2003),
The Series 02-1, Series 03-1, Series 03-2 and Serfes 03-3 Loan Note Certificates have been
derecognised in the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer.

The changes in net income, shareholders’ equity and total assets {and hence to average
shareholders’ equity and average total assets) between the period ended 31 December 2003 and
the year ended 31 December 2004 were predominately attributable to the issue of the Series 03-1,
Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series D4-1 and Series 04-2 Loan Note Certificates on 8 April 2003, 19 June
2003, 18 September 2003, 11 March 2004 and 23 November 2004 respectively {driving increases in
net income during 2004). The Series 02-1, Series 03-1, Series 03-2, Series 03-3, Series 04-1 and
Series 04-2 Loan Note Certificates have been derecognised In the balance sheet of the MTN Issuer).
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For the £643,624,895 series 02-1, the £637,064,407 series 03-1, the £599,448,507 serles 03-2, the
£628,140,704 series 03-3, the £404,312,668 series 04-1, the £405405405 series 04-2, the
£824,764941.99 series 05-1, the £815,238,545 series (5-2 and the £1,273,702,000 series 05-3
limited recourse medium term note certificates following the accumulation period of principal
coltections due in 2007, 2008, 2006, 2006, 2007, 2007, 2008, 2008 and 2010 respectively, the MTN
[ssuer will pass the amounts recefved on repayment of its share of the investor interests in respect
of series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, serles 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1, series 05-2
and series 05-3 from the receivables trustee to the relevant issuer of the 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3,
04-1, D4.2, 05-1, 05-2 and 05-3 series respectively.

In the periods up until 2007, up until 2008, up untii 2006, up until 2006, up until 2007, up until
2007, up until 2008, up until 2008, and up until 2010 the MTN Issuer passes amounts received
from the receivable trustee in connection with the investor interest to the series 02-1, the series
03-1, the series 03-2, the series 03-3, the series 04-1, the series 04-2 the series 95-1, the series 05-
2 and the series 05-3 issuers, respectively, the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of
interest, as outlined below. The payment of interest and repayment of grincipal on the advance to
the investor certificates is dependent upon payment of Interest and repayment of principat due
under the credit card receivables held pursuant to the receivables trust, and is therefore subject to
the risk of non-payment of the credit card recelvables. Certain events could alter the exposure and
change the payment profile or any other financial positions including the rapid amortisation period
as triggered by a pay-out event see “Risk factors”,

The £643,624,895 series 02-1 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 24 October 2002 to 15 December 2002, the Interest rate
applicable was an interpolation between one and two month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.19345%.

&  for the second interest period, from 15 December 2002 to 15 lanuary 2003, the interest rate
applicable was one month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.19345%.

e for the third and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is three
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.19345%,

The £637,064,407 series 03-1 medium term note certificate has the foliowing interest rates:

»  for the first interest period from 8 April 2003 to 15 june 2003, the interest rate applicable
was an interpolation between two and three month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.20214%.

e for the second and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicabie is three
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.26214%.

The £599,448,507 series 03-2 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

»  for the first interest period from 19 June 2003 to 15 August 2003, the interest rate applicable
was an interpolation between one and two month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.14069%.

«  for the second interest period from 15 August 2003 to 15 September 2003, the interest rate
applicabie was one month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.14069%.

e for the third and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is three
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.14069%.

The £628,140, 704 series 03-3 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e  for the first interest period from 18 September 2003 to 15 November 2003, the interest rate
applicable was an interpolation between one and two month sterling LIBCR - plus 0.1125%.

e for the second and subseguent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is three
month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1129%.

The £404,312,668 series 04-1 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

#  for the first interest period from 11 March 2004 to 17 May 2004, the interest rate appficable
was an interpolation between two and three month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1076%.

e for the second and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable is three
month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.1076%,

The £405,405405 serles 04-2 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 23 November 2004 to 18 January 2005, the interest rate
applicable was an interpolation between ore and two month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0647%.
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& For the second and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable was three
month sterling LIBOR plus - 0.0647%.

The £824,764,942 series 05-1 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first interest period from 21 June 2005 to 15 August 2005, the interest rate applicable
will be an interpolation between one and two month sterling LIBOR — plus 0.0530%.

e for the second interest period from 15 August 2005 to 15 September 2005, the interest rate
applicable will be one month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0530%.

e for the third and subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable will be
three month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0530%.

The £815,239,545 series 05-2 medium term note certificate has the followIng interest rates:

e for the first interest pericd from 20 September 2005 to 15 November 2005, and for each of
the 15 December 2005 and the 17 January 2006 interest payment dates, the interest rate
applicable will be an interpolation between three and four month sterling LIBOR - plus
0.0551%:

o for the fourth and subsequent monthiy interest periods up to and including july 2008, the
interest rate applicable will be three month sterling LIBOR - plus 0.0551%.

o for the interest period commencing In luly 2008, the interest rate applicable will be two
month sterling LIBCR - plus 0.0551%

The £1,273,702,000 serles 05-3 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e for the first Interest period from 20 October 2005 to 15 December 20035, the interest rate
applicable will be an Interpolation between two and three month sterling LIBOR - plus
0.1228%.

& for the second interest period from 15 December 2005 to 16 January 2005, the interest rate
applicable will be an interpolation between twe and three month sterling LIBOR - plus
0.1228%.

e for each subsequent monthly interest periods, the interest rate applicable will be three month
sterling LIBOR - plus 0.1228%.

The £583,600,817 series 05-4 medium term note certificate will have the following interest rates:

e for the first and second interest periods from the closing date to 15 February 2006, the
interest rate applicable will be an interpolation between two and three month sterling LIBOR
- plus 0.0556 %;

& for each subsequent monthly interest periods, the Interest rate applicable will be three month
sterling LIBOR — plus 00556 9%,

The trend in payments passed from the MTN Issuer to the relevant issuers in relation to the series
02-1, serles 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1, serfes 05-2 and
series 05-3 medium term note certificates and subsequent issuances are related to fluctuations in
LIBOR.

The MTN issuer considers related parties to be entities which the MTN Issuer can significanty
influence or has an ownership interest in that allows It Influence {o an extent that the other party
might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. Examples of related parties
include affiliates of the company; entities for which investments are accounted for by the equity
method by the MTN lssuer; trusts for the benefit of employees, principal owners of the enterprise;
its management; and members of the Immediate families of principal awners of the enterprise and
its management.

Parties are considered to be retated if one party, directly or indirectly through one or mare
intermediaries, controls, is cantrolled by, or is under common cantral with an enterprise.

The related party transactions of the MTN Issuer comprise some transfers in relation to the
investor interest; derivative transactions; bank accounts; and loan arrangements.

The MTN Issuer's primary source of liquidity are payments of principal and interest on the series of
investor certlficates.
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Recent Accounting Developments

1. Consolidation of Yariable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB Issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 “Consclidation of Variable Interest
Entities - An interpretation of ARB No, 51" ("FIN 46”). The pronouncement was revised in
December 2003 and re-issued as FIN 46-R. This pronouncement modifies the framework for
determining consolidation of certain entities that meet the definition of a variable interest entity
(“VIE"). This is met where the entity elther does not have sufficient equity of the appropriate
nature to support its expected losses, or ils eguity investors lack certain characteristics which
would be expected to be present within a controlling financial interest. Entities whith do not meet
this definition wou!d continue to apply the voting interest model.

The provisions of FIN 46-R are immediately effective for VIEs created or acquired after 31 fanuary
2003. The Group originally adopted FIN 46 for all VIEs created or acquired after 31 lanuary 2003
during the year ended 31 December 2003, The Group has adopted FIN 46-R for all VIEs, including
those created or acquired prior to 37 lanuary 2003 from 1 January 2004. The adoption of FIN 46-R
did not have a material effect en the Group's finantial position or resull of operations.

FIN 46-R requires transitional disclosure which includes the maximum risk of toss an entity can
incur jn refation te VIEs that it has a significant interest In. The maxlmum exposure to loss
represents a "worst case” scenario In the event that all such vehicles simultaneousty fail. It does
not provide an indication of ongoing exposure which Is managed within the company's risk
management framework,

The variable interest entities that the Group is involved with, provide financing to the company via
the issuance of asset backed debt. The proceeds of the debt issuance from the series 99-1 issuer
were used to purchase intercompany notes. The Group used the proceeds of the debt issuance
from the series (2-1 issuer, the series 03-1 issuer, the series 03-2 issuer, the series 03-3 issuer, the
series 04-1 issuer, the serles 04-2 issuer, the series 05-1 issuer, the series 05-2 issuer and the series
03-3 issuer to purchase beneficial interests in pools of credit card receivables.

The proceeds of the series 99-1 notes were used by the §9-1 Issuer 1o purchase, respectively,
corresponding series of medium term notes Issued by the MTN Issuer. The purchase was deemed a
financing transaction between the two parties and consequently the accounts of series 99-1 issuer
were consolldated into those of the MTN Issuer,

The proceeds of the series 02-1 notes were used by the 02-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP,

The proceeds of the series 03-1 notes were used by the 03-1 [ssuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer pne imited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
Q5PE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the secies 032 notes were used by the 03-2 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 03-3 notes fssued on 18 September 2003 were used by the 03-3 issuer
to purchase from the MTN issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate, The structure
of this transaction achieved QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 04-1 notes were used by the (4-1 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The proceeds of the series 04-2 notes were used by the 04-2 issuer to purchase from the MTN

Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved

Q5PE status under US GAAP.

srocesds of the series G5-1 notes were used by the 05-1 issver to purchase from the MTN
“e limuted recourse medium term note certificate. The struciure of this transaction achieved

z2r US GAAP.

Tae prolzeds of the series 05-2 notes were usea oy the 05-2 issuer to purchase from the MTN

issuer one limited recourse rmedium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved

QSPE stzius under US GAAP,
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The proceeds of the series 05-3 notes were used by the 05-3 issuer to purchase from the MTN
Issuer one limited recourse medium term note certificate. The structure of this transaction achieved
QSPE status under US GAAP.

The total assets of these vehicles as at 31 December 2004 was £3,341,588,242 (31 Decemnber 2003:
£2.524.067,873) of which £13,519 {31 December 2003: £13,519) was already consolidated by the
Group under US GAAF. As at 31 Decernber 2004, maximum exposure to loss was £3,326.475.079
(31 December 2003: £2,512,778,653).

2. Accounting For Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity
in May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting For Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. The Statement improves the acceunting for certain
firanclal Instruments that, under previous guidance, issuers could account for as equity and
requires that these instruments be ciassified as liabilities In statements of financial position. This
Statement is effective prospectively for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31,
2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15,
2003, This statement shall be tmplemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an
accounting principle for financial instruments created before the issuance date of the Statement
and still existing at the beginning of the interim period of adoption, The impact of adopting this
statement did not have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations.

Directors and Secretary

The following sets out the directors of the MTN Issuer and their business addresses and principal
activities, Because the MTN lssuer is organised as a special purpose company and will be largely
passive, It is expected that the directors of the MTN Issuer in that capacity will participate in its
management to a limited extent.

Name Natlorality Business Address Principal Activities

Paul Gerard Turner Britlsh 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director,
Northampton NN4 75G Barctaycard

lchn Llewellyn-Jones British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Financial Controlfer,
Northampton NN4 75G Barclaycard

SFM Directors Limited British 35 Great St. Helen's, Director of special
London EC3A &AP purpose companies

lonathan Keighley, larmes Macdonald and Robert Berry are the directors of SFM Directors Limited.
SFM Directors Limited is also a director of the issuer. Paut Gerard Turner is also a directer of the
Issuer and lohn Llewellyn-fones is an alternate director of the issuer.

The secretary of the MTN Issuer is:

Name Business Address
Barcosec Limited 1 Churchil! Place, London E14 SHP

The directors of Barcosec Limited are Michelle Amey, Alison Bibby, Marie Smith, David Blizzard,
Clare Carson, Patrick Gonsalves, Sarah Sanders, Kathryn Silverwood and Toby Vero. The business
address of the directors of Barcosec Limited is 1 Churchill Place, London E14 SHP. Barcosec Limited
will provide the MTN Issuer with general secretarial, registrar and company administration services.
The fees of Barcosec Limited for previding such services will be included in the MTN Issuer Costs
Amounts. The directors of SFM Directors Limited are lonathan Xeighley, |ames Macdonald
and Robert Berry. The business address of the directors of SFM Directors Limited is 35 Great St.
Helen's, Londen EC3A BAP. See "Series 05-4: Aflocation, Calcufotion and Distribution of Finance
Charge Collections ta the MTN Issuer’”,

The tnitial subscription proceeds of the sale of the series G5-4 medium term note certificate wili be
used by the MTN Issuer to acquire a certificate representing a beneficial interest in series 05-4 of
the receivables trust — called the “investor certificate”. The deferred subscription price payable for
the series 05-4 medium termn note certificate will be used by the MTN Issuer to pay deferred
consideration to Barclaycard for the transfer of its entitlement to receive excess interest
attributable to series 05-4.
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Litigation

There are no, nor since the MTN Issuer’s Incorporation on i3 August 1990 have there been any,
governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or
threatened of which the MTN Issuer is aware, which may have, or have had in the recent past,
covering at least the previous 12 months, a significant effect on the MTN Issuer's financial position
-ar prafitability.
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The Receivables Trustee

The recelvables trustee was formed under the laws of lersey, Channe! Islands on 29 September
1999, Its registered office is at 26 New Street, 5t Helier, lersey JE2 3RA and you can inspect its
memorandum and articles of associatlon at the offices of Clifford Chance Limited Liability
Partnership at 10 Upper Bank Street, London £14 5H, United Kingdom.

All of the issued share capitai of the receivables trustee is held by a trust company formed in
lersey, Bedell Trustees Limited, on the terms of a general charitable trust.

The receivables trustee was formed principally tos

&  act as a trustee of the receivables trust:

s purchase and accept transfer of the receivables from the transferor;

e issue series of investor certificates from time 1o time on behalf of the receivables trust: and
&  enter into transaction documents Incidental to or relating to those activities.

Directors and Secretary

Bedell Trust Company Limited, a company formed under the laws of Jersey, provides the
receivables trustee with company secretarial, registrar and company administration services. Its fees
for praviding these services are included in the fees paid to the receivables trustee. See the section
"The Receivables Trust: Trustee Payment Amount”. The company secretary is Bedell Secretaries
Limited, a2 cornpany formed under the laws of Jersey.

The following sets out the directors of the receivables trustee and their business addresses and
principal activities. The receivables trustee is organised as a special purpose company and Is largely
passive, engaging only in the types of transactions described in this prospectus. The receivables
trustee is managed and controlled by its directors in jersey; however it is expected that it wilf
require onty a small amount of active management,

Mome Nationality Business Address Principal Activities

Paul Gerard Turher British 1234 Pavilion Drive, Finance Director
Narthampton NN4 75G

Shane Michael Hollywood British 26 New Street, St. Helier, Advocate of the
lersey JE2 3RA Royal Court of lersey

Richard Charles Gerwat British 26 New Street, St. Helier, Advocate of the
Jersey JEZ 3RA Royal Court of Jersey

Shane Michael Hollywood and Richard Charles Cerwat are also directors of Bedell Trustees Limited,
Bedell Secretaries Limited and Bedell Trust Company Limited, partners in the Bedell Group
Partnership (which ultimately owns the aforesaid companies) and partners in the law firm Bedeifl
Cristin,

The directors of the receivables trustee do not have a specific term of office but each may be
removed by a resolution passed at a shareholders’ meeting.

Barclays Bank PLC does not own, directly or indirectly, any of the share capital of the receivables
trustee.

Management and Activities

The receivables trustee has been established specifically to act as trustee of the receivables trust. fts
actlvities are restricted by the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
related supplements.

Since it was formed, the receivables trustee has:
& engaged in activities incidental to the declaration of the receivables trust;

¢  obtained the necessary consumer credit licence and data protection registrations in the United
Kingdom and/or |ersey;

e authorised and executed the documents that it is a party to in order Lo establish the
receivables trust;

# purchased and accepted transfers of the recelvables from the transferars;
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e issued certificates to beneficiaries in respect of their interests in the receivables trust;

#  estabfished and maintained a reglster of the entitlements of beneficiaries under the receivables
trust;

e engaged in activities incidental to the transfer to it of receivables under the designated
accounts; and

& authorised and executed the other documents to which it is party.

The receivables trustee has not engaged in any activities since its incorporation other than the
above and matters incidental to the above.

The receivables trustee has made a number of covenants in the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement, including that it will not without the prior written consent of each of the
beneficiaries of the receivables trust:

e carry on any business other than as trustee of the receivables trust and will not engage in
any activity or do anything at all except:

(1) hold and exercise its rights in the {rust property of the receivables trust and perform its
obligations for the receivables trust's property;

(2) preserve, exercise and enforce any of lts rights and perform and observe its obligations
under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement, the receivables
sale agreement, the master definitions schedule, each supplement and each other related
document, Including any documents secured directly or indirectly by a series of investor
certlficates issued under the receivables trust. any mandate and other agreement about a
Trust Account or a bank account in which the receivables trustee has a beneficlal
interest, the trust section 75 Indemnity, and any other document contemplated by and
executed in connection with any of the preceding documents, We refer to these
documents collectively as “relevant documents™;

{3) pay dividends or make other distributions to the extent required by applicable law;

(4) use, invest or dispose of any of Its property or assets in the manner provided in or
contemplated by the relevant documents; and

(5) perform any and all acts Incidental to or otherwise necessary in connection with (1), (2).
(3) or (4) above;

* incur any debt other than debt that is described by this prospectus or a supplement or
contemplated by the relevant documents:

. give any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any debt;

e creale any morigage, charge, pledge, lien or other encumbrance securing any obligation of
any person or cther type of preferentlal arrangement having similar effect, over any of its
assets, or use, invest, sell or otherwise dispose of any part of its assets, including any uncalled
capital, or undertaking, present or future, other than as expressly conternplated by the
relevant documents;

. consclidate or merge with any other person or convey or transfer its properties or assets to
any person;

e permit the validity or effectiveness of the receivables trust to be supplemented, amended,
varied, terminated, postponed or discharged —~ other than as expressly contemplated in the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or in any supplement; or

e have an interest inh any bank account cther than a Trust Account and its own bank account
opened for the purpose of receiving and maklng payments to be made otherwise than in Its
capacity as receivables trusiee - including paying the servicing fee to the servicer or cash
management fee to the trust cash manager and the annual fee due to Bedeil Trust Company
Limited far the provisicn 6f corporate services to the receivables trustee.

Litigatior,

There are no, Acr since tne racewvaples trastee’s «corporation on 29 September 1999 have there
ceer any, governmental, legal 5r arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are
nending or threatznad ¢f whicn e receivables trustee is aware, which may have, or have had in
tne recent past. covering zi «2ast the previous 12 maonths, a sigrificant effect on the receivables
trustez's financial position ar croftability.
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Barclays Bank PLC

Barclays Bank PLC will perform the following roles in cannection with the issuance of the notes:
initial transferor;

servicer;

cash manager for the receivables trust and the medium term notes and certificates;
transferor beneficiary and excess interest beneficiary;

swap counterparty;

lender under expenses loan agreement; and

an underwriter.

Business

Barclays Bank PLC is & public limited company registered in England and Wales under number
1026167, The liability of the members of Barclays Bank PLC is limited. It has its registered and
head office at 1 Churchill Place, London E14 5HP. Barclays Bank PLC was incorporated on 7 August
1925 under the Colenial Bank Act 1925 and on 4 October 1571 was registered as a company
limited by shares under the Companies Acts 1348 to 1967, Pursuant to The Barclays Bank Act
1984, on 1 January 1985, Barclays Bank PLC was re-registered as a public limited company and its
name was changed from “Barclays Bank Internatlonal Limited” to “Barclays Bank PLC".

Barclays Bank PLC and its subsidiary undertakings (taken together, the “Barclays Group™) is a major
global financial services provider engaged in retail and commercial banking, credit cards,
investment banking, wealth management and investrent management services. The Barclays Group
also operates in many other countrles around the world. The whole of the issued ordinary share
capital of Barclays Bank PLC is beneficlally owned by Barclays PLC which is the ultimate holding
company of the Barclays Group and one of the largest financial services companies in the world by
market capitalisation,

The short-term unsecured obligations of Barclays Bank PLC are rated A-1+ by Standard and Poor's,
P-1 by Moody's and F1+ by Fitch Ratings Limited and the long-term obligations of Barclays Bank
PLC are rated AA by Standard & Poor's, Aal by Moody's and AA+ by Fitch Ratings Limited.

From 2005, the Barclays Group will prepare financial statements on the basis of [FRS. Based on the
unaudited interim financtal information as at and for the period ended 3¢ June 2005, prepared In
accordance with IFRS, the Barclays Group had total assets of £850.388 million, total net loans and
advances of £272.348 miltion, total deposits of £302,253 million, and total shareholders’ equity of
£22,050 millien (including minority interests of £200 millien). The profit before taxation of the
Barclays Group for the period ended 30 June 2005 was £2,690 milllion after charging an
impairment loss on loans and advances and other credit risk provisions of £706 millien,

The Barclays Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 were
prepared in accordance with UK Generalty Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP). On this
basis, as at 31 December 2004, the Group had total assets of £522,253 million, total net loans and
advances of £330,077 miliion, total depaosits of £328.742 million and shareholders’ funds of £18,271
million (including £690 miflion of noa-equity funds). The profit before tax under UK GAAP for the
year ended 31 December 2004 was £4,612 million afier charging net provisions for bad and
doubtful debts of £1,091 million.

The annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2004 of Barclays PLC and
Barclays Bank PLC is on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the Securities and
Exchange Commission has been furnished with the interim report on Form 6-K for the serni-annual
period ended 30 lune 2005 of Barclays PLC and Barclays Bank PLC. Barclays wili provide, without
charge to each person to whom this prospectus is delivered, on the request of that person. a copy
of the Form 20-F and Ferm 6-K referred to in the previous sentence. Written reqguests shouid be
directed to: Barclays Bank PLC, 1 Churchill Place, London E14 5HP, England, Attention: Barclays
Croup Corporate Secretarlat.

None of the class A notes, the class B Notes or the class C notes will be obligations of Barclays
Bank PLC or any of its affiliates.
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Credit Card Usage In The United Xingdom

The United Kingdom credit card market is the largest and most developed in Euvrope. The total
population of the Unlted Kingdom is approximately 58 million with the adult poputation accounting
for about 60 per cent. of this, It Is estimated that approximately two thirds of the adult British
population helds at least one credit card,

The number of cards issued has grown by 38 million since 1993 to about 72.5 million today. Of
these, about 64 per cent. carried the VISA service mark and 36 per cent. the MasterCard service
mark.

Credit and charge card purchases in the UK, in the twelve months to June 2005, totalled almost
£154 billion, UK credlt card borrowings have more than doubled since 1994, and were
approximately £66 billion in June 2005,

Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Card Portfolio

General

Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC, is one of the leading credit card businesses in Europe.
In addition to its operations in the United Kingdom, Barclaycard is active in Germany, Spain, USA,
Greece, France, Italy, Portugal, Ireland and across Africa. Barclaycard offers a fult range of credit
card services to individual and corporate customers, together with card payment facilities to
retailers and other businesses. Barclaycard now incorporates all of the Group's UK unsecured and
card lending products and expertise. Barclaycard is based in Northampton, England and has in
excess of 6000 employees. In 1966, Barclaycard issued the UK's first credit card and as of 30 June
2005 Barclaycard, on a managed basls, had £24,802 million of gross customer receivables in the UK
and the rest of Europe, including consumer loans. Of this amount, £5,280 milllon were MasterCard
and VISA credit and charge card receivables originated in the UK and inciuded in the receivables
trust. Barclaycard offers over 30 credit card products and services to individual and corporate
customers. The average UK customer has had a2 Barclaycard for approximately 9 years.

The receivables being securitised come from transactions made by MasterCard and VISA card
accountholders.

A cardholder may use his or her card for both purchases and cash advances. A purchase is when
cardhotders use their cards to acquire goods or services. A cash advance is when cardhoiders use
their cards to get cash from a financial institution or automated teller machine or use credit card
cheques issued by Barclaycard drawn against their credit lines.

See "Servicing of Receivables ond Trust Cash Monagement” for a description of how Barclaycard
services receivables included in the securitisation. Barclaycard undertakes all the processing and
administering of accounts making use of external suppliers as approprlate. In particular, initial
datacapture of applicants is undertaken by ASTRON (Business Processing Solutions), an outsource
partner of Barclaycard, and cardholder postal payment processing is alse undertaken for
Barclaycard by ASTRCN (Business Processing Solutions}.

Acquisition and Use of Credit Card Accounts

Barclaycard uses a brand led, value driven marketing strategy to focus new origination campaigns.
This process is assisted by the use of financial forecasting modeis for each method it uses to solicit
cardhedders. Barclaycard recruits a significant proportion of its customers by introductions from
Barclays branches. It also uses, among others, targeted mailing, media inserts and the internet.

when received, credit application detalls are screened by a combination of system based checking,
external credit bureau data and manual verification, where appropriate.

Barclaycard uses a range of application scorecards to assess the credit guality of new account
applications. Scorecards are derived using a combination of factors including their Barclays account
history, annual income, time at and place of residence, current employment and credit bureav data.
A proprietary cash flow modei is used to help determine the acceptance score levels for each
scorecard.
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The initial limit of an account is determined using credit score and other applicant characteristics
including income matrices. initial limits are set at comparatively low levels, Limits are fncreased in
a controlled and regular manner using behaviour score and credit bureau data. Behaviour scoring
was introduced in 1989 and is one of the key tools used by Barclaycard in risk management and
underpins all risk decisiens applied to accounts once they have been opened.

Credit limits are adjusted based upor Barclaycard's continuing evaluation of an account holder's
credit behaviour and suitabllity using a range of statistical models.

tach cardholder has a card agreement with Barclaycard governing the terms and conditions of
their MasterCard or ViSA account. Under each card agreement, Barclaycard is able, if It gives
advance notice to the cardholder, to add or change any terms, conditions, services or features of
the MasterCard or VISA accounts at any time. This includes increasing or decreasing periodic
finance charges, or minimum payment terms. Each card agreement enabies Barclaycard to apply
charges to current outstanding balances as well as to future transactions.

Barclaycard regularly reviews its credit and charge card agreement forms to determine thelr
compliance with applicable law and the suitability of their terms and conditions. If they need to be
updated or amended, this will be done on a timetable consistent with the issues Identified.

Descripticn of Processing

Barclaycard settlement systems have links to VISA and MasterCard to enable cardholder
transactlons to be transferred, Barclaycard also acquires transactions from rnerchants. Transactions
acquired in this way relating to Barclaycard cardholders are passed to the card account processing
systems directly rather than via VISA or MasterCard,

Billing and Payment
Barclaycard generates and malls monthly statements to cardholders which give details of the
transactions for that account.

Cardholders receive up to 56 days interest free on purchases before they are required to make a
payment.

At the mement, cardholders must make a monthly minimum payment which is at least equal to
the greater of:

& 2 per cent. - on platinum and gold, 2.5 per cent. - on classic, 3 per cent. - on initlal, student,
graduate and choice — of the statement balance; ang

e  the stated minimum payment, which is currently £5.

Notwithstanding the above, in the case of the Premier Card, Barclaycard's charge card product,
cardholders must pay the statement balance In full, which is collected via direct debit 14 days after
the date of the statement.

Certain eligible cardholders may he given the option to take a payment holiday.

Barclaycard charges late and aver-limit fees as well as charges for returned cheques and returned
direct debits. Charges may also be made, to a lesser extent, for copy statements and copy
vouchers. Whilst Barclaycard does not charge an annual fee on all products, annual fees can be up
to £150 on those products on which an annual fee is charged. Barclaycard also assesses a cash
advance fee which ranges from 1.5 per cent. to 2.5 per cent., with minimum charges of £5.

The finance charges on purchases assessed monthly are calculated by multiplying the account's
average daily purchase balance over the billing period by the applicable morithly rate. Finance
charges are calculated on purchases from the date of the transaction, Monthly pertodic finance
charges are not assessed on purchases if all balances shown In the billing statement are paid by
the date they are due. This Is usuzlly 25 days after the bilting date.

The finance charges on cash advances assessed monthly are calculated by multiplying the account’s
average daily balance of cash advances over the billing perind by the applicable menthly rate.
Finance charges are calculated on cash advances from the date of the transaction — except for cash
advances by use of credit card cheques, where finance charges are usually calcutated from the date
the transaction is debited to the relevant account.
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The interest rates on Barclaycard's credit card accounts may be changed by Barclaycard and are
not currently linked to any index. This Is market practice in the Unlted Kingdom. At the moment,
the standard annual percentage rate of charge for purchases on accounts ranges from 8.9 to 259
per cent. (excluding introductory offers). Barclaycard may sometlmes offer temporary promotional
rates. Barclaycard also offers activation programs and other incentives.

Pricing decisions are based upon:

& actuat and anticipated movements in underlying Interest rates;
N marketing strategies ‘and recruitment campaigns; and

&  competitive envirenment.

English law does not prescribe a maximum rate that may be charged as interest for a debt.
However, the obligation to make interest payments will not be enforceable to the extent that the
interest rate is extortionate. An interest rate will be extortionate if it requires the debtor or a
relative of the debtor to make payments - whether unconditionally or on certain contingencies -
which are grossly exorbitant, or which otherwise grossly contravene ordinary principies of falr
dealing. Barclaycard believes that the interest rates charged on its cards do not contravene any
laws relating to extortionate credit agreements,

Delinquency and Loss Experience

An account is contractually delinguent if the minimum payment is not received by the due date
indicated on the customer’s statement. An account does not actually become delinquent until a
new customer staterment is sent following a missed payment on the account. Once an account Is
recognised as delinquent, the account is electronically flagged as delinquent. The basis upon which
the account is transferred to a collections team within Barclaycard may include the product type,
the age of the account, the amount outstanding, the past perfarmance and behaviour score, and
any information that is available from external credit bureaus or Barclays Bank. The collections
team utilise a strategic decision making process to determine the {iming and type of contact that
will be made to the customer in respect of the delinquency.

Efforts to deal with delinquent recelvables occur at each stage of delinquency. Activities include
statermnent messages, telephone calls, formal letters, SMS Text Messages, calling cards and tele-
messages. Accounts are automatically charged off at 1B0 days of delinquency unless there is
specialist activity in place. An account may be charged off before it [s 180 days delinquent. This
decision is pased upon an assessment of the likelihood of recovery and rehabilitation of the
individual account and may occur at any point in the process. In certain circumstances, in
particular bankruptcies are charged off on notification and deaths are charged off 90 days after
notification. In addition, there are instances where accounts are not charged-off after 180 days of
delinguency because of the presence of “specialist activities”. Specialist activities include insurance
claims, authorised user disputes, voucher disputes and complaints. Barclaycard may reduce the
minimum repayment terms for an account and place the account on a repayment program if it is
believed that this would improve the likelihood of returning the account to performing status.

As part of any recovery activity, accounts may be passed to external debt collection agencies to
seek recovery.

Once charged-off, a portion of the receivables are typically sold to debt cellection agencies to
maximise recoveries. Post charge-off account rehabilitation may occur where improved credit
circumstances and significant recovery accurs. However, charging privileges can only be re-instated
once the cardholder has been accepted for a new account.

The following tables set forth the detinquency and loss experience of Barclaycard's securitised
portfolio of VISA and MasterCard credit and charge card accounts denominated in pounds sterling
- called the “‘securitised portfolio” - for each of the periods shown. The securitised portfolio
includes platinum, gold and classic VISA and MasterCard credit cards and the Premier VISA charge
card. The securitised portfolio currently does not include the portfolio of credit card accounts
acquired by Barclaycard with Barclays PLC's purchase of Woolwich in Octaber 2000 or the portfolio
of credit card accounts purchased from Providian's UK operations in April 2002 or the portfolic of
store card accounts purchased from Clydesdale Financial Services in May 2003, Because the
economic environment may change, we cannot assure you that the delinquency and loss experience
of the securitised portfolic will be the same as the historical experience set forth below.
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The delinquency statistics are obtained from billing cycle information as cpposed to month end
positions,
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Tahle Currency — CBF
Receivables Outstanding

Receivabies Delinquent
30-59 Days

60-89 Days

90-119 Days

120-149 Days

150 Days or more

Total

Notes

As i 30 September 2005

Delinquency Experience Securitised Portfolio

Aol 3 December 2009

As ut 31 Dot embrr 2003

As ot 3} December 2002

As ot 37 December 2001

Ax a1 31 Decernber 2000

Ferceniage of bercentage of Percentage of Percentage of percentage of Percentuge of
Totat Tatal Total Totat Total Totof Totol Talal Total Totol Total Total
Recomables Receivables Recelvables Receivables Recenvables Feceivables Receivabies Recehobles Recetvables Receivabies Recefvabies Receivables
2015953195 9,570,542,329 8.809.951.299 8,134,303782 7.486,117.563 7.502452,285
226786519 251% 198840674 208% 207010453 235% 155461436 191% 164,292,364 2.19%  189.371,628 252%
111,508,539 124% 495983432 100% 91920270 LO4%  BE.573,436 082% 83167201 L11%  EB7542554 117%
TYI7I07N 0.88%  £4,996729% 0.68% 60220345 068% 41553754 052% 49797514 0.67% 47,189,100 0.63%
64 596,662 0.72% 51,264.718 0.54% 47.130.304 053% 25,300,258 032% 30585515 041% 32,390,920 0.43%
64,761.886 072% 45072167 051% 37892670 043% 44022007 054% 50072686 067% 38501520 0.51%
547025077 BUM% 460,152,720 4.81% 444,181,142 5(4% 334310951 4.11% 377915 680 505% 5.26%

394,995,812

(1) Receivable delinquent balances are 25 at the fatest billing date before the dates shown. The percentages are computed as a percentage of lotal receivables as at the date shown.
(2) Includes accounts on repayment programmes.
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Loss Experience Securitised Portfolio

& manths ended

30 September
Table Currency GBP 2005
Average Receivables Outstanding 9.249,267,.B53
Total Cross charge-offs 421,316,051
Recoveries 91,045,405
Total net charge-offs 330,270,646
Total net charge-offs as a percentage of average
receivables outstanding 4.76%

Notes

(1) Average receivables oulstanding is the average monthly receivable balance during the periads indicaled.

Year ended 31
December 2004
8,789,036,883
478032,471
119,717,964
358314,507

4.08%

(2} Receivables are total receivables generated from the portfolio, including finance charges and principal.

Year Ended 31
December 2003
B.274,226,639
419075172
94,4521.378
324,153,794

3.92%

Yeor Ended 31
December 2002
7.466,182,635
413,019,402
83,583.630
329,435,772

441%

Year Ended 31
December 2001
7.230,221,277
275,553,687
67,564,936
207,988,751

2.88%

Year Ended 31
December 2000
6.835091,131
303,082,666
64,702.065
238,380,601

3.49%



THE RECEIVABLES

Assignment of Receivables to the Receivables Trustee

Under the terms of a receivables securitisation agreement dated 23 November 1999 and amended
and restated on 7 July 2000 - which we will call the “receivables securitisation agreernent” -
Barclaycard as the initial transferor offered on 23 November 1899 - called the “initiat closing date™
- to the receivables trustee an assignment of all recelvables that had arisen or would arise in
accounts originated under the designated product lines, where such accounts were in existence on
or before October 1999 - called the “pocl selection date”. Under the terms of a deed of
assignment of receivables dated 7 july 2000, called the "Future Receivables Transfer”, Barclaycard
as initial transferor assigned to the receivables trustee all receivables that would arise on all
accounts opened on or after 1 August 2000 on certain product lines designated In the Future
Receivables Transfer. An account of the initlal transferor will be designated as a “designated
account” if the account has been origin‘ated under and continues to conform to the credit card
and charge card products described in this prospectus, comes within a product line named in an
accepted offer or transfer and has not been identified on the initial transferor's system as being
excluded from such accepted offer or transfer. Onty credit and charge card products available to
the transferor's individual account holders may be designated.

Under the terms of the Future Receivables Transfer whenever Barclays creates a new product line,
Barclays will be able, if it so chooses, to allocate to that product line one of the codes referred to
in the Future Receivables Transfer, being a code which has not previously been allocated to any
procuct line. By atlocating, or not allocating, one of thase codes to the new product line, Barclays
will be able to choose whether or not to nominate the receivables on that product line as being
included in the sale to the receivables trustee. If Barclays chooses to make a nomination, it will be
able to do so by allocating one of the refevant product line codes to the product fine in question.
Once one of the relevant product line codes has been attached to a particular product line, ali
receivables arising thereafter on all accounts opened thereafter on that product line will be
inctuded In the sale to the receivables trustee In accordance with the terms of the receivables
securitisation agreement. Further, where Barclaycard acquires new portfolios of credit card
accounts, it can elect to transfer those portfolios onto one of the product codes referred to in the
Future Receivables Transfer, and if those accounts are eligible, to designate those accounts and to
include the receivables arising on those accounts in the sale to the receivables trustee.

I for any reason there are receivables from designated accounts that cannot be assigned to the
receivables trustee, the transferor will hold those recelvables, and any collectiens on those
receivables, on trust for the receivables trustee. These collections will be treated as if the
receivables had been property assigned.

Under the terms of the recelvables securitisation agreement, the transferor also has the right to
select accounts that conform to the conditions in the first paragraph above and that are not
designated and nominate them to be designated accounts by offering the receivables trustee an
assignment of alf future and existing recelvables in these accounts. These accounts are called
“additional accounts”. An additional account will be treated as a designated account from the date
on which its receivables are offered to the receivab'es trustee, assurming that such offer is accepted.
This date is called the “addition date”. When additional accounts are nominated the transferor
must, amongst other things:

a  provide the receivables trustee with a certificate stating that it is solvent;

# confirm, in the document that offers to assign the receivables in the additional accounts to
the receivables trustee, that:

(1) the offer of the receivables in the additional accounis meets the Maximum Addition
Amount criteria; or

(2) i the offer does not meet the Maximum Addition Amount criteria, the rating agencies
have confirmed that the designation of additional accounts will not result in a reduction
or withdrawal of the current rating of any outstanding debt that is secured directly or
tndirectly by the receivables in the receivables trust, including your notes;
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e obtain a tegat opinion addressed to the receivables trustee about any receivables from a
Jurisdiction outside of the United Kingdom;

e« In refation to a nomination made In accordance with the terms of the Future Receivables
Transfer, oblain a fegal opinion addressed to the receivables trustee in respect of the Future
Receivables Transfer in a form satisfactory to the receivables trustee,

Any of these preconditions may be waived by the receivables trustee if the rating agencies confirm
in writing that the waiver will not result in the reduction or withdrawal of their rating on any
related beneficiary debt. At the time that it is nominated, each additional account must also meet
the eligibility criteria as at the time of its designation. These criteria are explained In "-
Representations” below, Additional accounts may have been originated or purchased using
underwriting standards that are different from the underwriting standards used by Barclaycard In
selecting the original designated accounts. As a result, addltional accounts that are selected In
future may not have the same credit quality.

“Maximum Addition Amount” means. for any addition date, the number of additional accounts
originated by the transferor after the pool selection date and nominated as additional accounts
without prior rating agency confirmation that would either:

& for any three consecutive monthly periods starting with the monthly period beginning on the
first day of the month before the pool selection date, exceed 15 per cent. of the number of
designated accounts at the end of the ninth monthly period before the start of such three
maenthiy periods;

¢ for any twelve-month period, be equal to 20 per cent. of the designated accounts as of the
first day of the twelve-month period, or if later, as of the pool selection date.

Notwithstanding what we just said, if the total principal balance of receivables in the additlonal
accounts described in either of the two prier bullet points is more than either:

(1) 15 per cent. of the total amount of eligible princlpal receivables determined as of the later of
the poal seiection date and the first day of the third preceding monthly period, minus the
amount of eligible principal receivables in each additional account that was nominated since
the later of the initial closing date and the first day of the third preceding monthly period —
calculated for each additional account on its addition date; or

{2) 20 per cent. of the total amount of eligible principal receivables as of the later of the initial
closing date and the first day of the calendar year in which the addition date occurs, minus
the total amount of eligible principal receivables in each additlonal account that was
nominated since the later of the initial closing date and the first day of the calendar year,
calculated for each additional account as of its addition date,

then the Maximum Addition Amount will be the lesser of (1) or (2) above.

Every offer of receivables to the receivables trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement
will comprise offers of the foliowing:

o all existing receivables in the designated accounts:

e al! future principal receivables under the designated accounts, until the first to occur of (1)
the time a designated account becomes a redesignated account, (2} the receivables trust s
terminateg or {3) an Insofvency Event occurs;

s all future finance charge receivables under those designated accounts that have accrued on
receivables that have been assigned to the receivables trustee as described in the two prior
bullet points;

e if capable of being assigned, the benefit of any guarantee or insurance policy abtained by the
transferor for any obligations owed by a cardholder on a designated account; and

#  the berefit of all amaunts representing Acquired Interchange for the relevant monthly period.

The transferor will ensure that each redesignated account is identified on the transferor's computer
system on the date that a designated account becomes a redesignated account.

Throughout the term of the receivables trust, the designated accounts from which the receivables
will arise will be the designated accounts pius any additional accounts designated by the transferor
from time to time, minus any redesignated accounts.
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Existing receivables and future receivables arlsing under the designated accounts are either
principal recelvables or finance charge receivables. "Princlpal receivables” are receivables that are
not finance charge recejvables. Principal receivables are amounts owing by cardholders for the
purchase of merchandise or services and from cash advances, Including forelgn exchange
commisslons charged for merchandise and services payable, or cash advances denominated in, a
currency other than sterling. They are reduced by any cred!t balance on the designated account on
that day.

"Finance charge receivables” are amounts owing from cardholders for transaction fees, periodic
finance charges. speciai fees and annual fees — see “— Special Fees ond Annusl Fees” below - and
any interchange and Discount Option Receivables.

Under the recelvables securitisation agreement, each offer of receivables made by the transferor
may be accepted by paying the purchase price for the offered receivables. If the receivabies trustee
chooses to accept the offer, payment for existing receivables has to be made no later than the
business day following the date on which the offer is made. Alternatively, the parties can agree to
a longer perlod of time for payment. Payment for future receivables that become existing
recefvables must be made no later than two business days after the date of processing for those
recelvables. Altermatively, the partles can agree to a longer period if the rating agencies consent.
Payment is made monthly for the assignment of the benefit of Acquired Interchange to the
recelvables trustee,

A “business day” is a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions
in London, England, or New York, New York are authorised or obliged by law or executive order to
be closed.

It was agreed between the transferor and the receivables trustee that. for the purposes of the offer
made on the initlal closing date:

(1) the receivables trustee was entitled to use the collections in the designated accounts before
the date that the offer was accepted as iIf the offer had been accepted on the initial closing
date;

(2) the amount paid on the initial closing date for the designated accounts equalied the
outstanding face amount of all existing principal receivables, together with an obllgation of
the recefvables trustee to pay for ali future receivables generated on the designated accounts
that were part of the offer on an ongoing, daily basis when those future receivables are
generated.

The payments in (2) are net of any payments made in (1}. subject to a minimum of £1.

The amount payable by the recelvables trustee to the transferor if it chcoses to accept an offer or
to make payment for any future receivables will be reduced by the amount of any shortfall in the
amount funded by the transferor as a beneficiary, providing that the Transferor Interest is
increased accordingly.

Redesignation and Removal of Accounts
Each designated account will centinue to be a designated account until such time as the transferor
rectassifies it as being no longer a designated account — calted a “redesignated account™

A designated account becomes a redesignated account on the date specified by the transferor, No
designated account will become a redesignated account this way unless (1) it has became a
cancelled account, a defaulted account or a zere halance account or (2) the transferor delivers an
officer’s certificate confirming the folfowing conditions are satisfied:

e the redesignation will not cause a Pay Out Event t¢ octur;

. the transferor has represented that its selection procedures for the selection of designated
2ccounts for redesignation are not believed to have any material adverse effect on any
irvestsr be-eficiary;

e the raling agencies nave confirmed that the action will not result in a downgrade in rating of
any outstanding debt that is secured directly or indirectly by the receivables in the receivables
trust; and
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s the transferor and the servicer can certify that collections equal to the outstanding face
amount of each principal receivable and the outstanding balance of each finance ¢harge
receivable have been received by the receivables trustee on alt receivables assigned for that
account other than any receivables charged off as uncollectable.

A “cancelled account” is a designated account that has had its charging privileges permanently
withdrawn. A “defaulted account” is a designated account where the receivables have been
charged off by the servicer as uncollectabie In line with the credit and charge card guidelines or
the usuai servicing procedures of the servicer for similar credit and charge card accounts. A “zero
balance account” is a designated account that has had a nil balance of receivables for a
considerable period of time and has been identified by the servicer as a zero balance account
under the credit and charge card guidellnes or the usual servicing procedures of the servicer.

Redesignated accounts include all accounts that become cancelled accounts, defaulted accounts and
zero balance accounts from the date on which they are redesignated in any of these ways. The
principal receivables that exist before the date of redesignation wili be paid for by the receivables
trustee, Any future receivables that come into existence after that time will not be assigned to the
receivabies trustee as set out in the receivables securitisation agreement. No receivable that has
been assigned to the receivables trustee will be reassigned to the transferor except in the iimited
circumstances described under the heading '~ Representations’.

Untit money has been recelved for the assigned receivables that have not been charged off, a
redesignated account will not be identified as having been removed. The amount identified will be
equal to the outstanding face armount of each principal receivable and finance charge recelvable.
Once these payments have been recelved or any reassignment has occurred, the account will be
identtfied to indicate that it has become a redesignated account.

Discount Option Receivables

The transferor may, by giving at least thirty days’ prior notice to the servicer, the receivables
trustee and the rating agencies, nominate a fixed or variable percentage - called the “'Discount
Percentage” — of principal receivables in the deslgnated accounts. If a Discount Percentage has
been nominated previously, an extension to the perlod for which it applies can be applied for in
the same way. From the date and for the length of time stated in the notice:

e the amount payable by the receivables trustee to accept an offer of receivables will be
reduced by a percentage ameount equal to the Discount Percentage; and

®  a percentage of the principal receivables equal to the Discount Percentage wifl be treated by
the receivables trustee as finance charge receivables. These are called "Discount Option
Receivables”.

The nomination of a Discount Percentage or increase In the time it is in place will be effective only
if the rating agencies consent to the proposed nomination or increase and confirm that it will not
result in the downgrade or withdrawal of the current rating of any debt that is secured directly or
indirectly by the receivables in the recelvables trust, including your notes. The transferor must also
provide the receivabies trustee with a certificate confirming:

e that the performance of the portfolio of designated accounts, in their reasonable opinlon, Is
not generating adequate cash flows for the beneficiaries of the receivables trust and the size
of the DMscount Percentage is not intended solely to accelerate distributions to the excess
Interest beneficiary; and

o that the transferor is solvent and will remain so following the homination or Increase.

The transferor may have different reasons to designate a Discount Percentage. The finance charge
coliections on the designated accounts mdf decline for various reasons or may stay constant. The
notes have interest rates that are variable and that could increase, Any of these variables could
cause a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event to oour based in part on the amount of finance charge
collections and the interest rate on the notes. The transferor could avoid the occurrence of this
Serles 05-4 Pay Out Event by designating a. Discount Percentage, causing an increase in the
amount of finance charge collections. The transferor, however, is under no obligation to designate
a Discount Percentage and we cannot assure you that the transferor would designate a Discount
Perceéntage to avoid a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event,
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Special Fees and Annual Fees

The transferor charges special fees - currently late and over limit fees — on its credit or charge
card accounts. These special fees as well as additlonal special fees may be assessed at one time or
on an ongoing basis. Certain of the receivables assigned or to be assigned to the recelvables
trustee include annual fees on a small number of the designated accounts. Any special fees and
annual fees that are charged on designated accounts are regarded as finance charge receivables
and collections of these special fees are treated as finance charge collections. The transferor may,
however, decide that these special fees or annual fees will be viewed as principal receivabies and
collections on them wifl be allocated accordingly. This can be done only if the transferor certifies
that it has an opinion from legal counsel that the special fees or annual fees amount to repayment,
for United Kingdom tax purposes, in whole or in part of an advance to a cardhcider.

Interchange

Members participating in the VISA and MasterCard associations receive fees called “interchange” as
partial compensation, for amongst other things, taking credit risk and absorbing fraud losses. Under
the VISA and MasterCard systems, interchange is passed from the banks that clear the transactions
for merchants 1o card issuing banks. Interchange fees are calculated as a percentage of the amount
of a credit or charge card transaction for the purchase of goods or services. This percentage varies
from time to time.

On each transfer date the transferor will deposit into the Trustee Collection Account an amount
equal to the interchange received for the preceding monthly period. This amount is called the
“Acquired Interchange”. Interchange Is received by Barclaycard on a daily basis and is posted to
the general ledger with a flag identifying the product to which it relates. The amount of Acquired
Interchange applicabie to the receivables in the trust Is arrived at monthly by interrogation of the
general ledger. All interchange relating to products included in the trust is extracted and posted to
the Trustee Collection Account.

Reductions in Receivables, Early Collections and Credit Adjustments

I a principal receivable that has been assigned to the receivables trustee is reduced - for reasons
other than because of Section 75 of the Consumer Credil Act or a credit adjustment - after the
offer date hecause of set-off, counterclaim or any other matter between the cardhelder and the
transferor, and the transferor has received a benefit, then the transferor will pay an amount egual
to that reduction to the receivables trustee, Similarly, if an existing receivabie has aiready been
assigned and the transferor has received fubl or parttal payment of that receivable before the date
that the receivable was purportedly assigned, then the transferor wifl pay the amount of that
collection to the receivables trustee.

If any principal receivable assigned to the recelvables trustee is reduced for credit adjustment
reasons after the offer date, then the transferor will pay that amount to the receivables trustee, A
credit adjustment is the outstanding face amount of a principal receivable that:

e was created by virtue of a sale of merchandise that was subsequently refused or returned by
a cardhelder or against which the cardholder has asserted any defence, dispute, set-off or
counterclaim;

® s reduced because the carcholder had received a rebate, refund. charge-back or adjustment;
or

oI5 fraudulent or counterfeit.

Alternatively, instead of paying these amaunts to the receivables trustee, the transferor can reduce
the Transferor Interest by the amount of the credit adfustment, but not below zero.

Representatians

fach offer of receivables 10 tne receivables trustee under the recevables securitisation agreement
and the Suture Receivables Transfer includes representations by the transferor about the offer or
transfz- of the =xisting receivables and the future receivables. The representations for the existing
receivabies were pr will be given as of the popol selection date or an addition date, as applicable,
and the rzoresentations for the future receivables are given on the date they are processed, and
include, in exch Case, that:
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e unless identified as an ineligible receivable, the receivable Is an eligible receivable and has
arisen from an eligible account in the amount specified in the offer or daily activity report, as
appticable;

# each assignment passes good and marketable title for that receivable to the receivables
trustee. together with the benefit of all collections and other rights in connection with it, free
from encumbrances of any person claiming on it through the transferor tc the receivables
and, unless such receivable does not comply with the Consumer Credit Act, nothing further
needs to be done to enforce these rights in the courts of England and Wales, Scotland or
Northern Iretand, or any permitted additional jurisdiction, without the participation of the
transferor, except for payment of any United Kingdom stamp duty and glving a notice of
assignment to the cardhelders and subject to any limitations arising on enforcement in the
jurisdiction of the relevant cardholder; and

&  the assignment complies with all applicable laws on the date of assignmant.

If a representation relating to the eligibility criteria given In connection with any principal
receivable proves to be incorrect when made, then the transferor is obliged to pay the receivables
trustee an amount equal to the face value of that receivable gn the following business day. A
receivable of this type will afterwards be treated as an ineligible receivable.

The transferor’s obligatlon to pay amounts due as a result of any breach of a representation can
be fulfilled, in whale or in part, by a reduction in the amount of the Transferor Interest. The
Transferor Interest, however, may not be reduced below zero. If the transferor meets a payment
obligation in this way, the receivables trustee will have no further claim against the transferor for
the breached representation. However, a breach of a representation may resuit in a Series Q5-4 Pay
Out Event,

If:

¢ all principal recelvables arising unger a designated account become ineligible as a result of
incorrect representations;

e that account has become a redesignated account; and
s the transferor has complied with the payment obligations for the principal receivables;

then the fransferor can require the recelvables trustee to reassign all those receivables to the
transferor.

The receivables trustee has not made and will not make any initial or periodic examination of the
receivables to determine if they are eligible recefvables or if the transfercr's representatlons and
warranties are true.

The term “eliglble account” means, as of the pool selection date, an addition date or date on
which the account Is opened, as applicable, a credit or charge card account:

e  where the cardholder is not a company or partnership for the purposes of Section 349(2) of
the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988;

e which, except in the case of a future designated account as defined in any offer or a relevant
account as defined in the Future Receivables Transfer, was in existence and maintained with
the transferor before it became a designated account;

s which is payable In pounds sterling or the currency of the permitted additional jurisdiction
where the account is in a permitted additionat jurisdiction, as applicable;

®  which Is governed by one of the transferor's standard form card agreements or, if it was
acquired by the transferor, It is originated on contractual terms not matertally different from
that standard form;

s which is governed in whole or In part by the Consumer Credit Act and creates legal, valid and
binding obligations between the transferor and the cardhelder which. except in the case of an
account on which restricted eligible receivables arise, is enforceable against the cardholder in
accordance with the relevant card agreement and the Consumer Credit Act, subject 1o
bankruptcy taws, general principles of equity and limitations on enforcement in any
cardholder jurisdiction and was otherwise created and complies with all other applicabte laws;

e where the cardhclder's most recent bitling address is iocated in England, Wales, Scotland,
Northern Ireland, or a permitted additional Jurlsdiction or a restricted additional jurisdiction;
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®  which has not been classified by the transferor as counterfeit, cancelled, fraudulent, stolen or
lost;

e which has been originated or purchased by the transferor;

e which has been operated in all material respects In accordance with the transferor’s policies
and procedures and usual practices for the operation of its credit and charge card business;
and

»  the receivables In respect of which have not been charged off by the transferor on the date
the account is specified as a designated account.

If alf these conditions have not been satisfied, then an account may still be an efigible account if
each rating agency gives their approval.

A “restricted eligible receivable” is a receivable ar'sing on an eligible account, the terms of which
fail to comply with the Consumer Credit Act, such that a court would have no discretion to grant a
court order,

A “defaulted receivable" is any receivable in a defauited account.

A “permitted additional jurisdiction” is a jurisdiction - other than England, Wales, Scotland and
Northern Ireland -~ agreed by the transferor and the receivables trustee, and which each rating
agency has confirmed in wrlting that Its inclusion as a permitted additional jurisdiction will not
result in its withdrawing or reducing its rating on any related beneficiary debt.

A restricted additional jurisdiction” is a jurisaiction - other than England, wales, Scotland and
Northern Ireland or a permitted additionat jurisdiction - which together with each other account
with a billing address in that jurisdiction and any other jurisdiction other than England, Wales,
Scotland, Northern Ireland or a permitted additionaé Jurisdiction represent less than 5 per cent. by
outstanding receivables balance.

A “notice of assignment” means a notice given to a cardholder of the assignment of the
receivables — and the benefit of any guarantees — to the receivables trustee.

An “eligible receivable” means a receivable that:

#  has arisen under an eligible account;

®  was originated under one of the transferor's standard form credit or charge card agreements
and s governed, in whole or in part, by the Consumer Credit Act, or else, If the related
account was acquired by the transferor, contractual terms that are materially the same as the
standard form credit or charge card agreements and are governed, in whole or in part, by the
Censumer Credit Act;

s was otherwise created in compliance with all other applicable laws;

[ was originated in accordance with the transferor's policies and procedures and usual practices
for its credit and charge card business;

e is not a defaulted receivable as at the offer date or addition date, as applicable;

® is free of any encumbrances exercisable against the transferor arising under or through the
transferor or any of its affiliates;

e to which the transferor has good and marketable title;

® s the legal obligation of the cardholder, enforceable - except in the case of restricted eligible
receivables - in accordance with the terms of the credit or charge card agreement, subject to
bankruptcy, general principles of equity and limitations on enforcement in any cardholder
jurlsdiction; and

® s not curvently subject 1o any defence, dispute, event, set-off, counterclaim or enforcement
order

A3 is market pracnce in tne Unizea Kingdom for credit and crarge card securilisation transactions,

principal receivables that are delinquent will still constitute eligible receivables If they comply with

the eligibility requirements. See the table captioned "Delinquency Experience - Securitised Portfolio"

in "Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Cord Porifolio - Delinguency and Loss Experience” above for

data showing the percentage 2f detinquent receivables.
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“Inetiglble receivables” means principal recelvables which arise under & designated account but
which do not cemply with all the criteria set out in the definition of eligible receivables as at the
pool setection date or an addition date, as applicable.

Amendments to Card Agreements and Card Guidelines

The transferor may amend the terms and conditions of its standard form card agreements or
change its policles and procedures and usual practices for its general card business. These
amendments may include reducing or increasing tbe amount of monthly minimum reguired
payments required or may involve changes to perfodic finance charges or other charges that would
apply to the designated accounts. See "Risk Factors: A Change in the Terms of the Receivobles May
Adversely Affect the Amount or Timing of Colffections and May Couse on Earfy Redemption of Your
Notes or a Downgrade of Your Notes”.

Summary of Securitised Portfolio

The 1ables that follow summarise the securitised portfolie by varipus criteria as of the billing dates
of accounts In the month ending on 30 September 2005. Because the future composition of the
securitised portfolic may change over time, these tables are not necessarily indicative of the
composition of the securitised portfolio at any time after 30 September 2005,

Composition by Account Balance
Securitised Portfolio

Percentage of Percentage of

Yotol Number of  Total Number of Tota!

Batance Banding Accounts Accounts Recelvables Receivables
Credit Batance 448,597 4.6% -£20,395,952 -0.2%
Nil Balance 3,563,144 36.4% £0 0.0%
£0.0% to £5,000.00 5357 826 54.7%  £5816,879,460 65.3%
£5,000.01 to £10,000.00 373,528 3.8%  £2,567.940,158 28.8%
£10,000.01 to £15,000.00 38,348 0.4% £438058.428 4.9%
E15,000.01 to £20,000.00 4,022 0.0% £68,075,687 0.8%
£20,000.01 to £25,000.00 1,145 0.0% £25447325 0.3%
£25,000.01 and over 513 0.0% £17,287,383 0.2%
Grand Total 9,787,123 100.0%  £8.913,256489 100.0%
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Credit Limit

Up to £500.00

£500.01 to £1,000.00
£1.000.01 10 £1.500.00
£1,500.01 to £2,000.00
£2,000.01 to £2,500.00
£2,500.01 to £3,000.00
£3,000.01 to £3,500.00
£3,500.0% to £4,000.00
£4,000.01 to £4,500.00
£4,500.01 to £5,000.00
£5,000.01 to £10,000.00
£10,000.01 to £15,000.00
£15,000.01 to £20.000.00
£20,000.01 to £25,000.00
£25,000.01 and over

Grand Total

Account Age

0 to 3 Months

3 to 6 months

6 to 9 months

§ to 12 months
12 to 15 months
15 to 18 months
18 te 21 months
21 te 24 months
2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years
510 10 years
Over 10 years

Crand Total

Compaosttlon by Credit Limit
Securitised Portfolio

Percentage of

Percentage of

Total Number of Total Number of Totol
Accounts Accounts Receivobles Receivables
1,025,404 10.5% E171,376,116 1.9%

955,676 5.8% £254,655,850 2.9%
789,124 8.1% £265,321,921 3.0%
602,951 6.2% £312,084,476 3.5%
661,871 6.8% £328,476,792 3.7%
779,481 8.0% £387,056,956 4.3%
1,021.340 10.4% £634.443,335 7.1%
649,068 6.6% 468,380,312 5.3%
443,746 4.5% £403,382,609 4.5%
469,386 4.8% £469,158,545 5.3%
2,042,836 209%  £3,523,226,193 44.0%
289,195 30% £1,059,672,800 11.8%
42,086 0.4% E151,027,535 1.7%
11,225 0.1% £58,973.759 0.7%
3,734 0.0% £26,059.250 0.3%
9,787,123 100.0%  £8,913,296,489 100.0%

Compasition by Account Age
Securitised Portfolio

Percentage of

Percentage of

Tota!l Number of  Total Number of Total
Accounts Accounts Receivables Receivables
97,922 1.0% £53,011,69% 0.6%
134,021 1.4% £115,936,886 1.3%
155,913 1.6% £145,445,864 1.6%
189,830 1.9% E134,401,75% 1.5%
427,862 4.4% £330,818,862 1.7%
210431 2% £161,027.153 1.8%
¥54,672 1.6% £116.698357 1.3%
274,835 2.8% £219,256,423 25%
958,807 §.8% £797,627.549 B8.9%
751025 717% £620,570,945 70%
428329 4.4% £337.484,658 318%
1,952,105 19.9%  £2,011,560.972 22.6%
4,051,371 41.4%  £3,870.055.322 43.4%
100.0%

9,787,123 100.0%  £8913,296,489
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Region

East

East Midlands
London

North East
North West
Northern ireland
Rest of UK
Scotland

South East
South West
Wales

West Midlands
Yorks & Humb
Unknown Postcode
Non-UK

Grand Total

Geographic Distribution of Accounts

Securitlsed Portfolio

Percentage Of

Percentage Of

Total Number Total Number Total
Of Accounts Of Accounts Receivables Receivables
1,106,739 11.3%  £1,008,487.561 11.3%
582,540 5.9% £528,124,138 5.9%
1,729,836 17.7%  £1,704,762,299 19.1%
521,176 5.3% £450,296,718 5.1%
874,126 8.9% £770912,124 B.6%
124,670 1.3% £106,502,093 1.2%
38438 0.4% £38,180,614 0.4%
362,838 3.7% £355,186,509 4.0%
1,542,845 15.8%  £1,471,917582 16.5%
790,889 8.1% £698,300,506 7.8%
438,563 4.5% £356,702,223 4.0%
782,519 8.0% £682,915,762 7.7%
596,786 6.1% £529,613,240 6.0%
77,764 0.8% £89,465.815 1.0%
217,334 22% E121.915,304 1.4%
9,787,123 100.0%  £8,913,296,485 100.0%
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Maturity Assumptions

On each transfer date during the Controlled Accumulation Peripd an amount equal to the
Controlled Deposit Amount will be deposited in the Pringipal Funding Account until the balance of
the Principal Funding Account equals the Investor Interest Although it is anticipated that principal
collections wilt be available on each transfer date during the Centrolled Accumulation Period to
make a deposit of the Controlled Deposit Amount and that the Investor Interest will be pald to the
MTN Issuer on the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date, allowing the MTN Issuer to redeem the
series 05-4 medium term note certificate fully, no assurance can be given that sufficient principal
collections will be available. If the amount required to pay the tnvestor interest {n full is not
avaliable on the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date, a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event will occur and
the Rapid Amortisation Period will begin,

If a Regulated Amortisation Trigger Event occurs during the Controlled Accumulation Period, the
Regulated Amortisation Period will begin. If any other Pay Out Event occurs during the Controlied
Accumulation Period, the Rapid Amortisation Period will begin. In each case, any amount on
deposit in the Principal Funding Account will be paid to the MTN Issuer for the Investor Interest on
the first payment date relating to the Regulated Amostisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation
Period. In addition, to the extent that the Investor Interest for each class has not been distributed
in full, the MTN Issuer witl be entitled 10 monthly distributions of principal collections during the
Rapid Amortisation Period equal to the Available Investor Principal Collections until the Investor
Interest has been distributed in full or, during the Regulated Ameortisation Period, an amount equal
to the Controlled Deposit Amount until the Investor Interest has been distributed in full. A Pay Cut
Event occurs, either automatically or after specified notice, after a Trust Pay Out Event or a Series
05-4 Pay Out Event occurs. See “The Recelvobles Trust: Trust Pay Out Events” ond "Series 05-4:
Series 05-4 Pay Out Events”. If a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event occurs, it will automatically trigger an
early redemption event under the series 05-4 medium term note certificate,

The following table presents the highest and lowest cardholder monthly payment rates for the bank
portfolie during any month In the period shown and the average cardholder monthly payment
rates for all months during the periods shown. These are calculated as a percentage of total
opening receivables halances during the periods shown. The payment rates are based on amounts
which would be deemed payments of princlpal collections and finance charge collections for the
related accounts.

Cardholder Monthly Payment Rates
Securitised Portfolio

9 months
ended 30
Table Currency September Yeor ended 31 December
2005 2004 2003 2002 2007 2000
Lowest Month 18.58% 20.10% 20.68% 18.61% 20.83% 21.16%
Highest Month 2233% 25.50% 24.B4% 26.26% 26.34% 25.09%
Manthly Average 20.35% 21.86% 22.7%% 22.97% 23.42% 2391%

Collections may vary from month to month due to:

. seasonal variations;

e promotional offerings - such as payment holidays;
& general economic conditions; and

a  payment habits of individual cardholders.

There is no guarantee that the future monthly payment rates for the securitised portfolio will be
similar to the historical experience set forth in the table above or that there will be enough
principal collections to deposit the Controlled Deposit Ameunt inte the Principal Funding Account
each month to fully redeem your notes by the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date. If a Pay Qut
Event occurs, the average life and maturity of your notes could be significantly reduced, since you
may start receiving principal distributions before the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date.

Because there may be a siowdown in the payment rate below the payment rates used to determine
the Corirolled Deposit Amount or & Pay Qut Event may occur which would start the Rapid
Amortisation Period or the Regulated Arortisation Period, there is no guarantee that the actuaf

68




numbper of months elapsed from the closing date to the final distribution date for your notes will
equal the expected number of rmonths. As described under “Series 05-4: Postponement of
Controlled Accumutation Period”, if the servicer shortens the Controlled Accumulation Perlod there
Is no guarantee that there will be enough time to accumulate all amounts necessary to fully pay
the Investor Interest on the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date. See “Risk Factors: Principal on
your Notes May Be Paid Earlier Than Expected Crealing o Reinvestment Risk to You or Later than
Expected™.

Receivables Yield Considerations

The gross revenues from finance charges and fees billed to accounts in the portfolio of credit and
charge card accounts for each of the six months ended June 2005, the calendar years ended 31
December, 2004, 31 December, 2003, 31 December, 2002, 31 December, 2001 and 31 December,
2000 are presented In the following tabie.

Prior to the creation of the receivables trust, Barclaycard recorded yield information on an accruals
basis. which includes earned but not necessarily paid finance charges and fees. A system change to
allocate cash in priority against finance charges ahead of principal was made in October 1999. This
resulted in increased yield in 2000. Cash vields from 2000 onwards include principal and interest
recovered on charged-off accounts, which typically results in higher cash yields than accrual yields.
The yield on both an accrual and a cash basis will be affected by many factors, including the
monthly periodic finance charges on the receivables, the amount of the annual fees and other fees,
changes in the delinguency rate on the receivables and the percentage of cardholders who pay
their balances In full each month and do not incur monthly periodic finance charges, For example,
the tiransferor could change the monthly interest rate applied to the accounts or reduce or
eliminate fees on the accounts, See “Risk Factor: A Change in the Terms of the Receivables May
Adversely Affect the Amount or Timing of Collections and May Couse an Eorly Redemption or a
Downgrade of Your Notes™,

The following table sets forth the revenue for the securitised portfollo of card accounts. The
revenue is comprised of monthiy periodic finance charges, card fees, special fees, annual fees and
interchange. These revenues vary for each account based on the type and volume of activity for
each account. See "Barcluycard and the Barclgycord Card Portfolio”.
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finance charges and fees'2
Average receivables uuutandingj

nield frura finance charges and fees*

Lonterechiatige

Yeeld [rom lnt::rchanges
Yield fraen finunce: charges, fees and interchange

Cardholder Monthly Accrued Yields Bank Portfolio

% months
ended 30
September
2005
1,096,453.645
9,249,267,853
15.81%
1188493747
1.71%

17.52%

Yeor ended 31
December 2004
1,356,642 484
8,789,036.883
15.44%
176211134
2.00%

17.44%

Year Ended 31
December 2003
1314305516
8,274,276,639
15.88%

191,405 581
231%

18.20%

Year Ended 31
December 2002
1.243,628,614
7.466,182,635

16.66%

187,437,523

2.51%
19.17%

Yeor Ended 31
December 2001
1,247,138,637
7.230,221,277
17.25%
186,525,567
2.58%

19.83%

Revenues vary for each account based on type and volume of activity for each account. See “Barclaycard and the Barclaycard Porifoliv™.

W w N -

tinanc e chatyes and fees are campriced of monthly periodic Anance charges, sonual fees and other card fees.

Accruer finance charges and fees are presented net of adjusiments made pursuani to Barclaycard's normal servicing procedures,
Average receivables outstanding is the average monlhly receivable balance during the periods indicated.
Yield from finance charges and fees is the result of dividing the annualised accrued finance charges and fees by the average recelvables outstanding for the pericd.

Yield [rom interchange Is the resull of dividing annualised revenue attributable to interchange received curing the perlod by the average receivables outstanding for the period.

Year Ended 31
December 2000
£1,413,692,116
£6,835,091,131

20.68%
£183,408,157
2.68%
2337%



The Receivables Trust

General Legal Structure

The receivabies trust was constituted on 1 November 1983 and is a trust formed under English law
by the receivables trustee as trustee and Barclays as trust cash manager, initial transferor,
transferor benéficiary znd excess interest beneficiary. The receivables trust was decfared for the
financings described In this prospectus. The terms ard conditions of the receivables trust are
contained in the declaration of trust dated 1 November 1999 as amended and restated by the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement dated 23 November 1999, and
supplemented by the series supplements to the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreamerit, which are governed by English law. This section will describe to you the material terms
of the receivables trust and declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement. The terms
of the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreerment may be varied or added to by
executing a supplement — but only for the series of investor certificates issued under the
supplement. A precondition to the receivables trustee entering inte a supplement Is obtaining
confirmation from the rating agencies that entering into the supplement will not result in any
rating agency withdrawing or downgrading its rating of any debi that [s ultimately secured by the
receivables in the receivables trust. Under the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement, the receivables trustee holds all of the receivables trust's property on trust for:

e the initial transferor beneficlary and the excess interest beneficiary as the initial beneficiaries
of the trust; and

e for any other person who may become an additional transferor beneficiary or additional
beneficiary of the trust as allowed by the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement.

Other than the excess interest beneficiary and a transferor beneficiary, the two categories of
beneficlary are:

® an investor beneficiary, which may include any investor benefitiary subordinate to another
investor beneficiary as a provider of credit enhancement; or

#  an enhancement provider for a serles of investar certificates, if provided for in the supplement
for that series.

The excess interest beneficiary and the inttlal fransferor benaficiary are the initial beneficlaries of
the receivables trust. Any subsidiary of the initiat transferor that, with the prior written consent of
all existing beneficiaries of the receivables trust, accedes to the receivables securitisation agreement
as an additional transferor will upon its accession become an additional transferor beneficiary of
the receivables trust,

By making payments to the receivables trustee as a contribution to the receivables trust's property,
as set out In the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement, other persans can
form a series of the receivables trust. These persans are called additional beneficiaries. When
payment is made, the additional beneficiaries wil! be given a certificate evidencing a beneficial
interest in the receivables trust to show that they are an Investor. This process is called an
acquisition and the certificate is called an Investor certificate. When an acquisition takes place a
notice witl be given that will list the parties to the acquisition and anyone who is providing credit
enhancement for the series of investor certificates, called an enhancement provider. A new
supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement will govern each new
series of the receivables trust that is created.

Twao types of acqulsition may be made:

#  the transferor beneficiary may direct the receivables trustee, in exchange for tendering the
certificate it holds showing its entitlement to the receivables trust's property - called the
"transferor certificate” - to issue a new series of investor certificates and to reissue the
transferor certificate evidencing the transferor's beneficial entitlernent to the receivables trust's
property. Thls is known as a “transferor acquisition”. Serfes 05-4 will be the eleventh series
af investor certificates issued by the receivables trust and will be created by a transferor
acquisition occurring on the closing date. The first series investor certificate (for series 99-1)
is no longer in existence as serles 99-1 was fully paid out In November 2002
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the second type of acquisition which may be made is an investor acqulisition where, if the
supplement permits, an Investor beneficiary together with the transferor beneficiary may
direct the receivables trustee, in exchange for tendering their investor certificates and the
transferor certificate to issue one or more new investor certificates and a reissued transferor
certificate. The supplement for series 05-4 does not provide for an investor acquisition.

The receivables trustee will authenticate and deliver a series of investor cenrlificates only when [t
has first received:

a supplement signed by the parties to the new series, including the receivables trustee and
the transferor beneficiary, specifying the principal terms of the series;

the credit enhancement, if any, and any agreement by which an enhancement provider agrees
to provide credit enhancement - series 05-4 has subordination and the Spread Account as
credit enhancement and will not have an enhancement provider or an enhancement
agreement;

a solvency certificate from the transferor and any additional transferors;

written confirmation from the rating agencies that the proposed acquisition will not result in
the reduction or withdrawal of their ratings on any notes issued by the issuer or any other
issuer of any series of notes that is ultimately secured by the receivables in the receivables
trust - called “related beneficiary debt™

written confirmation from each additional beneficiary and enhancement provider, If any, that:

{1) its usual place of abode is in the United Kingdom and it will be within the charge to
United Kingdom corperation tax for all amounts regarded as interest for UK tax purposes
received by it under the transactions contemplated by the series of investor certificates;
or

(2) it is a bank, as defined for purposes of Section 349(3}(a) of the Income and Corporation
Taxes Act 1988, and it will be within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax for
all armounts regarded as interest for UK tax purposes received by it under the series of
Investor certificates;

the existing transferor certificate and, if it Is an investor acquisition, the applicable investor
certificates:

an officer’s certificate provided by the transferor certifying either:
(1) that:
e each class of related beneficiary debt issued as part of the acguisition and

described in the related supplement will be rated in one of the three highest rating
categories by at least one rating agency recognised in the United Kingdom;

e each investor beneficiary - other than any enhancement provider - will have
associated with it, either directly or indirectly, & class of related beneficiary debt;
and

® the ephancement for each series will be provided by amy combination of
subordination, a letter of credit, a cash collateral loan, a surety bond. an insurance
policy, or a spread or reserve account funded from excess finance charge
collections ultimately reverting to the excess interest beneficiary or transferor to
the extent not utilised as enhancement, but through no other means; or

{2) it has determined that, based on iegal advice, the acquisition is in the best interests of
the transferor beneficiary and its affiliates.

Each supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement will specify the
principal terms for its series of investor certificates, including the accumulation period or
amortisation period for the payment of principal. For each series these may e of different lengths
and begin an different dates. Enhancement is specific to each series and will be held and used by
the receivabies trustee only for the benefit of the relevant serfes. Certzin series may be
subordinated 1o other series, and ciasses within a series may have different priorities. Whether or
not a series or class is subordinated will be set out In the related supplement. Series 05-4 wiil not
be subgrdinate to any ofher series. There will be ng fimit on the number of acquisitions that may
be perforimed.
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The receivables trustee will not be able to arrange for additional supplements without obtaining
the consent of all the beneficiaries constituting each existing series. Even if the receivables trustee
receives all these consents, no acquisition will be effective unless the rating agencies confirm that
the additional supplement will not result in the reduction or withdrawal of their rating of any
related beneficiary debt.

The Recelvables Trust's Property

The property of the receivables trust will inciude afl present and future receivabies located on the
Triumph accounting system or any other accounting system used by the transferor from time to
time, arislng under all MasterCard and ViSA credit and charge card accounts of Barclaycard's
Individual cardhoiders on designated product lines that have not been Identified as non-designated
accounts and that are denominated in pounds sterling with a billing address within England, Wales,
Scotland, Northern Ireland or a permitted additional jurlsdiction or a restricted additionat
jurlsdiction. We refer to these accounts as the “designated accounts”, See “The Receivables:
Representations”. The receivables have been and will continue to be assigned to the receivables
trustee under the receivables securitisation agreement between Barclaycard as transferor and the
recelvables trustee. The recelvables securitisation agreement is governed by English law,
Qccasionally some accounts may be removed from the pool of designated accounts. These
accounts we refer to in this prospectus as the “redesignated accounts”.

The transferor is required to ensure that any of Barclaycard's credit and charge card acCounts that
are io be excluded from or otherwise outside the scope of the offer or transfer to the recelvables
trustee under the recelvables securitisation agreement or that are to be removed from the pool of
designated accounts are identified on its computer system prior to the date of offer or the date of
transfer.

The property of the receivables trust will alsg inctude:

&  all monles due In payment of the receivables under designatad accounts from time to time:

e  all proceeds of the recelvables and proceeds of any guarantees and [nsurance policies for the
recelvables - to the extent that they are capable of assignment - inctuding proceeds of
disposals by the receivables trustee of charged-off receivables to Barclaycard;

the Benefit of any Acquired Interchange; see “The Receivables: interchange™

all monies on deposit in the Trust Accounts;

any credit enhancement for the benefit of any series or class of beneficiary; and

all monies provided by beneficiaries of the receivables trust to fund the purchase of
regeivables, until these monies are applied as intended,

The recelvables are divided Into eligible receivables and ineligible recefvables. Each Investor
beneficiary, the excess interest beneficiary and the transferor beneficiary are beneficially entitled to
interests in the pool of eligible receivables.

The transferor beneficiary is beneficlally entitled to the entire poot of ineligible receivables and is
solely entitled to all collectians of ineligible receivables.

The total printipal amount of the interest of the investor beneficiary In a serles Is called the
“investor interest” of that series and reflects that series’ entitlement to principal receivables. The
investor beneficiarles’ aggregate entitlement under the recelvables trust Is called the “aggregate
investor interest” and comprises the aggregate of each entitlernent under each series supplement.

The total amount of the interest of the transferor beneficiary in the receivables trust is called the
“Transferor Interest” and reflects the transferor beneficiary's entitlement to principal receivables
not allocated to each outstanding series.

s & & @

General Entitiement of Beneficiaries to Trust Property

The transferor beneficlary and each investor beneficiary wili acquire undivided interests in the
receivables trust by making payments in favour of the receivables trustee. Some of the receivables
trust's property that will constitute credit enhancement may be specified as being the beneficial
entitlement of particular beneficiaries or particular series only. The benefictaries of the receivabies
trust are each beneficially entitled to share in the receivables trust's property and each beneficiary,
other than an enhancement provider, has or will acquire interests in the pool of eligible receivables
- called the “Eilgible Receivables Pool”. See “Series 05-4" for a description of the beneficial
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entitlement of the issuer to receivables and for a description of the manner in which collections
will be allocated to the issuer,

Under the receivables trust as originally created, the beneficial entitlement of Barclaycard as the
excess interest beneficiary to the property of the receivables trust at any time was called the
"Excess interest”. The Excess Inlerest consisted of a beneficial entitlement to the residue of the
finance charge collections and Acquired Interchange for each monthly period after amounts have
been allocated 10 each heneficiary forming part of that series or group of series, if applicable, and
have been used to make payments to the enhancement provider, if it is not a beneficiary. These
payments will include amounts deemed to represent finance charge collections as stated in the
supplement for the series.

Because Barclaycard will transfer its entitlement to the portion of the excess interest attributable to
series 05-4 to the MTN Issuer, the portion of the excess interest attributable to series 05-4 will be
paid to the MTN Issuer.

To understand the beneficial entitlfement of the transferor beneficiary and each additional transferor
beneficiary you have to understand the definition of “Transferor Percentage” The Transfercr
Percentage is the percentage equal to 100 per cent less the sum of the applicable Investor
Percentages of each outstanding series.

The aggregate beneficial entitlement of the transferor beneficiary at any time consists of the

following:

# the Transferor Percentage of eligible principal recelvables; the Transferor Percentage Is
calculated for this purpose using the Fioating investor Percentage for the Investor Percentage
of each serles;

e the Transferor Percentage of finance charge receivables; the Transferor Percentage is
calculated for this purpose using the Floating Investor Percentage as the Investor Percentage
for each series;

& all ineligible receivables; and

e all monies held In the Trust Accounts that represent investiment earnings on permitied
investments made using monies deposited in those Trust Accounts, unless something else is
provided for in the supplement; the supplement for series 05-4 does not provide for
spomething else,

"Permitted investments” means the following:

e demand or time deposits, certificates of deposit and other short-term unsecured debt
obligations at or of any Institution that has unsecured and unguaranteed debt obligations of
A-1+ and P-1 by $tandard & Poor's and Moody’s; and

®  short-term unsecured debt obligations - including commercial paper - issued or guaranieed
by any body corporate whose unsecured and unguaranteed debt obligaticns are A-1+ and P-1
by Standard & Poor's and Moody's.

The aggregate beneficial entitiement of the transferor beneficiary to any other trust property at
any time Is equal to the proportion that the Transferor Interest bears to the amount of eligible
principal receivables at that time, The injtial transferor beneficiary's and each additional transferor
beneficiary’s entitlement to the aggregate beneficial entitlerment of the transferor beneficlary is
equal to its proportlonate share described in the transferor certificate.

Allocation and Application of Collections
The fellowing accounts have been opened by the recelvables trustee at 1234 Paviliion Drive,
Northampton, NN4 75G, England:

® @ collection account called the “"Trustee Collection Account”, which is where principal
ccllectiors and finance charze collections are credited; and

®  the accuation account called the "Trustee Acquisition Account”, which is where amounts are
c-ecitec st <an be used 10 purchase benefizial interests in receivables for the investor or

tra-sfar - beseficares

The Trustes . giisition Account, the Trustes Colieciion Accounnt ang any additionai sank accounts
of the receivables trust that the receivables trustee may open for particular beneficiaries are
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collectively calted “Trust Accounts”, The receivables trustee wili have legal title to the funds on
deposit in each Trust Account,

Collections from cardholders for designated accounts and cardholders for other card accounts of
Barclaycard are initially paid to Barclaycard's bank accounts before being cleared on a same-day
basis to a bank account called the “Barclaycard Operating Account”. The Barclaycard Operating
Account is currently held by Barclaycard at its branch located at 1234 Pavillion Drive, Northampton
NN4 7SG, England. The transferor has declared a trust over the Barclaycard Operating Acceunt.

All money in the Barclaycard Operating Account will be held on trust for the receivables trustee
and transferred to the Trustee Coblection Account within two business days after processing. Alt
money in the Trustee Collection Account will be treated as collections from recelvables of
designated accounts unless it has been incorrectly paid into the account. Incorrect payments will be
deducted from the appropriate collections on the business day on which the error is noliied to the
receivables trustee.

Amounts incorrectly categorised as principal collections of eligible receivabigs but which are really
coliections of ineligible receivables will be given back to the transferor beneficiary, after making
adjustments for errors but before allocating amounts of principal coliectlons that are property of
the receivables trust. The receivabies trustee will treat all money deposited in the Trustee
Coliection Accaunt as property of the receivables trust unless notified otherwise by the trust cash
manages.

The Eligible Receivables Pool and the Transferor Interest are increased or decreased, as applicable,
to account for the errors made.

Eligible principal receivables in defaulted accounts are allocated between the transferor beneficiary
and each series of investor certificates in accordance with their respective beneficial entitiements to
the property of the receivables trust at the time the account becomes a defaulted account. Credit
adjustments for principal receivables are allocated to the transferor beneficiary as a reduction of
the Transferor Interest until the Transferor Interest reaches zero. Ineligible principal receivables in
defaulted accounts reduce the transferor's interest in ineligible receivables - called the “Transferor
Ineligible Interest™ — until it reaches zero.

Collections that are property of the receivables trust are categorised as:

e  principat coilections;

e«  finance charge coliections; or
e« ineligible collections. v

If a Discount Percentage is nominated by the transferor, the Discount Percentage of principal
collections will be treated as finance charge collections. The transferor has no current intention to
nominate a Discount Percentage. See “The Receivables: Discount Option Receivabies”.

If the related supplement says so, each series will also be entitled to a portion of Acquired
Interchange. Series 05-4 will be allocated a portion of Acqulred Interchange as described in “Series
05-4", To the extent that any Acquired Interchange is not allocated to all those series, it will be
allocated to the transferor beneficiary.

Each series will be entltled to receive varying percentages of principal collections, finance charge
collections and receivables In defaufted accounts. Each of these percentages is called an “Investor
Percentage”. The transferor beneficiary will be entitled to its appiicable Transferor Percentage of
principal collections and finance charge collections and receivables in defaulted accounts. The
excess interest beneficiary is entitled to finance charge collections allocated to a series that are not
allocated to:

&  any other beneficiary, whether er not a member of that series; or
&  any enhancement provider, as set cut in the supplement relating to that series.

Each supplement will set out, for its series, the entitlement of each investor beneficiary to principal
collections, finance charge collections and Acquired Interchange,

The transferor may fulfil any obligation to make payments to the receivables trustee for principal
receivables for which it has breached a warranty by:

e  reducing the Transferor Interest - but not below zero; and
®  increasing the Transferor ineligible Interest.
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However, if the Transferor Interest would be reduced below zero, the transferor rmust make a
similar payment in immedlately available funds to the receivables trustee under the declaration of
trust and trust cash management agreement and the receivables securitisation agreement.

The receivables trustee will pay the trust cash management fee (which is inclusive of VAT) to the
trust cash manager from payments made by the beneficlaries and this amount will be deducted
from the transferor beneficiary's and each series’ portion of the finance charge collections.

The receivables trustee will transfer money daily from the Trustee Collectlon Account in the

following priority:

{1} the amount of any incorre¢t payments notified to the receivables trustee not previously
allocated as collections, to the Barclaycard Operating Account, after which the transferor
beneficiary will own the money absolutely;

(2} the amount of ineligible collections notified to the receivables trustee not previously aliocated
as principal collections, to a bank account opened in the name of the transferor to deposit
the cash proceads of the purchase price of the receivables, called the “Barclaycard Proceeds
Account”, after which the transferor beneficiary will own the money absolutely;

(3) the totat amount of principal collections allocated to the investor interest of any outstanding
series, minus the Investor Cash Available for Acquisition of that series from the Principal
Collections Ledger to the account specified in the supplement for that series;

(4) the total amount of Investor Cash Avallable for Acquisition and Transferor Cash Available for
Acquisition needed on that day from the ledger of the Trustee Collection Account for
principal collections - called the “Principal Collections Ledger” — to the Trustee Acquisition
Account;

(5) the Transferor Percentage of finance charge collections and the amount of Acguired
Interchange deposited in the Trustee Collecticn Account not allocated to the investor interest
of any outstanding series, from the ledger of the Trustee Collection Account for finance
charge collectipns — called the “Finance Charge Collections Ledger” - to the Barclaycard
Proceeds Account, or as the transferor beneficiary may direct, after which the money will be
owned by the transferor beneficiary absolutely: and

(6) each finance charge amount and ail Acguired Interchange allocable to any outstanding series,
from the Finance Charge Collections Ledger to any account that may be specified in the
suppiement for that series.

Acquiring Additional Entitiements to Trust Property and Payments for Receivables
To understand what a revolving period is, see “Series 05-4 Allocation, Calculation and Distribution
of Principal Coflections to the MTN Issuer”.

During the revolving pericd for a series, the receivables trustee will use the portion of principal
collections allocated to the invester beneficiaries of that series and which is available to fund the
acquisition of the beneficial entitfement to receivables to pay for the purchase of the beneficial
entitlement to receivables that are eligible. These available principal collections are called "investor
Cash Available for Acguisition”. No Investor Cash Available for Acquisition will be used to fund
ineligible receivables.

Cn any day a series may be allocated more money for acguisitions than is needed to purchase
existing or future receivables that are eligible and available for 2 seties to fund. In that case, that
series will use the excess Investor Cash Available for Acguisition to acquire available Transferor
Interest from the transferor beneficiary and, if allowed under its supplement, investor interest fram
other designated series. Any money left over will be used to fund acquisitions on subsequent
business days.

The transferor beneficiary will fund the amount payable by the receivables trusiee for all the
existing and future receivables that all series are unable to fund plus the amount of any ineligible
receivables that need to be funded, Consequently, the amount payable by the receivables trustee to
the transferoe for all existing and future receivanles it is purchasing on any Gusiness day will be
funded first by the series to the extent of all of the Investor Cash Available for Acquisition and
then by the transferor beneficiary to the extent of the Transferer Cash Available for Acquisition.
“Transferor Cash Available for Acguisition” for any day means an amount egual to the Transferor
Fercentage of principal collections processed on that day.

76




On each business day after making ail adjustments, the beneficial interest of each series in the
Eligible Receivables Pool:

# will be decreased by the amount of principal collections allocated to that series that
constitutes Investor Cash Available for Acquisition; and

e will be increased by the amount of Investor Cash Available far Acquisition used by the
recelvables trustee to pay for existing and future receivables and the amount of Invester Cash
Available for Acquisition allocated to the Transferor Interest or the investor interest of other
series to increase the proportion of the beneficial interest of that series.

These changes will not affect the beneficiat entitlement of:
e any beneficiary to monies credited to any Trust Account to which it is beneficially entitled; or

s  any series te monies credited to any Trust Account to which the beneficiaries constituting
that series are tegether beneficially entitled.

On each business day after making all adjustments, the beneficial interest of the transferor
beneficiary in the Eligikle Receivables Pool:

® will be decreased by the amount of principal collections and Investor Cash Avaitable for
Acquisition allocated to the transferor beneficiary; and

e  will be increased by the amount of Transferor Cash Avallable for Acquisition and the increase
in the Transferor Interest resulting from the decrease described in the prior bullet point.

However, any change in the beneficial interest of the transferor beneficiary in the Eligible
Receivables Pool will not affect the beneficiai entitlement of the transferor beneficiary to money
credited to any Trust Account to which It is beneficially entitled.

The Investor interest of each series and the beneficial interest in the receivables trust of each
additional beneficlary will increase or decrease as described in the related supplement.

On each business day, after making ail adjustments, the Transferor Interest:

e  will be decreased by the amount of Transferor Cash Available for Acquisition not used to pay
far new receivables and Investar Cash Available for Acquisition transferred to the transferor
beneficiary by credit to the Barclaycard Proceeds Account; and

e will be increased by the purchase price payable to the transferor by the receivables trustee to
be funded by the transfercr beneficiary.

These changes will not affect the beneficial entitlement of the transferor beneficiary to money
credited to any Trust Account to which it is beneficially entitled.

Other adjustments to the Transferor Interest are expiained In “The Receivables Trust: Allocation and
Application of Collections”.

Non-Petition Undertaking of Beneficiaries

Each beneficiary of the receivables trust, including Barclaycard as transferor beneficiary and excess
interest beneficiary, the transferor, the trust cash manager and any successor trust cash manager,
by entering into a supplement, will agree with the receivables trustee for itself and as trustee that
it will not attempt to take any action or legal proceedings for the winding up, dissoiution or re-
arganisation of, or for the appointment of a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee,
liquidator, sequestrator ar simiiar officer for, any investor beneficiary, the receivables trustee or the
receivables trust. These partles will also agree not to seek to enforce any judgments against any of
those persons.

Trust Pay Qut Events

The following is a list of what we refer to in this prospectus as the “Trust Pay Out Events™

(1) the transferor consenis or takes any corpcrate action to appoint a receiver, administrator,
administrative recelver, liquidator, trustee or similar officer of it or over all or substantially alt
of its revenues and assets;

(2} proceedings are started against the transferor under any applicable liquidation, insalvency,
composition or re-organisation or similar laws for its winding up, dissolution, administration
or re-organisation and the proceedings are not discharged within 60 days, or a recejver,
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administrator, administrative receiver, liquidator, trustee or similar officer of it or relating to
all or substantially all of its revenues and assets is legally and validly appointed and Is not
discharged within 14 days;

(3) a duly authorised officer of the transferor admits in writing that the transferor beneficiary or
excess interest beneficary is unable to pay its debts when they fall due within the meaning of
Section 123(1) of the Insolvency Act 1986 or the transferor makes a general assignment for
the benefit of or a composition with its creditors or voluntarily suspends payment of its
cbligations to generaily readjust or reschedute its debt:

(4) the transferor cannot transfer receivables in the designated accounts to the receivables trust
in the manner described in the receivables securitisation agreement;

(5) the transferor stops being either a resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes or liable
for United Kingdom corporation tax; or
(6) either:

s a change in law or its Interpretation or administration results in the receivables trustee
becoming liable to make any payment on account of tax - other than stamp duty
payable in the United Kingdom for the transfer of receivables under the receivables
securitisation agreement; or

e  any tax authority asserts a tax liabllity or takes other actions against Barclays or any of
its subsidiaries in relation to the transaction which would have an adverse affect on
them which is more than trivial, if Barclays obtalns an opinion of counsel stating that
the tax liability would e due. This event will be treated as occurring when Barclays, as
transferor beneficiary, gives written natice of it to the receivables trustee.

The Trust Pay Out Events in paragraphs (1), {2) and (3} are called “Insolvency Events”, If an
Insolvency Event occurs, a Pay Out Event will occur for each series, each beneficiary within a series
and for the transferor beneficiary. If any other Trust Pay Out Event occurs, a Pay Out Event will
occur for each series and each beneficiary within a series. Trust Pay Qut Events will occur without
any notice or other action ¢n the part of the receivables trustee or any beneficiary, as soon as the
event happens.

A "Pay Out Event” for serles 05-4 means a Trust Pay Qut Event or one of the events listed in
“Series 05-4: Series 05-4 Pay Out Evenils”.

After an Insolvency Event, future recelvables, other than finance charge receivables accruing for
principat receivabfes that have been assigned to the receivables trustee, wilf no longer be assigned
to the receivables trustee. The receivables trustee wilf not be entitled to accept any more offers of
receivables after an Insolvency Event. Finance charge receivables accruing on principal receivables
that have been assigned 1o the recelvables trustee before the insolvency Event will still be part of
the receivables trust's property and finance charge collections from them will continue to be
allocated and applied as set out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement
and each supplement.

The receivables trustee will notify each beneficiary if an Insolvency Event occurs and will dispose of
the receivables on commerciatly reasonable terms, unless within 60 days of that notice beneficiarles
representing more than 50 per cent. of the investor interest of every series, both the transferor
beneficiary and the excess interest beneficiary - in each case, if not subject to an Inselvency Event
- and every cther person identified in any supplement disapproves of the liguidation of the
receivables and wishes to continue with the receivables trustee accepting offers and purchasing
receivables under the receivables securitisation agreement. Money from this sale will be treated as
collections on the receivables and will be distributed In accordance with the provisions of the
deciaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and each supplement. See “Series
05-4".

Termination 07 tne Receivaoies Trust

if the receivaoles trust has not already been aissoived after an inselvency Event, then the transferor
Seneficiary c3r instruct the rece;vables trustez o dissolve the receivables trust when:

zatal amount of &l of tre nvestor wtecests Is reduced o 2éro;

# there are no finance cnarge collections or oiher trust praperty allocated to any beneficiaries
other than the transferor beneficiary or the cxcess interest beneficliary; and
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® no beneficiary is committed to fund payments to the transferor for purchases of receivables
by the receivables trust.

After the receivables trust is dissofved, afi of the receivables trust’s property will be controlled by
the transferor beneficiary as residual beneficlary, and the receivables securitisation agreement will
be terminated.

For the purpeses of Section 1 of the Perpetuitles and Accumulations Act 1964, the duration of the
perpetulty period for the receivables trust's property will be a period ending not later thas 80
years from the date of execution of the declaration of trust and cash management agreement. Any
property of the receivables trust after this period will vest in the current beneficiaries in
accordance with their entltlements to the receivables trust's property at that date.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust and Trust Cash Management Agreement

The declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement may be amended with the prior
consent of each related beneficiary. No amendment will be effective unless each rating agency has
cenfirmed that the amendment will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of its then current
rating of any outstanding related beneficiary debt.

No investor beneficiary will consent to any proposed amendment unless instructed to do so by
noteholders holding in totai not less than two thirds of the medium term notes or certificates then
outstanding of each outstanding series adversely affected. The investor beneficiary may not consent
to any proposed amendment that would:

e reduce or delay required distributions to any investor beneficlary for the affected serles:

¢ change the definitlon or the manner of calculating the investar interest, the Investor
Percentage or the Investor default amount of the affected serles or any class of the affected
series; or

e reduce the percentage required to consent to any amendment, unless instructed to do so by
alt the noteholders of the medium term notes or certificates then outstanding of the affected
sertes,

Disposals
Beneficiaries may not transfer or dispose of their beneficial entitlements in the receivables trust or
create any encurmnbrance over its beneficial entitfement, except that:

®  the transferor beneficlary or the Excess Interest beneficiary may dispose of the Transferor
Interest or the Excess Interest by transferring all or substantially all of its propertles and assets
to any persen, if that person also expressly assumes the duties and obligations of the
transferor, the transferor beneficiary and the excess interest beneficiary under the relevant
documents; after the transfer, the new person will be the person used to determine if an
Insolvency Event has occurred;

» the transferor benefictary or the excess interest beneficiary may transfer or create any
encumbrance over the whole or any part of the Transferor Interest or the Excess Interest with
the consent of investor beneficiaries representing in total more than one-half of the total
Investor interest of each series; however, the rating agencles must first confirm that the
transfer or encumbrance will not result in a downgrade or withdrawal of its rating of any
outstanding related beneficiary debt; and

e any beneficiary ~ except for the transferor beneficiary or the excess interest beneficiary - may
transfer all or any part of their beneficial entitlement or grant an encumbrance over their
benefictal entitlement with the prior written consent of the transferor beneficiary, which
consent will not be unreasonably withheld; however, the recelvables trustee must first receive
confirmation in writing from the person to whom the transfer will be made or for whom the
encumbrance will be granted or created, that it complies with the criteria referred to in the
fifth and sixth prerequisite to the compietion of an fssuance as referred to on page 70 in “-
Ceneral Legal Structure' above.

The receivables trustee will, upon the direction of all of the beneficlaries, be authorised to reassign
to Barclaycard the beneficial interest in defaulted receivables for a purchase price egqual to the
amount received or recovered, if any, by Barclaycard from those defaulted receivables iess the fees,
costs and expenses incurred by Barclaycard In the recovery of that amount.
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Trustee Payment Amount

The recelvables trustee will be paid its remuneration, which ts inclusive of VAT (if any), and
reimbursed and indemnified (under the terms of the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement) for any costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with its duties
and activities as receivables trustee, Including the part of these costs and expenses that represents
VAT (if any) out of the property of the receivables trust zllocated to the investor beneficiaries. The
receivables trustee will be pald monthly in arrears on each transfer date the amounts certified by
the trust cash manager to the recelvabies trustee by the end of any monthly period as being due
to it for that monthly period. This payment Is called the “Trustee Payment Amount’. The
proportion of the Trustee Payment Amount to be paid by series 05-4 and the MTN Issuer is
described in "Series 05-4: Trustee Payment Amount”.
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Servicing of Receivables and Trust Cash Management

General - Servicing
Barclaycard was appointed on the initial closing date by the beneficlaries of the receivables trust as
initial servicer under the terms of the beneficiaries servicing agreement. Any additional transferor
beneficiary or beneficiary must accede to the beneficiaries servicing agreement. The servicer will
service, administer and manage the receivables and request and receive payments on the
receivables using its usual procedures and normal market practices for servicing credit and charge
card receivables comparable to the receivables in the gesignated accounts. The servicer has full
power and authority, acting alone or through any other party properly designated, to undertake all
actions concerning the servicing, administration and management of the receivables it considers
necessary or desirable.
The servicer's duties include carrying out all servicing, administration and management functions in
refation to the receivables and, insofar as the interests of the beneficlaries are affected, the
desighated accounts in accordance with Barclaycard's policies and procedures from time to time
and in accordance with normal market practice, insofar as consistent with Barclaycard's policy and
procedures. These functions include:
e  carrving out valuations of receivables on designated accounts for the purpose of determining
whether any receivables should be charged off in accordance with Barclaycard's credit and
charge card guidelines;

® ensuring that the interests of the beneficiaries are taken into account in making decisions
regarding the granting of credit to obligors; )

® on its own behalf, preparing and keeping its own recards as regards all of these matters,
including in particular but without limitation, the matters referred to in the first two bullet
points above:

® monitoring payments by obligors and notifying obligors of overdue payments; and
¢ crediting and debiting obligors’ accounts as appropriate.
The servicer wil! at all times be required tc take all practicable steps to:

e ensure that payments made to the transferor by obligors are received into the Barclaycard
Cperating Acctount;

& identify any funds in the Barclaycard Operating Account which are required to be transferred
to the trustee coliection account for the benefit of the beneficiaries; and

e ensure that such funds are so transferred when required.

The servicer will not resign from its obligations and duties as servicer under the beneficiaries
servicing agreement uhless its performance is ne longer permitted under applicable law and there
is no reasonable action that it could take to make it permissible, The service’s resignation will not
be effective until a successor servicer has been properly appointed. Barclaycard, as initial servicer,
performs account processing and administration in-house, but has subcontracted some cardholder
payment processing services, which are undertaken on Barclaycard's behalf by ASTRON (Business
Processing Sclutlons).

The servicer will indemnify each investor beneficiary against all reasonable loss, lability, expense,
damage or injury caused by the servicer’s fraud, wilful misconduct or negligence in performing its
servicing functions. However, the servicer will not Indemnify any investor beneficiary;

s if any acts or omissions are caused by the negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct of that
investor beneficiary or its agents;

e for any liabflities, costs or expenses of the receivables trust for any action taken by the
receivables trustee at the request of any investor beneficlary of any series to which that
investor beneficiary belongs;

¢ for any loss, claims or damages that are incurred by any of them acting in their capacity as
beneficlaries, including those resulting from defaulted accounts; or

e for any liabilities, costs or expenses arising under any tax law, or any penalties or interest
caused by a failure to comply with any tax law, payable by it in connection with the
beneficiaries servicing agreement to any tax authority.
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The directors, officers, employees or agents of the servicer and the servicer Itself will not be under
any liability to the receivables trustee, the receivables trust, the investor beneficiarles, any
enhancement provider or any other person under the bereficiaries servicing agreement or any
related provider except in the case of Intentional wrongdeing, bad faith or gross negligence in
performing Its duties under the beneficiaries servicing agreement.

Any person Into which the servicer may be merged or conselidated, or any person succeeding to
or acquiring the business of the servicer in whole or in part, after executing a supplemental
agreement to the beneficiaries servicing agreement and the delivery of a legal opinion, will become
the successor to the servicer or co-servicer with the servicer under the beneficiaries servicing
agreement.

General - Trust Cash Management

Barclaycard was appointed on the initial closing date by the receivables trustee as initial trust cash
manager under the terms of the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement. The
trust cash manager will carry out cash management functions in relation to the receivables on
behalf of the receivables trustee,

The trust cash manager's duties include but are not confired to:
®  making calculations on the allocations of receivables; and

e  advising the receivables trustee to transfer money between the Trust Accounts and to make
withdrawals and payments from the Trust Accounts as set forth in the declaration of trust
and trust cash management agreement.

The trust cash manager will not resign from its obligations and duties as trust cash manager under
the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement uniess its performance is no longer
permitted under appticable law and there is no reasonable action that it can take to remedy the
situation. The trust cash manager's resignation will not be effective until a successor trust cash
manager has been properly appointed.

The trust cash manager will indemnify the receivabies trustee and the recelvables trust against all
reasonable loss, liability, expense, damage or injury, in each case including VAT, if any, caused by
its fraud, wilful misconduct or negligence in performing its cash management functions. However,
the trust cash manager will not indemnify the receivables trustee;

e if any acts or omissions are caused by the negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct of the
receivables trustee or its agents;

e  for any liabilities, costs or éther expenses of the receivables trust for any action taken by the
receivables trustee at the request of any investor beneficiary of any series to which that
investor beneficlary belongs:

. for any losses, claims or damages incurred by the receivables trustee in its capacity as a
beneficiary of the receivables trust; or

#  for any liabilities or cther costs of it or the receivables trust arising under any tax taw or any
penalties or interest caused by a failure to comply with any tax law, payable by it or the
receivables trust in connection with the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreement to any tax authority.

The directars, officers and other employees and agents of the trust cash manager and the trust
cash manager itself will not be under any liability to the receivables trustee or the receivables trust
or any other person under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement except
fn the case of intentional wrongdoing, bad faith or negligence in performing its duties under the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement.

Any person into which the trust cash manager may be merged or consolidated, or any person
succeeding to or acquiring the business of the trust cash manager in whole or i1 part, after
executing @ supplemental agreement to the declaration of trust and trust cash management
agreeme-t ana the delivery of a legal opinion, will become the successor to the trust cash manager
Or CO-Trust cask wmanager uncer the declaration of trust and irust cash management agreement.

Servicing ana Yrust Cesh Marager Compensation
Tne servger oy antTled Tworecelve an annual fes from the berneficiaries for each monthly pericd.
This fer is rallaz the "sarvicing fee” and is zayable monthly on each transfer date, to the extent
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that those monies are available. Any amounts payable in respect of the servicing fee will be
inclusive of VAT, if any. The servicing fee wiil be egual to one-twelfth of the product of:

®  0.75 per cent. or if Barclays Bank PLC is the servicer, such other percentage which the rating
agencies have confirmed will not result In a downgrade or withdrawal of the rating of the
notes or any related beneficiary debt and legal counset has confirmed that such percentage
will not prejudice tax treatment of the receivables trust or the beneficiaries; and

e the average dafly total outstanding face amaount of principal receivables during that monthly
period.
The share of the servicing fee payable by the receivables trustee to the servicer for serfes 05-4 on
any transfer date Is catled the “investor servicing fee” and will be equal to
®  ohe-twelfth of the product of:
(1) 0.75 per cent,; or
(2) another percentage agreed with the investor beneficiaries as long as Barclaycard is the
servicer provided that the rating agencies confirm in writing that the new percentage
will not cause them to reduce or withdraw their then current rating on any related
beneficlary debt; and
®  the Adjusted Investor Interest as at the last day of the monthly peried before that transfer
date,
On the first transfer date after the closing date the investor servicing fee will be £407.721.

The balance of the servicing fee not payable in respect of series 05-4 or any other serles will be
pavable by the transferor and /s called the "transferor servicing fee”. If the servicer is also the
transferor beneficiary In any monthly period, the transferor servicing fee for that monthty period
wlll not be payable.

The trust cash manager is entitled to receive a VAT inclusive fee from the receivables trustee for
each monthly period. This fee is called the “trust cash management fee” and is payable monthly
on each transfer date. The trust cash management fee will be equal to one-twelfth of the product
of the sum of the annual fees in each supplement as being the investor trust cash management
fees for each series.

The share of the trust cash management fee payable by the receivables trustee to the trust cash
manager for series 05-4 on any transfer date for which serles 05-4 agrees to indemnify the
receivables trustee is called the “investor trust cash management fee” and will be equal to one-
twelfth of £6,000. The trust cash management fee can be any other amount that the receivables
trustee may agree to as long as Barclaycard Is the trust cash manager provided that the rating
agencies confirm in writing that the new amount will not cause them to reduce or withdraw their
then current rating on any related beneficlary debt.

On the first transfer date after the closing date the investor trust cash management fee will be
£558.

The balance of the trust cash management fee, In respect of which the receivables trustee is not
indemnified by series 05-4 or any other series, will be payable by the transferor and is called the
“transferor trust cash management fee'. If the trust cash manager is also the transferor
beneficiary in any monthly period, the transferor trust cash management fee for that monthfy
period will not be paid.

Termination of Appointment of Servicer

The appeintment of a transferor as servicer under the beneficiaries servicing agreement and the
appointment of any persen as joint servicer to replace anyone then acting as the servicer - called a
“suceessor servicer” — will terminate when a servicer default occurs and Is continuing.

"Servicer default” means any one of the following events:

{1} failure on the part of the servicer duly to observe or perform in any respect any other
covenant or agreement of the servicer contained in the beneficiaries servicing agreement, or
any other relevant document, that has a material adverse effect on the Interests of the
investor beneficiarles of any outstanding series; this failure will constitute a servicer default
only if it remains unremedled and continues to have an adverse effect on the Interests of the
investor beneficiaries for 60 days after the receipt of a notice of the failure is given by the
investor beneficlaries to the servicer; if the notice is given by the investor beneficiaries it will
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be on the instruction of a group of holders of medium term notes ar certificates representing
more than fifty per cent. of the toial face value of the medium term notes or certificates
outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected;

(2 delegation by the servicer of Hs dutles under the beneficiaries servicing agreement to any
other entity, except as permitted by the beneficlaries servicing agreement;

(3} any relevant representation, warranty or certification made by the servicer in the beneficlaries
servicing agreement or in any certificate dellivered under the beneficlaries servicing agreement
was incorrect when made, which has a material adverse effect on the interests of the investor
beneficiaries of any outstanding series; this faiture will only be a servicer default if it remains
unrermedied and continues to have an adverse effect on the interests of the investor
beneficiarles for 60 days after the recelpt of a notice of the failure is given; the notice of the
failure will be given by either (1) the receivahles trustee o the servicer, or (2) the investor
beneficiaries to the receivables trusiee and the servicer; If the notice Is glven by the investor
beneficiarles it will be on the Instruction of holders of the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate representing more than fifty per cent. of the total face value of the series 05-4
medium term note certificate outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affecteq;

(4) any of the folipwing:
& the servicer agrees o or takes any corporate action to appoint a receiver, administrator,

administrative receiver, trustee or similar officer of it or of alt of its revenues and assets;
or

& an order of the court is made for its winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-
organisation that has remained in force undischarged or unstayed for 60 days; or

e a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee or similar officer of it or all of
Its revenues and assets, is appointed; and

(5} any of the following:

e a duly authorised officer of the servicer admits in writing that the servicer s unable to
pay its debts as they fall due within the meaning of Section 123{1) of the Insolvency Act
1986; or

s the servicer makes a generai assignment for the benefit of or a composition with its
creditors or it voluntarily suspends payment of its obligations with a view to the general
readjustment or rescheduling of its indebtedness.

In the case of (1), (2) or (3) above the grace period will be 60 business days. The grace period is
the extra number of days before a servicer default can be called, allowing the servicer t¢ remedy a
servicer default that has been caused by so-called acts of God or uncontrollable circumstances.
These clrcumstances are cafled force wgfeure events and are listed im the bereficiarles servicing
agreement,

Within two business days after the servicer becormes aware of any servicer defauit, the servicer
must notify the beneficiaries, each rating agency, the security trustee and any enhancement
provider as soon as possible in writing. The beneficiaries must give each rating agency notice of
any removal of the servicer or appolntment of a successor servicer.

tnvestor beneficiaries acting on the instructions of holders of medium term notes or certificates
representing in totai more than two-thirds of the total face value of medium term notes or
certificates then outstanding of each series adversely affected by any default by the servicer or the
transferor in the performance of its obligations under the beneficiaries ‘servicing agreement and any
other relevant documents, may waive the default unless it is a failure to rmake any required
depaosits, or payments of interest or principal for the adversely affected series.

After the servicer receives a termination notice and a successor serviter is appointed, the duties of
acting as servicer of the receivables under the beneficiaries servicing agreement will pass from the
then servicer 1o ine successor servicer. The beneficiaries servicing agreement contains the
ragquiremerts for tre transfer of the servicing role, including the transfer of authority over
collezuions. the t-ansfer of slectronic recerds and the disclosure of information.

After it receves 2 tzrming notice, the servicer will continue to act as servicer untit agreed by it
and the bercfriares. Tre cetensaries must trv to apooint a suctessor servicer that is an eligible
servicer




if the receivables trustee cannot appoint a successor servicer and the servicer delivers a certificate
that says it cannot in good faith cure the servicer default, then the recelvables trustee will start the
process of selling the receivables. The beneficlaries will notify any enhancement providers of the
proposed sale of the receivables by the receivables trustee to a third party and will provide each
enhancement provider an opperturity to bid on purchasing the recelvables,

The proceeds of the sale will be deposited in the Trust Accounts for distribution to the
beneficiaries as set out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
serfes supplements.

An “eligible servicer” means an entity that, when it is servicer:

& is servicing a portfolic of consumer revolving credit or charge card accounts or other
consumer credit accounts;

Is legally quatified and has the capacity to service the designated accounts;

Is quafified or licensed ta use the software that the servicer is then currently using to service
the designated accounts or obtains the right to use, or has its own, software that is adequate
to perform its duties under the beneficlaries servicing agreement: and

&  has, in the opinion of each rating agency, demonstrated the ability to service, professionally
and competently, a portfolio of similar accounts In accordance with customary standards of
skifl and care,

Termination of App,l‘_ntment of Trust Cash Manager

The appointment, of the transferor as trust cash manager under the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement and the appointment of any person as joint trust cash manager or to
replace anyone then acting as the trust cash manager — called a "successor trust cash manager” —
will terminate when a trust cash manager default ocours.

"Trust cash managet"_-default" means any one of the following events:

(1) any fallure by the trust cash manager to direct the making of any payment, transfer or
deposit or to give instructions or notice to the receivables trustes pursuant to an agreed
schedute of collections and allocations; any failure by the trust cash manager to advise the
receivables trustee to make any required drawing, withdrawal, or payment under any credit
enhancement; these events will be considered fallures If they do not happen within five
business days after the date that they were supposed to happen under the terms of the
declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or any other relevant document;

{2) failure on the part of the trust cash manager duly to observe or perform in any respect any
other covenant or agreement of the trust cash manager contalned In the declaration of trust
and trust cash management agreement, or any other relevant document, that has a material
adverse effect on the interests of the investor beneficlaries of any outstanding series; this
failure will constitute a servicer default only if it remains unremedied and continues to have a
material adverse effect on the interests of the investor beneficiaries for 60 days after the
receipt of a notice of the failure is given; the notice of the failure will be given by either {1)
the recelvables trustee to the trust cash manager. or (2) the investor beneficiaries to the
receivables trustee and the trust cash manager; If the notice is given by the investor
beneficiaries it will be on the instruction of a group of helders of medium term notes or
certificates representing more than fifty per cent. of the total face value of the medium term
notes or certificates outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected;

(3) delegation by the trust cash manager of its duties under the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement to any other entity, except as permitted by the declaration of
trust and trust cash management agreement;

{4) any relevant representation, warranty or certification made by the trust cash manager in the
deciaration of trust and trust cash management agreement or in any certificate deliverec
under the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement was incorrect when
made, which has a material adverse effect on the interests of the investor beneficiaries of any
outstanding series; this failure will be a trust cash manager default only if it remains
unremedied and continues to have a material adverse effect on the interests of the investar
beneficiaries for 60 days after the receipt of a notice of the failure is given: the notice of the
failure will be given by either (1) the receivables trustee to the trust cash manager, or (2} the
investor beneficiaries to the receivables trustee and the trust cash manager; if the notice (s
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given by the investor beneficiaries it will be on the instruction of holders of medium term
notes or certificates representing more than fifty per cent. of the iotal face value of the
medium term notes or certificates outstanding of any outstanding series adversely affected:

(5) any of the following:

. the trust cash manager agrees to or takes any corporate action to appoint & receiver,
administrator, administrative recelver, llquidator, trustee or similar officer of it or of afl
of its revenues and assets; or

& an order of the court is made for its winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-
organisation that has remained in force undischarged or unstayed for 60 days; or

& a receiver, administrator, admintstrative recefver, liquidator, trustee or similar officer of it
or all of its revenues and assets is appeinted; and
(6) any of the following:
e a duly authorised officer of the trust cash manager admits in writing that the trust cash

manager is unable to pay Its debts as they fall due within the meaning of Section 123(1)
of the Insolvency Act 1986; or

®  the trust cash manager makes a general assignment for the benefit of or a composition
with its creditars or it voluntarily suspends payment of its obligations with a view 1o the
general readjustment or rescheduling of Its Indebtedness.

In the case of (1) above the grace period will be 10 business days and in the case of {2), (3} or (4)
above it will be 60 business days. The grace period is the extra number of days before & trust cash
manager gefault will be effective allowing the trust cash manager to remedy a trust cash manager
default that has been caused by so-cafled acts of God or uncontrollable circumstances. These
circumstances are called force majeure events and are listed in the declaration of trust and trust
cash management agreement.

Within two business days after the trust cash manager becomes aware of any trust cash manager
default, the trust cash manager must notify the receivables trustee, each rating agency, each
investor beneficiary and any enhancement provider as soon as possible in writing. The receivables
trustee must give each investor beneficiary and rating agency notice of any removal of the trust
cash manager or appointment of a successor trusk cash manager. The receivables trustee must give
each rating agency notice of any removal of the trust cash manager.

Investor beneficiaries acting on the instructions of holders of medium term notes or certificates
representing in total more than two-thirds of the total face value of medium term notes or
certificates then outstanding of each series adversely affected by any default by the trust cash
manager or the transferor in the performance of its obligations under the declaration of trust and
trust cash management agreement and any other relevant decuments, may waive the default unless
it is a fallure to make any required deposits, or payments of interest or principal, for the adversely
affected series.

After the trust cash manager receives a termination notice and a successor trust cash manager is
appointed, the dutles of acting as trust cash manager of the receivables under the declaration trust
and trust cash management agreement will pass from the then trust cash manager to the successcr
trust cash manager. The declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement contains the
requirements for the transfer of the trust cash management role, including the transfer of authority
over collections, the transfer of electrenic records and the disclosure of information.

After it receives a termination notice, the trust cash manager will continue to acl as irust cash
manager until a date agreed by the receivables trustee and the trust cash manager. The receivables
trustee must try to appeint a successor trust cash manager that is an eligible trust cash manager.

If the receivables trustee cannot appeint a successor trust cash manager and the trust cash
manager delivers a certificate that says it cannot in good faith cure the trust cash manager default,
then the recejvables trustee will start the process of seiling the receivables. The receivables trustee
will notify each enhancement provider of the proposed sale of the recelvables by the receivables
trustee to a third party and will provide each enhancement provider an opportunity to bid on
surchasing the receivables

The proceees of the sale will pe deposited in the Trust Accounts for distribution to the
beneficiaries as st out in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement and the
series supplements,
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An “eligible trust cash manager”” means an entity that, when it is trust cash manager:

is fegally qualified and has the capacity to carry ouf the frust cash management functions as
set forth in the declaration of trust and trust cash management agreement;

is qualified or licensed to use the software that the trust cash manager is then currently using
to carry out cash management of the receivables or obtains the right to use, or has its own,
software that is adequate to perform its duties under the declaration of trust and trust cash
management agreement; and

has, in the opinion of each rating agency, demonstrated the ability to professionally and
competently act as a trust cash manager in accordance with custormnary standards of skill and
care.
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Series 05-4

General

The MTN Issuer is an investor beneficiary of the receivables trust. Its initial beneficial interest was
conferred urnder a series supplement called the series 99-1 supplement {series 99-1 was fully repaid
in November 2002} and subsequent beneficial interests were conferred under series supplements
called the series 02-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1,
series 05-2 and series 05-3 supplements. The MTN Issuer will increase its entitlement under the
receivables trust under a series supplement called the “Series 05-4 Supplement”. The parties 1o the
Series 05-4 Supplement are the receivables trustee and Barclaycard as the transferor beneficiary,
the excess fnterest beneficiary, servicer, the trust cash rmamager and the transferor and the MTN
issuer as the investor beneficiary.

The MTN Issuer will increase its beneficial entitiement as investor beneficiary by paying a sterling
amount eguivalent to $1,000,000,000 using the fixed exchange rate contained in the swap
agreements to the receivables trustee on the closing date; we calt this amount the “Initial Investor
Interest”, For purposes of making calcutations about the performance of the undivided beneficial
interest of serles 05-4 in the receivables trust, the Investor Interest will be referable to notional
classes called "Class A™, “Class B' and "Class £,

The MTN Issuer will recelve an investor certlficate. This investor certificate will be evidence of the
initial investor beneficial interest for series 05-4 in the receivables trust, calculated as referable to
Class A, Ctass B and Class C, and will be governed by Engtish law.

The MTN Issuer will confirm the following In the Series 05-4 Supplement:

® that its usual place of abode is within the United Kingdom for the purpose of Section 34§ of
the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988; and

® that it has a business establishment, for the purposes of Section % of the Value Added Tax
Act 1994, in the United Kingdom which is either its sole business establishment, with no other
fixed establishment anywhere else in the world, or is its business or other fixed establishment
at which any services received by It as cortemplated In the relevant documents are most
directly used or to be used or, as the case may be, its business or other fixed establishment
which {s most directly concerned with any services supplied by it as contemptated in the
relevant documents.

Series 05-4 wilt be included in group one, which included serfes 99-1 {now repaid) and which
inciutdes series 0Z-1, series 03-1, series 03-2, series 03-3, series 04-1, series 04-2, series 05-1, series
05-2, series 05-3 and wiil not be subordinated to any other investor beneficiary or serfes. See -
Shared Principal Collections" for the ramifications of series 05-4 being Included in group one.
Following execution of the series 05-4 supplement the MTN Issuer will acquire from Barclays Bank
PLC as excess interest benefciary that part of the righis of Barclays Bank PLC to the excess inferest
attributable to series 05-4.

Beneficial Entitlerment of the MTN Essuer to Trust Property other than in respect of the Excess Interest
'n order to understand the beneficial entitlement of the MTN lIssuer to the property of the
receivables trust you will need to understand the following definitions.

The “Class A Floating Allocation”, the “Class B Floating Allocation” and the “Class C Fipating
Allocation™ will each be calculated the same way and will be equal to, for each notional class and
for each monthly period (other than in respect of the first monthly period), the following fraction
exprassed as a percentage:

the Adjusted Investor Interest for the relevant notional class

Adjusted Investor Interest
where these amounts are calculated on the close of business on the last day of the monthly period
prior to the transfer date.

The floating allocation for each notionat class for the first monthly period will be calculated as
follows:
the Initial investor Interest for the relevant notional class

Initial Investor Interest
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"Adjusted |nvestar Interest’” means the sum of the Class A Adiusted Investor Interest, the Class 8

Adjusted Investor Interest and the Ciass C Adjusted Investor Interest.

“Class A Initial Investor Interest” means the sterling equivalent of $900,000.000 using the fixed

exchange rate in the swap agreements,

“Class A Investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to:

(1} the Class A Initlal investor Interest, minus

(2) the total principal payments made to the MTN issuer for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class A Investor Interest from the property of the receivables trust. minus

(3) the total amount of Class A Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, plus

(4) the total amount of any reimbursements of Class A Investor Charge-Cffs on all prior transfer
dates.

The Class A Investor nterest, however, may not be reduced below zero,

“Class A Adjusted Investor Interest” means at any time an armount equal to the Class A Investor

Interest minus the balance on depesit in the Princlpal Funding Account. but not more than the

Class A investor Interest.

“Class A Investor Charge-Off” means a reduction In the Class A Investor Interest on any transfer

date by the amount, if any, by which the (lass A Investor Default Amount exceeds the total

amount of Class A Available Funds, Excess Spread, Reallocated Class B Principal Collections and

Reallocated Class € Principal Collections, the Class € Investor Interest and the Class B Investor

Interest, in each case available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class A Investor

Default Amount.

“Class 8 [nitial Investor Interest” means the sterling equivalent of 350000000 using the fixed

exchange rate In the swap agreements.

“Class B Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to:

(1) the Class B Initial Investor Interest, minus

(2) the total principal payments made to the MTN lssuer, for the purposes of calculation freated
as referable to the Class B Investor Interest from the property of the recetvables trust, minus

(3) the total amount of Class 8 Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, minus

(4) the total amount of Reailocated Class 8 Principal Collections allocated on all prior transfer
dates that have been used to fund the Class A Required Amount, excluding any Reallocated
Class B Principal Collections that have resulted In a reduction in the Class C Investor Interest,
minus

(5) an amount equal to any reductions in the Class 8 Investor Interest on all prior transfer dates
to fund the Class A [nvestor Defauft Amount, plus

(6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and available on ail prior transfer dates to
reimburse amounts deducted under (3), (4) and (5) above,

The Class B Investor Interest, however, may not be reduced betow zero.
“Class B Adjusted Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to the Class B Investor

Interest minus the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the Class A
Investor Interest, but not more than the Class B Investor Interest.

“Class B Investor Charge-Off” means a reduction in the Class B Investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class 8 Investor Default Ampunt exceeds the total
amount of Excess Spread. Reallocated Class C Principal Collections and the Class C Investor Interest,
in each case available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class B Investor Default
Amount.

“Class C Initial Investor Interest” means the sterling equivalent of $50.000,000 using the fixed
exchange rate in the swap agreements.

“Class C Investor Interest” means at any time an amount equal to:
{1) the Class C Initial Investor Interest, minus

{2) the total principal payments made to the MTN lIssuer for the purposes of calculation treated
as referable to the Class € Investor Interest from the praoperty of the receivables trust, minus
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{3} the total amount of Class C Investor Charge-Offs for all prior transfer dates, milnus

(4) the total amount of Reallocated Class B Principal Collections allocable to the Class C Investor
Interest and Reallocated Class € Principa! Collections on all pripr transfer dates that have been
used to fund the Class A Required Amount or the Class B Required Amount, minus

(5) an amount equal to any reductions in the Class T Investor Interest on all prior transfer dates
to fund the Class A Investor Default Armount and the Class B tnvestor Default Amount, plus

{6) the total amount of Excess Spread allocated and available on all prior transfer dates to
reimburse amounts deducted under (3), (4} and (5) above.

The Class € investor Interest, however, may not be reduced bejow zero.

“Class  Adjusted Investor Interest” means, at any time, an amount equal to the Class C Investor
Interest minus the balance on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum of the
Class A Investor \nterest and the Class B Investor interest, but not more than the Class € investor
Interest,

“Class C Investor Charge-Off' means a reduction in the Class C Investor Interest on any transfer
date by the amount, if any, by which the Class C Investor Default Amount exceeds the amount of
Excess Spread available and allocated on that transfer date to fund the Class C Investor Defaull
Amount.

“Initial Investor Interest” means the sum of the Class A Initial Invesior Interest, the Class B Initial
Investor Interest and the Class C Initial Investor Interest

“lavestor Interest” means the sum of the Class A Investor Interest, the Class B Investor Interest and
the Class C Investor Interest.

The beneficial entitiement of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-4 to eligible
principal receivables — which includes principal collections that are the property of the receivables
trust but excludes the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account - i5 equal to the
proportion that the Adjusted lnvestor Interest bears to the amount of eligible principal receivables
assigned or purported to be assigned to the receivables trust at any time. However, the beneficial
entitlernent for each notional class will not exceed the Class A Adjusted Investor Interest, the Class
B Adjusted Investor Interest or the Ctass C Adjusted Investor Interest, as applicable, at any time.

The beneficial entitiement of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-4 to finance
charge collectlons during any monthty period s equal to the proportion that the floating allocation
for each notional class bears to the investor percentage of finance charge collections for such
monthly period credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger from time to time during that
monthly period. However, the beneficial entitlement wili not exceed the sum of the monthly
required expense amount, the investor servicing fee, the investor trust cash management fee and
the tnvestor Default Amount for any notional class of series 05-4 during any monthly period.

The beneficiat entitlement of the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for series 05-4 at any time
to any other property of the receivabies trust not separately held or segregated for any other
beneficiary or series will be equal to the proportion that the aggregate of the (Class A Adjusted
Investor Interest, the Class B Adjusted Investior Interest and the Class C Adjusted Investor Interest
bears to the amount of eligible principal receivables from time to time assigned or purported to be
assigned to the receivables trust. The MTN lssuer will not be entitled to the benefit of any credit
enhancement for any notlonal class available only for any other beneficiary, series other than series
05-4 or classes within a series other than series 05-4, except to the extent it is an investor
beneficiary for another series.

The MTN Issuer will be beneficially entitled to all monies held in any Trust Account other than:

e the Trustee Coilection Account - except for the distribution ledger for each netional class; or
e the Trustee Acquisition Account;

t‘natnare ?WESSN SeqreGAles Ty SEperate actount or by ledger entry or oiherwise, as allotated 1o
e MT fssaer

Allocauen, Caicuiation and Distrioutian of Finarice Charge Coilections to the MTN Issuer
Orozacr T4y M which collections are transferred to the Trustee Collection Account during the

Revoiving “er L. tre Controlled 4ccumulation Pericc and, if applicable, the Regulated Amortisation
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Pertod or the Rapid Amortisation Period, the receivables trustee will credit to the Finance Charge
Coellections Ledger for serfes G5-4 an amount ¢alculated as folfows:

A xB

Where:

A =  the Floating Investor Percentage; and

B =  the total amount of finance charge collections processed on that date.

“Floating investor Percentage” means, for any monthly period, the following fraction expressed as
a percentage

A
the greater of B or C
Where:
A = the Adjusted Investor Interest;
B = the totat balance of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the
Unavailable Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections
Ledger
C = the sum of the numerators used to calculate the floating investor percentages for

all outstanding series.

These armaunts witl be calcutated for any monthly period other than the first monthly period as of

the last day of the prior monthly period, Fer the first monthly period, they will be calculated as of

the closing date. The Floating Investor Percentage will never exceed 100 per cent

Notwithstanding the above, for a monthly period in which an addition date occurs. B in the

fraction used to calculate the Floating Investor Percentage will be:

s for the period from the first day of the monthiy pericd to the addition date, the total balance
of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable Principal
Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger at the close of business
on the last day of the prior monthly period: and

¢ for the period from the addition date through the last day of the monthly period, the total
balance of eligible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable Principal
Coliections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on the addition date -
taking Into account the eligible principal receivables added to the receivables trust.

If, in any monthly peried the Investor Interest would be zero if the payments to be made on the

distribution date in that monthly period were made on the last day of the prior monthly period,

the Floating Investor Percentage will be zero.

Class A Investor Interest

To understand the calculations and information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of
calculation is treated as referable to Class A on any transfer date, you need to understand the
follewing definitlons and cash flows.

The “Class A Monthly Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the
following items:

& the Class A Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class A Trustee Payment Amount from
previous transfer dates; see "~ Trustee Payment Amount™

the MTN issuer Costs Amount;

the Class A Monthly Finance Amaunt;

the Class A Deficiency Amocunt;

the Class A Additional Finance Amount; and

the Monthly Loan Expenses Amount,

* & 49

91




“Class A Monthly Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days In Calculation Pertod The Class A Debt
The Class A Fi Rat
365 (366 in 2 leap year) x e Class A Finance Rate Amount

The "Class A Finance Rate” for any Calculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean cakculated to replace the screen rate, {a) for the first and the second Calculation Perlods, the
linear interpolation of two-month and three-month deposits and (b) for any other interest period,
for three-month deposits, in each case for pounds sterling in the London interbank market, pius
0.0329 per cent.

“Class A Deficiency Amount” is the excess, if any, of the Class A Monthly Required Expense
Amount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpose the Ciass A Trustee Payment
Amount and the MTN Issuer Costs Amount -~ over the funds referable to Class A actually credited
to the Class A Distribution Ledger for payment of the Class A Monthly Required Expense Amount
on that transfer date,

“Class A Addltional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

_ Any unpald Class A
Days in Calculation Period 5 The Class A Finance Rate . Deficlency Amount

365 (366 In a leap year) plus 2.0 per cent on the prior transfer date

The first "distribution date” or “interest payment date” will be 17 January 2006 and each
subsequent distribution date or interest payment date will be the 15th day of each calendar month,
or If that day is not a business day, the next business day after the 15th,

“Calculation Period” means, for any distribution date, the period from and including the previous
distribution date or, in the case of the first distribution date, from and including the closing date,
to but excluding 17 January 2006.

“Class A Debt Amount” means the Class A Initla) Investor Interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class A Investar Interest from the propesty of
the receivables trust, On the series 05-4 termination date. the Class A Debt Amount will be zero.

“Monthly Loan Expense Amount” means, for any transfer date, the amount equal to any monthly
interest accrual which Is due and payable, including any ameunt outstanding in respect of previous
transfer dates, if any, under the expenses loan agreement,

“MTN Issuer Costs Amount” means the amounts certified by the security trustee as being required
to pay the fees, costs and expenses of the MTN Issuer accrued and due and payable on a transfer
date. This amount includes the fees, costs and expenses of the security trustee and any receiver
appointed pursuant to the security trust deed and MTN issuer cash management agreement, plus,
any fees, costs and expenses remaining unpaid from previous transfer dates including in each case,
any part of such fees, costs and expenses as represents VAT (in any).

“Class A Available Funds" for any monthly period equais the sum of the foliowing amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

e the Class A Floating Allccation of finance charge collections ailocated to series 05-4;
® the Class A Floating Allocation of Acquired Interchange allocated to series 05-4;

e for any monthly period during the Controlied Accumuiation Period before payment in fult of
the Class A Investor Interest, the Principal Funding Investment Proceeds - up to a maximum
amount equal to the Class A Covered Amount; see “- Principal Funding Account”; and

s any amourts withdrawn from the Reserve Account; see "— Reserve Account.”

The amount of Acquired inlerchiange allocated to series 05-4 for any monthly period will be the
product of s “cauired interchange and the Floating Invesior Percentage. This allocated Acquired
Intercsange wii oe frecc s oo the Finance Cnarge Collections Ledger.

3n azch wransfer date. trs .cocivables trustes wili withdraw the Cllass A Avaiiable Funas from the
Finance Chargz Collections Lecger, and they wil be distributed in the following order:
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(1) the Class A Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class A Trustee Payment Amounts
from prior transfer dates wiil be used by the receivables trustee to satisfy the Trustee
Payment Amounts;

(2} the MTN Issuer Costs Amounts will be credited to the Class A Distribution Ledger;

(3} the sum of the Class A Monthly Finance Amount, the Class A Deficiency Amount, the Class A
Additional Finance Amaount and the Monthly Loan Expense Amount will be credited to the
Class A Distribution Ledger;

{4) the class A servicing fee and class A cash management fee and any due and unpaid class A
servicing fees or class A cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be distributed to
the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable;

(5) an amount equal to the Class A fnvestor Default Amount will be allocated to Ciass A and
treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections referable to Class A and credited to the
Principal Collections Ledger;

(6) the balance - called "Class A Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in "~ Excess Sprecd.”

On each distribution date, alt amounts credited to the Class A Distribution Ledger for the amounts
in (2) and (3) above will be deposited in the Serles 05-4 Distribution Account,. The amount in {2)
and (3) above is called the "Class A Monthly Distribution Amount”,

The "Series 05-4 Distribution Account” is a bank account in the same of the MTN Issuer that will
be used to deposit amounts distributed to the MTN Issuer for the series 05-4 investor certificates
from the receivables trust.

The “class A servicing fee” Js that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class A (on a pro
rata basis). The “class A cash management fee" is that portion of the trust cash management fee
attributable to class A {on a pro rata basis).

The “Class A Distribution Ledger” Is a ledger for Class A in the Trustee Collectlon Account. See "-
Distribution Ledgers".

Class B Investor Interest

To understand calculations and information delivered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN 1ssuer that for the purposes of
calcutation is treated as referable to notionai Class B on any transfer date, you need to understand
the following definitions and cash Aows.

The “Class B Monthly Required Expense Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of the
following items:

® the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class B Trustee Payment Amounts from
previous transfer dates; See “- Trustee Payment Amount™

. the Class B Monthly Finance Amount;

e the Class B Deficiency Amount; and

s  the Class B Additional Finance Amount.

“Class B Monthly Finance Amaunt™ means the amount calculated as follows:

Drays in Calculation Period
365 (366 for a leap year)

The “Class B Finance Rate” for any Caiculation Period will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, (2) for the first and the second Calculation Periods, the
linear interpolation of two-month and three-month deposits and (b) for any other interest period
for three-month deposits in each case for pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus
0.1881 per cent. :

The Class B Finance Rate x  The Class B Debt Amaunt

“Class B Deficiency Amount” |s the excess, if any, of the Class B Monthly Reguired Expense
Amaount for the prior transfer date - disregarding for this purpose the Class B Trustee Payment
Amaount — over the funds referable to Class B actually credited to the Class B Distribution Ledger
for payment of the Class B Monthly Required Expense Amount on that transfer date.
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"Class B Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Days in Calculation Period i Any unpaid Class B
Ys . The Class B Finance Rate Deficiency Amaunt on

365 (366 for a leap year) plus 2 per cent the prior transfer date

“Class B Debt Amount” means the Class B Initial investor interest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN Issuer referable to the Class B Investor Interest from the property of
the receivalies trust. On the series 05-4 termination date, the Class B Debt Amount will be zero.
"Class B Available Funds" for any monthly period eguals the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Collections Ledger for that monthly period:

e the Class B Floating Allocation of finance charge collections allocated to series 05-4; and

s the Class B Floating Allocation of Acquired Interchange allocated to series 05-4.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class B Available Funds from the

Finance Charge Collectlons Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:

(1) the Class B Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpald Class B Trustee Payment Amounts from
prior transfer dates will be used by the recelvables trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment
Amounts;

(2) the sum of the Class B Monthly Finance Amount, the Class B Deficiency Amount and the Class
B Additional Finance Amount will be credited to the Class B Distribution Ledger;

(3) the class B servicing fee and class B cash management fee and any due and unpaid class B
servicing fees and class B cash management fees from prior transfer dates will be distributed
to the servicer or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(4} the balance - calle¢ "Class B Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
allocated as described in "~ Excess Spread™.

On each distribution date, all amounts credited to the Class B Distribution Ledger for the amounts

in (2} above - called the “"Class B Monthly Distribution Amount” - will be deposited inte the

Series 05-4 Distribution Account.

The "class B servicing fee" is that pertion of the servicing fee attributable to Class B {on a pro

rata basis). The “class B cash management fee" is that portion of the trust cash management fee

attributable to Class B (on a pro rata basis).

The “Class B Distribution Ledger” Is a ledger for Class B in the Trustee Collection Account See

" Distribution Ledgers”,

Class C lnvester Interest

To understand the calculations and information dellvered by the receivables trustee regarding the
amount of finance charge collections distributable to the MTN Issuer that for the purposes of
calculation is treated as referable to Class € on any transfer date, you need to understand the
following definitions and cash flows,

The "Class C Monthly Required Expense Amount” will be the sum of the following items:

®  the Class C Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpald Class C Trustee Payment Amounts from
previcus transfer dates; see " — Trustee Payment Amount’;

- the Class C Manthly Finance Amount;

L] the Class C Deficiency Amount; and

s the Class C Additional Finance Amount.

“Class C Monthiy Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as follows:

Leys oo CECLlation Penisd . ) .
=x  The Onass C Finance Rate « The Class € Debt Amount

353 ZEL or g leap vian)

“Class © Defciency Amcunt” s e excess, i any, of e Oass { Monthly Required Expense
Amount fcr tne prior transfer date - disregeraing for this purpose the Class C Trustee Payment
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Amount — over the funds allocable to Class C actually credited to the Class C Distribution Ledger
for payment of the Ctass C Monthly Required Expense Amount an that transfer date.

"Class C Additional Finance Amount” means the amount calculated as folfows:

Days in Catcutation Period y The Class € Finance Rate u Any unpaid Class C Deficiency
365 (366 In a leap year) plus 2 per cent. Amaunts on the prior transfer date

The “Class C Finance Rate" for any Calculation Pericd will be the screen rate, or the arithmetic
mean calculated to replace the screen rate, {a) for the first and the second Calculation Periods, the
linear interpolation of two-month and three-month deposits (b) for any other interest period, for
three-month deposits, in each case for pounds sterling in the London interbank market, plus
0.3325 per cent.

“Class C Debt Amount” means the Class C Jnitial tnvestor iInterest minus the total principal
payments made to the MTN lssuer referable to the Class C Investor Interest from the property of
the recelvables trust. On the series 05-4 termination date, the Class C Debt Amount will be zero.
“Class C Available Funds” for any monthly period equals the sum of the following amounts
credited to the Finance Charge Cellections Ledger for that monthly pericd:

e  the Class C Floating Alffocation of finance charge coflections afiocated to serfes G5-4: and
®  the Class C Floating Allocation of Acquired interchange allocated to series 05-4.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class C Available Funds from the

Finance Charge Collections Ledger, and they will be distributed in the following order:

{1} the Class C Trustee Payment Amount plus any unpaid Class C Trustee Payment Amounts from
prior transfer dates will be used by the receivables trustee to satisfy the Trustee Payment
Amounts;

(2) the class € servicing fee and class C cash management fee and any due and unpaid class €
servicing fees or class € cash managerment fees from prior transfer dates will be distributed to
the serviter or trust cash manager, as applicable; and

(3) the balance - called “Class C Excess Spread” - will be part of Excess Spread and will be
aflocated as described in " - Excess Spread”.

On each distribution date, all amounts credited to the Class C Distribution Ledger for the Class C

Monthly Distribution Amount, as desctibed in "~ Excess Spread”, will be deposited into the Series

05-4 Distribution Account.

The “ctass € servicing fee” is that portion of the servicing fee attributable to Class C (on a pro

ratag basis), The “class C cash management fee' is that portion of the trust cash rmanagement fee

attributable to Class C {on a pro rata basls).

The "Class C Distribution Ledger” is a ledger for Class C in the Trustee Collection Account, See

"~ Distribution Ledgers™,

Revplving Period

The “Revolving Period” for series 05-4 is the perfod from the closing date to the start of the
Controlled Accumulation Period or, if earlier, the start of the Rapid Amecrtisation Period or the
Regulated Amortisation Peripd.

During the Revalving Period, principal collections calculated as referable daily to the Class A
Investor Interest will be used by the receivables trustee as Shared Principal Collections and. to the
extent not used as Shared Principal Coliections. to make payments to the transferor:

®  {o accept new offers of receivabies made by the transferar to the receivables trustee, and

® to make payments 1o the transferor for future receivables assigned by the transferor to the
receivables frustee by offers that have already been made and accepted.

Principal collections calculated as referable to the Class B investor Interest and the Class € Investor

Interest will be used by the receivables trustee as described in the previous paragraph on the next

following transfer date to the extent not required to fund shortfalls for the Class A Investor interest

and ~ for principal collections calculated as referable to the Class C Investor Lnterest ~ the Class B

Investor Interest,
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Controlled Accumulation Peried

The “Controlled Accumulation Perled” for series 05-4 is the period scheduled to begin on the
close of business on 31 October 2007 and ending when the Investor Interest is paid in full, unless a
Pay Out Event occurs and the Requiaied Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Perlod
begins. If the Requtated Amortisation Period or Rapid Amortisation Period begins before the start
of the Controlled Accumulation Perod, there will not be a Controlled Accumulation Period for
series 05-4. The start of the Controlled Accumulation Period may be delayed until no later than the
close of business on 30 September 2008. See "- Postponement of Controfled Accumulation Period”.

During the Controlled Accurulation Period the principal collections allocated to the Investor
Interest for series 05-4, up to the Controlled Deposit Amount, will be accumulated by the
receivables trustee in a trust account called the "Principal Funding Account” for distribution to the
MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary for serles 05-4 on 17 Novemnber 2008 distribution date -
called the “series 05-4 scheduled redemption date”. Any principal coltections allocated to the
investor Interest for series 05-4 over the amount that will be deposited in the Principal Funding
Account will be used by the receivables trustee first as Shared Principal Collections and then to
make payments to the transferor as described above under “- Revolving Perlod”.

The “Controlled Deposit Amount” far any transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Perlod or
the Regulated Amortisation Period wili be the sterling equivalent of $83.333.333.33, using the fixed
exchange rate in the swap agreements, which equals the Initial Investor Interest divided by 12, or
for a Regulated Amortisation Perlod, if greater, may be an amount not exceeding 1/12 of the total
sum of all investor interests of zll series in group one - except Companion Serles - that are
scheduled to be in their revolving periods. If the start of the Controlled Accumulation Period is
delayed as described in "- Postponement of Controfled Accumulation Period”’, the Controlled
Deposit Amount will be greater than the sterling equivalent of $83,333,333.33. This higher amount
will be determined by the servicer based on the principal payment rates on the designated
accounts and on the Investor interests of series In group one - except Companion Serles — that are
schedufed to be in their revolving periods. In any c¢ase, during the Controlled Accumulation Period,
the Controlied Deposit Amount will be the amount that, if deposited in the Principal Funding
Account on each transfer date for the Controlled Accumutation Period, will cause the balance of
the Principal Funding Account to equal the Ilnvestor Interest on the serles 05-4 scheduled
redemption date, The Controlied Deposit Amount for any transfer date will include the amount of
any shortfall in payment of the Controlled Deposit Amount for the previous transfer date,

Regulated Amortlsation Period

A "Regulated Ameortisation Period” will start on the day, if there is one, that any of the foliowing
Series 05-4 Pay Out Events occur, each of which we refer to as a "Regulated Amortisation Trigger
Event™:

e the average Portfelio Yield for any three consecutive monthly periods is less than the average
Expense Rate for those periods or. on any determination date before the end of the third
monthly period from the closing date, the Portfolio Yield is less than average Expense Rate for
that period; or

®  cither

{1} over any period of thirty consecutive days, the Transferor Interest averaged over that
period is less than the Minimum Transferor Interest for that period and the Transfercr
Interest does not increase on or before the tenth business day following that thirty day
period to an amount so that the average of the Transferor Interest as a percentage of
the Average Principat Receivables for such thirty day period, computed by assuming that
the amount of the increase of the Transferor Interest by the last day of that ten business
day period, as compared to the Transferor Interest on the fast day of the thirty day
period, would have existed in the receivables trust during each day of the thirty day
periad, is at least equal to the Minimum Transferor Interest; or

(2) on tre 1ast day of any monthly pericd the total balance of eligible principal receivables
is less than the Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivabies, adjusted for any series having
& Companion Series as described in the supplement for that series and the Companion
Series, and the total balance of eligible principai receivables fails to increase to an
amount equal to or greater than the Minimum Aggregate Principal Recetvables on or
before the tenth business day following that fast day.
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A “determination date™ means the date falling two business days before a transfer date.

The Regulated Amortisation Pericd will continue until the earlier of:

e the start of the Rapld Amortisation Period: and

o the series 05-4 termination date.

During the Regulated Amortisation Period the amount of principal collections allocated to the
Investor nterest for series 05-4, up to the Controlled Deposit Amount, will be paid each month to
the MTN Issuer first for the Class A Investor Interest, second for the Class B Investor Interest and
third for the Class C tnvestor Interest until the series 05-4 termination date. Any principal
collections allocated to the Investor Iaterest for series (05-4 over the Controlled Deposit Amount
paid to the MTN Issuer will be used by the receivables trustee first as Shared Principal Collections
and then to make payments to the transferor as described above under “'- Revolving Period”.

Rapid Amortisation Period

A “Rapid Amortisation Period” will start on the first day of the monthly period next following the

day on which any Pay Qut Event other than a Regulated Amortisation Trigger Event occurs.

The Rapid Amortisation Periad will continue until the eardier of:

®  the series 05-4 termination date; or

e the dissolution of the recsivables trust foilowing the occurrence of an Insolvency Event; see
“The Receivables Trust: Trust Pgy Out Events”.

During the Rapld Amortisation Period, principal collections aijlocable to the Investor Interest of

series 05-4 will be paid each month to the MTN issuer first for the Class A Investor Interest,

second for the Class B Investor Interest and third for the Class C Investor Interest until the serfes

05-4 termination date.

The "series 05-4 termination date” is the earlier of the distribution date on which the Investor

Interest has been reduced to zerp and the 15 November 2010 distribution date.

Allocation, Calculation and Distribution of Principal Collections to the MTN Essuer
During the Revolving Period, principal collections will be aflocated to the Investor Interest on the
basis of the Floating Investor Percentage, During the Controlled Accumulation Period, the Regulated
Amortisation Perlod and the Rapid Amortisation Peried, principal collections will be allocated to
the Investor Interest on the basis of the Fixed Investor Percentage. The amount of principal
collections allocated to the Investor Interest at any time will be credited to the Principal Caollections
Ledger for series 05-4. The principal collections credited to the Principal Collections Leciger from
time to time that will be allocated to the MTN Issuer will be:
®  during the Revolving Period, equal to the total of the floating allocatiens for each class:
®  during the Controlled Accurnulation Period, the Regulated Amortisation Period and the Rapid

Amortisation Period, equal to the total of the fixed allocations for each class,
“Fixed Investor Percentage” means, for any monthly pericd, the foliowing calculation expressed as
a percentage:

A

the greater of B or

Where:
A = the Investor Interest calculated at close of business on the last day of the Revolving Period:

B = the total balance of efigible principal receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable
Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger; and

C = the sum of the numerators used to calculate the fixed investor percentages for all outstanding
series.

Items B and C above will be calculated for any monthly period as of the fast day of the prior

monthly period. For the first monthly period, they will be calculated as of the closing date. The

Fixed Investor Percentage will never exceed 100 per cent.

Notwithstanding the above, for a monthly perlod in which an addition date occcurs, B in the

fraction used to calcuiate the Fixed Allocatlon Percentage above will be:
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e  for the period from the first day of the monthly period to the addition date, the total balance
of eligible principat receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavaifable Principal
Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger at the close of business
on the last day of the prior menthly perlod; and

e for the period from the addition date to the last day of the monthly period, the total batance
of eligible princlpal receivables in the receivables trust plus the Unavailable Principal
Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections Ledger on the addition date,
taking into account the eligible principal recelvables added to the recelvables trust,

If in any monthly period the Investor Interest would be zero if the payments to be made on the
distribution date during that monthly period were made on the last day of the prior monthly
period, the Fixed Investor Percentage will be zero.

The “(Class A Fixed Allocation” the "Class B Fixed AMocation” and the "Class C Fixed Allocation”
will each be calculated the same way and will be equal to, for each notional class and for any
monthly period after the end of the Revolving Period, the following fraction expressed as a
percentage:

Investor Interest for the relevant notional class

Investor Interest
This percentage, never to exceed 100 per cent., will be calculated using these amounts on the close
of busiriess on the last day of the Revolving Perlod.

Gn each business day during the Revolving Period which is not a transfer date, the Refnvested
Investor Principal Collections for that day will be distributed in the following priority:

e the Reinvested Investor Principal Collections will be applied as Shared Principal Collections and
allocated to other outstanding series in group one; see "~ Shared Principel Collections”; and

e the balance remaining will be applied as Investor Cash Available for Acquisition in the manner
described In "The Receivables Trust: Acguiring Additional Entitlements to Trust Property and
Payments for Receivables”.

“Reinvested investor Principat Collections” means, for any business day:

#  principal cellections credited to the Princlpal Collections Ledger identified for series 05-4, after
adjustments for Unavailable Principal Collections during the Controlled Accurmulation Period,
the Reguiated Amortisation Period and the Rapid Amortisation Pericd - for any day called the
“Daily Investor Principal Collections™; minus

& an amount equal toc the product of the Class B Floating Allocatlon and the Daily Investor
Principal Collections; minus

& an amount equal to the product of the Class C Floating Allocation and the Daily Investor
Principal Collections.

“Available Investor Principal Collections” means, for any monthiy period:
e the Investor Principal Collections; minus

®»  the Investor Cash Available for Acquisition that has been calculated as being avaitable to be
used during that monthly pericd: minus

# the Reallocated Class C Principal Colfections that are reguired to fund the Class A Required
Amount and the Class B Required Amount; minus

e the Realiocates Class B Princival Collections for that monthly period that are reguired to fund
t-e {lass A Required Amount; plus

. harez 2roagipal Collections irom ctner series in group one that are allocated to series
Zus
- L munaly penigl o wnich tne Rapid Amortisation Ferica starts, any previousiy identified

~.zsior Cash Available “or 2.cguisition that was not used to acquire receivables.

o
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“Investor Principal Collections” means, for any monthly periad, the sum of:

e principal collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger identified for serles 05-4, after
adjustments for Unavailable Principal Collections during the Controlled Accumulation Period,
the Requlated Amortisation Period and the Rapid Amortisation Period; plus

¢ amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class A Investor Default Amount
and distributed out of Class A Avallable Funds, Excess Spread, Realtocated Class C Principal
Coltections and Realivcated Class B Principal Collections; plus

® amounts treated as Investor Principal Coflections up to the Class 8 tvestor Uefault Amount
and distributed out of Excess Spread and Reallocated Class C Principal Collections; plus

®  amounts treated as Investor Principal Collections up to the Class C Investor Default Amount
and distributed out of Excess Spread: plus

e Excess Spread treated as Investor Principal Collections used to reimburse Class A Investor
Charge-Offs any reductions in the Class B Investor Interest and any reductions in the Class C
Investor Interest: plus

®  LUnavailable Principal Collections credited to the Principal Collections Ledger and to be treated
as Investor Principal Collections; see "~ Unavailable Principal Collections”.

On each transfer date for the Controdled Accumulation Period, the Regulated Amortisatlon Period

or the Rapid Amortisation Period, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class A Menthly

Principal Amount from the Principat Collections Ledger and:

e for a transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period, deposit it into the Principal
Funding Account; or

e for a transfer date during the Rapid Amortisation Peried or Regulated Amortlsation Period,
credit It to the Class A Distribution Ledger.

The “Class A Monthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

#  the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principai Collections
Ledger on that transfer date;

s for each transfer date for the Centrolled Accumulation Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Perlod before the series 05-4 scheduled redemptlan date, the Contralled Deposit Amount for
that transfer date; and

e the Class A Adjusted Investor Interest - adjusted to account for any unrelmbursed Class A
Investor Charge-Offs,

The first distribution date (1) for the Controlled Accumulation Peried, on which an amount equal

to the Class A Investor Interest has been deposited in the Principal Funding Account, or (2) during

the Rapid Amottisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period, on which the Class A Investor

Interest is paid in full, is called the "Class B Principal Commencement Cate”.

Starting with the Class B Principal Commencement Date, to the extent there are funds remaining

after distributing the Class A Monthly Principal Amount, the receivables trustee will withdraw the

Class B Monthly Principal Amount from the Principal Coltections Ledger and:

¢ for a transfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period, deposit it into the Principal
Funding Account; ar

# for a transfer date during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Period. credit it to the Class B Distribution Ledger.

The "Class B Monthly Principal Amount” is the least of:

®  the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections
Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the Class A Manthly Principal Amount;

e for each transfer date for the Controlled Accumulaton Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Period before the serles 05-4 scheduled redemption date, an amount equal to the Controlled
Deposit Amount minus, if applicable, the Class A Monthly Principal Amount; and

& the Class B Adjusted investor Interest - adjusted to account for any unreimbursed reductions
in the Class B Investor Interest for reasons other than principal payments.

The first distribution date (1} for the Contrelled Accumulation Period, on which an amount equal
to the sum of the Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest has been deposited in
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the Principal Funding Accouat, or (2) during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the Regulated

Amortisation Period, on which the Class B Investor Interest is paid in full, is called the "Class C

Princlpal Commencement Date".

Starting with the Class C Principal Commencement Date, to the extent there are funds remalning

after distributing the Class & Meonthly Principal Amount and the Class B Monthly Principal Amouat,

as applicable, the receivables trustee will withdraw the Class C Monthly Principal Amount from the

Principal Collections Ledger and:

« for a transfer date for the Controlled Accurnulation Pericd, deposit it Into the Principal
Funding Account; or

e for a transfer date during the Rapld Amortisation Perlod or the Regulated Amortisation
Perlod, credit it to the Class  Distribution Ledger.

The “Class C Monthly Principal Amount™ is the lesser of:

e the Available Investor Principal Collections standing to the credit of the Principal Collections
Ledger on that transfer date minus, if applicable, the Class A Monthly Principal Amount and
the Class B Monthly Principal Amount; and

o the Class C Adjusted Investor Interest — adjusted to account for any unreimbursed reductlons
in the Class C Investor Interest for reasons other than principal payments.

On the earlier of (1} the first distribution date during the Rapid Amortisation Peried or the
Regulated Amortisaticn Period and {(2) the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date, and on each
distribution date after that, the receivables trustee will distribute the following amounts in the
followling priority:
(1) from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal to the lesser of:

e the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account; and

e the Class A investor Interest;
will be deposited in the Series 05-4 Distribution Acceunt for Class A and will be owned by the
MTN Issuer. The MTN tssuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the serles 05-4
medium term note certificate;
(2} from the Class A Distribution Ledger an amount equal to the lesser of

" @ the amount credited to the Class A Distribution Ledger; and

¢  the Class A Investor Interest, after taking into account the amounts destribed in clause
{1) abave;

will be deposited to the Series 05-4 Distribution Account for Class A and will be owned by

the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the

series 05-4 medium term note certificate,

Starting on the earlier of (1) if the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account exceeds
the Class A Investor Interest, the serles 5-4 scheduled redemption date and {2) during the Rapid
Amortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Pericd, the Class B Principal Commencement
Date. and on each distribution date after that, the receivables trustee will distribute the following
amounts in the fellowing priority:

(1) from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal to the lesser of:

o the amount on deposit in the Principai Funding Account in excess of the Class A
tnvestor Interest; and

e  the Class B Investor Interest:

will be deposited to the Series 05-4 Distribution Account for Class B and will be cwned by
the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the
series {5-4 medium - -oiz certificate;

{2) from ine Class B Distripution Ledger an amount equal 1o the lesser of:
+  the amount credizc to the Class 8 Disiribution Ledger; and
#  ire Class 8 Investor inierest, after taxing into account the amount described in clause
£ af .
1) above;
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this amount will be deposited in the Series 05-4 Distribution Account for Class B and will be
owned by the MTN Issuer. The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding
on the series D5-4 medium term note certificate.

Starting on the earlier of (1} if the amount on deposh in the Principal Funding Account exceeds
the sum of the Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest, the serles 05-4 scheduled
redemption date, and (2} during the Rapid Amortisation Period or the Regulated Amortisation
Period, the Class C Principal Commencement Date, and on each distribution date after that, the
receivables trustee wili distribute the following amounts in the foltowing priority:

(1} from the Principal Funding Account, an amount equal 1o the lesser of:

e the amount on deposit in the Principal Funding Account in excess of the sum of the
Class A Investor Interest and the Class B Investor Interest; and

L] the Class C Investor Interest;

wilt be deposited in the Series 05-4 Distribution Account for Class C and will be owned by the

MTN Issuer, The MTN Issuer will use this amount to repay principal outstanding on the series
05-4 medium term note certificate,

(2) from the Class C Distribution Ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of;
@ the amount credited to the Class € Distribution Ledger; and

# the Class C Investor Interest after taking inte account the amount described in ¢lause (1)
above;

witl be deposited to the Serles 05-4 Distribution Account for Class C and will be owned by
the MTN Issuer. The MTN issuer will use this amount to repay principal cutstanding on the
Series 05-4 medium term note certificate.

Postponement of Controlled Accumulation Period

The Controlled Accumulation Perlod is scheduied to begin on the close of business on 31 October
2007. If the Controlled Accumulation Period Length, which is explained in the next paragraph, is
less than 12 months, the Revelving Period may be extended and the start of the Controlled
Accumuiation Period will be postponed. The Controlled Accumutation Pericd will, In any event,
begin no later than the close of business on 30 September 2008.

On the determination date right before the distribution date in October 2007, and on each
determination date after that, untll the Controlied Accumulation Period begins, the servicer will
determine the “Controlled Accumulation Period Length”, This is the number of months that the
servicer expects will be needed to fully fund the Principal Funding Account no later than the series
(5-4 scheduled redemption date. This calculation is based on:

e the expected monthly principal collections that the servicer calculates will be available to the
investor Interests of all series other than excluded series, assuming a principal payment rate
no greater than the lowest monthly principal payment rate on the receivables for the twelve
months before; and

o the amount of principal expected to be distributable to the investor interests of all series in
group one — other than Companion Series - that are not expected to be in their revolving
periods during the Controlled Accumulation Period,

If the Controfled Accumulation Period Length is less than twelve maonths, the servicer may, at its

option, postpone the start of the Controlled Accumutation Perfod such that the number of calendar

months in the Controlled Accumutation Period will be at feast equal to the Controlled

Accumulation Period Length.

The effect of this is to permit the reduction of the length of the Controlled Accumulation Period

based on the investor interest of future series that are scheduled to be in their revolving periods

during the Controlled Accumulation Period and on Increases in the principal payment rate
occurring after the closing date. The length of the Controlled Accumulation Period will not be less
than one month,
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Unavailable Principal Collections
If:

®  during the Controlled Accumulation Period or the Regulated Amortisation Period, the amount
credited to the Principal Collections Ledger identlfied for series D5-4 during any monthly
period minus the amount of tnvestor Cash Avallable for Acquisition calculated for series 05-4
for that monthly period, exceeds the sum of:

(1) the Adjusted Investor Interest as of the last day of the prior menthly period, after taking
into account any deposits to be made to the Principal Funding Account on the transfer
date for that monthly period, any unreimbursed investor Charge-Offs for any class and
any other adjustments to the Investor Interest for that monthly period; and

(2) any Reallocated Class B Principal Collections or Reallocated Class C Principal Collections
on the transfer date for that menthly peried; or

®  during the Rapid Arﬁortlsation Period, the amount credited to the Principal Coliections Ledger
identlfied for series 05-4 during any monthly period exceeds the sum of:

(1) the Investor Interest as of the last day of the prior monthly period, after taking into
account any deposits to be made to the Series 05-4 Distribution Atcount on the transfer
date for that monthly perlod, any unreimbursed Investor Charge-Offs for any dlass and
any other adjustments to the Investor Interest for that monthly perlod; and

(2) any Reallocated Class B Principal Collections or Reallocated Class C Principal Collections
on the transfer date for that monthly perlod

the amount of any excess will be allocated and transferred to the transferor beneficlary only to the
extent that the Transferor Interest on that date is greater than zerp, If the Transferor Interest on
that date is not greater than zero, the amount will be identified as unavailable transferor principal
collections credited to the Principal Collectlons Ledger. This sum, together with any unavailable
investor principal collections that have been credited 1o the Principal Coliections Ledger, will be
identified as “Unavailable Principal Collections”. Unavailable investor principal collections are
principal collections identified for the transferor beneficiary but not transferred to the transferor
beneficiary because the Transferor Interest at the relevant date Is not greater than zero.

Unavailable Principal Collections will, to the extent they arise during the Revolving Period, be
aliocated 1o the transferor beneficiary but will be transferred to the transferor heneficiary only if
and to the extent that the Transferor Interest at that time is greater than zero. On each transfer
date for the Controlied Accumulation Period, Reguilated Amortisation Period or the Rapid
Amortisation Period, any Unavailabte Principal Collections which arise after the end of the
Revolving Period which are credited to the Principal Collections Ledger will be allocated to the
investor beheficiary and included as investor Principal Collections to be distributed as Avaitable
Investor Principal Collections.

Shared Principal Collections
Principal collections for any monthly period atlocated to the Investor Interest of serles 05-4 wilt
first be used to cover:

@« until the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date, for any monthly period during the Controlled
Accumulation Period, deposits of the Controlled Deposit Amount t0 the Principal Funding
Account;

®  during the Regulated Amortisation Period, deposits of the Controlled Depesit Amount fo the
Series 05-4 Distribution Account for series 05-4; and

®  during the Controlled Accurruilation Period, on the serles 05-4 scheduled redemption date and
during the Rapid Amoriisation Period, payments to the MTN Issuer for series 05-4.

The receivables trustee wifl determine the amount of principal collecticns for any monthly period
allocated to the Investor Interest remaining after covering required distributions to the MTN Issuer
far each class of serles 05-4 and any similar amount rernaining for any other outstanding series in
group one. These remaining principal collections are called “Shared Principal Collections”. The
ceceivahies trustee will altocate the Shared Principal CoMlecticns to cover any scheduled or
oermitted principal distributions to peneficiaries, and deposits to principat funding accounts, if any,
for any series in oroup one that have not been covered out of the principal collections aliocable te
that series. These uncoverec princlpal distributions and deposits are called “Principal Shortfails™.
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Shared Principal Collections will not be used to cover investor charge-offs for any class of any
series.

If Principal Shortfalls exceed Shared Principal Coltections for any monthly period, Shared Principal
Collections witl be allocated in proportion among the outstanding serles in group one based on the
amounts of Principal Shortfalls for each series. To the extent that Shared Principal Collections
exceed Principal Shortfalls, the balance will in the normal course be paid te the transferor
beneficiary. .

Defaulted Receivables; Investor Charge-Offs

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee wili calculate the Investor Default Amount for the
previous monthly period. The “Investor Default Amount” will be the total of, for each defaulted
account, the proguct of the Floating nvestor Percentage and the default amount.

The “default amount” for any defaulted account will be the amount of eligible princlpal recefvables
In the defaulted account on the day the account became a defaulted account.

The investor Oefault Amount will be calculated for each notlonal class of serles 05-4 based on its
floating atlocation during the monthly perlod, These allocations will be called the "Class A Investor
Default Amount”, the “Class B lnvestor Default Amount™ and the “Class C Investor Default
Amount”,

On each transfer date, if the Class A Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly period exceeds
the sum of:

¢ C(lass A Availabte Funds;

s  Excess Spread;

&  Reallocated Class C Principal Collections; and
&  Reallocated Class B Principal Collections;

in each case, to the extent available to cover the Class A Investor Default Amount, then the Class C
Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount of the excess, but not by more than the remaining
Class A Mavestor Default Amount. This reduction to the Class C Investor Interest will be made onty
after giving effect to reducticns to the Class C Investor interest for any Class C Investor Charge-
Offs, any Reallocated Class B Principal Collections and Reallocated Class C Principal Collections.

If this reduction would cause the Class C Investor Interest to be a negative number, it will be
reduced to zero. In this case, the Class B Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount by which
the Class C Investor Interest would have been reduced below zero, but notl by more than the Class
A Investor Default Amount not covered by 2 reductien in the Class C Investor Interest. This
reduction In the Class B Investor Interest will be made only after giving effect to reductions for any
Class B Investor Charge-Offs and Realiocated Class B Principal Collectlons not covered by a
reduction In the Class C Investor Interest,

If this reduction would cause the Class B Investor Interest tc be a negative number, the Class B
Investor Interest will be recuced to zero. In this case, the Class A Investor Interest wili be reduced
by the amount by which the Class B Investor Interest would have been reduced below zero, but not
by more than the remaining Class A Investor Default Amount not covered by a reduction in the
Class C Investor Interest or the Class B Investor Interest. This is called a “Class A Investor Charge-
Off" and may have the effect of slowing or reducing the return of principal to the MTN Issuer
calculated in respect of Class A,

If the Class A Investor Interest has been reduced by any Class A Investor Charge-Offs, it will be
reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and available for that
purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class A investor Interest has been
reduced. See "~ Excess Spread’”’.

On each transfer date, if the Class B Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly period exceeds
the surn of:

e Excess Spread; and

o  Reallocated Class C Principal Collections,

in each case to the extent available to cover the Class B Investor Default Amount, then the Class C
investor Interest will be reduced by the amount of the excess, but not by more than the remaining
Class B Investor Default Amount. This reduction to the Class C Investor Interest will be made only
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after giving effect to any reductions to the Class C Investor Interest for any Clasy C Investor
Charge-Offs, any Realiccated Class B Principal Cotlections, any Reallocated Class C Principal
Collections and any reductions in the Class C Investor Interest to cover the Class A Investor Default
Amount,

If this reduction would cause the Class C Investor Interest to be a negative number, it will be
reduced to zero. In this case, the Class B Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount by which
the Class C Investor Interest would have been reduced below zero, but not by more than the
remaining Class B Investor Default Amount not covered by a reduction to the Class C Investor
interest. This is called a “Class B Investor Charge-Off’ and may have the effect of slowing or
reducing the return of principal to the MTN Issuer calculated in respect of Class B.

if the Class B investor Interest has been reduced for any reasons other than the payment of
principal, it will be reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and
available for that purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class B investor
Interest has been reduced. See "- Excess Spread”,

On each transfer date, if the Class C Investor Default Amount for the prior monthly period exceeds
the amount of Excess Spread avallable to cover the Class C Invester Default Amount, the Class C
Investor Interest will be reduced by the amount of the excess, but not by more than the Class C
Investor Default Amount. This Is calted a "Class C Investor Charge-Off”’, which may have the effect
of slowing or reducing the return of principal to the MTN Issuer calculated in respect of Class C.

If the Class C investor Interest has been reduced for any reasons other than the payment of
principal, it will be reimbursed on any transfer date by the amount of Excess Spread allocated and
availabte for that purpose, but not by more than the total amount by which the Class C Investor
Interest has been so reduced. See "~ Excess Spread”.

“Reallocated Class B Principal Collections” means, for any transfer date, the principal collections
atlocable to the Class B Investor Interest for the related monthly period in an amount not to
exceed the Class A Required Amount, after applying Excess Spread and Reallocated Class C
Principal Collections to cover the Class A Required Amount. Reallocated Class B Principal
Coltections cannot exceed the Class B Investor Interest after giving effect to any unreimbursed Class
B investor Charge-Offs, Reallocated Class B Principal Collectipns will reduce the Class B Investor
Interest.

“Reallocated Class C Principal Collections” means, for any transfer date, the princlpal collections
allocable to the Class C Investor Interest for the refated monthly period in an amount not to
exceed the Class A Required Amount and the Class B Required Amount after applying Excess
Spread to cover the Class A Reguired Amount and the Class B Required Amount. Reallocated Class
C Principal Collections cannot exceed the Class C investor Interest after giving effect to any
unreimbursed Class C Investor Charge-Offs. Reallocated Class C Principal Collectlons will reduce the
Class C Investor Interest.

The “Class A Required Amount” for any transfer date will be the amount, if any, by which the
sum of:

e the Class A Monthly Required Expense Amount;

e the total amount of the class A servicing fee and the class A cash management fee for the
prior monthly perlod and any due and unpaid class A servicing fees and class A cash
management fees; and

e the Class A Investor Default Amount,
exceeds the Class A Available Funds,

The “Class B Required Amount” for any transfer date will be the sum of (1) the amount, if any, by
which the sum of:

e the Class B Monthly Required Expense Amount; and

« the ‘ota! amount of the class B servicing fee and the class B cash management fee for the
oricy monthly period and any due and unpaid Class B servicing fees or class B cash
=g zaement fees,

sxteels tne Qiass B Availapie Funas, and (2) the Tlass B Invester Default Amount.
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Excess Spread
“Excess Spread” for any transfer date will be the sum of Class A Excess Spread, Class B Excess
Spread and Class C Excess Spread.

On each transfer date, the receivables trustee will apply Excess Spread to make the foliowing
distributions in the fellowing priority:

(1} an amount equal to the Class A Reguired Amount, if any, will be used to fund, the Class A
Required Amount; if the Class A Required Amount is mare than the amount of Excess Spread,
Excess Spread will be applied in the order of priority in which Class A Avaflable Funds are to
be distributed;

(2) an amount equal to the total amount of Class A Investor Charge-Offs that have not been
previously reimbursed will be used to reinstate the Class A Investor Interest, treated as a
portlon of Investor Principal Coliections allocated to Class A and credited te the Principal
Collections Ledger:

(3) an amount egual to the Class B Required Amount will be used to fund the Class B Required
Amount; if the Class B Required Amount is more than the amount of Excess Spread available,
Excess Spread will be apptied first In the order of priority with which Class 8 Avallable Funds
are to be distributed on any transfer date and then to fund the Class B Investor Default
Amaount; any amount available to pay the Class B Investor Default Amount will be allocated to
Class B and treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections allocated to Class B and
credited ta the Principal Collections Ledger;

{4} an amount equal to the total amount by which the Class B Investor Interest has been reduced
below the Class B initial Investor Interest for reasons other than the payment of principal -
but not in excess of the aggregate amount of such reductions which have nat been previously
relmbursed - will be used to reinstate the Class B Investor Interest, treated as a portion of
Investor Principal Collections and ¢redited to the Princlpal Collections Ledger;

(5) an amount equal to the sum of the Class C Monthly Finance Amount, the Class  Deficiency
Amount and the Class C Additional Finance Amount - called the "Class € Monthly
Distribution Amount”” - will be credited to the Class C Distribution Ledger;

(6) an amount equal to the Class C Investor Default Amount will be allocated to Class € and
treated as a portion of Investor Principal Collections allocated to Class C and credited to the
Principal Collections Ledger;

(7) an amount equal to the total amount by which the Class C Investor Interest has been reduced
below the Class C Investor Interest for reasons other than the payment of principal - but not
in excess of the total amount of the reductions that have not been previously reimbursed —
will be used to reinstate the Class C Investor Interest, treated as a portion of Investor Principat
Collections and credited to the Principal Coliections Ledger;

{8) on each transfer date from and after the Reserve Account Funding Date, but before the date
on which the Reserve Account terminates, an amount up to the excess, If any, of the
Required Reserve Account Amount over the amount on deposit in the Reserve Account will
be deposited Into the Reserve Account;

{9) on each distribution date prior to the Class C Release Date, if the available amount on deposit
in the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Amount, an amount up to
any excess will be deposited into the Spread Account;

(10) an amount equal to any Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount for series 05-4 wlll be paid to
the transferor and will then cease to be property of the receivables trust;

{11} the Serles 05-4 [xtra Amount will be paid intc the Serfes 05-4 Distribution Account and will
be owned by the MTN Issuer;

{12} on the series 05-4 termination date, an amount equal to the principal calculated as payable in
accordance with the expenses loan agreement will be pald into the Series 05-4 Distribution
Account; and

{13} the balance, if any, after giving effect tc the payments made under paragraphs (1) through
{12) above will be paid to the MTN Issuer as assignee of the excess interest beneficiary and
will ther: cease to be property of the receivables trust,
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Extra Amount
The "Series 05-4 Extra Amount” i5 calculated as follows:

e for any transfer date where the Serles 05-4 Investor Interest is less than or egual to
£250,000,000, an amount equal to:

Days in Calculation Period
365 (366 in a leap year)

e for any transfer date where the Series 05-4 Investor {nterest is greater than £250.000,000, an
amount equal to the aggregate of A plus B, where:

x 0.02 per cent, x The Investor Interest

i Iculation Period
p = Davsin Calcy = G.02 per cent. x £250,000,000

365 (366 in a leap year}

Days in Calculation Period
B= L = 0.002 per cent. = (Series 05-4 Iavestor Interest -

365 (366 in a leap year)} £250,000,000)
Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount
By each transfer date, the receivables trustee witl calculate the Aggregate Investor Indemnity

Amount for each outstanding series. The "Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount™ is the sum of all
Investor Indemnity Amounts for the related manthly period.

An “Investor Indemnity Amount” means for any series, the amount of any Transferor Section 75
Liabllity claimed from the receivables trustee by the transferor under the trust section 75
indemnity allocated to that series, calculated as follows:

Transferor Section 75 Liability x  Floating Investor Percentage for that series

The "Transferor Section 75 Llability” is the liability that the transferor has for any designated
account because of Section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act. The Transferor Sectlon 75 Liability
cannot exceed the original outstanding face amount of the principal receivable retating to the
transaction giving rise to the lability. See “Risk Foctors: Applicetion of the Consumer Credit Act
1974 May Impede Collection Efforts and Could Cause Early Redernption of the Notes or @ Loss on
your Notes",

Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amounts for series 05-4 will be payable only if amounts are availabte
from Excess Spread to pay them. See “- Excess Spread’. If Excess Spread available on any transfer
date is not enough to pay the Aggregate Investor Indermnity Amount for serles 05-4 otherwise
payable on that date, the excess will be carried forward and paid on subsequent transfer dates to
the extent amounts of Excess Spread are available to pay them.

Principal Funding Account

The receivables trustee will establish and maintain the Principal Funding Account at a Qualified
Institution - currently Barclays Bank PLC at its branch located at 1234 Pavilion Drive Northampton
NN4 75C - as a segregated Trust Account held for the benefit of the MTN Issuer as the investor
beneficiary for series 05-4 and the transferor beneficiary, During the Controlled Accumulation
Period, the receivables trustee will transfer the amounts described under - ANlocotion, Cofcuiation
and Distribution of Principal Collections to the MTN Issuer” to the Principal Funding Account.

Funds on deposit in the Principal Funding Account wiil be invested to the following transfer date
hy the receivables trustee in permitted investments. Investment earnings, net of investment losses
and expenses, on funds on deposit In the Principal Funding Account are calted “Principal Funding
Investment Proceeds”.

Principal Funding investment Proceeds wiil be used to pay the Class A Covered Amount.
The "Class A Covered Amount” is calculated as follows:

Days in the Cacuration Per.cd The amount equal 1o the amount
— - — < The Class A Finance Rate % on depaosit in the Principal
363 35€ i 2 12a0 year, Funding Account

where the amourt on gepcsit n the Principal Funding Account is caiculated as of the last day of
the monthly perica before the monthly period in which the relevant transfer date occurs.

o
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Where the amount on deposit In the Principal Funding Account is calculated as of the last day of
the monthly period before the monthly period in which the relevant transfer date occurs.

Principal Funding Investment Proceeds up to the Class A Covered Amount will be transferred to the
Trustee Collection Actount by each transfer date and credited to the Finance Charge Collections
Ledger for application as Class A Available Funds,

If on any transfer date during the Controlled Accumulation Period, the Principal Funding
Investment Proceeds exceed the Class A Covered Amount, that excess will be pald to the transferor
beneficiary. If the Principal Funding Investment Proceeds are less than the Class A Covered Amount,
a withdrawai will be made from the Reserve Account — to the extent funds are available - and will
be deposited in the Finance Charge Collections Ledger, for application as Class A Available Funds.
The amount of this withdrawal will be reduced to the extent Excess Spread would be available for
deposit in the Reserve Account. See “- Reserve Account” and " Excess Spread’”.

Reserve Account

The receivables trustee will establish and maintain a reserve account at a Qualified Institution —
currently, Barclays Bank PLC at its branch located at 1 Churchill Place, London E14 5HP - as a
Trust Account segregated for the benefit of series 05-4. This account Is called the "Reserve
Account”. The Reserve Account will be established to assist with the payment distribution of the
Ctass A Monthly Finance Amount to the MTN Issuer during the Controlled Accumulation Period.

On each transfer date from and after the Reserve Account Funding Date. but before the
termination of the Reserve Account. the receivables trustee will apply Excess Spread in the order of
priority described in "~ Excess Spreod” to increase the amount on deposit in the Reserve Account,
up to the Required Reserve Amount.

The “Reserve Account Funding Date” will be the transfer date that starts no later than three
months before the start of the Controlled Accumulation Period. This date will be an earlier date if
the Portfolio Yield decreases below levels described in the Series 05-4 Supplement. In any case, this
date will be no earlier than 12 months before the start of the Controlled Accumulatlon Period.

The “Required Reserve Amount” for any transfer date on or after the Reserve Account Funding
Date will be:

e (.50 per cent, of the Class A Investor Interest; or
& subject to the conditions described In the next paragraph, any other amount desngnated by

?

the transferor beneficiary;

If, on or before the Reserve Account Funding Date, the transferor beneficlary designag'a_ lesser
amount, it must provide the servicer and the receivables trustee with evidence that &hesating
agency has notified the transferor, the servicer and the receivables trustee that that Iusei".imount
will not result in the rating agency reducing or withdrawing its then existing ratmg .of any
outstanding related beneficiary debt. Also, the transferor beneficiary must deliver to the'féeeivables
trustee an officer's certificate to the effect that, based on the facts known to that officer 5 that
time, in the reasonable belief of the transferor beneficiary, the designation will not cause a‘Pay Out
Event to occur or an event that, after the glving of notice or the lapse of time, would cause a Pay
Qut Event to occur. Further, this designation will not be efiective without the pric-written
agreemnent of all the other beneficiartes. [

On each transfer date, after giving effect to any deposit to be made to, and any withdrawal to be
made from, the Reserve Account cn that transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw from
the Reserve Account an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the amount on deposit in’ the
Reserve Account over the Required Reserve Amount, The receivables trustee will distrifyute this
amount to the transferor beneficiary and it will cease to be the property of the recefvabies trust.

All amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account on any transfer date will be invested by the
receivables trustee in permitted investments to the following transfer date. This wiil be dene after
giving effect to any deposits to, or withdrawals from, the Reserve Acccunt to be made on that
transfer date, The interest and cther income - net of investment expenses and losses - earned on
the investments will be retained in the Reserve Account if the amount on deposit in the Reserve
Account is less than the Required Reserve Amount. Jf the amount on deposit is equal to or more
than the Required Reserve Amount, it will be credited to the Finance Charge Coltections Ledger to
be included in the Class A Availabte Funds.
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On each traasfer date for the Controlled Accumulation Period before the series 05-4 scheduled

redemption date and on the first transfer date during the Regulated Amortisation Period or the

Rapid Amortisation Perlod, the receivables trustee will withdraw an amount from the Reserve

Account and deposit it in the Trustee Collection Account for credit to the Finance Charge

Collections Ledger to be included, in Class A Available Funds. This amount will be egual to the

lesser of:

e the available amount on deposit in the Reserve Account; and

& the amount, if any, by which the Class A Covered Amount is greater than the Principal
Funding Investment Proceeds,

The amount of this withdrawal will be reduced to the extent Excess Spread would be available for

deposit in the Reserve Account.

The Reserve Account will be terminated following the earliest to occur of:

¢ the termination of the receivables trust;

e the earlier of the first transfer date after the start of the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amortisation Period; and

®  the serles 05-4 termination date,

when the Reserve Account terminates, all amounts still on deposit in the Reserve Account will be

treated as part of the excess interest attributable to series 05-4 and will be paid to the MTN Issuer
and will no longer be the property of the receivables trust.

Spread Account
The recelvables trustee will establish and maintain a spread account at a Qualified Institution -
currently Barclays Bank PLC at its branch jocated at 1234 Pavilion Drive, Northampton: NN4 75G ~
as a segregated Trust Account held for the benefit of the MTN Issuer as the investor benefictary
and the transferor beneficiary. This account Is called the "Spread Account”. The Spread Account
will be used:
e to fund shortfalls in Excess Spread avallable to pay the Class C Monthly Distribution Amount;
e on the day called the "Class C Release Date", which is the earlier of:
(1j the day the Cfass A Investor interest and the Class B énvestor Interest are reduced to
zero, and
(2) the serfes 05-4 termination date,
to fund the amount, if any, by which the Class C Debt Amount is greater than the Class C
Investor Interest; and
s  beginning on the Class C Release Date, to fund shortfalls in Excess Spread available to fund
the Class C Investor Default Amount.
No amounts will be deposited into the Spread Account on the closing date, but if the amount on
deposit in the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Amount, then the Spread
Account will be funded by Excess Spread as described above in iterm (9) under “-Excess Spreod”.
The “Required Spread Account Amount” will be determined monthly and will be egual to the
Spread Account Percentage times:
s during the Revolving period or the Controlled Accumulation Period, the current Adjusted
Investar Interest, or
e  during the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Ameortisation Period, the Adjusted
Investor Interest as of the last day of the Revalving Period or, if the Controlled Accumulation
Period has started, as of the last day of the Controlle¢ Accumulation Period.
The Reguired Spread Account Amount, however, will never exceed the Class C Debt Amount.

The “Spread Account Percentage” will be determined on each determination date by the level of
the quarterly excess spread percentage as follows:

Spread Account

Guarteriy £xess Spread Fercentage Percentage
apove 4.5% 0.5%
2bove 4.0% dut eguat to or below 4.5% 10%




Spread Account

Quarterly Excess Spread Percentage Percentage
above 3.5% but equal to or below 4.0% 1.5%
above 3.0% but equal to or below 3.5% 2.0%
equal to or below 3.0% 25%

The quarterly excess spread percentage will be calculated on each determination date and will be a
percentage equal to the average of the Portfolio Yields for the three prior months less the average
of the Expense Rates for the same three months.

The quarterly excess spread percentage for the first determination date will be calculated using the
Portfolio Yield for the prior manth divided by the Expense Rate for the same month. The quarterly
excess spread percentage for the second determination date will be calculated using the average of
the Portfolio Yields for the prior twe months divided by the average of the Expense Rates for the
same twa months.

All amounts on deposit in the Spread Account on any transfer date will be invested by the
receivables trustee in permitted Investments to the next transfer date. For purposes of the Spread
Account, permitted investments will include investments rated A-2 by Standard & Poor's, and P-2
by Moody's. This will be done after giving effect to any deposits to, or withdrawals from, the
Spread Account made on that transfer date. The interest and other investment income - net of
investment expenses and losses — earned on the investments will be retained In the Spread Account
If the amount on deposlt in the Spread Account is less than the Required Spread Account Amount,
If the amount on deposit in the Spread Account is at least equal to the Required Spread Account
Amount, then it will be paid to the transferor beneficiary.

If the Class C Monthly Distribution Amount is not fully paid from Excess Spread on any transfer
date, the recefvables trustee will withdraw from available funds en deposit in the Spread Account
an amount equal to the shortfall and credit it to the Class C Distribution Ledger.

On the Class C Release Date, the lesser of:
¢ the avaltable amount on deposit in the Spread Account, and
#  the amount, If any, by which the Class C Debt Amount exceeds the Class C Investor Interest

will be withdrawn by the receivables trustee and paid to the MTN Issuer as the investor beneficiary
and treated as principal pald that is referable to the Class C Investor Interest, This withdrawal wiil
be made only after ghving effect to any withdrawal made for the purposes described In the
preceding paragraph.,

Beginning on the Class C Release Date, if the Class C Invester Default Amount is not fully funded
from Excess Spread on any transfer date, the receivables trustee will withdraw from available funds
on deposit in the Spread Account an amount equal to the shortfall and these funds will be
calculated by reference to Class C and treated as a portien of Investor Principal Collections that is
referable to the Class C Investor Interest and credited to the Principal Collections Ledger. This
withdrawal will be made only after giving effect to any withdrawal made for the purposes
described in the two preceding paragraphs.

Any amount on depaosit in the Spread Account that exceeds the Required Spread Account Amount

will be withdrawn by the recelvables trustee and will be treated as part of the excess interest
attributable to series 05-4 and will be paid 1o the MTN Issuer. Also, on the earlier of:

¢ the termination of the receivables trust; and
. the series 05-4 termination date,

any amounts still on deposit in the Spread Account, after making any deposit or withdrawal
described above, will be withdrawn by the receivables trustee and treated as part of the excess
interest attributable to series G5-4 and will be paid to the MTN Issuer.

Distribution Ledgers

The receivables trustee will establish distribution ledgers for each class of series 05-4 in the Trustee
Collection Account. On each transfer date it will credit and debit amounts to these ledgers as
described throughout this section of this prospectus. All amounts credited to the Class A
Distribution Ledger, the Class B Distribution Ledger and the Class C Distribution Ledger will be
regarded as being segregated for the benefit of the MTN Issuer.
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Trustee Payment Amount
The share of the Trustee Payment Amount payable on any transfer date that is allocable to series
05-4 - called the “Investor Trustee Payment Amount" - will be calculated as follows:

Investor Interest for series 05-4 Trustee

Totat of tnvestar Interests of series for which Payment Amount
the Trustee Payment Amount was incurred

The share of the Investor Trustee Payment Amount atlocable to the Investor Interest for each class
is equal to the product of:

®  the finating allocation for the relevant class; and

®  the investor Trustee Payment.

This wiil be called the “Class A Trustee Payment Amount”, the “Class B Trustee Payment
Amount” and the "Class C Trustee Payment Amount’, respectively.

The Investor Trustee Payment Amount for any class will be payable from amounts available for

distribution for that purpose out of available funds for each class and Excess Spread. See “-
Aliocation, Calculation and Distribution of Finance Charge Collections to the MTN lssuer” and "~
Excess Sprevd”,

The portion of the Trustee Payment Amount not allocated to series 03-4 will be pald from
cashflows under the receivables trust ailocated to other outstanding series, and in no event wilt

series 05-4 be liable for these payments,

Qualified Institutions

If the bank or banks at which any of the accounts listed below are held cease to be a Qualified
Institution, then the receivables trustee will, within 10 business days, establish a new account to
replace the affected account or accounts, and will transfer any cash and interest to that new
account or accounts. The accounts referred to above are:

Trustee Collection Account;
Trustee Acquisition Account;
Reserve Account;

Spread Account;

Principal Funding Accoeunt; and
Series 05-4 Distribution Account.

The recelvables trustee may in its discretion efect to move any or all of these accounts and the
amounts credited to them from the Qualified Institution at which they are kept as at the date of
this document to another or other Qualtfied Institutions.

"Qualified Institution” means {1} an institution which at all times has a short-term unsecured debt
rating of at least A-1+ by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's or (Z) an institution acceptable to
each rating agency.

Series 05-4 Pay Out Events
The events described below are called “Series 05-4 Pay-Out Events™:

{1) faiture on the part of the transferor:

® to make any payment or deposit required by the terms of the receivables securitisation
agreement within five business days after the date that the payment or deposit ig
required to be made: or

& duly to observe or perform any covenants or agreements of the transferor in the
receivatles securitisation agreement or the Series 03-2 Supplement that has a material
agverse effect on the interests of the MTN Issuer in respect of series 05-4 and which
cantinues unremedied for a period of B0 days afier (he date on which written notice of
the faiture, requiring it to be remedied, is given to the transferor by the receivables
trustee, or is given to the transferor and the receivables trustee by the investor
ceneficiary for series 05-24 acting on the instructions of holders of the series 05-4
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&3}

3

(4}

(5)

(6)
7}

(8)

medium term note certificate representing together 50 per cent. or more of the total
balance of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate outstanding at that time, and
which unremedied continues during that 60 day period to have a material adverse effect
on the interests of the MTN Issuer in respect of series 05-4 for that petiod;

any representation or warranty made by the transferor in the recelvables securitisation
agreermnent or the Series 05-4 Supplement, or any information contained in a computer file or
microfiche list required to be delivered by the transferor under the receivables securitisation
agreement:

®  proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or when defivered and
continues to be incorrect in any material respect for a period of 60 days after the date
on which written notice of the error, requiring it to be remedied, is given to the
transferor by the receivables trustee, or is given to the transferor and the recelvables
trustee by the investor beneficiary for serles (5-4 acting on the instructions of holders of
the series 05-4 medium term note certificate representing together 50 per cent. or more
of the total balance of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate cutstanding; and

& as a resuit of which there is a material adverse effect on the interests of the MTN Issuer
in respect of series 05-4 and which unremedied continues during that 60 day period to
have a material adverse effect for that period;

MNotwithstanding the above, no series G5-4 Pay-Out Event in relation to (2) shall be deemned to
have occurred if the transferor has complled with its obligations for a breach of warranty as
set out in the receivables securitisation agreement.

the average Portfolio Yield for any three consecutive monthly periods Is less than the average
Expense Rate for those periods, or on any determination date before the end of the third
monthly pericd frem the clesing date the Portfolio Yield is less than the average Expense Rate
for that period:

either:

& over any period of thirty consecutive days, the Transferor Interest averaged over that
period is less than the Minimum Transferor Interest for thal period and the Transferor
Interest does not increase on or before the tenth business day following that thirty day
period to an amount so that the average of the Transferor [nterest as a percentage of
the Average Principal Receivables for such thirty day period, computed by assuming that
the amount of the increase of the Transferor interest by the last day of the ten business
day period, as compared to the Transferor Interest on the last day of the thirty day
pericd, would have existed in the receivables trust during each day of the thirty day
periad, Is at least equal to the Minimum Transferor Interest: or

e on the last day of any monthly period the total balance of eligible receivables is less
than the Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables, adjusted for any serles having a
Companion Series as described In the supplement for that series. and the-total balance
of ellgible receivables fails to increase to an amount equal to or greater than the
Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables on or before the tenth business day following
that fast day:

any servicer defauft or trust cash manager default occurs that would have a material adverse
effect on the MTN Issuer in respect of series 05-4;

the Investor {nterest Is not reduced to zero on the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date;

the early termination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under “The Swap Agreements: Common Frovisions of the Swap Agreements”;
the MTN Issuer is required to withhold or deduct any amounts for or on account of tax on
the payment of any principal or interest in respect of the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate.

i any event described In paragraphs (1), (2} or (5) occurs then, after the applicable grace period,
either {1) the receivabies trustee or (2) the investor beneficiary may deciare that a Series 05-4 Pay
Qut Event has occurred if the correct notice has been given. if the investor beneficiary declares
that a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event has occurred, it must have acted on the instructions of holders of
the series 05-4 medfum term note certificate representing, together, 50 per cent. ar mare of the
series 05-4 medium term note certificate outstanding at that time. The investor beneficiary must
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give a written notice to the transferor, the servicer and the receivables trustee that a Series 05-4
Pay Qut Evemt has pccurred. If the receivabdes trustee declares that a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event
has occurred, It must give a written notice to this effect to the transferor, the servicer and the
trust cash manager. A Serles 05-4 Pay Qut Event will be effective as of the date of the relevant
notice. If any event in paragraphs (3), (4), (6), (7) or {8) occurs, a Series 05-4 Pay Out Event will
ocour without any notice or other acticn on the part of the receivables trustee or the investor
beneficiary.

“Portfolio Yield" means, for any monthly period:
(A+B+C+D)-F
F

x 12

where:
A= the finance charge collections alocable 1o series 05-4;

B = the Acquired Interchange allocable to serles G5-4;
C = the Principal Funding Investment Proceeds up to the Class A Covered Amount; .

D = the amount, If any, to be withdrawn from the Reserve Account that is included in Class A
Avallable Funds;

E = the Investor Default Amount; and
F = the Investor Interest.
“Expense Rate” means, for any transfer date:

A+B+C
D

x 12

where:

A = the sum of the Class A Monthly Required Expense Amount, the Class 8 Monthly Required
Expense Amount and the Class C Monthly Required Expense Amount;

B = the investor servicing fee;
C = the investor rust cash management fee; and
D = the Investor Interest.

“Mintmum Transferor Interest” means 5 per cent. of the Average Principal Receivables. The
transferor may reduce the-Minimum Transferor Interest in the following circumstances:

s upon 30 days prior nolice to the receivables trustee, each rating agency and any
enhancement provider entitled to receive notice under its supplement;

® upon written confirmation from each rating agency that the reduction will not result in the
reduction or withdrawal of the ratings of the rating agency for any outstanding related
heneficiary debt, including, for series 05-4, the notes; and

e delivery to the receivables trustee and each enhancement provider of an officer's certificate
stating that the transferor reasonably believes that the reduction will not, based on the facts
known to the officer at the time of the certification, cause, at that time or in the future, a
Pay Out Event to occur for any investor beneficiary.

The Minimum Transferor Interest will never be less than 2 per cent. of the Average: Principal
Receivables.

“Minimum  Aggregate Principal Receivables® means, an amount equal to the sum of the
numerators used in the calculation of the investor percentages for principz! collections for all
sutsiarading series on that date. For any series in its rapid accumulation perlod, as defined in its
sapplemenT witn an investor interest as of that date of determination equal to the balance on
deposit % 1aE prncpal funding account for that series, the numerator used in the calcuiation of
the investor perceniage ior grincipal collections for that eligible series will, only for the purpose of
“he defiriign of Minimum Aggregate Principal Receivables, be zero,

"Average Principal Receivabies” means, for any period, an amount equal to:
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e the sum of the total balance of eligible principal receivables at the end of each day during
that period divided by;

®  the number of days in that period.

“Cornpanion Series” means:

®  each series that has been paired with another series so that the reduction of the investor

interest of the paired series results in the increase of the investor interest of the other series,
as described in the related supplements; and

e the other series.

Entitlement of MTN Issuer to Series 05-4 Excess [nterest

Barclays Bank PLC will enter into an “agreement between beneficiaries” with the MTN fssuer under
which Barclays Bank PLC will transfer its excess interest entitiement attributable to series 05-4 to
the MTN Issuer. The portion of the excess interest so transferred wilt form part of the Investor
Interest, The MTN Issuer will pay amounts of excess interest attributable to serles 05-4 which it
receives pursuant to the agreement between the beneficlaries to the issuer as "MTN Issuer
additional interest payments".

In return for the transfer of the entitlement to the portion of the excess interest relating to sertes
05-4 the MTN Issuer will agree to pay deferred consideration to Barclays Bank PLC. We will refer
to this deferred consideration as “excess entitlement consideration™. The amount of the excess
entitlement consideration in respect of Series 05-4 will be egual to the amount of deferred
subscription price which the MTN Issuer receives from the lssuer in respect of the series 05-4
medium term note certificate from time to time.

The issuer will apply any MTN Issuer additional interest payments received by it In meeting its due
and payable obligations. Any sums remaining foilowing satisfaction of all amounts due and payable
by the issuer, which we will refer to as "unutilised excess spread”, will be paid to the MTN Issuer
as deferred subscription price for the serfes 05-4 medium term note certificate for as long as the
series 05-4 medium term note certificate Is In issue.

Your Payment Flows

On each distribution date, the recelvables trustee will transfer from available funds In the Trustee
Collection Account the sum of;

& the Class A Monthly Distribution Amount;

e the Class B Monthly Distribution Amount;

o the Class C Monthly Distribution Amount;
.

on the series 05-4 termination date, an amount equal to the principal calculated as payabie in
accordance with the expenses toan agreement; and

¢  the excess interest attributable to sertes 05-4;
and deposit that sum into the Series 05-4 Distribution Account held by the MTN Issuer,

The MTN Issuer will credit the amount received in respect of the monthly distribution amounts for
each class and the portion of the excess interest attributable to series 05-4 to the MTN lssuer
coupon ledger and will record for calculational purposes the amounts treated as referrable to each
class.

The MTN Issuer will then transfer from the Series 05-4 Distribution Account to the extent there
are sufficient funds on deposit:

e first, the costs and expenses of the MTN Issuer for the refevant monthly period;

e second. the lesser of (1) the amounts credited to the MTN Issuer coupon ledger, after paying
or reserving for the MTN Issuer's costs and expenses described in the first bullet point above
and (2) the interest due and payable on the serles 05-4 medium term note certificate,
excluding the MTN Issuer additional interest payments, will be deposited in the Series 05-4
Issuer Account;

e third, an amount equal to the Monthiy Loan Expenses Amount plus, on the series 05-4
termination date, an amount equal {o the principal calculated as payable in accordance with
the axpenses loan agreement will be deposited In the Serles 05-4 Issuer Account;
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fourth, an amount egual to 1/2 of the Series 05-4 Extra Amount will be paid to the MTN
Issuer;

fifth, an amount equal to 12 of the Series 05-4 Extra Amount will be deposited in the Series
05-4 Issuer Account;

sixth, an amount equal to the MTN Issuer additional Interest payments wlll be deposited in
the Serles 05-4 Issuer Account,

The "Serfes 05-4 Issuer Account” Is a bank account in the name of the issuer that will be used to
deposit amounts distributed to the issuer on the series 05-4 medium terrm note certificate from the
MTN lIssuer,

Note coupon ledgers will be established for each ¢lass of notes in the Series 05-4 Issuer Account.
Cn each interest payment date the issuer wilt credit:

to the class A notes coupon ledger an amount equal to the lesser of (1} the amount
deposited in the Series 05-4 Issuer Account and (2) the sum of the Class A Monthly Finance
Amount, the Class A Deficiency Amount and the Class A Additional Finance Amount;

to the class B notes coupon ledger an amount equal to the lesser of, (i) the amount
deposlted in the Series 05-4 Issuer Account minus the amount credited to the class A notes
coupon ledger and (2) the Ctass B Monthly Distribution Amount; and

to the class C notes coupon ledger an amount equal to the lesser of {1) the amount
deposited in the Series 05-4 Issuer Account minus the amount credited te the class A notes
coupon tedger and the class § notes coupon fedger and the Monthly Loan Expenses Amount
and (2) the Class € Monthly Distribution Amount,

In addition, the MTN Issuer will pay any amounts received from the issuer as deferred subscription
price to Barclays Bank PLC pursuant to an agreement between bheneficiaries, to the extent not
required by the MTN Issuer to make other payments on that date.

Before the termination of the swap agreements, on each interest payment date, the issuer will pay:

first, from MTN Issuer additional interest, the costs and expenses of the issuer for the relevant
monthly period wili be paid or reserved for within the issuer;

second, the costs and expenses of the issuer for the relevant monthly period remaining after
the first item will be paid or reserved for within the issuer proportionately to the class A
notes', the class B notes' and the class C notes' share for such payment to be used te pay, or
reserve for, the costs and expenses of the issuer;

third, from the class A notes coupon ledger, the lesser of {1) the amount credited to the class
A notes coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the class A notes’ proportionate share of
the Issuer's costs and (2) other than amounts payable under the twelfth item below, expenses
and the amounts due and payable to the swap counterparty under the class A swap
agreement for the relevant Calculation Period, to the swap counterparty and upon payment to
the issuer by the swap counterparty in exchange therefor, to the holder of the class A nate
(or, 10 the extent that the class A swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced, the
lesser of (i) the spot United States dollar equivalent of (1) above and (ii} the amount due
under the class A note to the holder of the class A note);

fourth, fram the class B notes coupon ledger, the lesser of (1) the amount credited to the
ciass B notes coupon ledger after paying or reserving for the class B notes' proportionate
share of the issuer's costs and (2) other than amounts payable under the thirteenth item
below, the amounts due and payable to the swap counterparty under the class B swap
agreement for the relevant Calculation Pericd, to the swap counterparty and upon payment to
the Issuer by the swap counterparty in exchange therefor, to the holder of the class B note
{or, to the extent the class B swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced, the
lesser of (i) the spot United States dollar equivalent of {1) above and {ii) the amount due
under the Class B note to the holder of the class B note;

fifth tne ‘ecser of the remaining amount on deposil in the Series 05-4 jssuer Account and an
smount gqual [0 the Monthly Loan Expenses Amount will be paid to the lender under the
2xpenses gan agrEE-’-’]E"L

sixth, iraem Te class  -otes coupon ledger, tne lesser of (1) the amount credited to the ciass
C notes coupon lecger after paying or reserving for the class C notes’ proportionate share of
“he ssuer’s costs and (2) other than amounts payable under the fourteenth item below, the
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amounts due and payable to the swap counterparty under the class C swap agreement in
respect of the relevant Calculation Period, to the swap counterparty and upon payment to the
Issuer by the swap counterpariy in exchange therefor ta the holder of the class C nate (or, to
the extent the class € swap agreement has been terminated and not replaced, the lesser of (i)
the spot United States dollar equivalent of (1) above and (ii} the amount due under the Class
C note to the holder of the class C note;

e seventh, the lesser of the remaining amount on deposit in the Series G5-4 Issuer Account and
an amount equal to the principal calculated as payable in accordance with the expenses {oan
agreement will be paid to the lender under the expenses loan agreement;

e eighth, the lesser of the remaining amount on deposit in the Series 03-4 Issuer Account and
an amount egual to '/; of the Series 05-4 Extra Amount, will be paid to the issuer;

e ninth, any amounts due from or required t¢ be provided for by the issuer to meet its
liabilities to any taxation authority;

e tenth, any amounts due to third parties under obligations incurred in the course of the
issuer’s business;

e eleventh, an amount equal to the lesser of the amount on deposii in the Serles 05-4 fssuer
Account and the amount needed to cover any shortfall with respect to the notes caused by
the imposition of withholding taxes on payments made under the series 05-4 medium term
note certfficate or the swap agreements;

e twelfth, the amount equal to any terminatlon payment due and payable tc the swap
counterparty pursuant to the class A swap agreement where the class A swap agreement has
been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty;

o thirteenth, the amount egual to any termination payment due and payable to the swap
counterparty pursuant to the cfass B swap agreement where the class B swap agreement has
been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty;

®»  fourteenth, the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the swap
counterparty pursuant to the class C swap agreement where the class C swap agreement has
been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty; and

e fifteenth, any amounts remaining will constitute deferred subscription price and will be pald
to the MTN Issuer,

Under the terms of each swap agreement, the swap counterparty will pay to the principal paying
agent on each interest payment date an amount equal to the interest on the applicable class of
notes, converted into dollars, subject to the deferral of interest as described in “Terms ond
Conditions of the Notes” and “The Swap Agreements”.

After the termination of the swap agreements, the note trustee will withdraw the amounts on
deposit in the class A notes caupon ledger, the class B notes coupon ledger and the class C notes
coupen ledger and convert those amounts inte dollars at the then prevailing spot exchange rate in
London, England for sterling purchases of dollars and distribute these dollar amounts to the paying
agent toc make payments of interest on the class A notes, the class B notes and the class C notes,
respectively.

On the earlier of {1) the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date and (2) the first distribution date
for the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapid Amortisation Period, and on each distributicn
date after that, the recelvables trustee will transfer the foliowing amounts and deposit them into
the Series 05-4 Distribution Account:

e from the Principal Funding Account, the lesser of {1} the amount in the Principal Funding
Account on that date and (2) the Class A tnvestor Interest; and

% from the Class A Distribution Ledger, the lesser of (1) during the Rapid Amortisation Period,
the amount in the Class A Distribution Ledger or, during the Regulated Amortisation Period,
the Controlled Deposit Amount, and (2) the Class A Investor Interest - after taking into
account the amount distributed from the Principai Funding Account as described above,

On the later to occur of the Class B Principal Commencement Date and the series 05-4 scheduled
redemption date and each distribution date after, the receivables trustee will transfer the following
amounts and deposit them into the Series 05-4 Distribution Account:
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e from the Principal Funding Account, the lesser of {1) the amount on deposit in the Principal
Funding Account in excess of the Class A Investor Interest and (2) the Class B investor
Interest; and

« from the Class B Distribution Ledger, the lesser of the amount on deposit in the Class B
Distribution Ledger and the Class B Investor Interest - after taking into account the amount
distributed from the Principal Funding Account as described above.

On the later to occur of the Class € Principal Commencement Date and the series 05-4 scheduled
redemption date and each distribution date after, the receivables trustee will transfer the following
amounts and deposit thern into the Series 05-4 Distribution Account:

# from the Principal Funding Account, the lesser of (1) the amount on deposit in the Principal
Funding Account in excess of the sum of the Class A Investor interest and the Class B
Investor Interest and {2) the Class C Investor Interest; and

¢ from the Class C Distribution Ledger, the lesser of the amount on deposit in the Class C
Distributlon Ledger and the Class C Investor Interest - after taking Into account the amount
distributec from the Principal Funding Account as described above.

The MTN tssuer will credit the amount received for each class of Investor Interest to the MTN
ssuer Princlpal Ledger.

On the earlier of (1) the serles 05-4 scheduled redemption date and (2) the first distribution date
for the Regulated Amartisation Period ar the Rapid Amaortisation Period, and each distribution date
after, the MTN Issuer will transfer for same day value from the Series 05-4 Distribution Account
the amount in the MTN Issuer Principal Ledger and deposit It into the Serles 05-4 tssuer Account.

The issuer will credit each amount received from the MTN Issuer Principal Ledger to the
appropriate notes principal ledger.

Before the termination of the swap agreements, on the earlier of (1) the Series 05-4 scheduled
redemption date and (2) the first interest payment date for the Regulated Amortisation Period or
the Rapld Amortisation Period, and each interest payment date after, the Issuer will pay:

& from the class A notes principal ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of {1) the amount In
the class A notes principal tedger; and (2) the sterling equivalent of the principal due on the
class A notes, to the swap counterparty;

e from the class B notes principal ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of {1) the amount in
the class B notes principal ledger and (2) the stering equivalent of the principal due on the
class B notes, to the swap counterparty; and

e from the class C notes principal ledger, an amount equal to the lesser of (1] the amount in
the ctass C notes principal ledger and (2) the sterling equivalent of the principal due on the
class C notes, to the swap counterparty.

The swap counterparty will pay to the principal paying agent, in dollars, principal for distribution
to the noteholders converted into dollars, at the fixed exchange rate.

After the termination of the swap agreements. the note trustee will withdraw the amounts on
deposit in the class A notes principal ledger, the class B notes principal ledger and the class C
notes principal ledger and, to the extent necessary, the amounts on deposit in the Series 05-4
Issuer Account representing MTN Issuer additional interest payments and convert those amounts
into dollars at the then prevailing spot exchange rate in London, England for sterling purchases of
doltars and distribute those doflar amounts 1o the paying agent to make payments of principal first
on the class A notes, then the ctass B notes and finally the class C notes.

&




;

The Trust Deed

The principal agreement governing the nctes will be the trust deed. The trust deed has five
primary functions:

e |t constitutes the notes;
e it 5ets out the covenants of the issuer in relation to the netes;
& it sets out the enforcement and post-enforcement procedures relating to the notes;

® it contains provisions necessary to comply with the US. Trust Indenture Act of 1939 — which
we will call the Trust Indenture Act; and

e it sets out the appolntment, powers and responsibllities of the note trustee.
£ach functlon is summarised below.

The trust deed sets out the form of the notes. It 2lso sets out the terms and conditions of the
nates, and the conditicns for the issue of Individual note certificates and/or the cancellation of any

. notes. It stipulates that the paying agents, the registrar, the transfer agents and the agent bank will
be appointed. The detailed provisions regulating these appointments are contalned in the paying
agency and agent bank agreement.

The trust deed alse contains covenants made by the issuer In favour of the note trustee and the
noteholders. The main covenants are that the issuer will pay Interest and repay principal on each
of the notes when due. Covenants are Included to ensure that the issuer remains insolvency
remote, and to give the note trustee access to all information and reports that it may need in
order to discharge its responsibilities in relation to the noteholders. Some of the covenants also
appear [n the terms and conditions of the nctes, see "Terms and Conditions of the Notes'. The
issuer also covenants that it will do all things necessary to maintain the listing of the notes on the
Officlal List of the UK Listing Authority and admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange
and to keep in place a registrar, a transfer agent, a paying agent and an agent bank.

The trust deed sets out the general procedures by which the note trustee may take steps to
enforce the security created by the issuer in the deed of charge so that the note trustee can
protect the interests of the noteholders in accordance with the terms and conditions. The trust
deed gives the note trustee a general discretion to enforce the security. but alse provides for
meetings of the noteholders at which the noteholders can determine the action taken by the note
trustee In relation to the enforcement of the notes. The trust deed provides that the class A
noteholders' interests take precedence for 5o fong as the class A notes are outstanding, and after
that. the interests of the class B noteholders take precedence over the Interests of class C
noteholders, until no more class B netes remain outstanding. Certain basic terms of each class of
notes may not be amended without the consent of the majority of the hotders of that class of
note. This is described further in the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes™.

The trust deed alsc sets out the priority in which the note trustee will pay out any monies that It
receives under the notes after the security has been enforced. This is also set out in the deed of
charge and the priority of payments is summarised in the terms and conditions of the notes.

The trust deed also sets out the terms on which the ncte trustee is appointed, the indemnification
of the note trustee, the payment it receives and the extent of the note trustee's authority to act

beyond Its statutory powers under English Law. The note trustee is also given the ability to appoint
a delegate or agent in the execution of any of its duties under the trust deed. The trust deed also
sets gut the circurnstances in which the note trustee may resign or retire,

Finally, the trust deed includes certain provisions mandated by the Trust Indenture Act. Generally,
these provisions outline the duties, rights and responsibilities of the nate trustee and the Issuer and
the rights of the notehiolders. Specifically these include, but are not limited to:

e the maintenance of a noteholder list by the note trustee;
e the provision of financial statements and other information by the issuer to the note trustee;

®  the duty of the note trustee to use the same degree of care in exercising its responsibilities as
would be exercised by a prudent person conducting its own affairs;

e  ihe duty of the note trustee to notify all noteholders of any events of defaull of which it has
actual knowledge; and
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® the right of the note trustee to resign at any time by notifying the issuer in writing, and the
abllity of the issuer to remove the note trustee under certain circumstances.

The trust deed contalns a provision that, if any other provision of the trust deed limits, quailfies or
conflicts with another provision that is reguired to be included in the trust deed by, and is not
subject to contractual walver under, the Trust Indenture Act, the Trust Indenture Act provision will
prevail.

The terms of the trust deed supersede the provisions of the Trustee Act 2000 of England and
Wales,

The trust deed is governed by English Law.




The Notes

The issue of the notes will be authorised by a resolution of the board of directors of the issuer
passed prior to the closing date. The notes witl be constituted by a trust deed to be dated the
closing date befween the issuer and the note trustee as trustee for, among others, the hoiders for
the time being of the notes. The trust deed includes provisions which enable it to be modified or
supplemented and any reference to the trust deed is a reference also to the document as modified
or supplemented In accordance with its terms.

The material terms of the notes are described in this prospectus. However, the statements set out
in this section with regara to the notes and the global note certificates representing the notes are
subject to the detailed provisions of the trust deed. The trust deed will include the forms of the
global note certificates and the forms of the individual note certificates, A paying agent and agent
bank agreement between the issuer, the note trustee, The Bank of New York In London as
"principal paying agent”, the other paying agents - together with the principal paying agent, called
the “paying agents” - the transfer agent, the registrar and the agent bank, reguiates how
payments will be made on the notes and how determinations and notifications will be made. It will
be dated as of the closing date and the parties will include, on an ongoing basis, any successor
party appeinted in accordance with its terms.

Each class of notes will be represented initially by a global note certificate in registered form. The
notes will initially be offered and scid pursuant to a registration statement, of which this
prospectus forms a part, filed with the United Siates Securities and Exchange Commission. The
global note certlficates representing the notes offered by this prospectus - called the “global note
certificates” - will be deposited with The Bank of New York in MNew York, as the depository for,
and registered In the name of, Cede & Co. as nominee of, The Depository Trust Company, referred
to in this prospectus as, “DTC”. On confirmation from the depository that it holds the global note
certificates, DTC will record book-entry interests in the beneficial owner's account or the
participant account through which the beneficial owner holds its interests in the notes. These book-
entry interests will represent the beneficial owner's or participant’s beneficial interest in the
relevant glabal note certificates,

The ampunt of nptes represented by each global note certificate is evidenced by the register
maintained for that purpose by the registrar. Together, the notes represented by the global note
certificates and any outstanding individual note certificates will equal the aggregate principal
amount of the notes outstanding at any time. However, except as described under "- Individual
Note Certificates”, individual note certlficates will not be issued.

Beneficial owners may hold their interests in the global note tertificates only through DTC,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Eurcclear, as applicable, or indirectly through organisations that are
participants in any of those systems. Ownership of these beneficial interests in a global note
certificate will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through,
records maintained by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear (with respect to interests of
their participants) and the records of their participants {with respect to interests of persons other
than their participants). By contrast, ownership of direct interests in 2 global note certificate will be
shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected through, the register maintained by
the registrar. Because of this holding structure of the notes, beneficial owners of notes may look
only to DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Eurcclear, as applicable, or their respective participants
for their beneficlat entitlement to those notes. The issuer expects that DTC, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Euroclear will take any action permitted to be taken by a beneficial owner of notes
only at the direction of ane or more participants to whose account the interests in a global note
certificate is credited and only in respect of that portion of the aggregate principal amount of
notes as to which that participant or those participants has or have given that direction.

Beneficial owners will be entitled to the benefit of, will be bound by and wilt be deemed to have
notice of, all the provisions of the trust deed and the paying agent and agent bank agreement.
Beneficial owners can see copies of these agreements at the principal office for the time being of
the note trustee, which s, as of the date of this document, The Bank of New York in London and
at the specified office for the time being of each of the paying agents. Pursuant to its obligations
under the Listing Ruies made by the UK Listing Authority, the issuer will maintain a paying agent
in the United Kingdom until the date on which the notes are finally redeemed.
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Payment

Principal and Interest payments on the notes will be made via the paying agents to DTC or Is
nominee, as the registered holder of the offered global note certificates, DTC's practice Is to credit
its participants’ accounts on the applicable payment date according to thelr respective holdings
shown on DTC's records unless DTC has reason to beileve that it will not receive payment on that
payment date.

Payments by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear participants to the beneficial owners of
notes wili be governed by standing Instructions, customary practice, and any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time, as is now the case with securities
hetd Gy the accounts of customers registered in street name. These payments wilt be the
responsibility of the DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear participant and not of DTC,
Clearstream, Luxembourg, furoclear, any paying agent, the note trustee or the Issuer. None of the
issuer, the note trustee, any underwriter nor any paying agent will have the responsibility or
liability for any aspect of the records of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear relating to or
payments made by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear on account of beneficial interests in
the global note certificates or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records of DTC
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear relating to those beneficial interests.

Clearance and Settlement
The Clearing Systems
DTC. DTC has advised us and the underwriters that it intends to follow the following procedures:

DTC will act as securities depository for the global note certificates. The notes represented by the
global note certificates will be issued as securities registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTCs
nominee.

DTC has advised us that it is a

»  limited-purpose trust company organized under New York Banking Law:

banking organisation within the meaning of New York Banking Law;

member of the Federal Revenue System;

clearing corporation within the meaning of the New Yerk Uniform Commercial Code; and

clearing agency registered under the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act.

DTC holds securltles for its participants and facilltates the clearance and settlement ariong its
participants of securities transactions, including transfers and pledges, in depaosited securities
through electronic bock-entry changes in its participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. DTC participants inctude securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and other organisations. Indirect access to DTC
system is also available to others including securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust
companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a particlpant, either directly
or indirectly. The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the SEC.

Transfers between participants on the DTC system will occur under DTC rules, Transfers between
participants on the Clearstream, Luxembourg system and participants in the Euroclear system will
occur under their rules and operating procedures.

Purchases of notes under the DTC system must be made by or through DTC participants, which
will receive a credit for the note on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual beneficial
owner is in turn to be recorded on the DTC participants’ and indirect participants’ records.
Beneficial owners wil not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. However,
beneficial owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction,
as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the DTC participant or indirect particlpant
through which the beneficial owner entered into the transaction. Transfer of ownership interests in
the offerec rotes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of DTC participants acting
o beaz of beneficial owners. Beneficial owners will not receive certificates representing their
Jwners=ic nierest 1 notes unless use of the book-entry system for the notes described in this
saotion & ooiscantinued.

ent transiers, ail giobal note certificates ceposited with DTC are registered in
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knowledge of the ultimate beneficial owners of the notes, DTC's records reflect only the identity of
the DTC participants to whose accounts the beneficial interests are credited, which may or may not
be the actual beneficial owners of the notes. The DTC participants will remain responsible for
keeping account of thelr holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to DTC participants, by DTC participants
to indirect participants, and by DTC particlpants and indirect participants to beneficial owners wiil
be governed by arrangements among them and by any statutory or regulatory requirements in
effect from time to time.

Redemption notices for the notes represented by the global note certificates will be sent to DFC. If
tess than all of those notes are being redeemed by investors, DTC's practice is to determine by fot
the amount of the interest of each participant in those notes to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. wlll consent or vote with respect to the notes. Under Its usual
procedures, DTC will mail an omnibus proxy to the issuer as soon as possible after the recerd date,
which assigns the consenting or voting rights of Cede & Co. to those DTC participants to whose
accounts the book-entry interests are credited on the record date, identified In a list attached to
the proxy,

The issuer understands that under existing industry practices, when the issuer requests any action
of noteholders or when a beneficial owner desires to give or take any action which a notehalder is
entitled to give or take under the trust deed, DTC generatly wilt give or take that action, or
authorize the relevant participants to give or take that action, and those participants would
authorize beneficial owners pwning through those participants to give or take that action or would
otherwise act upon the instructions of beneficial owners through them,

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained
from sources that the issuer befieves to be reliable, but the issuer takes no responsibility for the
accuracy thereof.

Clearstreamn, Luxembourg ond Eurocfear. Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear each hold
securities for their participating organisations and facilitate the clearance and seftlerment of
securities transactions between their respective participants thraugh electronic book-entry changes
In accounts of those participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities.
CQlearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear provide various services Including sakekeeping,
administration, clearance and settlement of Internationally traded securities and securities lending
and borrowing. Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear also deal with domestic securities markets
In several countries through established deposliory and custodial relationships. Clearstreans,
Luxembourg and Euroclear have established an electronic bridge between their two systems across
which their respective participants may settle trades with each other. Transactions may be settled
in Clearstream, Luxembourg and Eurotlear in any of numerous currencies, including Unlted States
dollars.

Clearstream, Luxembourg is incorporated under the laws of Luxembourgy as a professional
depository, Clearstream, Luxembourg participants are fnancial institutions around the world,
Including underwriters, securitles brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and cdlearing
corporations, Indirect access to Clearstream, Luxembourg s also available to others, Including
banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear threugh or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Clearstream, Luxembourg participant, elther directly or indirectly,

The Eurcclear system was created in 1968 to hold securities for its participants and to clear and
settle transactions between Euroclear participants through simultzneous electronic baok-entry
delivery against payment. The Euroclear system is operated by Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., called the
"Eurociear operator”. All operations are conducted by the Euroclear operator. All Euroclear
securities clearance accounts and Euroclear cash accounts are accounts with the Eurociear operator,

Euroclear participants include banks - including central banks — securities brokers and dealers and
other professtonal financiai intermediaries. Indirect access to the Euroclear system is also available
to other firms that maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear participant, either directly or
indirectly,

Securities clearance accounts and cash accounts with the Euroclear operator are governed by the
Terms and Conditions Governing use of Euroclear and the related Opersting Procedures of the
Euroclear system. These terms and conditions govern transfers of securities and cash within the
Euroclear system, withdrawal of securities and cash from the Euroctear system, and receipts of
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payments for securities Iin the Euroclear system. All securities in the Euroclear system are held on a
fungible basis without attribution of specific certificates to specific securities clearance accounts.
The Euroclear operator acts under these terms and conditions only on behalf of Euroclear
participants and has no record of or relationship with persons holding through Eurociear
participanis.

As the holders of book-entry interests, beneficial owners will not have the right under the trust
deed to act on solicitations by the issuer for action by noteholders. Beneficial owners will only be
able to act to the extent they receive the appropriate proxies to do so from DTC, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or turoclear or, if applicable, their respective participants, No assurances are made
about these procedures or thelr adequacy for ensuring timely exercise of remedies under the trust
deed.

Mo beneficial owner of an interest in a note represented by a global note certificate will be able to
transfer that interest except in accordance with applicable procedures, in addition to those
provided for under the trust deed. of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euvroclear, as applicable.
The laws of some jurisdictions requlre that some purchasers of securitfes take physical delivery of
those securities in definitive form. These laws and fimitations may impair the ability to transfer
beneficial interests In a note represented by a global note certificate,

Clearance and Settlement

initial Settlement

The global note certificates will be delivered on the closing date to The Bank of New York in New
vork, as depesitory for DTC. Customary settlement procedures will be followed for participants of
each system on the closing date. Notes will be credited to investors' securities accounts on the
closing date against payment in same-day funds.

Secondary Troding

Secondary market sales of book-entry interests in notes between DTC participants will occur in the
ordinary way in accerdance with DTC rules and will be settled using the procedures applicable to
conventional United States corporate debt obligations.

Although DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have agreed to these procedures to
facilitate transfers of interests in securities among participants of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg
and Eurcclear, they are not obliged to perform these procedures. Additionally, these procedures
may be discontinued at any time. None of the issuer, any agent, the underwriters or any affiliate of
any of the foregoing, or any person by whom any of the foregecing is controlied for the purposes
of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) will have any
responsibility for the performance by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear or their respective
direct or indirect participants or accountholders of their respective obligations under the rules and
procedures governing their cperations or for the sufficiency for any purpose of the arrangements
described in this prospectus.

Individual Note Certificates

Beneficial owners of notes will only be entitled to receive individual note certificates if the notes
become Immediately due and repayable by reason of an event of default or DTC notifies the issuer
that it is unwilling or unable to hold the global note certificates or s unwilling or unable to
continue as, or has ceased to be, a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and, in each
case, the issuer cannot appoint a successor within 50 days of such netification.

In no event will individual note certificates in bearer form be issued. Any individual note certificate
will be issued in registered form in minimum denominations of $1,000. Any individual note
certificates will be registered in that name or those names as the registrar shail be instructed by
DTC, Clearstream, Luxembeurg and Euroclear, as applicable. It is expected that these instructions
will be based upon directions received by DTC. Jlearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear from their
participants reflecting the ownersnip of book-entry interests. To the extent permitted by law, the
issuer, the ncte trustes and <-~v Daying agent shall be entitled to treat the person in whose names
zny indiv Gui rote cetfoate s -sgusiered as ine absolute owner thereof, The paying agent and
agent bank agreement containg provisions relating to the maintenance by a registrar of a register
-eflecting ownership of the nciez and other provisions customary for a registered debt security.

.
LS




Any person receiving individual note certificates will not be obligated to pay or otherwise bear the
cost of any transfer tax or governmental charge or any cost or expense relating to insurance,
postage, transportation or any similar charge in connection with the delivery of such individual
note certificates, which will be solely the responsibility of the issuer. No service charge will be
made for any registration of transfer or exchange of any individual note certificates.
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Terms And Conditions Of The Notes

The material terms of the notes are described in the body of the prospectus. The following is a

summary of the material terms and conditions of the notes, and is numbered 1 to 16 This

summary ¢oes not need to be read with the terms and condltions of the notes in order to learn all
the material terms and conditions of the notes.

The notes are the subject of the following documents:

& atrust deed dated the closing date between the Issuer and the note trusteg;

e 2 paying agency and agent bark agreement dated the closing date among the issuer, the
reglstrar, the principal paying agent and the agent bank, the other paying agents. the transfer
agent and the note trustee;

e a deed of charge dated the closing date among the lender under the expenses loan
agreement, the issuer, the swap counterparty and the note trustee; and

e the class A swap agreement. the class B swap agreement and the class C swap agreement,
each between the issuer and the swap counterparty.

when we refer lo the parties 1o the documents listed above, the reference includes any successor

to that party validly appointed.

initially the parties will be as follows:

e  Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 11} PLC as issuer;

®  The Bank of New York as principal paying agent and agent bank, registrar, transfer agent and
note trustee; and

L] Barclays Bank PLC as lender under the expenses loan agreement and swap counterparty.

You are bound by and deemed to have notice of all of the provislons of the trust deed, the paying

agency and agent bank agreement, the deed of charge, the expenses toan agreement and the swap

agreements, which are applicable to yol. You can view drafts of those documents at the principal
place of business of the note trustee or the specified office of any of the paying agents.

1. Form, Denomination, Title and Transfer

(1) The notes are in gtobal registered form. Transfers and exchanges of beneficial interests in
notes represented by global note certificates are made In accordance with the rules and
procedures of DTC. Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable. The notes are being
offered in minimum denominations of $100.000.

(2) Clobal note certificates will be exchanged for individual note certificates in definitive
registered form only under certain limited circumstances. If individual note certificates are
Issued, they will be serlally numbered and issued In an aggregate principal amount equal to
the principal amount cutstanding of the relevant global note certificates and in registered
form only.

(3) The registrar will maintain a register in respect of the notes in accardance with the provisions
of the paying agent and agent bank agreement. References In this section to a "holder” of a
note means the person in whose name such note is for the time being registered in the
register — or, in the case of a joint holding, the first named - and “nateholder” will be
construed accordingly. A “note certificate” will be Issued Lo each noteholder for Its registered
holding. Each note certificare wifl be numbered serially with an identifying number which will
be recorded in the register. .

(4) The registered owner of each note will - except as otherwise required by law - be treated as
the absolute owner of such note for all purposes. This will be true whether or not it is
overdue and regardless of any notlce of ownership, trust or any other interest thereln, any
writing on the note certificate — other than the endorsed form of transfer - or any notice of
any greviods .oss or theft of the note certificate — and no other person will be liable for so
egung (he ragisterag swner

13} Subject o e orovisions begw. @ Note may De transferred upon surrender of the relevant
note certificats. with the endorsed form of transfer duly completed, at the offices of the
registzar or any transfer agent specified in the paying agent and agent bank agreement,
together with suchi evidence as the registrar or transfer agent may reasonabiy require to
orove the titfe of the transferor and the authority of the individuals who have executed the
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(10)

1)

a2

(13)

2.

form of transfer. A note may not be transferred. however, unless the principal amount of
notes transferred and - where not all of the notes held by a holder are being transferred -
the principal amount of the balance of notes not transferred are authorised holdings.
“"Authorised holdings” means holdings of at least $100,000. Where not all the notes
represented by the surrendered note certificate are the subject of the transfer, a new note
certificate In respect of the balance of the notes will be issued to the transferor.

Within five business days of surrender of a note certificate, the registrar will register the
transfer in guestion and deliver a new note certificate of a like principal amount to the notes
transferred to each relevant holder at its office or the office of any transfer agent specified in
the paying agent and agent bank agreement or, at the request and risk of any such relevant
holder, by uninsured first ciass maii — and by airmail if the holder is overseas - te the address
specified for the purpose by which commercial banks are open for business, including dealings
in foreign currencies, in the city where the reqistrar or the relevant transfer agent has its
specified office.

The transfer of & note will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the issuer, the
registrar or any transfer agent but against such indemnity as the registrar or transfer agent
may require for any tax or other duty of any nature that may be levied or imposed in
connection with the transfer.

All payments on the notes are subject to any applicable fiscal or other laws and reguiations.
Noteholders will not be charged commissions or expenses on these payments.

If the due date for payment of any amount on the notes is not a business day in the place it
is presented, notehclders will not be entitled to payment of the amount due in that place
untii the next business day in that place and noteholders will not be entitled to any further
interest or other payment as a resuit of that delay.

If a noteholder hoids individual note certificates, payments of principal and interest - except
in the case of a final payment that pays off the entire principal on the note ~ wifl be made by
LS. dollar check and mailed to the noteholder at the address shown in the register. in the
case of Anal redemption, payment will be made only when the note certificate is surrendered.
If the noteholder makes an application tc the registrar, payments can instead be made by
transfer to a bank account,

If payment of principal on a note is improperly withheld or refused, the interest that
continues to accrue will still be payable as usual.

The issuer can, at any time, vary or terminate the appointment of any paying agent and can
appoint successor or additional paying agents, registrars or transfer agents, If the issuer does
this it must ensure that it malntains a paying agent in London, a paying agent in New York
and a registrar. The issuer will ensure that at least 30 days' notice of any change in the
paying agents, the registrar or the transfer agent or their specified offices is given to
noteholders in accordance with condition number 14,

Subject as described earlier about the deferral of interest, if payment of interest on a note is
not paid for any other reason when due and payable, the unpaid interest will itself bear
interest at the applicable rate untif both the unpaid interest and the interest on that interest
are paid.

Status

Payments on the notes will be made equally amongst all notes of the same class,

3.

Security and Swap Agreement

The security for the payment of amounts due under your notes, together with the expenses which
validly arise during the transaction, is created by the deed of charge and the pledge agreement.
The security is created in favour of the note trustee who will hold it on your behalf and on the
behalf of other secured creditors of the issuer. The security consists of the following:

m

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer's right, titte and interest in and to
the series 05-4 medium term note certificate to the extent not pledged in (6) below;
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5

(6

a charge by way of first fixed sub-charge of all of the issuer’s right, title and interest in the
securlty interest created by the MTN Issuer in favour of the security trustee In respect of the
serles 05-4 medlum term note certificate;

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer's right, title, interest and benefit in
and to the issuer related documnents except the trust deed and the deed of charge;

an assignment by way of first fixed security of the issuer’s right, title, interest and benefit in
and to all monies credited to the Series 05-4 Issuer Account or to any bank or other account
in which the issuer may at any time have any right, title, interest or benefit;

a first floating charge over the Issuer's business and assets not charged under {1), (2), (3} or
{4) above or pledged under the pledge referred to in (6) below; and

a pledge over the series 05-4 medium term ncte certificate pursuant to a pledge agreement
between the Issuer and the note trustee.

The security is described in detail in the deed of charge and the pledge agreement.

The deed of charge sets out how money is distributed between the secured parties if the security
is enforced. The order of priority it sets out is as follows:

m

o))

3)

()

(6

7
(8)

(9}

{16}
an

(12)

(i3

(14)

in no order of priority between them but in proportion to the respective amounts due, to pay
fees which are due to a2ny recelver appointed under the deed of charge and all amounts due
for legal fees and other costs, ¢harges, liabilities, expenses, losses, damages, proceedings,
claims and demands which have been incurred by the note trustee under the issuer related
documents and/or in enforcing or perfecting title 1o the security together with interest due
on these amounts;

towards payment of amounts due and unpaid on the class A notes, io interest then to
principal after, subject to the eleventh itern below, having paid any amounts due to the swap
counterparty under the terms of the class A swap agreement;

towards payment of amounts due and unpald on the class B notes, to interest then to
principal after, subject to the twelfth item below, having paid any amounts due to the swap
counterparty under the terms of class B swap agreement;

towards payment of amounts of interest due and unpaid under the terms of the expenses
lpan agreement;

towards payment of amounts due and unpai¢ on the class C notes, to Interest then to
principal after, subject to the thirteenth item below, having paid any amounts due to the
swap counterparty under the terms of the class C swap agreement;

after the notes have been paid In full, towards payment of amounts of principal due and
unpald under the terms of the expenses loan agreement;

towards payment of any sums that the issuer must pay to any tax authority;

towards payment of any sums due to third parties under obligations inturred in the course of
the issuer's business;

towards payment of the deferred subscription price in respect of the series 05-4 medium
term note certificate;

towards payment of any dividends due and unpaid to shareholders of the issuer;

towards payment of the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the class A swap agreement, where the class A swap
agreement has been terminated as a resuft of a default by the swap counterparty;

towards payment of the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the class B swap agreement where the class B swap agreement
has been terminzted as a result of a default by the swap counterpariy;

towards payment of the amount equal to any termination payment due and payable to the
swap counterparty pursuant to the class C swap agreement where the class C swap agreement
has been terminated as a result of a default by the swap counterparty; and

In payment of the balance, if any, to the liguidator of the issuer.
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The security becomes enforceable when an event of default occurs, These events are described in
condition number 9 below. If an event of default occurs, the redemption of notes wilt not
necessarlly be accelerated as described in condition number 6 below.

The issuer will enter into three swap agreements, the material terms of which are described under
the heading "The Swap Agreements” in this prospectus.

4. Negative Covenants of the Issuer
If any note is outstanding, the issuer will not, uniess it is permitted by the terms of the issuer
related documents or by the written consent of the note trustee:

e create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other security interest,
Including anything which amounts to any of these things under the laws of any jurisdiction,
on the whole or any part of its present or future business, assets or revenues. including
uncalled capital;

® carry on any business other than relating to the issue of the notes, as described in this
prospectus; in carrying on that business, the issuer will not engage in any activity or do
anything at all except:

(1) preserve, exerclse or enforce any of Iis rights and perform and observe its cbligations
under the notes, the deed of charge, the paying agency and agent bank agreement, the
trust deed, the expenses Toan agreement, each swap agreement, the series 05-4 medium
term nate certificate and the related purpese trust, the corporate services agreement, the
underwriting agreement. the bank agreement and any bank mandate regarding the
Series 05-4 Issuer Account — collectively called the “issuer related documents™.

(2) use, invest or dispose of any of its property or assets fn the manner provided in or
contemplated by the issuer related documents; or

{3) perform any act incidental to or necessary fn connection with {1) or (2) above,

@ have any subsidiaries, subsidiary business, business of any other kind, employees, premises or
interests in bank accounts other than the Series 05-4 lssuer Account unless the account is
charged to the note trustee on acceptable terms;

&  have any indebtedness, other than indebtedness permitted under the terms of its articles of
assoctation or any of the Issuer related documents;

& give any guarantee or indemnity for any obligation of any person;

®  repurchase any shares of its capital stock or declare or pay any dividend or other distributions
to its shareholders;

& consolidate with or merge with or Inte any person or liquidate or dissolve on a voluntary
basis;

be a member of any group of companies for the purposes of value added tax;

® waive or consent to the medification or waiver of any of the provisions of the issuer related
documents without the prior written consent of the note trustee; or

a  offer to surrender to any company any amounts which are available for surrender by way of
group rellef,

5. Interest
Each note will bear interest on its principal amount outstanding from, and including, the closing
date. Interest on the notes is payable in arrear in US. dollars on each interest payment date.

If there is a shortfall between the amounts received by the issuer from the swap counterparty or
otherwise and the amount of interest due on any class of notes con that interest payment date, that
shortfall will be borne by each nete in that class in a proportion equal to the proportion that the
interest outstanding on the relevant note bears to the total amount of interest outstanding on all
the notes of that class. This will be determined on the interest payment date on which the shortfall
arises, Payment of the shortfall will be deferred and will be due on the next interest payment date
cn which funds are available to the issuer, or. if eartier, the 15 November 2010 interest payrnent
date, from payments made to it from the swap counterparty or otherwise on that interest payment
date, to make the payment The shortfall will accrue interest at the rate described for each class of
note below plus a margin of 2.0 per cent, per annum, and payment of that interest will also be
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deferred and will be due on the next Interest payment date on which funds are available to the
issuer to make the payment cr, if earlier, on the 15 November 2010 interest payment date.

tach period beginning on, and Including, the ciesing date or any interest payment date and ending
on, but excluding, the next interest payment date is called an interest period. The first interest
payment for the notes will be made on 17 lanuary 2006 for the interest period from and including
the closing date to but excluding 17 January 2006.

Interest will stop accruing on any part of the principal amount outstanding of a note from the date
it is due to redeem unless payment of principal Is improperly withheld or refused. If this happens it
will continue to bear interest in accordance with this condition, both before and after any
judgment is given, until whichever is the earlier of the following:

e the day on which all sums due in respect of that note, up to that day, are received by or on
behatf of the relevant nateholder; and

e the day which is seven days after the principal paying agent or the note trustee has notified
the relevant class of noteholders, in accordance with condition number 14, that it has
received all sums due in respect of the relevant class of notes up to that day, except to the
extent that there is any subsequent default in payment.

The rate of interest applicable to the notes for each Interest period will be determined by the

agent bank on the following basis:

(1) ©On the quolation date for each class of note, the agent bank will determine the offered
quotation to leading banks in the London interbank market for one-month US. dollar deposits
or, in the case of the first interest period, the linear interpolaiion of cne-month and two-
month U.S. dollar deposits.

This will be determined by reference to the British Bankers Associatlon LIBOR Rates display as
guoted on the Moneyline Telerate Service display page designated 3730. If the display page
designated 3750 stops providing these quotations, the replacement service for the purposes of
displaying this information will be used. If the replacement service stops displaying the
information, any page showing this information will be used. If there is more than one service
displaying the information. the one previously approved in writing by the note trustee will be
used;

In each case above, the determination will be made as at or about 11.00 am., London time,
on that date, These are called the screen rates for the respective classes.

A "quotation date” means the second business day before the first day of an Interest pericd.
(2) if, on any quotation date, the screen rate is unavailable, the agent bank will:

e request the principal London office of each of four majer banks - called “reference
banks” - in the Londorn interbank rarket selected by the agent bank t0 provide the
agent bank with its offered quotation to leading banks of the equivalent of the screen
rate on that guotation date in an amount that represents a single transaction in that
market at that time: and

e calculate the arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places, of those
quatations;

(3) if on any quotation date the screen rate is unavailable and only two or three of the reference

banks provide offered quotations, the rate of interest for that interest period will be the
arithmetic mean of the quotations as last calculated in (2) above; and

{4} if fewer than two reference banks provide quotations, the agent bank will determine the
arithmetic mean, rounded upwards to four decimal places of the rates quoted by major banks
in London, selected by the agent bank at approximately 11.00 am. London time on the
refevant guotation date, to leading banks for a period equal to the relevant interest period
and in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in that market at that time,
for loans in LS. dollars.

The rate of interest for each interest period for the class A notes will be the sum of:
e (.01 per cent. per annum; and

& the screen rate or the arithmetic mean cajcuizted to replace the screen rate.
The rate of interest for gach interest period for the class 8 notes will be the sum of:
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e« 0,15 per cent. per annurm; and
e the screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the screen rate,
The rate of interest for each interest period for the class C notes will be the sum of:

& 0.28 per cent. per annum; and
s the screen rate or the arithmetic mean calculated to replace the screen rate.

if the agent bank is unable to determine the screen rate or an arithmetic mean to replace it. as
described in (2), (3) and {4} the rates of interest for any interest period will be as follows:

e for the ctass A notes the rate will be the sum of Q.01 per cent. per annum and the screen
rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the class A notes:

e for the class B notes the rate will be the sum of 0.15 per cent. per annum and the screen
rate or arithmetic mean last determined for the class B notes; and

e for the class C notes the rate will be the sum of 0.28 per cent per annum and the screen
rate or arithretic mean last determined for the class C notes.

The agent bank will, a5 soon as it can after the quotation date for each interest period, calculate
the amount of interest payable on each note for that interest period. The amount of interest wil!
be calculated by applying the rate of interest for that interest period to the principal amount
outstanding of that note during that interest pericd, multiplying the product by the actual number
of days in that interest period divided by 360 and rounding to the nearest U.S. dollars 0.01, half a
cent being rounded upwards.

On each interest payment date, the agent bank will determine the actual amount of interest which
will be paid on the notes on that interest payment date and the amount of any shortfail on the
notes for that interest period and the amount of interest on any shortfalf which will be paid on
that irterest payment date. The amount of any interest on the shortfall will be calculated by
applying the relevant rate of Interest for those notes plus a margin of 2.0 per cent. per annum, to
the sum of the shortfall and accrued Interest en shortfall from prior interest periods which remaing
unpaid, multiplying by the actual number of days n the relevant iInterest period and dividing by
360 and rounding the nearest U.S. dollars 0.01, half a cent belng rounded upwards.

If, on any interest payment date. the amount avaliable to the issuer, from the swap counterparty is
insufficlent (through shortfall in the amounts available from the series 03-4 medium term note
certificate or otherwise) to pay In full the amount of interest due on a class of notes, any
outstanding shortfall and accrued interest on shortfall, due on that interest payment date, that
amount will be applled first to the payment of the interest due on that class of notes, secondly to
the payment of any outstanding shortfali and thereafter to the payment of any accrued interest on
shortfall for that class of notes.

The rates and amounts determined by the agent bank will be notified to the issuer, trustee and
paying agent and published In accordance with condition number 14 as soon as possible after
these parties have been notified.

The issuer, the paying agents, the note trustee, the reference banks, the agent bank and the
noteholders will be bound by the determinations property made as described above and none of
the reference banks. the agent bank or the note trustee will be liable in connection with the
exercise or non-exercise by them of their powers, duties and discretions for those purposes.

If the agent Bank fails to make a determination or calculation required as described above, the
note trustee, or its appointed agent, without accepting any liability for it, will make the
determination or calcutation as described above. If this happens, the determination or calculation
will be deemed 10 have been made by the agent bank.

The issuer will ensure that there will be four reference banks while there are notes outstanding.

6. Redemption and Purchase
The issuer Is only entitled to redeem the noles as provided in paragraphs (1), (2). (3) ang (4)
below.
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(1) Scheduled Redemption

Class A notes:

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or Rapid
Amortisation Period has already started, all class A notes will be redeemed on the series 05-4
scheduled redemption date, unless there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-4 Issuer
Account and the total amount payable to the swap counterparty under the class A swap
agreement. if there is such a shortfall, the class A notes will be redeemed proportionately with the
amount in the Series 05-4 kssuer Account after being exchanged under the terms of the class A
swap agreement. The Rapid¢ Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made in ro
order of preference and proportionately between alf class A notes.

Class B notes:

Untess previously purchased and cancelled or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amortisation Period has afready started, the class B notes wili be redeemed on the series
05-4 scheduled redemption date unfess there is a shortfall between the amount in the Series 05-4
lssuer Account, after payment of all interest and principal due and payable on the class A notes,
and the amount due and payable to the swap counterparty under the class B swap agreement. If
there is such a shortfall, the class B notes will be redeemed propaortlonately with the amount in the
Series 05-4 Issuer Account after being exchanged under the terms of the class B swap agreement.
The Rapld Amortisation Period will then begin. The payments will be made, in no order of
preference and proportionatety between all class B notes.

Class C notes:

Unfess previously purchased and cancelied or unless the Regulated Amortisation Period or the
Rapid Amortisation Period has already started, the class C notes wiil be redeemed on the series
05-4 scheduled redemption date untess there Is a shortfall between the amount In the Serles (5-4
Issuer Account, after payment of all interest and principal due and payable on the class A notes
and the class B notes, and the amount due and payable to the swap counterparty under the class C
swap agreement. If there is such a shortfall, the class C notes will be redeemed properticnately
with the amount in the Series 05-4 Issuer Account after being exchanged under the terms of the
class C swap agreement. The Rapid Amortisation Period wiil then begin. The payments will be
made, in no order of preference and proportionately between all class C notes,

If the Rapid Amortisation Period begins as a resuft of there being insufficient funds to repay
principal and pay interest on the class A notes, the class B notes or the class C notes, as described
above, then on each interest payment date after that, first the class A notes, second the class B
notes and third the dass C notes, will be redeemed, to the extent of amounts availabie to the
issuer, after being exchanged under the swap agreements, for each note of a class in the
proportion that the principal amount outstanding of that note bears to the total principal armount
outstanding of the notes of that class. This will happen unti! the earlier of the time when each
class of notes has been paid in full and the 15 Novermnber 2010 interest payment date.

On each interest payment date, the agent bank will determine for each class of notes the foliowing:
e the amount of principal repayable on each note of that class; and

e the principal ameunt outstanding of each note of that class on the first day of the next
interest period, after deducting any principal payment due to be made on each note of that
class on that interest payment date,

The ampunts and dates determined by the agent bank will be notified to the issuer, the paying
agents and the note trustee and published in accordance with condition number 14 as spon as
possible after these parties have been notified.

The issuer, the paying agents, the note trustee and the noteholders will be bound by the
determinations properly made as described above and nelther the agent bank nor the note trustee
will be liable for the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions for those
2urposes.

i the agent bane fals [ mMaxe a determination as describea apove, the note trustee will catculate
the principal payment or principal amount outstanding as described above, and each of these
Zeterminations or calculations will be deemed to have heen made by the agent bank. If this
hapopens, the determination will be deemed to have been made by the agent bank.
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(2} Mandatory Early Redemption or Mandatory Sale of Ciass 2 notes and Class C nofes to the jssuer in
relation to ¢ Regulatory Cail Event

If the Regulated Amortisation Period or the Rapld Amortisation Peried begins bzfare the series
05-4 schieduled redemnption date, on each subseguent interest payment date o such event each
class A note will be redeemed, then each class B note will be redeemed, and lastly each class €
note will be redeemed, in the proportion that its principal amount outstanding bears to the total
principal amount outstanding of the notes of that class, to the extent of the amount which is
deposited into the Series 05-4 Issuer Account towards redemption of the series 05-4 medium term
hote certificate — after the amount has beem exchanged for dollars under the relevant swap
agreement or by the note trustee In the spot exchange market if the relevant swap agreement has
been terminated. This will happen until the earliest of:

*  the date on which the relevant class of notes has been redeemed in full; or
& the 15 November 2010 interest payment date.

In addition, if a regulatory call event occurs, the issuer {(or any assignee or novatee of the
regulatory tall option) shall as scon as practicable following the occurrence of such regulatory call
event by not less than thirty and not more than sixty days prior notice to the note trustee and
noteholders call all, but not some only, of the class B notes and the class C notes, such call to be
exercisabie on the interest payment date following any such notice. On such interest payment date
following any such notice, if you are a holder of class B notes and/or class C notes, you are
required to sell all of your class B notes and/or class C notes (as applicable) to the issuer (or any
assignee or novatee of the regulatory call option), pursuant to the option granted to the issuer by
the note trustee on your behalf. Such notice must confirm that there will be sufficient funds
available to satisfy all obligations in connectlon with exercise of such cali option. The regulatory
call option is granted to acquire all, but not seme only, of the then outstanding class B notes and
class C notes. plus accrued interest {if any) on them, for a purchase price equal to the then par
value of the class B notes and class C notes. This is called the “"regulatory call option”. A
“regulatory calf event” means the delivery to the issuer and the note trustee of a notice from
Barclays Bank PLC which states that the regulatory capital treatment for Barclays Bank PLC
apolicable in respect of the transaction te which the issuance of the class B notes and class C notes
relates has become materiglly impaired by the implementation of the reform of the 1988 Capital
Accord {in conjunction with proposals put forward by the Basel Cornmitiee on Banking Supervision
and to be implemented for credit institutions pursuant to the EU Capital Adequacy Directive),

(3) Optionat Redemption

The issuer may by not less than thirty and not more than sixly days prior notice to the trustee and
without the need to obtain the prior consent of the note trustee or the noteholders redeem all of
the remaining notes on the next following Interest payment date togethér with ali accrued interest,
deferred interest and additional interest if any If the principal balance of the remaining notes is
less than 10 per cent. of their original principal balance and the note trustee is satisfied that the
issuer will have funds available to it to make the required payment on that interest payment date,

(4]  Finaf Redempiion

If the notes have not previously been purchased and cancelled or redeemed in full as described In
condition number 6, the notes will be finally redeemed at their then principal amount oulstanding
on the 15 November 2010 interest payment date, together with, in each case, all accrued and
unpaid Interest, shartfall and interest on shortfall, if any,

The issuer or its parent may buy notes at any price. Any notes that are redeemed or purchased
pursuarit to these provisions will be cancelled at that Gime and may not be refssued or resoid,
other than in accordance with the regulatory call cption described under condition number 6{2)
above. Following any acquisition of class B nates and class € notes in connection with exercise of
the regulatory call option, such notes shall be held uncancelled and these conditions shall continue
to apply to such notes.

You are required, at its request, to sell 2ll of your notes to Gracechurch Card {Hotdings) Limited.
pursuant to the option granted 1o it by the note trustee, on your behalf. The option is granted to
acquire all, but not some only, of the notes, plus accrued interest on them, for one penny per note,
on the date upon which the note trustee gives written notice to Gracechurch Card {Holdings)
Limited that it has determined, in its sole opinion, that all amounts cutstanding under the notes
have become due and payable and there is no reasonable likelihood of there being any further
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realisations, whether arising from an enforcement of the note trustee’s security or otherwise, which
would be available to pay all such amounts outstanding under the notes.

This is cafled the “post maturity call option”.

You acknowledge that the note trustee has the authority and the power to bind you in accordance
with the terms and condltions set out in the post maturity call option and the regulatory call
option and, by subscribing or acquiring, as the case may be, for your note(s}, you agree to be
bound in this way.

7. Payments

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the notes will be made to the persons in whose
names the global note certificates are registered on the register at the opening of business in the
place of the registrar's specified office on the fifteenth day before the due date for such payment.
Such date is called the "record date”. Payments wili be made by wire transfer of immediately
available funds, if the registered holder has provided wiring instructions no Jess than five business
days prlor to the record date, or otherwise by check mailed to the address of the registered holder
as it appears in the register at the opening of business on the record date. In the case of the final
redemption, and provided that payment is made in full, payment will only be made against
surrender of those global note certificates to the registrar.

The note trustee will not be responsible for any deficiency which may arise because it is liable to
tax In respect of the proceeds of any security.

Similar provisions [n respect of the indemnification of the security trustee are set out in the
transactlon decuments.

8.  Taxation

Payments of interest and principal will be made without making any deductions for any tax
imposed by any jurisdiction having power to tax unless a deduction is required by the law of the
retevant jurisdiction which has power to tax. If a deduction for tax is made, the paying agent will
actount to the relevant authority for the amount deducted. Neither the issuer nor any paying
agent is required te make any additional payments to noteholders for any deductions made for tax.

9. Events of Default
If any of the following events occurs and Is continuing it Is called an “event of default™:

e the issuer fails to pay any amount of principal on the notes within 7 days of the date
payment is due or fails to pay any amount of interest on the notes within 15 days of the date
payment is due; or

e the issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the notes, the trust
deed, the deed of charge or the paying agency and agent bank agreement other than any
obligation to pay any principal or interest on the notes, and, except where that failure is
incapable of remedy, It remains unremedied for 30 days after the note trustee has given
written notice of it 1o the issuer, certifying that the default is. In its opinion, materially
prejudicial to the interests of the noteholders; or

e the early termination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under “The Swap Agreements: Common Provisions of the Swap Agreements”;
or

& a judgment or order for the payment of any amount is given against the issuer and continues
unsatisfied and unstayed for a period of 30 days after it is given or, if a later date is specified
far payment, from that date; or

e a secured party or encumbrancer takes possession or a receiver, administrative receiver,
administrator, examiner. manager or other similar officer is appointed, of the whole or any
part of the husiness, assets and revenues of the Issuer or an enforcement action is begun for
unpaid rent or execution is levied against any of the assets of the issuer; or

e the issue- zzcomes insolvent ¢r is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or

®  an administrator or liguidator of the issuer or the whole or any part of the business, assets
and revenues of the issuer is appointed, or an application for ar appointment is made; or
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e  the Issuer takes any action for a readjustment or deferment of any of its obligations or makes
2 general assignment or an arrangement or compesition with or for the benefit of its
creditors or declares a moratorium in respect of any of its indebtedness or any guarantee of
indebtedness given by it; or

»  the issuer stops or threatens to stop carrying on all or any substantial part of its business; or

an order is made or an effective resolutien is passed for the winding up, liquidation or
dissolution of the issuer; or
®  any action, condition or thing at any time required to be taken, fulfilled or done in order:

{1} 1o enable the issuer lawfully to enter inte, exercise its rights and perform and comply
with its cbligations under and in respect of the notes and the issuer related documents;
or

{2) to ensure that those obligations are legal, valid, binding and enforceable, except as that
enforceabilty may be limited by appiicable bankruptcy, insohvency, meoratorium,
reorganisation or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of the rights of creditors
generally and that that enforceability may be limited by the effect of general principles
of equity,

is not taken, fulfilled or done; or

e It is or wili become unlawful for the issuer to perform or comply with any of its obligations
under or in respect of the notes or the related documnents; or

o all or any substantial part of the business, assets and revenues of the issuer is condemned,
seized or otherwise appropriated by any person acting under the authority of any national,
regional or local government; or

e the issuer is prevented by any person acting under the authority of any national, regional or
local government from exercising normal control over all or any substantial part of its
business, assets and revenues.

If an event of default occurs then the note trustee may give an enforcement notice or appoint a
recelver If It chooses and if it is indemnified to its satisfaction.

If ar event of default occurs then the note trustee shall be bound to give an enforcement notice if
it is indemnified to its satisfaction and it is:
[} required to by the swap counterparty;
®  required to by holders of at least one-quarter of the aggregate principal amount putsianding

of the class A notes, If any remain outstanding, and if nene remain outstanding. the class B
notes, and If none of these remain outstanding, the class C notes; or

e directed by an extraordinary resolution, as defined in the trust deed, of holders of outstanding
class A notes, and if there are none, of holders of outstanding class B notes, and if there are
none, of holders of putstanding class C notes.

An “enforcement notice” is a written notice to the issuer declaring the notes to be immediately
due and payable. When it is given, the notes will become immediately due and payable at their
principal amount outstanding together with accrued interest without further action or formality.
Notice of the recelpt of an enforcement notice shall be given to the noteholders as soon as
possiple. A declaration that the notes have become immediately due and payabie will not, of itself,
accelerate the timing or amount of redemption of the notes as described in condition number 6.

10. Prescription

Your notes will become void if they are not presented within the time limit for payment. That time
limit is ten years from their due date. If there is a delay in the principal paying agent receiving the
funds. the due date, for the purposes of this time limit, is the date on which it netifies you. in
accordance with condition number 14, that it has received the relevant payment.

11. Replacement of Note Certificates

if any note certificates are lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, you can replace them at
the specified office of the registrar. You will be required to both pay the expenses of producing a
replacement and comply with the issuer's reasonable requests for evidence, security and indemnity.
You must surrender any defaced or mutilated rote certificates before replacements will be {ssued,
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12. Note Trustee and Agents
The note trustee is entitled to be Indemnified and relieved from responsibliity In certzin
circumstances and to be pald Its costs and expenses in priority to your claims.

in the exercise of its powers and discretlons under the conditions and the trust deed, the note
trustee will consider the interests of the noteholders as a class and will not be responsible for any
consequence 1o you Individually as a result of you being connected in any way with a particular
territory or taxing jurisdiction,

In acting under the paying agency and agent bank agreement, and in connection with your rnotes,
the paying agents and the agent bank act only as agents of the issuer and the note trustee and do
not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for or with you.

The note trustee and its related companies are entitled to enter into business transactions with the
issuer. Barclays Bank PLC or related companies of either of them without accounting for any profit
resulting from those transactions.

The issuer can, at any time, vary or terminate the appointment of any paying agent or the agent
bank and can appoint successor or additional paying agents or a successor agent bank. If the issuer
does this it must ensure that it maintains the following:

&  a principal paying agent;

& a paying agent in New York and, if and for so long as any of the notes are fisted on the
Official List of the UK Listing Authority and admitted to trading on the London Siock
Exchange, in London;

&  an agent bank; and
&  a registrar.

Motice of any change in the paying agents, agent bank, registrar or their specified offices shall be
promptly given te you in accordance with condition number 14,

13. Meetings of Noteholders, Meodification and Waiver, Substitution and Addition

Meetings of Noteholders
The trust deed contains provisions for convening single and separate meetings of each class of
noteholders to consider matters relating to the notes, including the meodification of any provision
of the conditions or the trust deed. Any modification rmay be made i sanctioned by an
extraordinary resolution.

The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an extraordinary resclution will be two or more
persons holding or representing a clear majority of the aggregate principal amount outstanding of
the relevant class of notes - and in the case of a separate meeting, the class A notes, the class 8
notes or the class C notes, as the case may be - for the time belng outstanding.

Certain terms including the date of maturity of the notes, any day for payment of interest on the
notes, reducing or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of
the notes or altering the currency of payment of the notes, reguire a quorum for passing an
extraordinary resolution of two ar more persons holding or representing in total not less than 75
per cent. of the total principal amcunt ouistanding of the relevant class of notes. These
modifications are called "Basic Terms Modifications”,

Except where the extraordinary resolution effects a Basic Terms Modlfication, the Interests of the
most senior class of notes cutstanding at the time take precedence over the interests of the
subordinated classes. The note trustee may only give effect to an extraordinary resolution passed
by the ciass C notehoiders if [t considers that the interests of the class A noteholders or the class B
notehoiders will not be materially srejudiced. An extraordinary resolution of the class B noteholders
will only be effective if the note trustee considers that it will not be materially prejudicial to the
class # -oteholos
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Modification and Waiver

The note trustee may agree, without the consent of the noteholders, (i) te any modification ~
except a Basic Terms Modification - of, or to the waiver or authorisation of any breach or
proposed breach of, the notes or any other related agreement, which Is net, in the opinion of the
note trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the noteholders or (2) to any modification of
any of the provisians of the terms and conditions or any of the related agreements which, in the
opinion of the note trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is to correct a manifest or
proven error. Any of those modifications, autherisations or waivers will be binding on the
noteholders and, unless the note trustee agrees otherwise, shall be promptly notified by the issuer
to the noteholders in accordance with condition number 14.

Substitution ond Addition

The note trustee may also agree to the substitution of any other body corporate in place of the
issuer as principal debtor under the trust deed and the notes and in the case of such a substitution
or addition the note trustee may agree, without the consent of the noteholders, to a change of the
law governing the notes and/or the trust deed provided that such change would not In the opinion
of the trustee be materially prejudicial to the interests of the noteholders. Any such substitution or
addition will be promptly notified to the noteholders in accordance with condition number 14,

Enforcement

At any time after the notes becorme due and repayable and without prejudice to its rights of
enforcement in relation to the security, the note trustee may, at its discretion and without notice,
institute such proceedings as it thinks fit to enforce payment of the netes, inciuding the right to
repayment of the notes together with ac¢rued interest thereen, and shall be bound to do so only If
it has been so directed by an extraordinary resolution of the noteholders of the relevant class. No
extraordinary resolution of the class B noteholders or class C noteholders or any request of the
class B noteholders or class C ncteholders will be eifective unless there is an extraordinary
resolution of the class A noteholders or a direction of the class A noteholders to the same effect
or none of the class A notes remain outstanding.

No extraordinary resotution of the class C noteholders or any request of the class C noteholders
will be effective unless there is an extraordinary resolution of the class B notehelders cr a direction
of the class B roteholders to the same effect or none of the class B notes remain oulstanding.

Mo noteholder may institute any proceedings against the issuer tc enforce its rights under or in
respect of the notes or the trust deed unless (1) the note trustee has become bound to institute
proceedings and has failed to do so within a reascnable time and (2) the failure is continuing.
Notwithstanding the previous sentence and notwithstanding any other provision of the trust deed,
the right of any noteholder to receive payment of principal of and interest on its notes on or after
the due date for the principal or interest, or to institute suit for the enforcement of payment of
that interest or principal, may not be impaired or affected without the consent of that noteholder.

14. Notices

Any notice to you will be deemed to have been validly given if published in a leading English
language daily newspaper in London - which is expected to be the Finoncial Times — and will ba
deemed to have been given on the day It is first published.

Any notice specifylng a rate of interest, an interest amount, an amount of shortfall or interest on
it, princfpal payment or a principal amount outstanding will be treated as having been duly given If
the information contained in that notice appears on the relevant page of the Reuters Screen or
other similar service approved by the note trustee and notified to you. The notice will be deerned
given when It first appears on the screen. If it cannot be displayed in this way, it wiil be published
as described in the previous paragraph.

Copies of all notices given in accordance with these provisions will be sent to the London Stock
Exchange Company Announcements Office, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Eureclear and DTC.

15, Currency Indemnity

You can be indemnified against losses you suffer from the use of an exchange rate to convert sums
recovered by you in [itigation against the issuer, which is different to the rate you ordinarily use,
You must request this tndemnity in writing from the issuer.
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This indemnity constitutes a separate and independent obligation of the issuer and shall give rise
to a separate and Independent cause of action.

16, Governing Law and lurisdiction

The notes, swap agreements and trust deed are governed by English Law and the English courts
have non-exclusive jurisdiction in connection with the notes.




The Swap Agreements

General

The issuer will enter into the class A swap agreement, the class B swap agreement and the class C
swap agreement — called collectively the “swap agreements”. There is no separaie interest rate cap
agreement for any of the notes. In connection with the swap agreements, the swap counterparty
and the Issuer wlil enter into a collateral support annex in respect of certain obligations under the
swap agreements,

Under the class A swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer will
pay to the swap counterparty:

e an Initia! payment of doltars, on the closing date, In an amount equal to the initial batance of
the class A notes, and .

& on each transfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
interest and principal, if any, received by the issuer from the MTN issuer on the series 05-4
medium tlerm note certificate, including any MTN Issuer additional interest payments and after
deducting the costs and expenses of the issuer, and {2) the amounts due and payable to the
swap counterparly under the class A swap agreement.

The swap counterparty will pay to the issuer:

®  an initial payment in sterling, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the dollar amount of
the initial balance of the class A notes converted Into sterling at the fixed exchange rate; and

® on each Interest payment date after the closing date, sums in dollars equal to the interest
payable and, if any, principal repayable to holders of the class A notes on that interest
payment date, as set out in the terms and conditions of the class A notes.

Under the class B swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer will
pay (0 the swap counterparty:

& an inltlal payment of dollars, on the closing date, in an amount equat to the Initial bafance of
the class B notes; and

&  on each transfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
interest and principal, if any, received by the issuer from the MTN Issuer on the series 05-4
medium term note certificate, including any MTN Issuer additional interest payments and after
deducting the costs and expenses of the issuer, remaining after giving effect to the payment
made under the class A swap agreement described above, and (2) the amounts due and
payable to the swap counterparty under the class B swap agreement.

The swap counterparty will pay to the issuer:

®  aninitial payment in steriing, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the dollar amount of
the initial balance of the class B notes converted into sterling at the fixed exchange rate; and

® on each interest payment date after the closing date, sums in dollars equal to the interest
payable and principat repayable, If any, to holders of the class B notes on that Interest
payment date, as set out in the terms and conditiens of the class B notes.

Under the ctass C swap agreement between the issuer and the swap counterparty, the issuer wilf
pay to the swap counterparty:

& an initial payment of dollars, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the Initial balance ef
the class C notes; and

& on each transfer date after the closing date, the lesser of (1) the sterling amount equal to the
interest and principal, if any, received by the issuer from the MTN Issuer on the series 05-4
rmedium term note certificate, including any MTN Issuer additional interest payments and after
deducting the costs and expenses of the issuer, remaining after giving effect to the payments
made under the class A swap agreement and the class B swap agreement, and (2) the
amounts due and pavable to the swap counterparty under the class C swap agreement.

The swap counterparty will pay to the issuer:

& an initlal payment in sterling, on the closing date, in an amount equal to the doliar amount of
the initial balance of the class € notes converted into sterling at the fixed exchange rate; and
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# on each interest payment date after the closing date, sums in dollars egual to the interest
payable and principal repayable, if any, to helders of the class C notes on that interest
payment date, as set out in the terrns and conditions of the class C notes.

Each swap agreement provides that payments made under it are to be reduced in the event that
any amount due and payable to the issuer under the series 05-4 medium term note certificate is
deferred by the MTN Issuer under the terms of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate such
that the issuer does not have sufficient funds to make the scheduled payments under the swap
agreement. This is to prevent thai amount In dollars being pavable by the swap counterparty
before it receives the corresponding sterling amount from the issuer under the relevant swap
agreement. There will be a corresponding increase in the amounis payabte under the relevant swap
agreement to make up this shortfall if the deferred amount is subsequently recelved by the issuer,
The MTN Issuer will be llable to pay deferred interest on any such deferred amount, and the issuer
will be liable to pay that deferred interest on to the noteholders in the order of priorities set out
In the terms and conditions of the notes, after converting it into US. dollars under the relevant
swap agreement You should be aware that if withholding tax is levied on the series 05-4 medium
term note certificate, payments to the issuer wifl be reduced accordingly. Such reduced payments
would not be treated as deferred ameounts - and, accordingly, would not bear deferred interest -
and neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty is obliged to make up the shortfall.

The fixed sterling to doltar exchange rate, which we refer to as the “fixed exchange rate”, in the
swap agreements will be approximately $1.71350 per one pound sterling.

Common Provisions of the Swap Agreements

The swap agreements provide that f the short-term unsecured debt rating of the swap
counterparty is withdrawn or reduced below "A-1+" by Standard & Poor's or P-1 by Moody's or if
the long-termn unsecured debt rating of the swap counterparty is withdrawn or reduced below "A1"
by Moody's, then within 30 days following that event. the swap counterparty will be required to
take one of the following steps:

e if such downgrade or withdrawal is by Moody's:
e fransfer its rights and obligations under the swap agreements to a suitably - rated
replacement counterparty; or
e obtain a suitably rated co-obligor in respect of the obligations of the counterparty under
the swap agreements; or

e« take such other actlon as may be agreed with Moody's; or

s within 30 days of such downgrade, lodge collateral in an amount determined pursuant
to the credit support annex in support of its obligations under the swap agreements;

provided further that if such Moody's downgrade results in a rating of the swap counterparty
below A3 or P1, the swap counterparty will use its best efforts to attempt to: {a) transfer its
rights and obligations to a suitably rated counterparty, {b) find a suitably rated co-cbligor, or
(c) take such other action as may be agreed with Moody's: pending compliance with (a), (b)
or (c), the swap counterparty will post colflateral in an amount determined pursuant to the
credit support annex;

& if such downgrade or withdrawal is by Standard & Poor's:

s within 30 days of such downgrade or withdrawal, transfer its rights and obligations
under the swap agreements to a suitably rated replacement counterparty; or

e  within 30 days of such downgrade or withdrawal, obtain a suitably rated guarantee of
the obligations of the swap counterparty under the swap agreements; or

¢ within 30 days of such downgrade, lodge collateral in an amount determined pursuant
to ke cadit support annex in support of its cbligations under the swap agreements; or

& a0 27y other solution acceptable to Standard & Poor's to maintaln the then current

Z cf the notes

Termurcuor If ihe S.0p AQresmenss
The swiz zgreemants will, or may. in the case of the thirg puiiet coint below terminate on the
2ariiest of




s the distribution date on which there is no further cbligation to make a pavment under the
series 05-4 medium term note certificate;

& the 15 November 2010 interest payment date; and
e the occurrence of an early swap termination event as described below.

The swap agreements may be terminated early in the following circumstances - each called an
“garly swap termination event™:

e  at the option of one party, if there is a failure by the other party to pay any amounts due
unger the swap agreement;

& if an event of default under the notes occcurs and an enforcement notice in respect thereof is
delivered by the note trustee or if there is no further obligation {0 make a payment under
the serles 05-4 medium term note certificate before the series 05-4 scheduled redemption
date or If the series 05-4 jnterest has been reduced to zero;

& upon the occurrence of an insolvency of either party, merger without an assumption of the
obligations under the swap agreements, or changes In taw resulting in illegality;

e if as a result of a change in applicable law, withholding taxes would be imposed by any
jurisdiction en payments to the issuer under the series 05-4 medium term note certificate or
on any paymenis made or required to be made by the $wap counterparty to the issuer or by
the issuer to the swap counterparty under the swap agreement and there are no reasonable
measures that the swap counterparty or the issuer can take to avoid their imposition; and

®  the issuer determines that it or the paying agent has or will become cbligated to deduct or
withhold amounts from payments on the related class of notes to be made to any of the
relate¢ noteholders on the next Interest payment date, for tax imposed by any political
subdivision or taxing authority of the United Kingdom on the payments as a result of any
change In its taws or regulations or rulings, or any change in official position regarding the
application or interpretation of its laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment
becomes effective on gr after the date the notes are issued, and there are no reasonable
measures the Issuer can take to avoid the tax or assessment.

The swap agreements may be terminated following the events described in either of the last two
bullet points above only if the issuer is directed by an extraordinary resolution of the holders of
the relevant class of notes to terminate the relevant swap agreement,

If notice Is given to terminate a swap agreement, the issuer or the swap counterparty may be liable
to make a termination payment to the other in respect of the terminated swap agreement. This
termination payment will be calculated and made in sterling. The amount of any termination
payment will be based on the market value of the terminated swap agreement based on market
quotations of the cost of entering into a swap transaction with the same terms and conditions that
would have the effect of presening the respective full payment obligations of the parties, Any such
termination payment could, if the sterfing/dollar exchange rates have changed significantly, be
substantial,

If an early swap termination event occurs, on each interest payment date thereafter, payments of
interest and principal payable on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate. Including MTN
Issuer additional interest, available to make payments on the notes wili be converted Into dollars by
the note trustee at the then-prevailing spot exchange rate in the City of London for sterling
purchases of dollars. The issuer will apply the U.S, doilar proceeds of that exchange to pay
principal and interest on the notes in the order of priority described under “Terms and Conditions
of the Notes”. Any dollar amounts so distributed may not be equal to the dolar amounts then due
and owing on the notes. Any doflar amounts so converted in excess of principal and interest due
and payable on that class of notes will be held in the series 05-4 Issuer Account to be applied, if
needed to cover any future shortfall in sterfing amounts needed for such conversion.

Taxation

Neither the issuer nor the swap counterparty is obliged under the swap agreements to gross up if
withholding taxes are imposed on payments made under the swap agreements.

If any withholding tax is imposed on payments due from the issuer under the swap agreements,
the swap counterparty will be entitied to deduct amounts in the same proportion from subsequent
payments due from it. if that happens MTN lissuer additlonal interest payments, te the extent
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available, will be used to cover the shortfall in the payments due from the swap counterparty. If
MTN Issuer additional interest payments are act sufficlent to cover the shortfall, amounts available
to the issuer to make payments on the notes will be reduced by the amount so deducted that is
not covered by MTN issuer additional interest payments. Any reduction will be applied first to the
class C notes, second to the class B notes and third to the class A notes,

If any withhotding tax is imposed on payments due from the swap counterparty under the swap
agreements, the issuer will not be entltled to deduct amounts from subseguent payments due from
it and amounts available to the issuer to make payments on the notes wiil be reduced by the
amount so withheld by the swap counterparty. To the extent any such withholding exceeds
available MTN Issuer additional interest payments, any reduction will be applied first ta the class C
notes, second to the class B notes and third to the class A notes.
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The Medium Term Note Certificate

On the closing date the MTN Issuer will issue one Interest bearing medium term note certificate to
the Issuer - which we call the “series 05-4 medium term note certificate”. The serles 05-4
medium term note certificate will mature for redemption on the series 05-4 scheduled redemption
date. The Bank of New York in Londen will act as trustee, depositary, issue agent and princlpal
paying agent in refatlon to the series 05-4 medium term note certificate.

The series 05-4 medium term note certificate is issued in bearer form under a security trust deed
and MTN Issuer cash management agreement. Under the terms of the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement, Barclays, acting through its corporate lending division at 1
Churchili Place, London E14 SHP, was appointed as cash manager for the medium term notes and
certificates — called the "MTN Issuer cash manager™.

The medium term notes or certificates will be issued cn a non-syndicated continuous basis in
series. Previpusly the MTN Issuer Issued the series $5-1 medium term notes (which were repaid in
November 2002), the series 02-1, the series 03-1. the series 03.2, the series 03-3, the serles 04-1,
the series 04-2, the series 05-1, the series 05-2 and the serfes 05-3 medium term notes. Medium
term hotes or certificates issued in respect of any series may differ as to principal, interest and
recourse to security, Each series must be constituted by a supplementat deed to the security trust
deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement.

Each new series may differ from any other series in its principal terms and the manner, timing and
amounts of distributions made to the holders of that series of medium term notes or certificates.
The MTN Issuer will not issue any further medium term notes or certificates in respect of an
existing series without the prior consent of the holders of the existing medium term notes in that
series, unless the further medium term notes or certificates are fungible with the existing ones.

The series 05-4 medium term note certificate will be issued at par with a right of the MTN Issuer
to receive further payments of subscription price as deferred consideration, which we call “deferred
subscription price”. The MTN fssuer will pay the Initial consideration received for the series 05-4
medium term note certificate to the receivabies trustee for the purpose of the receivables trust
which will permit the MTN Issuer to acquire an undivided beneficial interest in the receivables
trust. See "The Receivobles Trust” and “Use of Proceeds”. The Initial principal amount of each
undivided beneficial interest acquired is the initial Investor Interest for each class of investor
certificates. These will be issued to the MTN Issuer by the receivables trustee. See “Series 05-4:
Generaf”.

The ability of the MTN Issuer to meet its obligations to pay principal of and interest on the series
05-4 medium term note certificate will be entirely dependent on the receipt by it of funds from
the series 05-4 investor certificates and excess interest attributable to series 05-4,

The MTN issuer and the security trustee will have no recourse to Barclays other than:

®  against Barclaycard as transferor under the receivables securitisation agreement for any
breach of representations and obligations in respect of the receivables; and

&  against Barclaycard as MTN lIssuer cash manager under the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement for any breach of obligations of the MTN Issuer cash
manager.

On the closing date, the MTN Issuer will declare an English law express purpose trust in respect of
any funds received by it from the investor certificate and excess interest attributable to sertes 05-4.
This trust will create a right in equily in favour of the holder of the series 05-4 medium term pote
certificate to require these funds to be applied in making payments on the series 05-4 medium
term note certfficate.

The obligations of the MTN Issuer and certain other rights of the MTN Issuer under each series of
medium term notes or certificates and under the documents relating to them, will be secured
under the security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement, by security interesis
over the investor certificates. The security for each series will be granted by the MTN Issuer in
favour of the security trustee. if the net proceeds of the enforcement of security for a series
following a mandatory redemption — after meeting the expenses of the security trustee, the paying
agents, the depository and any receiver — are insufficient to make ail payments due on the medium
term notes or certificates of that series, the assets of the MTN lssuer securing other series of
medium term notes or certificates will not be available for payment of that shartfall,
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If the security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement Is enferced, the monies

paid to the MTN issuer by the receivables trustee on each transfer date will be applied:

e first to meet payments due to any receiver appointed under it or to the security trustee and
all amounts due for legal fees and other costs, charges, llabilities, expenses, losses, damages,
proceedings, claims and demands which have been Incurred undetr the relevant documents
and in enforcing the security, together with Interest due on these amounts; then

[} to the extent not met above, to meet the costs, charges, liabllitles, expenses, losses, damages,
proceedings, clalms and demands of the secutity trustee; then

® o meet payments of premium (if any), interest and principal on the relevant series of
medium term notes or certificates; then

¢ t0 meet payments due by the MTN issuer to any taxation authority: then

1c meet payment of sumns due to third parties under obligations incurred in the course of the

[ ]
MTN Issuer's business; then
®  to meet payment of any dividends due and unpaid to shareholders of the MTN Issuer; then
¢ to pay all amounts of MTN Issuer additional interest payments (if any);
e to pay all amounts of excess entitlement consideratlon; then

e to pay any batance to the liquidator of the MTN Issuer,

The interest rate on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate will be determined by the agent
bank in accordance with the serfes 05-4 medium terrn note certificate condltiens. This is dane by
reference to the screen rate or other rate set by the agent bank (a} for the first and second
interest perlods for the Mlinear Interpolation of two-month and three-month deposits and (b) for any
other interest period, for three-month deposits, In each case for pounds sterfing In the London
interbank market plus a margin. The margin witl be 0.0556 per cent. per annum for the series 05-4
mediurm term note certificate. The interest rate for the first interest period will be determined on
the closing date. Interest in respect of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate will be payable
In arrear in sterling on each interest payment date. tnterest on the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate will be paid monthly on each distribution date falling during or upon the expiry of each
quarterly interest period.

Excess interest recelved by the MTN Issuer under the agreement between beneficiarles will be paid
as MTN Issuer additional interest payments on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate
cancurrently with the interest payments on the series 05-4 medium term note certificate.

If any withholding or deduction for any taxes, dutles, assessments or government charges Is
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed on payments of principal or interest, Including MTN
Issuer additional interest, on the serles 05-4 medium term note certificate by amy Jurisdiction or
any politicat subdivision or autharity in or of any jurisdiction having power 1o tax, neither the MTN
Issuer nor the principal paying agent will be required to make any additional payments to holders
of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate for that withholding or deduction.

The occurrence and continuation of the following events is called an MTN tssuer event of default:

s the MTN Issuer fails 10 pay any amount of principal of the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate within 7 days of the due date for its payment or fails to pay any amount of
interest on the series 05-4 mediurm term note certificate within 15 days of Its due date; or

e the MTN Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the series 05-4
medium term note certificate, the series 05-4 MTN Issuer supplement, or the securify trust
deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement and, except where the failure is incapable
of remedy, it remains unremedied for 30 days, In either case, after the securlty trustee has
given written notice to the MTN Issuer, certifying that the failure is, In the opinion of the
security trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the series 05-4 medium term note
certificate holders; or

@ the early termination, without replacement, of any of the swap agreements as described in
this prospectus under "The Swap Agreements: Common Provisions of the Swap Agreements”;
or

e 2 judgmerii or order for the payment of any arnount is giveri against the MTN lssuer and
continues unsatisfied and unstayed for a period of 30 days after the date it is given or the
date specified for payment, if iater; or
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& 2 secured party takes possession or a recelver, administrative recefver, administrator,
examniner, manager or other similar officer is appointed, of the whole or any part of the
undertaking, assets and revenues of the MTN lssuer or an enforcement action is begun for
unpaid rent or executions levied against any of the assets of the MTN Issuer; or

. the MTN Issuer becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or an
administrator or liquidator of the MTN Issuer or the wheie or any part of its business, assets
and revenues is appointed, or application for any appointment is made, or the MTN Issuer
takes any action for a readjustment or deferment of any of its chligations or makes a general
assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors or
dectares a moratorium in respect of any of its indebtedness or any guarantee of indebtedness
given by it or ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or any substantial part of its
business; or

® an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding up, liquidation or
dissolution of the MTN Issuer; or

® any action, condition or thing at any time required to be taken, fulfilled or carried out in
order to (i) enable the MTN Issuer lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and perform and
comply with its obligations under and In respect of the medium term notes or certificates and
the documents relating to them or (i) to ensure that those obligations are legal, valid,
blhding and enforceable, except as the enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, moratorium, reorganisation or other simifar laws affecting the enforcement of the
rights of creditors generally and as that enforceabitity may be limited by the effect of general
principles of equity, is not taken. fulfilled or, as the case may be, carried cut; or

e it is or will become unlawful for the MTN Issuer to perform or comply with any of its
obligations under or in respect of the medium term notes or cert/ficates or the documents
retating to them; or

o all or any substantial part of the business, assets and revenues of the MTN Issuer is
condemned, seized or otherwise appropriated by any person acting under the authority of any
nationat, regional or local government or the MTN Issuer is prevented by any of these people
from exercising normal control over all or any substantial part of its business assets and
revenues,

If an MTN lIssuer event of default occurs then the security trustee will be bound to glve an
enforcement natice if it is indemnified te its satisfaction and it is:

@& required to by holders of at least one-quarter of the aggregate principal amount outstanding
of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate; or

e directed by an extraordinary resolution, as defined in the security trust deed and MTN lssuer
cash management agreement, of holders of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate.

An MTN issuer enfercement notice is a written notice to the MTN Issuer declaring the series 05-4
medium term note certificate to be irmmediately due and payable. When it is given, the series 05-4
medium term note certificate will become immediately due and payable at its principal amount
outstanding together with accrued interest without further action or formality. Notice of the
receipt of an MTN Issuer enforcement notice shall be given to the holders of the series 05-4
medium term note certificate as soon as possible. A declaration that the series 05-4 medium term
note certificate has become immediately due and payable will not, of itself, accelerate the timing or
amount of redemption of the series 05-4 medium term note certificate,

When reference is made to the MTN Issuer cash manager it includes any successor to Barciays as
MTN lssuer cash manager. The security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement
provides that, as MTN Issuer cash manager, Barclays will service and administer the Series 05-4
Distribution Account.

Barclays, and any successor MTN Issuer cash manager to the MTN Issuer, will be entitled to receive
the fee inclusive of VAT, if any, for acting as MTN Issuer cash manager, payable by the MTN Issuer
from amounts received as MTN Issuer Costs Amounts fram the Series 05-4 Distribution Account.

The MTN Issuer cash manager may not resign, apart from In certain ¢ircumstances. The resignation
of the MTN Issuer cash manager shall only become effective once a replacement has assumed all of
the responsibilities of the MTN Issuer cash manager set out in the security trust deed and MTN
Issuer cash management agreement.
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Material Legal Issues

Insolvency Act 2000

The UK Insolvency Act 2000 received Royal Assent on 30 Novernber 2000. The Act amends Part |
of the UK Insolvency Act 1986 so that the directors of a company which meets certain eligibillty
criteria can take steps to obtain a moratorlum preventing any creditor from enforcing security or
taking proceedings to recover its debt for the period In which the moraterium is in force.

The relevant provisions of the Act came intc force on 1 January 2003. However, prior to bringing
the provisions into force, the Secretary of State of the United Kingdom amended the eligibility
criteria by way of statutory instrument in such a way that special purpose vehicdes such as the
Issuer and the MTN Issuer can no longer be considered to be eligible companies.

The Enterprise Act

The UK Enterprise Act received Royal Assent on 7 November 2002 and came Into force on
15 September 2003. Pursuant te the UK Enterprise Act, unless a floating charge was created prior
to 15 September 2003, or falls within one of the exemptions contained in the UK Enterprise Act,
the holder of a qualifying floating charge will be prohibited fram appointing an administrative
receiver to a company and consequently, the ability to prevent the appointment of an
administrator to such company will be lost.

A floating charge that the Issuer and the MTN Issuer will grant pursuant to the terms of the Deed
of Charge and the Security Trust Deed respectively Is a qualifying floating charge for the purposes
of the UK Enterprise Act and will be entered into after 15 Septermber 2003 and as such, wnless
excepted, the trustee will be prevented from appeintlng an administrative receiver in respect of the
issuer ang/or the MTN Issuer. However, this qualifying floating charge will fall within the “capital
market arrangement” exception to the prohibition of the appointment of an administrative recefver
and accordingly the trustee will still be able to appoint an administrative recefver pursuant to the
Security Trust Deed in respect of the MTN Issuer and pursuant to the Deed of Charge in respect of
the issuer.

144




Material Legal Aspects Of The Recelvables

Consumer Credit Act 1974

A significant number of the credit transactions that occur on a designated account will be for
items of credit extended to a cardholder for an amount up to £25,000. The Consurmer Credit Act
applies to these transactions and, in whole or in part, the credit or charge card agreement
establishing each designated account This has certaln consequences for the designated acceunts,
including the faliowing:

Enforcement of improperly executed or modified cord agreements

If a credit or charge card agreement has not been executed or modified in accordance with the
Consumer Credit Act, it may be unenforceable against a cardholder without a court order — and in
some instances may be completely unenforceable. As is common with many other UK credit and
charge card issuers, some of Barclaycard's credit and charge card agreements do not comply in all
respects with the Consumer Credit Act or cther related legislation. As a result, these agreements
may be unenforceable by Barclaycard against the cardholders. The transferor gives no guarantee
that a court order could be obtaied if required. With respect to those credit or charge card
agreements which may not be compliant, such that a court order could not be obtained,
Barclaycard estimates that this would apply to less than 1 per cent of the aggregate principat
receivables in the designated accounts on 31 December 2004. Barclaycard does not anticlpate any
material increase in this percentage of receivables in the securitised portfolio. In respect of those
accounts that do not comply with the Consumer Credlt Act it will still be possible to collect
payments and seek arrears from cardholders who are falling behind with their payments, The
transferey will have no obligation to repay or account to a cardholder for any payments received
by a cardholder because of this non-compliance with the Consumer Credit Act. However, if losses
arise on these accounts, they will be written off and borne by the Investor beneficiary and
transferor beneficiary based on their respective interests in the receivables trust.

Liability for supplier’s misrepresentation or breach of controct

Transactions involving the use of a credit or charge card In the United Kingdom may constitute
transactions under debtor-creditor-supplier agreements. A debtor-creditor-supplier agreement
includes an agreement where the creditor, with knowledge of its purpose, advances funds to
finance a purchase by the debtor of goods or services from a supplier.

Section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act provides that, if the supplier is in breach of the contract —
whether such contract Is express or implied by law - between the supplier and a cardholder in
certain debtor-creditor-supplier agreements or if the supplier has made a misrepresentation about
that contract, the creditor may alsc be liable to the cardholder for the breach or misrepresentation.
The liability of the transferor for a designated account is called a "Transferor Section 75 Liability™.
In these circumstances, the cardholder may have the right to reduce the amount owed to the
transferor under his or her credit or charge card account. This right would survive the sale of the
receivables to the receivables trustee. As a result, the receivables trustee may not receive payments
from cardhelders that it might otherwise expect to receive. As a result, the receivables trustee may
not receive the full amount otherwise owed by a cardholder. However, the creditor will not be
liable where the cash price of the item or service supplied concerning the claim is £100 or less, or
greater than £30,000.

The receivables trustee has agreed to indemnlfy the transferor for any loss suffered by the
transferor arising from any claim under section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act. This indemnity
cannot exceed the original outstanding principal balance of the affected charges on the designated
account.

The receivables trustee's indemnity will be payable from excess spread on the receivables. Any
amounts that Barclaycard recovers from the supplier will reduce Barclaycard's loss for purposes of
the receivables trustee’s indemnity. Barclaycard will have rights of indemnity against suppiiers
under section 75 of the Consumer Credit Act, Barglaycard may alsc be able to charge-back the
transaction in dispute to the supplier under the operating regulations of VISA or Mastercard.

if Barclaycard's loss for purposes of the receivables trustee's indemnity exceeds the excess spread
avallable to satisfy the loss, the amount of the excess will reduce the Transferor Interest
accordingly.
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Transfer of Benefit of Receivables
The transfer by the transferor to the receivables trustee of the benefit of the receivables is
governed by English law and takes effect in equlity only.

Notice to the cardholders of the assignment to the receivables trustee would perfect the legal title
of the receivables trustee to the receivables. The recelvables trustee has agreed that notice will not
be given to cardholders, unless the transfercr's leng-term senior unsecured Indebtedness as rated
by Moody's or Standard & Poor's were ic fall below BaaZ, BEB or 8BB respectively. The lack of
notice has several legal consequences.

Until notice Is given to the cardhalders, each cardholder will discharge his or her obligations under
the designated account by making payment to the transferor. Notice 10 cardholders would mean
that cardholders should no longer make payment to the transferor as creditor under the card
agreement but should instead make payment to the receivables trustee as assignee of the
recelvables. If rotice Is given, and a cardholder ignores it and rmakes payment to the transferor for
its own account, that cardholder would nevertheless still be bound to make payment to the
receivables trustee. The transferor, having transferred the benefit of the receivables to the
receivables trustee, is the bare trustee of the receivables trustee for the purposes of the coliection
of the receivables that are the property of the receivables trust and s accountable to the
receivables trustee accordingly.

Before the Insolvency of the transferor, until notice is given to a cardholder who is a depositor or
other creditor of the transferor, equitable set-offs may accrue in favour of that cardholder against
his or her obligation to make payments under the card agreement to the transferor. These rights
of set-off may result in the receivables trustee recelving less monies than anticipated from the
receivables.

The transfer of the benefit of receivables to the receivables trustee has been and will continue to
be subject both to any prior equities that have arlsen in favour of the cardholder and to any
equities that may arise in the cardholder's favour after the assignment. Where notice of the
assignment s given to a cardholder, certain rights of set-off may not arise after the date of the
notice.

Under the terms of the receivables securitisation agreement, the transferor represents that each
recelvable assigned to the receivables trust Is an eligible recelvable - unless the receivable is
specified as being an Ineligible recelvable. The eligibility criteria Include that each receivable
constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of the cardholder enforceable - unless they are
not in compliance with the Consumer Credit Act in which case they may oniy be enforceable with
a court order and, in a small number of cases, may be unenforceable - against the cardholder in
accordance with its terms. They also include that each receivable is nct, save as specifically
contemplated by any rule of English faw, currently subject to any defence, dispute, set-off or
counterclaim or enforcement orders apart from in the limited cases described in the previous
sentence,

Notice to the cardhotder would perfect the transfer so that the receivables trustee would take
priority over any interest of a later encumbrancer or transferee of the transferor's rights whe has
no notice of the transfer to the receivables trustee.

Notlce to the cardholder would prevent the card agreement from being amended by the transferor
or the cardholder without the consent of the receivables trustee.

tack of notice to the cardholder means that, for procedural purposes, the receivables trustee will
have 1o join the transferor as a party to any legal action that the receivables trustee may want o
take against any cardholder.
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United Kingdom Taxation Treatment Of The Notes

Overview

United Kingdom legal advisers, Clifford Chance Limited Liability Partnership, have filed an opinjon
that, subject to finalisation of documents including those which are exhibits to the registration
statement of which this prospectus forms a part in a form which is satisfactory to them and not
Inconsistent with the descriptions in the body of this prospectus and based on certain assumptions
which cannot be verified before closing, the followlng summary is true in all material respects in
relation to the matters expressly addressed. The summary set out below describes the material
United Kingdom withholding tax, income tax, corporation tax, inheritance tax, capital gains tax,
stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax consequences of acguiring, holding and disposing of the
notes.

The comments below are based on United Kingdom law and practice at the date of this prospectus.
They relate only to the position of persons who are the absolute beneficizl owners of their notes
and may not apply to certain classes of persons, including dealers and persons who own the notes
as trustee, nominee or gtherwise on behalf of another person, but otherwise will, subject to the
following paragraph, apply 1o United States helders who beneficially own the notes.

The comments below do not necessarily apply where the interest or any other income on the
notes is deemed for United Kingdom tax purposes to be the income of a person other than the
absolute beneficial owner of the notes in question, for example where a person crdinarily resident
in the United Kingdom transfers assets to a non-resident company for the purpose of aveiding
United Kingdom tax.

It is suggested that any noteholders who are in doubt as to their pasition consult thefr professional
advisers.

In the fotlowing paragraphs. "HMRC" means HM Revenue and Customs, which is the central United
Kingdom taxing authority.

Taxation of U.5. Residents

Subject to the comments below, under the terms of the Convention of 24 July 2001 between the
United Kingdom and the United States of America, called the “Convention”, a person who is a US
resident for the purposes of the Convention, called a "US. noteholder”, will not be subject to
United Kingdom tax on any coupon beneficially owned by him, unless he carries on business in the
United Kingdom through a permanent establishment situated In the United Xingdom, or performs
in the United Kingdom independent personal services from a fixed base situated therein, and the
notes are effectively connected with such permanent establishment or fixed base, or in certain
other circumstances specified in the Convention where relief is not availabie. However, this general
position is subject to the application of extensive anti-avoidance provisions which may affect the
ability of US notehelders to claim retief under the Conventlon.

Taxation of Interest Paid

The notes will constitute “guoted Furobonds” pravided that they are and continue to be listed on
a recognised stock exchange. On the basis of the United Kingdom HMRC's pubiished interpretation
of the relevant legislation, securities which are to be listed on a stock exchange in a country which
is @ member state of the European Union or which Is part of the European Economic Area will
satisfy this requirement if they are listed by a competent authority in that country and are
admitted to trading on a recognised stock exchange in that country; securities which are to be
listed on a stock exchange in any other country wlll satisfy this requirement if they are admitted to
trading on a recognised stock exchange in that country. The London Stock Exchange is a
recognised stock exchange for these purposes. Whilst the notes are and continue to be quoted
Eurobands, payments of inlerest on the notes may be made without deduction or withholding for
or on account of United Kingdom income tax irrespective of whether the notes are in global or
definitive form.

In all cases falling outside the exemption described above, interest on the notes may fall to be paid
under deduction of United Kingdom income tax at the lower rate, currently 20 per cent. subject to
such relief as may be available for example, under the provisions of any applicabie double taxation
treaty. Alternatively, there is in certain circumstances an exemption for certain payments between
certain companies and partnerships, The latter exemption can apply where (inter allg) the person
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beneficially entitled to the interest is (i) a company resident in the United Kingdom, (i} a company
not reslident in the United Kingdom which carries on a trade in the United Kingdom through a
permanent establishment and which is required to bring the Interest into account in computing Its
profits chargeable to United Kingdorn corporation tax or (lii) a partnership each member of which
Is @ company falling within (i) or (il) above.

Provision of information

Helders should note that where any interest on notes is pai¢ to them, er to any person acting on
their behalf, by the issuer or any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of the issuer,
called a "paying agent”, or is received by any person in the United Kingdom acting on behalf of
the relevant holder, other than solely by clearing or arranging the clearing of a cheque, called a
“toltecting agent”, then the issuer, the paying agent or the collecting agent as the case may be,
may in certain circumstances be required to supply to HMRC details of the payment and certain
details retating to the holder, including the holder's name and address. These provisions will apply
whether or not the interest has been paid subject to withholding or deduction for or on account of
United Kingdom income tax and whether or not the holder is resident In the United Kingdom for
United Kingdom taxation purpeses. Where the holder is not so resident, the details provided to
HMRC, In certain cases, may be passed by HMRC to the tax authorities of the Jurisdiction in which
the holder is resident for taxation purposes.

European Union Directive on the Taxatlon of Savings Income

Under EU Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings Income, each Member State is
required from 1 uly 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of
payments of interest or other simllar income paid by a person within its jurisdiction to or collected
by such a person for, an individual resident in that other Mermnber State; however, for a transitional
period, Austria, Belgium and Luxembourg may instead apply a withholding systemn In relation to
such payments, deducting tax at rates rising over time to 35%. The transitional peried is to
terminate at the end of the first full fiscal year following agreement by certain non-EU countries to
the exchange of informatlon relating to such payments.

Also with effect from 1 July 2005, a number of non-EU countries, and certain dependent or
associated territories of certaln Member States {including Jersey), have agreed to adopt simllar
measures {either provision of information or transitional witkholding) in relatlon to payments made
by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an Individual resident In a
Member State, In addition, the Member States have entered into reclprocal provision of informaticn
or transitional withholding armangements with certain of those dependent or associated territories
in relation to paymenis made by a person in a member state to, or collected by such a person for,
an individual resident in one of those territories.

Other Rutes Relating to United Kingdem Withhoiding Tax

1. Where interest has been paid under deduction of United Kingdem income tax, holders who
are not resident in the United Kingdom may be able to recover alf or part of the tax
deducted if there is an approprlate provision in any applicable double taxation treaty.

2. The references to “interest” above mean “interest” as understood in United Kingdom tax law,
The statements above do not take any account of any different definitions of “interest” or
“principal” which may prevall under any other law or which may be created by the terms and
conditions of the notes or any related documentation,

3. The above description of the United Kingdom withhelding tax position assumes that there will
be nc substitution of the issuer and does not consider the tax conseguences of any such
substitution.

4. The notes wmey be issued at an issue price of less than 100 per cent. of their principa
amount. Any discount element on any of these notes will not be subject to any United
Kingdom withholding tax pursuant to the provisions mentioned above, but may be subject to
reporting requirements as outlined above,
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Ownership and Disposal, including Redemption, of the Notes by United Kingdom Tax Payers

1. Corporate Noteholders

Noteholders which are entities within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax - other than
investment trusts, venture capital trusts, authorised unit trusts and open ended investment
companies, as to which see below — will normally be taxed on their returns from the nates,
including interest and returns attributable to movements In value, and foreign exchange gains and
losses, whether income or capital in nature, as income, which is calcutated on the basis of the
statutory accounts except when otherwise required by tax legislation. Relief may be available for
related expenses on a similar basis.

Noteholders that are authorised investment trusts, capital trusts, unit trusts or open ended
investment companies will be subject to the same taxation treatment in respect of the notes as
other notehoiders that are within the charge to United Kingdom corporaticn tax, ether than, in
each case, with respect to profits, gains or Josses which are treated for tax purposes as being of a
capital nature In respect of these notes.

Z.  Other Notehelders

A noteholder who s not within the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax but who is resident
or grdinartly resident in the United Xingdom or who carries on a trade in the United Kingdom
through a branch or agency to which the notes are attributable may be treated as realising a
chargeable gain or an allowable loss for capital gains tax purposes on a disposal - including
redemption - of the notes. in calculating any gain or loss on dispasal of a note, sterling values are
compared at acquisition and disposal. Accordingly, a taxable profit can arise even where a non-
sterling amount received on & disposal is less than or the same as an amount in the same currency
which is paid for or in respect of the note. In addition, on disposal of the notes by a noteholder,
an amount which Is treated as reflecting interest to which the noteholder is treated as having
become entitled since the last interest payment date may be chargeable to tax as income under
the rules known as the Accrued Income Scheme contained in Chapter Il of Part XVIl of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, if that noteholder is not a dealer in securities and is not within
the charge to United Kingdom cerporation tax but is resident or ordinarily resident in the United
Kingdom or carries on a trade in the United Kingdom through a branch or agency to which the
notes are attributable. There are provisions to prevent any particular gain or loss from being
charged or relieved at the same time under the provisions of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act
1992 and also under the provisions of the “accrued income scheme” described in this paragraph.
For further infermaticn in this regard, noteholders should seek their own professional advice, HMRC
issued a consultation paper inviting views on various options for change to the Accrued Income
Scheme and their response is currently awaited to views received, However, this paper does not
alter the rules described above,

United Kingdom Inheritance Tax

Where a note s held by an indlvidual there may be a charge to United Kingdom inherltance tax on
the Individual’s death or on certain transfers of the note, including gifts to some settlements and
gifts made within seven years of the death of the individuai,

These provisions are subject to any relief provided by any applicable double tax convention relating
to estate and gift taxes,

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

Ne¢ United Kingdom stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax is payable on the Issue or transfer of a
nate provided that the note does not at any time carry (1) a right to interest, the amount of
which exceeds a reasonable commercial return on the nominai amount of the capital of the note
or (2) a right on repayment ta an amount which exceeds the nominal amount of the capital of the
note and is not reasonably comparable with what is generatly repayable, in respect of a similar
nominal amount of capital, under the terms of issue of loan capital listed on the Official List of the
UK Listirg Authority and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange.

Taxation of the MTN lIssuer and the Issuer

The MTN Issuer and the issuer wili be subject to UK corporation tax, at a maximum rate currently
of 30 per cent., on the profit reflected in their respective profit and loss accounts prepared (for tax
purposes) in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice as applicable in the UK for
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accounting pericds ending on 31 December 2004 as increased by the amounts of any non-
deductible expenses or losses. The profit in the profit and loss account (so prepared) should not
exceed 1 basis point of the princlpal amount cutstanding on the medium term notes or certificates
in the case of the MTN Issuer, or on the notes in the case of the issuer. Examples of non-
deductlble expenses and losses may include, for the MTN lIssuer:

& amounts paid by the MTN Issuer to the receivables trustee to cover the receivables trustee's
fee and expenses; and

®  any losses of principal which cannot be met out of excess spread; and

for the Issuer, teriain expenses relating to cash management,

The existing rules which govern the corporation tax treatment of “securitisation companies” (such

as the MTN Issuer and the Issuer), as summarised above, will cease to apply as of the end of 2006.

HMRC are currently consulting actively with the securitisation industry In order to determine what

rules should apply thereafter, and HMRC have indicated that they accept the desirability of

preserving tax neutrality for securitisation companies. However, ro details are currently available

as to what the new replacement rules will be.

Taxation of Receivables Trustee

The receivables trustee will have no United Kingdom tax liabllities, and accordingly, the receivables
trustee will have no liability to United Kingdom tax in relatlon to amounts which It recelves on
behalf of the MTN Issuer or amounts which it is obliged to pay the MTN Issuer.




Materiaf United States Federal Income Tax Considerations

Overview

The following summary describes the material LS. federal income tax considerations of acquiring,
holding and disposing of the notes. This summary has been prepared and reviewed by Clifford
Chance .S, LLP - called "U.S. tax counsel”,

This summary does not discuss all aspects of US. federal tax law. In particular, except as
specifically indicated in this summary, it addresses only purchasers in the original offering that
purchase notes at their original issue price and hold notes as “capital assets” within the meaning
of Section 1221 of the US. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, called the “Code”. It does not address
special 5. federal Income tax considerations that may be important to particular investors in light
of their individual investment circumstances or to certain types of investors subject to special tax
rules - e.g. financial institutions, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, tax-exempt
Institutions, dealers in securitles or currencles, securities traders that elect mark-to-market tax
accounting, certain U.S. expatriates or Investors holding the notes as part of a conversion
transactlon, hedge. Integrated transaction, constructive sale transaction or as a position in a
straddle for tax purposes, or persons whose functional currency, as defined in Code Section 985, is
not the LS. dollar, Further, this discussion does not address alternative minimum tax consequences
or any tax considerations to holders of interests in a noteholder. In addition, this summary does
not discuss any foreign, state, local or other tax considerations. Thls summary is based on the
Code, and administrative and judicial authorities, all as in effect on the date of this prospectus and
all of which are subject to change, pessibly on a retreactive basls.

U.S. tax counsel has prepared and reviewed this summary of materiai US. federal income tax
considerations, and is of the opinion that it {s correct in all material respects. U.S, tax counsel also
opines that, as described below, each of the receivables trust, the MTN lssuer ang the issuer wifi
not be treated as engaged In a trade or business within the United States for US, federal income
tax purposes and wiil not be subject to LS. federal income tax on its net income, U.5. tax counsel
further opines that, as described below, although there is na directly governing authority
addressing the classification of securities similar to the notes, under current law, the notes will be
treated as debt for US. federal income tax purposes. Except as set forth in the preceding
sentences, U.S. tax counsel will render no other opinions about the acquisition, hotding and
disposition of the ngtes. Further, an opirion of .5, tax counsel is not binding on the IRS ar the
courts, and ne ruting on any of the consequences or issues discussed below will be sought from
the IRS. Moreover, there are no autherities on similar transactions involving securities Issued by an
entity with terms similar to those of the notes. Accordingly, the Issuer suggests that persons
considering the purchase of notes consult thelr own tax advisors about the U.S. federal income tax
conseguences of an investment in the notes and the application of LS. federal tax laws, as well as
the laws of any state, local or foreign taxing jurisdictions, to their particular situations,

For the purposes of this summary, & “United States holder” means a beneficial awner of notes that
is a “United States person” as described in Sectlon 7701(a){30) of the Code, generally including;

®  an individuai who is a citizen or resident of the United States for U.S. federal income tax
purposes;

® 3 corporation or other entity treated as a corporation for U.5. federal income tax purposes
created in or under the laws of the United States, any state or any political subdivision of any
state - including the District of Columbia;

&  an estate whose income is includible in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes
without regard to source; and

® a trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the
administration of the trust and one or more United States persons {as defined in the Code)
have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust,

A "non-United States holder™ means a beneficial owner of notes that is not a United States holder,

If an entity treated as a partnership for U.5. federal Income tax purposes holds the notes, the 1.5,
federal income lax treatment of a partner in the partnership will generally depend on the status of
the partner and the activities of the partnership.
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Tax Status of the Receivables Trust, the MTN Issuer and the Issuzer

It is presently contemplated that each of the receivables trust, the MTN Issuer and the issuer will
conduct their respective activities, including activities undertaken on their behalf, such as servicing
activities, entirely outside of the United States. In tbat regard, assuming that the activitles of each
of the recelvables trust, the MTN lssuer and the Issuer are, as conternplated, conducted entlrety
outside of the United States, and assuming each of these entities makes no investments that are
subject to withholding of US. federal income tax, U.S. tax counsel is of the oplnlen that, atthough
no transaction closely comparable to that contemplated herein has been the subject of a Treasury
regulation, revenue ruling or judicial decision and hence the matter cannot be free from doubt,
each of the receivables trust, the MTN Issuer and the issuer will not be treated as engaged in a
trade or business within the United States for US. federal income tax purposes and that each of
these entities will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its net income,

Prospective investors should understand that such determination of whether a person is engaged in
a US, trade or business is based on a highly factual analysis, there Is no direct guidance as to
which activities constitute being engaged in a trade or business within the United States, and it is
unclear how a courl would construe the existing indfrect authorities, A foreign corporation deemed
to be so engaged would be subject to U.S. federal Incomne tax, as well as the branch profits tax, on
its income which is treated as effectively connected with the conduct of that trade or business.
Such income tax, If imposed, would be based on effectively connected income computed in 2
manner generally analogous to that applied to the income of a domestic corporation, except that a
foreign corporatlon would be entited to deductions and credits for a taxable year only if it files, on
a timely basls, a US. federal Income tax return for that year which none of the receivables trust,
MTN Issuer and Issuer intend to do, even as a protective measure. The maximum U.S. federal
income tax rates are currently 35 per cent. for a corporation's effectively connected Income and 30
per cent. for the brarch profits tax, resulting In an effective maximum .S, federal income tax rate
of 545 per cent The branch profits tax Is imposed each year on a corporation's effectively
connected earnings and profits, with certain adjustments, deemed repatriated out of the United
States.

United 5tates Holders

Tax Treatment of the Notes as Indebtedness. The Issuer will treat the notes as debt for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Each holder of notes, by acceptance of such notes, will also agree to treat
the notes as indebtedness for L1.S. federal Income tax purposes. U.S. tax counsel has advised that in
its opinion, although there is no directly governing authority addressing the classificatlon of
securities simllar to the notes, under current law, the notes will be treated as Indebtedness for US.
federal income tax purposes. Such agreement and opinion are not binding on the IRS and, as
stated above, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend, and that a court will not
ultimately hold, that the Class C notes, and to a lesser extent ane or more classes of rmore senior
notes because of their place in the capital structure of the issuer and other equity features, are
equity. As discussed below, treatment of the notes as equity interests could have adverse tax
ronsegquences for United States holders.

Except as indicated, the discussion below assumes the notes are treated as indebiedness for LLS.
federal income tax purposes.

Interest Payments and Distributions. The notes may be treated as having been issued with original
issue discount - "0ID" - for U5, federal income tax purpeses, in which case the OID witl be taxed
as described below. However, in the absence of any OID on the notes, interest on the notes will be
taxable to a United States holder as ordinary income at the time it is received or accrued, in
accordance with the holder's regular method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The total amount of OID on a note is the excess of its stated redemption price at maturity over its
issue price. The Issue price for the notes is the price - including any accrued interest - at which a
substantial portion of the relevant notes are first sold to the public In general, the stated
redemption price at maturity of a note is the sum of all payments made on the note other than
payments 2f interest that (1) are payable at least annualty over the entire life of the note and (2)
are baseg ©n a single fixed rate or variable rate - or certain combinations of fixed and variable
rates,

If any of tne ngies are issuea at a discount cf an amount equal to or greater than 0.25 per cent
of that rote’s stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the note’s weighted average
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maturity, called its "WAM®", then that note will be deemed to bear OID. The WAM of a note is
computed based on the number of full years each distribution of principal - or other amount
included in the stated redemption price at maturity — is scheduled to be outstanding. Further, the
IRS could take the position based gn 1.5, Treasury regulations that none of the interest payable on
a note is unconditionally payable and so that all of that interest should be included in the note’s
stated redemption price at maturity.

A United States holder — including a cash basis holder - of a note deemed to bear OID generally
would be required to accrue OID on the relevant note for L.5. federal income tax purposes on a
constant yield basis. This would require the inclusion of OID in income in advance of the receipt of
cash attributable to that income. Under Section 1272{a)(6) of the Code, special provisions apply to
debt instruments on which payments may be accelerated due to prepayments of other obligations
securing those debt instruments, However, no regulaticns have been issued interpreting those
provisions, and the manner in which those provisions woutd apply to the notes is unclear,

Sourcing: Interest payments or distributions on a note generally will constitute foreign source
income for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Subject to certain limitations, UK withholding tax, if
any, imposed on these payments will generally be treated as foreign tax eligible for credit against a
United States holder’s U.5. federal income tax, For purposes of the foreign tax credit limitation,
forgign source income, until December 31, 2006, s classified in one of several “baskets”, and the
credit for foreign taxes on income in any basket Is limited to US. federal income tax allocable 1o
that income. Interest and OID generally will constitute foreign source income in the “high
withholding tax interest” basket if the notes are subject to United Kingdom withholding tax at a
rate of 5 per cent. or higher. If the notes are not subject to such a withhaolding tax, interest and
0ID generally will be in the “passive income” basket. Since a United States holder may be required
to inctude OID on the notes in its gross Income in advance of any withhelding of United Kingdom
income taxes from payments attributable to the OID (which wouid generally occur when the note
Is repaid or redeemed), a lnited States holder may not be entitied to a credit or deduction for
these United Kingdam Income taxes in the year the OID Is Included In the United States holder's
gross Income, and may be limited in its abllity to credit or deduct in full the United Kingdom taxes
in the year those taxes are actually withheld by the Issuer, Recently enacted legislation effective
after December 31, 2006, wifl limit the foreign tax credit limitatlon categortes to “passive category
income™ and “general category income.” Prospective purchasers should consult their tax advisers
concerning the foreign tax credit implications of the payment of any United Kingdom taxes.

Dispasition or Retirement af lnvestment. Subject to the discussion of the PFIC rules below, upon
the sale, exchange or retirement of a note - including pursuant to a redemption by the issuer prior
ta its maturity date - a United States holder will recognise gain or loss equal to the difference
between the amount realised and the United States holder's “adjusted tax basis” In the relevant
note. In general. a United States holder's adjusted tax basis in an QIO debt instrument is equal to
the United States holder's cost for such debt instrument, plus any OID accrued and less the amount
of any payments received by the holder that are not “gualified stated interest” payments under
applicable LS. Treasury regulaticns.

A United States helder's adjusted tax basls In a debt instrument with ne 01D is generally equal to
the holder's cost less the amount of any principal payments made before the date of disposition. A
United States holder’'s adjusted tax basis in stock Is generally equal to the United States holder’s
cost for the stock. In general, any gain or loss reallsed by the holder will be capital gain or loss,
Under certain circumstances, capital gains derived by individuals are taxed at preferential rates. The
deductlbility of capltal losses is subject to limitations, If a United States holder's basis in a note
Includes accrued but unpaid OID, the holder may be regulred speclfically to disclose any loss above
certain thresholds under regulations on tax shelfter transactions.

Sourcing: Gain or loss realised by a United States holder on the sale, exthange or retirement of a
note generally will be treated as a United States source. Exceptions to the appfication of the
sourcing provislons include exceptions for certain losses attributable to foreign exchange
fluctuations, accrued but unpaid interest, and foreign offices of L.S. residents, amang others. Some
other exceptions to the general rule apply to notes treated as equity in the issuer. The issuer
suggests that United States holders consult their own tax advisors about the availability of and
limitations on any foreign tax credit.

Alternative Tax Treatment of Notes os Equity. US. tax counsel opines, and the issuer intends to
take the position, that the notes are debt for LIS. federal income tax purposes. Consequently, the
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US. federal Income tax consequences of purchasing, owning and disposing of the notes sheuld be
as set forth above. However, If the notes were not treated as debt, they would likely be treated as
equity interests in the issuer,

Investrment In @ Passive Foreign investment Company. Because of the nature of the income of the
issuer, the issuer would constitute a passive foreign investment company ~ or "PFIC". Accordingly,
United States holders of any class of notes treated as equity would be shareholders in a PFIC.

In general, United States holders treated as sharehotders of a PFIC would be subject to special tax
rules on excess distributlons made to them by the Issuer, including a rateable inclusion of “excess
distributions” in the United States holder's gross income as ordinary income taxable at the highest
marginal rates applicable to current and prior years during the holding period (and not as qualified
dividend income taxable at the long-term capital gain rates in the hands of non-corporate United
States holders) and regulrermnent for the payment of an Interest charge on tax that Is deemed to
have been deferred on these excess distributions. Excess distributions would generally include (1)
certain distributions on a United States shareholder’s equity interest in the issuer for a taxable year,
if the total of those amounts exceeds 125 per cent. of the average amount of distributlons from
the Issuer made durlng a specified base period, and {2) gain from the disposition, or deemed
dispasition, of the equity interest In the lssuer. United States holders generally might avoid these
unfavourable consequences if they made either of two specific elections available under the Code
with respect to shares in a PFIC, but it is uncertain whether either election would be available for
the notes.

The first such mitigating election is a "qualified electing fund”, or "QEF", election pursuant to
Code Section 1295. If a United States holder made a GEF election with respect to a note treated as
equity, that United States holder generally would be required to include Its pro rata share of the
issuer's ordinary income and ret capital gains in income for each taxable year and pay tax on it,
even if such incorme and gain were not distributed to the United States holder. Further, any losses
of the issuer would not be deductible by the United States holder. if the issuer tater distributed the
income or gain on which a United States holder had already paid tax, amounts so distributed
would not be further taxable to the United States holder. A United States holder's tax basis in such
a note would be increased by the amount se included and decreased by the amount of nontaxable
distributions thereon. In general, a United States holder making a QEF electlon would recognize, on
a disposition of its notes, capital gain or loss equal to the difference, if any, between the amount
realized upon such disposition and the tax basls in such notes. n general, a QEF election would be
required to be made on or before the due date for filing a United States holder’s U5 federal
income tax return for the first taxable year for which it holds & note. The QEF election would be
effective only If certaln required information were made available by the issuer to an Investor. The
issuer, however, does not intend to provide holders with this information and, accordingly, no
assurance can be given to investors that any QEF election made with respect to notes would be
effective.

A United States holder that held marketable stock in a PFIC might, in lleu of making a QEF
election, atso avoid certain unfavourable consequences of the PFIC rules by electing to mark the
PFIC stock to market as of the close of each taxable year. A United States holder that made the
mark-to-market election would be required to include in income each year as ordinary income an
amount equal to the excess, If any, of the fair market value of the stock at the close of the year
aver the United States holder's adjusted tax basis in the stock. For this purpose, a United States
holder's adjusted basis would generalty be the holder's cost for the stock, inctreased by the amount
previously included In the holder’s income pursuant to this mark-to-market election and decreased
by arty amount previdusly allowed to the United States holder as a deduction pursuant to this
election. If, at the close of the year, the United States holder’s adjusted tax basls exceeded the fair
market value of the stock, then the United States holder could deduct any of this excess ordinary
income, but only to the extent of net mark-to-market gains previously inchuded in income. Any
gain from the actual sale of the PFIC stock would be treated as ordinary income, and any loss
would be treated 25 ordinary loss to the extent of net mark-to-market gains previously included in
income. 3ock wauld be considered marketable if it were reguiarly traded on an exchange that the
RS determined (c De oualified for these purposes. Although the issuer believes that each class of
notes will be iisted on a gualified exchange, pursuant to US. Treasury regulations, a class of stock
is regularly traded for any calendar year during which it is traded, other than in de minimis
guantities on at ieast 15 days during each calendar auarter. Accerdingly, there is uncertainty as to
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whether any class of notes will be regularly traged and hence, there can be nio assurance — and ne
representation is made — that the notes would be eligible for the mark-to-market etection.

Because the issuer does not expect the QEF election to be available to an investor to mitigate the
effect of the PFIC provisions, and it is unclear whether mark-to-market would be available either,
United States holders should be aware of the potentially adverse tax consequences arising under
the PFIC provisions discussed above should any notes be treated as equity. First, al! or a porticn of
both distributions and gains on notes generally would be taxable to holders as ordinary income,
and would be taxable at the highest marginal rates applicable to current and prior years during the
hotding period. Further, ail or a portion of the distributions and gains could be subject te the
additional “interest charge” tax, Such interest charge tax - coemputed in the manner described
above on “excess distributions” and gains - denerally is intended to eliminate the value of any tax
deferral arising from an Investment in notes. Although the Issuer does not expect there would be
any significant deferral of tax arising from an investment In notes treated as equity and
consequently does not expect that the interest charge tax computation should produce a
substantial additional tax liability, in some circumstances, it could do so. For example, the interest
charge computation could produce an Interest charge tax with respect to a floating rate note if the
floating rate on the nete increased substantially over an investor's holding peried. No assurance is
possible that such circumstance, or others, will not occur,

Certain additional adverse c¢onsequences could flow to indirect investors in a PFIC. More specificaliy,
the awnership of the notes by a non-United States holder might be attributed to a United States
holder hotwithstanding that such United States holder held no note and received no cash In respect
of a note. Code Sectlon 1298(a) genera'ly treats notes held directly or indirectly by a foreign
partnership, corporation, trust or estate as owned by such entity's partners, shareholders or
beneficiaries, as applicable; 1t aiso may treat any of various option arrangements as conferring
ownership of notes on United States holders. Hence, a United States holder treated as owning notes
hetd by a non-Unlted States holder generally would be subject to tax on indirect gains and
distributions attributable to the notes In the manner described above.

Fimally, an investor who pledged shares In a PAIC as security for a loan should be aware that such a
pledge would be treated as a disposition of the related shares, and any gain would be subject to
the rules applicable to distributions and gains with respect to shares in a PFIC described above,

Sourcing: For sourcing of payments for a note treated as steck in the issuer and gain or loss on
sale of an interest In this stock, see - Interest Payments ond Distributions — Sourcing” and
“— Disposition or Retirement of investment - Sourcing” above.

Controlled Fareign Corporation Status. Should the notes be treated as equity, it is posstble that the
issuer might be treated as a controlled foreign comporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In
this event, United States holders of equity interests that were treated as owning 10 per cent. or
more of the combined voting power of the Issuer would be required to include in income their pro
rata share of the earnings and profits of the fssuer, and generally would not be subject to the rules
described above about PFICs, Additionaly, an iRS Form 5471 may be required to be filed.

Reporting Requirements. If any United States holder were treated as owning an eguity interest in
the issuer for U.S. federal income tax purposes, it would be required file IRS Form 8621 for each
tax year in which it held such an interest. In addition, If @ United States holder were treated as
owning 5 per cent. or more of an equlty Interest of the issuer, certain additional reporting
requirements would be required,

Under Section 6388 of the Code - relating 1o reporting requirements incident to the transfer of
property, including cash. to a foreign corporation by U.S. persons or entities — in general, a United
States holder, including a tax-exempt entity, that purchased any notes treated as eguity for US.
federal income tax purpeses would be required to file an IRS Form 926 or similar form with the
IRS If such United States holder were treated as owning, directly or by attribution, immediately
after the transfer at least 10 per cent. by vote or value of the issuer, or the purchase, when
aggregated with all purchases made by such United States halder -~ or any related person thereto -
within the preceding 12 month period, exceeded $100,000. if a United States holder fails to fite any
such required form, the United States holder could be required to pay a penalty equal to 10 per
cent. of the gress amount paid for the notes, subject to a maximum penalty of $100,000, except in
cases involving Intentional disregard.
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Non-United States Hoiders

Subject to the discusslon of backup wlithholding below, an investrment in the notes by non-United
States holders generally will not give rise to any U.S, federal Income tax to these holders, unless
the income recelved on, or any galn recognised on the sale or other disposition of their notes is:

s f{reated as effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the Unlted States;
or

® in the case of gain recognlsed by an Individual, the individual is present In the United States
for 183 days or more and certain conditions are met,

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Payments of principal and interest, as well as payments of proceeds from the sale, retirement or
disposition of a note, may be subject to “backup withhelding” tax under Section 3406 of the Code
if a recipient of such payments fails to furnish to the payor certain identifying information. Any
amounts deducted and withheld would be allowed as a credit against such recipient's US. federal
income tax, provided appropriate proof is provided under rules established by the IRS. Furthermore,
certain penalties may be imposed by the IRS on a reclpient of payments that is required to supply
information but that does not do so in the proper manner. Backup withholding will not apply with
respect to payments made to Certain exempt reciplents, such as corporations and financial
institutions. Information may alsc be required to be provided to the IRS conceming payments,
unless an exemptlon applies. Holders of the notes should consult their tax advisors regarding their
qualification for exemption from backup withholding and information reporting and the procedure
for obtaining such an exemption,




Certain ERISA and other Considerations

The U5 Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as smended - called "ERISA™- and
Section 4975 of the Code impose requirements on employee benefit plans and some other plans
and arrangements, inciuding individual retirement accounts and annuities, Keogh plans and certain
collective investment funds, insurance company general or separate accounts or other entities in
which these plans, accounts or arrangements are invested, that are subject to the fiduciary
responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4875 of the Code. We cali these entilies "Plans.”
ERISA also imposes requirements on persons who are fiduciaries of Plans for the Investment of
“plan assets” of any Plan - called "Plan Assets”. ERISA generally imposes on Plan fiduciaries certain
general fiduciary requirements, Incluging those of investment prudence and diversification and the
requirement that a Plan's investments be made in accordance with the documents governing the
Plan,

ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a broad range of transactions involving Plan Assets
and persons — called “'Parties in Interest” — who have specified relationships to a Plan or its Plan
Assets, unless an exemption is available. Parties in Interest that participate in a prohibited
transaction may be subject to a penalty imposed under ERISA or an excise tax Impesed under
Secticn 4975 of the Code, unless an exemption is available. The detalls of these prehibited
transaction rules are contained in Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4§75 of the Code.

Subject to the considerations described below, you may purchase the notes with Plan Assets of any
Plan.

Any fiduciary or other Plan investor considering whether to purchase the notes with Plan Assets of
any Pfan should determine whether that purchase is consisten! with its fAduciary duties and
whether that purchase would constitute or resull In a non-exempt prohibited transaction under
ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code because any of Barclays Bank PLC, the issuer, the
receivables trustee, the MTN Issuer, the servicer, the note trustee, the security trustee or any other
party may be or might become Parties in Interest with respect to the investing Plan and may be
deemed to be benefiting from the issuance of the notes. If Barclays Bank PLC, the issuer, the
receivables trustee, the MTN ssuer, the servicer, the note trustee or the security trustee is a Party
in Interest with respect to the prospective Plan Investor, the issuer suggests that any Aduciary or
other Plan investor considering whether to purchase or hold the notes consult with its counsel
regarding the availability of exemnptive relief under U.S. Department of Labor — "DOL" - Prohibited
Transaction Class Exemptions, or any other prohibited transactions exemption Issued by the DOL. A
purchaser of the notes should be aware. however, that even if the conditions specified in one or
more of the above-referenced exemptions are met, the scope of the exemptive relief provided by
the exemption might not cover all acts that might be construed as prohibited transactions.

You will be deemed to have represented and agreed by your purchase and holding of the notes
that {1) (a) ne part of the funds being used o pay the purchase price for those notes constitutes
Pian Assets of any Plan or will constitute Plan Assets while you hold those notes, and that you are
not, and for so long as you hold the notes will not be, a Plan, or (b) the purchase and holding of
those notes do not and will not constitute, resuit in or otherwise involve a non-exempt prohibited
transaction under ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code; and (2) if, at any time while those notes are
purchased or held by you, you are or will be another employee benefit plan subject to any LS.
Federal State or local or non-U.S, law substantialty simliar to Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4675
of the Code, the purchase and holding of those notes do not and will net violate any such
substantially similar law.

In addition, under DOL Regulation Section 2510.3-107 - called the “Plan Asset Requlation” — the
purchase with Plan Assets of equity interests in the issuer could, in certain clrcumstances, cause
the series 05-4 mediurm term note certificate and other assets of the issuer to be deemed Plan
Assets of the investing Plan which, in turn, would subject the issuer and its assets to the fiduciary
responsibility provisions of ERISA and the prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and Section
4975 of the Code. Thus, if the underiying assets of the issuer are deemed to be Plan Assets, the
obligations and other responsibilities of Plan sponsors, Plan fiduciarles and Plan administrators, and
of Parties in Interest, under Parts 1 and 4 of Subtitle B of Title | of ERISA and Section 4975 of the
Code, as applicable, may be expanded, and there may be an Increase in their liabllity under these
and other provisions of ERISA and the Code (except to the extent {if any) that a favourable
statutory or administrative exemptlon or exception applies). In addition, various providers of
fiduciary or other services to the issuer, and any other parties with authority or control with
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respect to the entity, could be deemed to be Plan fiduciaries or otherwise Parties in Interest by
virtue of their provision of such services {and there could be an improper delegation of authority
to such providers). Nevertheless, consistent with the expectation indicated above that the issuer
expects that the notes will be treated as indebtedness for U.S. federat income tax purposes, and the
opinion of US. tax counsel to that effect - see "Moteriol United Stgtes Federgl Income Tox
Considerations - United States Holders - Tox Treatment of the Notes as Indebtedness”, the issuer
will proceed based on the position that the notes should not be treated as equity investments for
purposes of the Plan Asset Regulation and, therefore, the notes may be purchased by Plans. The
issuer's position is also based, In part, upon the traditional debt features of the notes, including the
reasonable expectation of purchasers of the notes that the notes will be repaid when due, as well
as the absence of conversion rights, warrants and other typical equity features.

The notes may not be purchased or held by any Plan, or any person investing Plan Assets of any
Plan, if any of Barclays Bank PLC, the issuer, the receivables trustee, the MTN Issuer, the servicer,
the note trustee, security trustee or any of their respective affiliates (a) has investment or
administrative discretion with respect to the Plan Assets used to effect the purchase; (b} has
authority or respensibility to give, or regularly glves, investment advice with respect to the Plan
Assets, for a fee and pursuant to an agreement or understanding thal the advice (1) will serve as a
primary basis for investment decisions for the Plan Assets and (2) wifl be based on the particutar
Investment needs of that Plan; or (¢} unless Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption 95-60, 91-38
or 50-1 is applicable, s an employer maintaining or contributing io that Plan. Each purchaser or
holder of the notes or any interest in the notes will be deemed to have repsesented by its purchase
and holding of them that it is not subject to the foregoing limitation.

Accordingly, the issuer sugqgests that prospective emplayee benefit plan investors, whether or not
subject to ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, consult with their own legal and other advisors
concerning the impact of ERISA and the Code and, particularly in the case of employee benefit
plans not subject to ERISA, any additional U.S. state and locat law or non-U.S. law considerations,
as applicable.
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Enforcement of Foreign Judgments In England and Wales

The issuer is incorporated with limited llabllity in England and Wales under the Companies Act
1985. Any final and conclusive judgment of either a New York state or United States Federal court
that has jurisdiction recognised by England and Wales regarding obligations of the issuer for the
notes, which is for a debt or a fixed sum of money and which has not been stayed or fully
satisfied, can he enforced by action against the issuer in the courts of England and Wales witheut
re-examining the merits of the issues determined by the proceedings unless:

& the proceedings in New York state or the United States Federal court involved a denial of the
pringipies of natural justice;

the judgment gees against the public policy of England and Wales;

the judgment was cbtained by fraud, duress or was based on a clear mistake of fact;

the judgment is a penal or revepue judgment; or

there has been an earlier judgment in another court between the same parties on the same
issues as are dealt within the judgment to be enforced.

A judgment by a court may be sometimes given in pounds sterling, The issuer expressty submits to
the jurisdiction of New York state and the United States Federal courts sitting in the Borough of
Manhattan in the City of New York for the purpose of any sult, action or proceedings arising out
of this offering. The following parties have been appointed to receive legal documents for the
issuer and the transferor, servicer and trust cash manager.

e for the issuer:

CT Corporation Systems
111 Eighth Avenue
New York, NY 10011

+1 212 590 9009

s for the transferor, servicer and trust cash manager:

Office of the General Counsel
Barclays Capital inc.

200 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10166
+1 212 412 1352

Most of the directors and executive officers of the issuer and some of the experts named in this
document live outside the United States, Most of their assets are located outside the United States.
Because of this, the holders of the notes may not be able to serve notice of legal action on them
or 1o enfarce judgments against them. The issver has been advised by its English counsel, Clifford
Chance Limited Liabillty Partnership, that because of this, they may not be able ta enforce in
Engiand and wales, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of judgments of United States
courts, civil liabllities based an the Federal securities faws of the United States.
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Underwriting

The Issuer has agreed to sell and the underwriters for the notes listed below have agreed to
purchase the principal amount of the notes listed In the table befow. The terms of these purchases
are governed by an underwriting agreement between the Issuer and Barclays Capital Inc. for itself

and as representative for all of the underwriters,

Principol Amount

of the

Underwriters of the Class A Notes Class A Notes
Barclays Capital Inc. $765,000,000
BNP Paribas $27,000,000
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. §27,000.000
Goldman Sachs & Co $27,000,000
Merrill Lyach, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated $27,000,000
Morgan Stanley & Co incorperated $27,000.000
Totat $900.000.000

Principal Amount

of the

Underwriters of the Class 8 Notes Class B Notes
Barclays Capital Inc. $40,000,000
UBS Securities LLC $10.000.000
Total £50,000000
Principal Amount

of the

Underwriters of the Closs C Notes Class C Notes
Barciays Capitai Inc. $40,000,000
UBS Securities LLC $10,000,000
Total $50,000,000

The price te the public and underwriting discounts and commissions as a percentage of the
principal balance of the class A notes will be 100 per cent, and $.175 per cent,, respectively.

Barclays Capital Inc, as representative of the underwriters of the class A notes has advised the
issuer that the underwriters propose initially to offer the class A notes to the public at the public
offering price stated on the cover page of this prospectus, and to some dealers at that price, less a
concession up to 0.105 per cent. for each class A note. The underwriters may allow, and those
dealers may reallow, concessions up to 0.0525 per cent. of the principal balance of the class A
notes to some brokers and deabers.

The price to the public and underwriting discounts and commissions as a percentage of the
principal balance of the ctass B notes will be 10G per cent. and 0.20 per cent, respectively.

Barclays Capital Inc. has advised the issuer that it proposes initially to offer the ctass B notes to the
public at the public offering price stated on the cover page of this prospectus, and te some dealers
at that price, less a concession up to 0.12 per cent. for each class 8 note. Barclays Capital Inc. may
allow, and those dealers may reallow, cencessions up 10 0.06 per cent. of the principal balance of
the class B notes (0 some brokers and dealers.

public anc underwriting discounts and commissions as 3 percentage of the
the class { notes will be 100 per cent. and 0.30 per cent., respectively.

The price i
orincipal caisn
3arclays Capiz! in2 nas e2dvised the issuer that it proposes initially to offer the class C notes to the
public at the pubiic cfering price stated on the cover page of this prospectus, and to some dealers
ai that price, less a concession up to 8.18 per cent. for each ciass C note. Barclays Capital Inc. may
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aliow, and those dealers may reallow, concessions up to G.09 per cent. of the class C notes to some
brokers and dealers.

Additional offering expenses are estimated to be £901,190.37.
The underwriters have agreed to purchase alt of the notes if any of them are purchased.

The issuer and Barclays Bank PLC will indemnify the underwriters against liabilities - including
lizbilities under the Securities Act - caused by (1) any untrue statement or alleged untrue
statement of 2 material fact contained in this prospectus or the related registration statement or
(2) any omission or alleged omission to state a material fact required to be stated in this
prospectus or the related registration staterment or necessary to rnake the statements in this
prospectus or the related registration statement not misleading. The issuer and Barclays Bank PLC
wiil not, however, indemnify the underwriters against liabilities caused by any untrue statement or
omission, real or alleged, made in reliance upon and in conformity with information relating to and
provided by any underwriter for use in this prospectus and the related registration statement.

The underwriters may ¢engage in over-allotment transactions, stabilising transactions, syndicate
covering transactions and penalty bids for the notes under Regulation M under the Securities and
£xchange Act of 1934,

»  Over-allotment transactions involve syndicate sales in excess of the offering size, which creates
a syndicate short position.

®  Stabilising transactions permit bids to purchase the notes so long as the stabilising bids do
not exceed a specified maximum.

&  Syndicate covering transactions invelve purchases of the notes in the open market after the
distribution has been completed in order to cover syndicate short positions.

e  Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member
when the notes originally scid by that syndicate member are purchased in a syndicate
covering transaction.

These transactions may cause the prices of the notes to be higher than they would otherwise be in
the absence of those transactions. Neither the issuer nor any of the underwriters represent that the
underwriters will engage in any of those transactions or that those transactions. once begun, will
not be discontinued without notice at any time.

The underwriters are entitled to terminate the underwriting agreement In certain limited
circumstances prior to the issue of the notes.

The notes will be registered under the Securities Act.

United Kingdom
Each underwriter has represented and agreed with the issuer that:

{fy it has complied and will ccmply with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000, called the "FSMA" with respect to anything done by it in relation to the
notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom; and

(i} it has only communicated or caused to be communicated, and will only communicate or
cause to be communicated, any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity -
within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA - received by it in connection with the issue
or sale of the notes, in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to
the issuer.

General

The underwriters have represented and agreed that they have complied and will comply with all
applicable laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which they purchase, offer, sell or
deliver notes or possess them or distribute the prospectus and will obtain any consent, approval or
permission required by them for the purchase, offer. sale or delivery by them of notes under the
laws and regufations in force in any jurisdiction to which they are subject or in which they make
such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and the issuer shall have no responsibility for themn,
Furthermore, they will not directly or indirectly offer, sell or deliver any notes or distribute or
publish any prospectus, form of application, offering circular, advertisemeni or other offering
materfal except under circumstances that will, to the best of thefr knowledge and belief, result in
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compliance with any appticable laws and regulations, and ali offers, sales and dellveries of notes by
them will be made on the same terms.

The underwriters have agreed that no invitation may be made to the pubiic in Jersey to subscribe
for the notes.

Neither the issuer nor the underwriters represent that notes may at any time lawfulty be sold in
compliance with any application registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant
to any exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to each issue of notes, the underwriters will be required to comply with such other
additional or modified restrictions, if any, as the Issuer and the underwriters shall agree.

The underwriters will, unless prohibited by applicable taw, furnish to each person to whom they
offer or sell notes & copy of the prospectus as then amended or supplemented or, unless defivery
of the prospectus is required by applicable law, inform each such persen that a copy will be rmade
available upon request. The underwriters are not authorised to give any informatien or to make
any representation not contained in the prospectus in connection with the offer and sale of notes
to which the prospectus relates.

This prospectus may be used by Barclays Bank PLC - the transferor, servicer and trust cash
manager - for offers and sales related to market-making transactions in the notes. Barclays Bank
PLC may act as principal or agent in these transactions. These sales will be made at prices relating
to prevailing market prices at the time of sale. Barclays Bank PLC has no obfigation to make a
market in the notes, and any market-making may be discontinued at any time without notice.

Barclays Bank PLC will be the initial transferor, the servicer, the cash manager for the receivables
trust and the series 05-4 medium term note certificate, the transferor beneficiary and excess
interest beneficiary, the swap counterparty and the lender under the expenses loan agreement.
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Ratings Of The Notes

It is a condition to issuing the class A notes that they be rated in the highest rating category by
two internationally recognised rating agencies.

It is a condition to issuing the class B notes that they be rated at least "A” or its equivalent by
two internationally recognised rating agencies.

It is a condition to issuing the class C notes that they be rated at least “"BBB" or its equivalent by
two internationally recognised rating agencies.

Any rating of your notes by a rating agency will indicate:

e its vlew on the likelihood that you will recelve timely interest payments and principai
payments by the series 05-4 termination date; and

s jts evaluation of the receivables and the availability of the credit enhancement for your notes,
What a rating wlill not indicate is:

e the likelihood that principal payments will be paid on a scheduled redemption date before the
-+ serles 03-4 terminaticn date;

the likelihood that a Pay Out Event will occur;

the likelihacd that a withholding tax will be imposed on noteholders:
the marketability of your notes;

the market price of your notes; or

&  whether your notes are an appropriate investment for you,

A rating will not be a recommendation to buy, seill or hold the notes. A rating may be lowered or
withdrawn at any time,

The issuer will request a rating of the notes from two internationally recognized rating agencles.
Rating agencies other than those requested couid assign a rating to the notes, and thelr rating
could be lower than any rating assigned by a rating agency chosen by the issuer.

Experts
The financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsidiary at 31 December 2004 and 3]
December 2003 and for the year ended 31 December 2004, the period ended 31 December 2003
and for the year ended 14 December 2002 included in this prospectus have been so included in
reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and acccunting,

The balance sheet of Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC as at 16 November 2005 included in
this prospectus, has been so included in reliance on the report of PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in
auditing and accounting. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has glven, and not withdrawn, its consent to the inclusion in this
document of Its report on the balance sheet of Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC as at 16
November 2005 and its report on the consolidated financial statements of Barclaycard Funding FLC
and its Subsidiary at 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2003, and for the year ended 31
December 2004, the period ended 37 December 2003 and the year ended 14 December 2002 in
the form and context in which they are inciuded and has authorlsed the contents of these parts of
this prospectus which comprise their reports for the purposes of paragraph 5.5.4R(2){f) of the
Prospectus Rules. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is responsible for its above mentioned reports dated
16 November 2005 and 6 June 2005, respectively, as part of this prospectus and declare that it has
taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained in these reports are, to the best
of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.
This declaration is included in the prospectus in compliance with item 1.2 of Annex VIl and item
1.2 of Annex I1X of the Prospectus Rules.

Clifford Chance Limited Liability Partnership has given and not withdrawn Its written consent to the
inclusion in this document of their opiniens in the form and context in which they are included, as
set out in the prospectus, declare that it has taken all reasonable care to ensure that the
information contained In these opinions are, to the best of its knowledge in accordance with the
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facts and contain no omission likely to affect its import and have authorised the contents of these
parts of the listing particulars, for the purposes of Regulation B(1)e) of the United Kingdom
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 {Officizl Listing of Securities) Regulations 2001,

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

With respect to the unaudited consolidated financial information of Barclaycard Funding PLC and
Its subsidiary at 30 tune 2005 and for the six-month periods ended 30 lune 2005 and 30 June
2004, included in this prospectus, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that it has applied limited
procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. Its separate
report dated 16 November 2005 appearing herein states that it did not audit and it does not
express an opinion en that unaudited financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reilance on
its report on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review
procedures applied,

PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the Securities
Act for its report on the unaudited financiat information because that report is not a “report” or a
"part” of the registration statement prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within
the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securitles Act.

Subject to this, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has given, and not withdrawn, its consent to the
inclusion In this prospectus of its report on that unaudited consolidated financlal informatlon in the
form and context in which they are Included and has authorized the contents of these parts of this
prospectus which comprise its report for the purposes of paragraph 5.5.4R(2){f) of the Prospectus
Rules. In compliance with item 1.2 of Annex VIl and item 1.2 of Annex 1X of the Prospectus Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is responsible for its above mentloned report as part of this
prospectus and declares that it has tzken all reasonable care to ensure that the information
contained in this report s, to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains
no omisston lkely to affect its import.

Legal Matters
Matters of English law relating to the validity of the issuance of the notes and matters of LS. law
will be passed upon for the Issuer by Ciifford Chance LLP, London, England. Weil, Cotshal &
mManges has acted as counsel to the underwriters with respect to the offering of the notes pursuant
to this prospectus.

Reports To Noteholders
The servicer will prepare monthly and annual reports that will contain information about the notes.
The financial information contained in that part of the listing particulars will not be prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Unless and until indlvidual note
certificates are issued, the reports will be sent to the depository as holder of the notes. Ne reports
will be sent to you,

Where You Can Find More Information
we filed a registration statement for the notes with the SEC. This prospectus is part of the
registration stalement, but the registration staterment Includes additicnal information.

The servicer will file with the SEC all required annual. monthly and special SEC reports and other
information about the notes.

You may read and copy any reports, statements or other information we file at the SEC's public
reference room in Washington, 0.C. You can request copies of these documents, upon payment of
a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC. Please cali the SEC at +1 (800) SEC-0330 for further
information on the operation of the public reference rooms, Qur SEC filings also are avaitable to
the public on the SEC internet site {hitp://www.sec.gov}.

Listing And General Information
The list:ng of the notes on the Jificial List of the UK Listing Authority and admission 10 trading of
the ncies - e raguiatea —a-xer of the London Stock Exchange is expected to be granted before
the <'csi7g cale subject only to the issue of the notes. The listing of the notes will not become
<ffect .o £ a7y of the notes are not issued Z2efore official listing, however, dealings in the notes
~ill oe cermitted By the London Stock Exchange in accordance with its rules.
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The trust cash manager's functions Include producing the monthly investor reports racuired by the
series 05-4 supplement to the declaration of trust and trust cash managernent aame"ne"]‘ These
manthly investor reperts will be avallable on Bloemberg and will he distigses to i t
MTN Issuer.

The issuer confirms that the securitised assets backing the issue of this serfes of notes have
characteristics that demonstrate capacity to produce funds to service any payments due and
pavable on this series of notes. However, investors are advised that this confirmation is based on
the information avaiiable to the issuer at the date of the prospectus and the relevant final terms
and may be affected by future performance of such securitised assets. Consequently, investors are
advised to review carefully the disclosure in the prospectus together with any amendments or
suppiements thereto and other documents incorperated by reference in the prospectus and, in
relation to any series, the relevant final {erms.

The MTN Issuer confirms that the securitised asseis backing the issue of this series of medium
term notes have characteristics that demonstrate capacity to produce funds to service any
payments due and payable on this series of medium term notes. However, investors are advised
that this confirmation is based on the information avaifable to the MTN [ssuer at the date of the
prospectus and the relevant final terms and may be affected by future performance of such
securitised assets. Consequently, investors are advised to review carefully the disclosure in the
prespectus together with any amendments or supplements theretc and other documents
incorporated by reference in the prospectus and, in refation to any series, the relevant final terms.

The fAnancial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsidiary have not been prepared in
accordance with the Internationat Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant tc the procedure
of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 and there may be material differences in the
financial information if this regulation were to be applied to the historical financial Information.
These differences would arise due to the differences between the Internationat Financlal Reporting
Standards adopted pursuant to the procedure of Article 3 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 and US
accounting standards, which Barclaycard Funding PLC has adopted in the preparation of its
financial statements included In this prospectus,

As Barclaycard Funding PLC Is not required to comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards, no Impact analysis has been performed to quantify these differences: however, the
following significant areas would be affected:

e |AS 18, "Revenue™

e |AS 32, "Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation™;
e |AS 38, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™;
e |AS 27, "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’™; and
®  5IC 12, "Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities”,

1AS 18 specifies timing for recognition of revenue including the recognition of dividend distribution
only when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established, which may differ from the
present accounting policy adopted by the company.

IAS 32 requires specific disclosures and presentation of financial instruments and 1AS 39 contalns
specific rules relating to the recegnition and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
including derivatlves and hedging instruments that may be different to the current accounting rules
applied by Barclaycard Funding PLC. Should these standards be applied to the financial assets and
liabilities of Barclay¢ard Funding PLC the balance sheet valuations and classifications may differ to
how they are currently recerded,

IAS 27 and SIC 12 require consolidated financial statements to include ali subsidiaries that are
conirolled by the parent. Control Is defined as the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entitiy so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The application of 1AS 27, SIC 12
and tAS 39 (derecognition) would more than likely require the assets and liabilities and the special
purpose entities relating to Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) through to {Nc. 7} transactions to be
retained on balance sheet and consolidated respectively. This differs from the present accounting
treatment whereby the derecognition of assets and liabilities and non-consclidation of qualifying
special purpose entities were achieved under SFAS 140,

Barclaycard Funding PLC has produced financial statements for year ended 31 December 2004 and
the period ended 31 December 2003 which have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP,
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Pursuant to section 228(1)(b) of the Comgpanies Act 1985, these financial statements are non-
consolidated financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC.

CUSIPs and 1SINs

cusiP ISIN
Class A Notes 318405YAA4 US3B405YAA47
Class B Notes 3B405YARZ US3B405YAB20
Class C Notes 38405YALCO US384057ACH3
Loan Note Certificate XS50236555784

Litigation and Change in Circumstances

The issuer is not, nor has it been, involved in any governmentat, legal or arbltration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware)
which may have, or have had since 7 September 2005 (being the date of Incorporation of the
issuery a significant effect on its financial position or profitabllity.

The MTN f{ssuer is not, nor has it been, involved in any governmental, fegal or arbitration
proceedings {including any such preceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer
is aware} which may have, or have had for the twelve months preceding the date of this
prospectus a significant effect on its financial position or profitability.

Significant or Material Change

There has been (i) no significant change in the financial or trading position of the issuer and (i)
no material adverse change in the financlal position or prospects of the Issuer, since 7 September
2005.

Save as described in the section herein calied “The MTN Issuer’ at page 40 {wlth respect to the
prospective issuance of the series 05-4 mediurn term note certificate), there has been (1) no
significant change in the financial or trading position and (i1} no material adverse change In the
financial position or prospects of the MTN lIssuer, since 31 December 2004,

There has been (i} no significant change in the financial er trading position of the receivables
trustee and (ii) no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the receivabies
trustee, since 29 September 1339,

Documents Available for inspection

Copies of the foliowing documents {and prior to the Closing Date, where indicated, draft copies in
substantially agreed form) may be inspected untli the series 05-4 scheduled redemption date at the
offices of Clifford Chance LLP, 10 Upper Bank Street, London E14 5I), England during usual business
hours on any weekday, apart from Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, by electronic means:

e master definitions schedule;

recefvables securitisation agreement;

deciaration of trust and trust cash management agreement;

series 05-4 supplement to declaration of trust and trust cash management;

beneficiaries servicing agreement;

agreement between beneficiaries

trust section 75 indemnity;

security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management agreement;

series 05-4 MTN Issuer supplement to security trust deed and MTN Issuer cash management
agreement;

expenses loan agreement;

class A swap agreement;

class 8 swar ecreement;

class

- 8 0 8 0 b 00
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naying &gency and zgen greement,

166




trust deed;

deed of charge;

pledge agreement

post maturity cail option;

form of class A global note certificate;

form of class B global note certificate;

form of class C global note certificate;

form of class A individual note certificate;

form of class B individual note certificate;

form of class C individual note certificate;

memarandum and articles of association of the issuer;

repert of independent registered public accounting firm on the issuer;
memorandum and articles of assoclation of the MTN Issuer;

deed of novation;

reguiatory call optlon;

report of the independent registered public accounting firm on the MTN lssuer;
memorandum and articles of association of the recelvables trustee;

consolidated audited accounts of the MTN Issuer for each of the three years preceding the
publication of this prospectus; and

US tax opinion of Clifferd Chance LLP.
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Index Of Terms For Prospectus

Acguired Interchange

addition date

additional accounts

Adjusted investor Interest

adjusted tax basls

Aggregate Investor Indemnity Amount
aqggregate investar interest
agreement between beneficiaries
Available Investor Principal Collections
Average Princlpal Recelvables
Barclaycard Operating Account
Barctaycard Proceeds Account
Barclays

Basic Terms Modifications

business day

Calculatlon Period

cancelled account

Class A

Class A Additional Finance Amount
Class A Adjusted Investor Interest
Class A Available Funds

class A cash management fee

Class A Covered Amount

Class A Debt Amount

Class A Deficiency Amount

Class A Distribution Ledger

Class A Excess Spread

Class A Finance Rate

Class A Fixed Allocation

Class A Fleating Algcation

Class A Initial Investor Interest
Class A Investor Charge-Off

Class A investor Default Amount
Class A Investor Interest

Class A Monthly Distributlon Amount
Class A Monthly Finance Amount
Class A Monthly Principal Amount

Class A Monthly Required Expense Amount

Class A Required Amount

Class A Servicing Fee

Class A Trustee Payment Amount
Class B

Ciass B Additipnal Finance Amount
Ciass 8 Adjusted nvestor interest
Class B Available Funds

Class B cash management fee
Class B Debt Amount

Class B Deficiency Amount
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Appendix A
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directars and Shareholders of:
Cracechurch Card Funding {(No. 11} PLC

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Gracechurch Card Funding (Mo. 11y PLC {"the Company™) as at 16 November 2005 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This
financial statement is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit We conducted our audit of this
statement in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheet is free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the balance
sheet, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overali balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audit of the balance sheet
provides & reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
London, England

16 November 2005




Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 16 November 2005

Notes
Current assets
Cash
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Comman stock {50,000 shares authorised, £1.00 par value, Issued and
outstanding, 50,000 shares comprising 2 fully paid shares and 49,998
calted and quarter paid) (3}

Total fiabilities and shareholders equity

Tre r.otes on ine following page form an integral part of this statement

Bi

Appendix B

12,502

12,502
12,502




Appendix C
Gracechurch Card Funding (No, 11) PLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
16 November 2005

1. Accounting policies
The financial information of Cracechurch Card Funding {No, 11} PLC (the "Company'} has been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of
America (“US GAAP") and In Pounds 5terling {“£") which is the Company's functional currency.
The financial statements are reported In accordance with US GAAP due to the Company's reporting
requirements under the United States Securitles Exchange Act of 1933, These are not the
Company's statutory financial statements for the period from 7 September 2005 (incorporation
date) to 16 November 2005. No statutory finangial statements have been prepared or delivered to
the registrar of companies for any peried since lncorporation an 7 September 200S.

2. Trading activity

The Company did not trade during the perlod from incorporation on 7 September 2005 to
16 November 2005 nor did it receive any income ner did it incur any expenses or pay any
dividends. Consequently, no statement of Income, statement of changes of shareholders’ equity or
staternent of cashflows has been prepared. The Company's business Is the Issuing of the notes and
transactions incidental thereto.

3. Share Capltal

The Company was incorporated on 7 September 2005 with an authorised share capital of £50,000,
comprising 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 each. 2 ordinary shares were allotted for cash, and fully
paid, on incorporation. The name of the Company was changed from Purpleway PLC to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC by way of a special resolutipn passed on 31 October 2005
with effect from 31 October 2005. One share Is hefd by Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited and
one share is held by SFM Corporate Services Limited as share trustee under the terms of a share
declaration of trust. The shares in Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited are in turn held by SFM
Corporate Services Limited as share trustee under the terms of a trust for charitable purposes on
31 October 2005. A further 49.998 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted to Cracechurch
Card (Holdings) Limited.

C-1




Barclaycard Funding PLC
and
subsidiary

Unaudited Financial Statements
For the 6 months ended june 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004
and
Report and Financial Statements
for the years ended
December 31, 2004
December 14, 2003
and

December 14, 2002




Appentix O
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ta the Board of Directors and Shareholders of:
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Barclaycard Funding PLC (“the
Company”) and its subsidiary as of June 30, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
income, of changes in shareholders' equity and of cash flows for each of the six-month periods
ended lune 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004. These interim financial statements are the responsibility of
the Campany's martagemenrt.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of
applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, 1t is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Accounting Oversight Board, the chjective of which is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinien.

Based an our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

We previously audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States), the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004, and the
related consolidated statements of income, of changes in shareholders' equity and of cash flows for
the year then ended (not presented hereln), and I our repart dated § june 2005 we expressed an
ungualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements, In our opinion, the information set
forth In the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of 31 Decermber 2004, is falrly stated in
all materlal respects in relation to the tonsolidated balance sheet from which it has teen derived.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

London, England
16 November 2005
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Appendix E
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary
CONSOULIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT JUNE 30, 2005 AND DECEMBER 31, 2004 (unaudited)

6/30/2005  12/31/2004
£

Notes £
Assets )
Cash 69 339,578 280,583
Accrued finance charges receivable 9 34,455 18,104
Cther assets 49 14,887 14,886
Total assets 389,020 313,573
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
QOther liabilities 4.9 256,728 264,549
Total liabilities 256,728 264,549
Minority interest 13519 13,519

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, £} par vatue; 50,000 shares authorized,
issued, 2 called up and (ully paid and 49,998 quarter

called and paid S 12,502 12,502
Retained earnings 106,271 23,003
Total shareholders’ equity 118,773 35,505
Total liabillties and shareholders” equity 389,020 313,573

Paul Gerard Turner
Director

16 November 2005

The accompanying notes in Appendix F are an integral part of these consolidates financial
staterments
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Appendix £
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED [UNE 30, 2005
AND JUNE 30, 2004 (unaudited)

Notes 2005 2004
£ £

Revenues
Interest income 6 184,762 146,304
Servicing fees 6 12,630,126 10.340.99%
Total revenue 12,814,888 10.487.303

Expenses
Servicing fees 6 12,630,126 10,340,995
Administration expenses 45,808 49,263
Total expenses 12,695,934 10,390,262
Income before provision for income taxes 118,954 97,043
Less: Provision for income taxes 2 35,686 29,112
Net income 83,268 67,928

The accompanying notes in Appendix F are an integral part of these consclidated financial
statements.
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Barcfaycard Funding PLC and Subsidfary

Appendix E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES N SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE 6 MONTHS

ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 AND JUNE 30, 2004 (unaudited)

Notes 2005 2004

I £

Net Income for the perfod 83,268 67,929
Retained earnings brought forward 23,003 16,566
Retained earnings carried forward 106,271 84,495
Common stock brought forward 5 12,502 12,502
Common stock carried forward 12,502 12,502
Tatal shareholders' equity 118,773 96,997

statemeriis

i
f
w

MgEnyng notes in Appendis Foare an integral part of these consoligated financial




Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

Appendix E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

AND |[UNE 30, 2004 (unaudited)

Notes 2005 2004
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 83,268 67,929
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

(used in)/provided by operating activities
(Decrease)/Increase in accrued finance charges

receivable 37 {16351} 2,31
Increase in other assets 49 {1} 18,013)
Decrease in other liabilities 4.5 (7,827) {368,286;
Total adjustrents {24,173} {373,988)

b

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 58,085 (306,053}
Cash flows fram investing activities
Purchase cf investor interest 3 {824,764,942) (404,312.668)
Sale of investor interest 3 824,764,942 404,312,668

Net cash provided by investing activities —

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash 58,085
Cash at beginning of period 280,583
Cash at end of period 339,678

{306,059)

601,315

295,256

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Cash paid for:
Interest —
Taxes —

The accompanying notes in Appendix F are an integral part of these consolidated Rrnancial

statements.
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Appendix F
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information
Barclaycard Funding PLC (the “Company™) was incorporated on August 13, 1990. The Company
commenced business on November 22, 1999. Barclaycard Funding PLC and its Subsidiary,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC (“Subsidiary™}, collectively comprise the “Group”.

The principal purpose of the Group is to raise financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in
a poal of credit card receivables, which s sold to a debt issuer,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

fa) Basis of Presentation

The consolfdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principies
generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP™) for interim financial statements
and in Pounds Sterling {"£"), the currency of the United Kingdom, which is the Group's operating
currency. The financial statements are reported in accordance with US GAAP due to the Group’s
reporting requirements under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Securities Exchange Act”). These financial statements are not statutory financial statements and a
statement in accordance with section 235 of the United Kingdom's Companies Act ("UKCA”) for
the consolidated group is not given, The individuval UK statutory financial statements for
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC for each of the periods ended
December 31, 2004, December 31, 2003 and December 14, 2002 respectively, have been filed with
the registrar of companies in the United Kingdom.

(b} Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC
and, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 1) PLC. Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC Is a special-
purpose vehicle established by Barclays Bank PLC solely to issue asset backed notes denominated in
United States Dellars, the proceeds of which were remitted to Barclaycard Funding PLC in exchange
for a corresponding medium term note. Because the only purpose of Gracechurch Card Funding
{No. 1) PLC is to raise financing for the Group, its financial statements are conselidated with those
of Barclaycard Funding PLC in accordance with the requirements of FIN46-R (footnote Zi).

The total share capital issued by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC is owned by Gracechurch
Card (Heldings) Limited, and its earnings and losses allocable thereto are reported as minarity
interest in the accarnpanying consolidated balance sheet.

Any distributable profits which Cracechurch Card Funding {No. 1) PLC generates is payable to
Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited. Up until, March 17, 2003 Gracechurch Card {Holdings)
Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of Royal Exchange Trust Company Limited. On March 17,
2003, the shares in CGracechurch Card {Holdings) Limited were transferred to SFM Corporate
Services Limited under the terms of a trust for charitable purposes (the “Trust"),

Losses which Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC incurs are allocated firstly to the Trust's eguity
at risk, which is comprised of the Trust's initial capital investment (via Gracechurch Card (Hoidings)
Limited) pius any distributable profits receivable, reflected as minority interest. Losses in excess of
the Trust's equity at risk are aliccated to the note holders.

(c) Asset Derecognition

where Barclaycard Funding PLC is a transferor of financial assets to a Special Purpose Entity
{"SPL"), the assets soid are derecognized and the SPE is not consolidated on its balance sheet
when the assets are: (1) legally isolated from the Group's creditors, (2) the accounting criteria for a
sale are met, ang (3) the SPE is a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) under Statement of
Financial Accou Standards {“SFAS™) 140, When an SPE does not meet the formal definition cf
a QSPE, the : ~ wiether or not 1o consolidate depends on the applicable accounting principles
for non-QSFEs, including a dete-minstion regarding the nature and amount of investment made by
thirg parties i© the 3PE
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(d}  Fincnce Charges
Financz charges receivable are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on an accruat
basis. Finance charges are related to charges on the Invastor Certificates,

(e} Servicing Fee

The Company receives servicing fees from Cracechurch Receivables TJrustee Limited and pavs
Barclays Bank PLC for services associated with the management of receivables and administration
of associated cash flows.

(} Income Taxes

Income taxes for the Group are paid to the tax authorities in the United Kingdom. There are no
deferred taxes for the periods presented in the financial statements, The tax charge is based on an
effective UK corporation tax rate of 30%.

(g) Distribution Policy
Distributions t¢ shareholders are accounted for when approved by the Board of Directors.

(k} Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and Habilities and disclosure of contingencies at the
balance sheet date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses in the reporting perlod.
Actual results may differ from the estimates used In the financial statements,

i} Recent Accounting Developments
(i} Consolidation of Variabie Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No.46 “Consolidation of Variabte Interest Entities -
An interpretation of ARB No. 517 (“FIN 46"). The pronouncement was revised in
December 2003 and re-issued as FIN 46-R. This pronouncement modifies the framewark
for determining consolidation of certain entities that meet the definition of a variable
interest entity (“VIE"). This is met where the entity either does not have sufficient equity
of the appropriate nature to support its expected losses, or its equity Investors lack
certain characteristics which would be expected to be present within a controlling
financial interest. Entitles which do not meet this definition would continue to apply the
voting Interest model.

The provisions of FIN 46-R are immedlately effective for VIEs created after lanuary 31,
2003. The standarg must be applied to all entities beginning in the first fiscal year after
lune 15, 2003. The company has adopted FIN 46-R and the adoption did not have a
material effect on the Group’s financtal position or results of operations.

FIN 46-R requires transitional disclosure, which includes the maximum risk of loss an
entity can Incur in refation to VIEs that it has a significant interest tn. The maximum
exposure to loss represents a “worst case” scenario in the event that all such vehicles
simultaneously fail. it does not provide an indication of ongoing exposure, which is
managed within the Group’s risk management frarmework.

Barclaycard Funding PLC is involved with variable interest entities Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. 1) PLC. Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding
(No. 3) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No.5)
PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (Ne.B) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No.7) PLC and
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 8y PLC.

The proceeds of the series 99-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 1)
PLC to purchase, respectively, corresponding series of mediurmn term ngtes issued by
Barctaycarg Funding PLC. The purchase was deemed a financing transaction between the
two parties and consequently the financial statements of Gracechurch Card Funding (No.
1} PLC were consolidated into those of Barclaycard Funding PLC.

The proceeds of the series 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3, 04-1, 04-Z and §5-1 notes were used
by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC | Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No.4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No.5) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No.6) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No.7) PLC and
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Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 8) PLC respectively to each purchase from Barclaycard
Funding PLC one limited recourse medium term note certificate, being an equitable right
in the investor interest. The structure of these transaction achieved the QSPE status
under LS CAAP and hence Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC | Cracechurch Card
Funding (No. 3) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No.4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding
(Ne.5) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {(No.6) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No.7) and
Gracechurch Carg Funding (Ne. B) PLC are not consolidated.

The variable interest entities that the Company is involved with are used o raise
financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in 2 pool of credit card receivables.

The total assets of these vehicles as at lune 30, 2005 are ©4,169,146.239 (December 31,
2004 : £3,341,988,242} of which £13,519 {December 31, 2004 : £13,515} are already
consolidated by the Group under US GAAP. As at lune 30, 2005 maximum exposure to
loss is £4,150,621,270 (December 31, 2004 : £3,326,475.079).

(il Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financlal instruments with
characteristics of both llabilities and equity, and imposes certain additionat disclosure
requirernents. The provisions of $FAS No. 150 are generally effective for financlal
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise is effective July
1, 2003 and does not have a material effect on the Company’s consoclidated financial
statements.

() interim Fingnciol Data

The interim financial data as of June 30, 2005 and for the six months ended june 30, 2005 and
June 30, 2004 is unaudited; however, In the opinion of the Company, the interim data includes all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the
results for the interim periods.

3. Derecognition of assets and liabllities

Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC

On October 24, 2002, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2} PLC purchased for £643,624,895 the
beneficial interests in @ poof of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £643,624.835 to
the Recelvables Trustee (the “Trustee"), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card recelvables (the "Receivables”} by the Thystee fram
Barclaycard, a divisien of Barcfays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Recejvables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes ameunts received from the Frustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 2) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on October 15, 2007, The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at June 30, 2005.

The £643,624 895 medium term nate certificate has the following interest rates:

®  First interest period October 24 to December 15 2002, interest rate applicable was the
average of one and two month Libor plus 0.19345%

. Second iaterest perizd, month to January 15 2003, interest rate applicable was one month
Lipgr o'us T T3345%
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Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC

On April 8 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding {MNo, 3) PLC purchased for £637 064,407 the beneficial
interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse medium term
note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid

£637,064.407 to the Receivables Trustee {the "Trustee"), an offshore trustee, in the form of an
Investor Certificate, in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables™) by
the Trustee from Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured
a fractional beneficlal interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust . The assets of the

Trust comprise the Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in cennection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outiined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Cracechurch Card
Funding {No. 3) PLC. The Group has no cbligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on March 15, 2008. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at June 30, 2005.

The £637,064,407 medium term note certificate has the foflowing interest rates:

®  First interest period April 8 to June 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the average of two
and three month Libor plus 0.20214%

# Third and subsequent menthly interest periods, interest rate appiicable is three month Libor
plus 0.20214%

Grocechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC

On June¢ 19, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC purchased for £59%448,507 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group pald £599.448,507 to
the Receivables Trustee {the "Trustee™), an offshore trustee, in the forrm of an Investor Certificate,
in arder to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the "Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a divisien of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficlal interest [n the assets of the Receivables Trust . The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee In connection with the investor Interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined befow. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 4) PLC. The Croup has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on June 15, 2006, The receivables and the lmited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at June 30, 2005.

The £599 448,507 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest period Junie 75 to August 15 2003, interest rate appiicable was the average of
one and two month Libor plus 0.14069%

e  Second interest period to September 15, 2003, interest rate applicable fs one month Libor
plus 0.14069%

o  Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.14069%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC

On September 18, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 5) PLC purchased for £628,140,704 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term nete certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Croup paid E628,140.704 to
the Receivables Trustee (the "Trustee™), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables {the “Receivables") by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.
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The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the Investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of Interest,
as outlined below, At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. 5) PLC, The Group has no obiigation to pass on payments that it has not recelved.

The investor certificate Is repayabte on August 15, 2006, The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at June 30, 2005,

The £628,140,704 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e  First interest pericd September 18 to Navember 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the
average of one and two month Libor pius 0.1129%

®  Second and subsequent monthly interest perigds, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.112%%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6} PLC

On March 11, 2004, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC purchased for £404,312,668 the
beneficial interests in a pooi of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Croup paid £404,312,668 to
the Recetvables Trustee (the “Trustee™), an offshore trustee, in tha form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card recelvables {the "Recelvables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractfonal
beneficlal interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 6) PLC the rate of return on which s at a varlable rate of Interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certlficate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 6) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that It has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on February 17, 2007, The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at june 30, 2005.

The £404,312,668 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest pericd March 11 to May 17 2004, interest rate applicable was the average of
two and three month Libor plus 0.1676%

s  Second and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.1076%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC

On November 23, 2004, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC purchased for £405,405.405 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day. the Group paid £405,405,405 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee™), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investar Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables™} by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounis received from the Trustee in conngction with the investor interest to
Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC the rate of return on which Is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below, At the redemption of the investar certificate, the Croup will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 7) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that It has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on November 15, 2007. The receivables and the limited

recourse medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at June 30,

2005,

The £405,405,405 medium term riote certificate has the following interest rates: -

e  First interest pericd November 23 2004 to January 18 2005, interest rate applicable was the
average of two and three month Libor plus 0.0647%
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e Second and subsequent menthly interest perlods, Interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.0647%

Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 8} PLC

On June 21, 2005, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 8} PLC purchased for £824,764,942 the
beneficlal interests in @ pool of credit card recejvables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Croup paid £824,764.542 to
the Receivables Trustee (the "Trustee”}, an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investar Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust cemprise the
Receivahles acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in conneclion with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 8) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
recefved on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. 8) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on Jume 15, 2008. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at [une 30, 2005,

The £824,764,942 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e  First interest period June 21 2005 to August 15 2005, interest rate applicable was the average
of one and two manth Libor plus 0.0530%

®  Second interest perfod from August 15 2005 to September 15 2005, interest rate applicable is
one menth Libor plus 0.0530%

®  Third and subsequent monthly Interest periods, interest rate applicable is three month Liber
plus 0.0530%

The Investor Certificates are secured by a pool of linited Kingdom credlt card receivables that have
been equitably assigned by Barclays 8ank PLC to the Trust The Trust uses a portion of the interest
and principal payments that it receives on the credit card receivables held by it in trust to repay
principal and interest amounts on the Investor certificates.

The payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the Trust is dependent
upon payment of interest and repayment of princlpal due under the credit card receivables held by
the Trust, and is therefore subject to the risk of non-payment of the credit card receivables.

All of the credit card receivables in the Trust were originated by Barclays Bank PLC and the
following factors help mitigate the risks associated with the failure of customers to settle financial
obligations:

1) The use of sophisticated credit scoring systems to underwrite account holder sefection,

2} The extremely well seasoned nature of the pool of credit card recelvables.

3 The high amount of yield generated by the poal,

4)  The gecgraphic spread inherent in the pool.

Credit card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the pool of credit card receivables and the
rate of defaults by cardhelders may result from a variety of social, legal, political and economic

factors in the United Kingdom, There ¢an be no assurance that changes in soclal, iegal, paiitical
and economic factors will not have a matertal effect on the Group's fulure performance.
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4,  Other Assets / Other Liabilities
The other assets and other liabllities balances at June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004 includes
the following:

06/30/2005 12/31/2004

£ £
Other Assets

Prepayments 14,887 14,886
14,887 14,886

Cther Liabilities
Taxatlon creditor 96,525 62,759
Due te Gracechurch Card Funding {No.7) PLC — 49,000
OCther accruals 20,203 12,790
Dividend 140,000 140,000
256,728 264,549

5. Common Stock
The common stock at June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004 was as follows:

6/30/2005 1273172004
E £

Barclaycard Funding PLC

Authorised:

37,500 A ordinary shares of £1 each and 12,500 B ordinary shares of £}

each 50,000 50.000
Issued:

2 A ordinary shares of £1 each allotted called up and fully paid 2 2
37498 A ordinary shares of £1 each allotted and quarter called and

pald ’ %375 9,375
12,500 B ordinary shares of £1 each allotted and guarter called and

paid 3,125 3,125
Qrdinary shares of £1 each 12,502 12,502

Barclays Bank PLC holds 75% of the issued share capltal of Barclaycard Funding PLC representing
51% issued voting share capital and 43% entitlement to distributable profits.

Structured Financial Management Limited own 49% of the issued voting share capital and are
entitled te 51% of the distributable profit.

6.  Related Party Transactions

The Group considers related parties to be entities which the Croup can significantly influence or
has an ownership intérest in that allows it Influence to an extent that the other party might be
prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. Examples of related parties include
affillates of the company; entities for which investments are accounted far by the equity method by
the company; trusts for the benefit of employees, principal owners of the enterprise; its
management: and members of the immediate families of principal owners of the enterprise and its
managerment.

Parties are considered to oe reiated if one party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is conirolled by, or 15 under common contral with an enterprise.

darcosec Limited and Barometers Limited are Barclays Bank PLC group companies whose business
is the provision of corporate directorship services for Barclays Bank subsidiaries. The Group enters
into various transactions with affiliates and the following are the balances refated to transactions
with affiliates:
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6/30/2005 12/31/2004
£ £

Assets
Cash - {(Barclays Bank PLC) 339,678 280,583

For the 8 month periods ended june 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004 the following balances refate to
transactions with affiliates:

2005 2004
£ E

Income / Expense
Interest income - (Barclays Bank PLC) 184,762 146,304
Servicing income ~ (Barclays Bank PLC) 12,630,126 10,340,999
Servicing expense ~ (Barclays Bank PLC} 12,630,126 10,340,999

During the period ended June 30, 2005, the Company sold a £824,764,942 investor interest in the
Receivables Trust to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 8) PLC acting as a condult for resultant
revenue streams and accrued £999,329 interest to Cracechurch Card Funding {No. 8} PLC,

7. Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilitles
There were no outstanding capital cemmitments, guarantees or contingent liabilities at June 30,
2005 and December 31, 2004,

8, Debt Maturity Analysis

6/30/2005  12/31/2004
£ £
Less than one year — —

9.  Fair Values of Firancial Instruments

Disclosures in the table below are in accordance with SFAS No. 107. "Disclosures about Fair Valug
of Financial Instruments”.

Fair values have been estimated using quoted marked prices where avallable, Where no ready
markets exist and hence quoted market prices are not available, appropriate techniques are used to
estimate falr values which take account of the characteristics of the Instruments, including the
expected future cash flows, market interest rates and prices available for simitar instruments. There
were no instruments lisied below that quoted market prices were used to estimate fair value, the
instruments are valued on a discounted cashflow basis.

The estimated fair value and recorded carrying values of the financial instruments as of june 30,
2005 and December 31, 2004 are as follows:

6/30/2005 673072005  12/31/2004  12/31/2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Vafue Amount Value
£ £ £ £

Non-trading assets .
Cash 339,678 339,678 280,583 280,583
Accrued finance charges receivable 34,455 34,455 18,104 18,104
Other assets 14,887 14,887 14,886 14,886

Non-trading liabilities

Other liabilities 256,728 256,728 264,549 264,549

The Group had no trading assets or liabilities at fune 30, 2005 and Decemnber 31, 2004,




10. Subsequent Events
The following subsequent events have occurred or are planned in respect of certain variable
interest entlties in which Barclaycard Funding PLC is Invedved In.

Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 9) PLC

On September 20, 2005, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 9) PLC purchased for £815,239,595 the
beneficlal interests in a poot of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Croup. On the same day, the Group paid £815239,545 to
the Receivables Trustee (the "Trustee”), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables {the “Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust . The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard,

The Croup passes amounts recelved from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 9) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable raie of interest,
as outlined befow. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 8) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The investor certificate is repayable on September 15, 2008.
The £815,239,545 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:—

@  First interest period from 20 Septernber 2005 to 15 November 2005, and for each of the 15
December 2005 and the 17 January 2006 interest payment dates, the interest rate applicable
was the average of three and four month LIBOR - plus (.0551%.

& for the fourth and subsequent monthly interest periods up to and including luly 2008, the
interest rate applicable will be three month LIBOR - plus 0.0553%.

@ For the interest period commencing in tuly 2008, the interest rate applicable will be two
month LIBOR - plus 0.0551%.

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 10) PLC

On October 20, 2005, Gracechurch Card Funding (No, 10} PLC purchased for £1.273,702,000 the
beneficial interests In a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £1,273,702,000 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee™), an offshore trustee, In the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables”} by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC, This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust . The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Croup passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 10} PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of
Interest, as outlined below, At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Croup will pass
amounts received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to
Cracechurch Card Funding {No. 10) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on paymernts that it
has not received,

The investor certificate is repayable in October, 2010,
The £1,273,702,000 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates.—

@  First intersgl period from 20 September 2005 to 15 December 2005, the interest rate
applicable w3s the average of two and three month LIBOR — plus 0.1228%.

® Forotre sciora interest perrod from 15 December 2005 to 16 lanuary, the interest rate
appucacle will be the average of two and three month LIBOR - plus 0.1228%.

@ For eacr subseguent Interest perods, the inlerest rate applicable is three month LIBOR - plus
0.1228%
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Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC

Barclaycard Funding PLC is involved with a variable interest entity Gracechurch Card Funding {No.
11) PLC which is planning to purchase for US$ 1 billian the beneficial Interest in a pool of credit
recejvables via the purchase of a limited recourse medium term note certificate from the Group.
The planned purchase is intended to take pface in November 2005,




Appendix G
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

In our opinicn, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of changes In shareholders’ equity and consolidated
staternent of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Barclaycard
Funding PLC and Subsidiary (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2004, period
ended December 31, 2003 and the year ended Cecemper 14, 2002 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted In the United States of America, These financlal statements are the
responsibllity of the Group's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based onm our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standargs of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

London, England
6 June 2005




Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

Appendix H

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND DECEMBER 21, 2003

Assets

Cash

Accrued finance charges receivable
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities

Accruals and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interest

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock, £1 par value; 50,000 shares authorized,
issued, 2 called up and fully paid and 49,998 cailed and

quarter paid
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

Total Jiabilities and shareholders’ equity

Notes

8, 11
11

6, 11

2004 2003
12/31/2004  12/31/2003
£ £
280,583 601,315
18,104 10,995
14,886 6,876
313,573 619,186
264,549 576,599
264,549 576,599
13,519 13,519
12,502 12,502
23,003 16,566
35,505 25,068
313,573

618,186

The accompanying notes in Appendix | are an integral part of these consolidated fnanciai

statements.
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Appendix H
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 371, 2004, PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

Notes 2004 2003 2002
Revenues £ £ £
Interest income 8 270,450 273,109 24,634,224
Servicing fees 8 21,603,736 11,670,803 4575734
Realised foreign exchange gain - — 54,588,608
Other Income — — 11,667
Tatal revenue 21,874,186 11,943,912 83810,233
Expenses
Interest expense 8 —_ 14,772 24,077 409
Realised loss on derivatives 8 — — 54,583,230
Servicing fees 8 21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
Administration expenses 61,255 141,058 541,838
Total expenses 21,664,551 11,826,633 83778211
Income before provisien for income

taxes 208,195 117,279 32,022

Less: Provisicn for income taxes 3 (62,758) (32,103) (6,850}
Net Income before minority interest 146,437 85,176 25,172
Minority interest, net of income taxes — 9,764 {8.:455)
Net income 146,437 94 940 16,717

The accompanying notes & Appencix | are an integral parl of these consoidatea financial
Taterments,
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Appendix H
Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2004, PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

2004 2003 2002

Notes £ £ £

Net income for the period 146,437 94,940 16,717

Retained earnings brought forward 16,566 21,626 17,405

Dividend (140,0000 (100,000} {12,500)

Retained earnings carried forward 23,003 16,566 21626

Common stock brought forward 7 12,502 12,502 12,502

. Common stock carried forwary 12,502 12,502 12,502
Total shareholders' equity 35,505 29,068 34,128

The accompanying notes in Appendix | are an integral part of these consolidated financial
staternents.
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Barclaycard Funding PLC and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004,
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconclle net income
to net cash {used in}/provided by
operating activities

Minority Interest

{Increase} in accrued finance charges
recelvable

(Increase)/Decrease in other assets

Increase/{Decrease} in accrued
interest payable

(Decrease)/Iincrease in accruals and
other liabilities excluding
dividends

Total AdJustments

Net cash (used in)/provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Invesior Interest

Sale af Investor Interest

Intercompany deposit redeemed
from Barclays Bank PLC

Net cash provided by investing
activities

Cash flaws from financlng activitles
Repayment of intercompany notes

Dividend paid
Net cash used In financing activities

Met (decrease)/increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Cash paid for:
Interest
Taxes

Appendix H

Notes 2004 2003 2002
£ £ £

146,437 94,940 16,717

— (9.764) 2,455
11 {7.109) (1.649) {9,346)

6, 11 {8.010) (6.876) 396,535
— {2,231.313)
6 11 (352,050} 376,884 (1,367,855)
(367.169) 358,595 (3,204,124)
(220,732) 453,535 (3,187,407)

4 (809,718,073) (1,864,653,618)  [643,624,893)

4 809,718,073  1,864,653,618 643,624,895

5 — — 607,050,000

— — 607,050,000

5 — —  (607,055,377)
(100.000) {12,500) —

(300,000) (12,500)  (607,055,377)

(320.732) 441,035 (3.192,784)

601,315 160,280 3,353.064

280,583 601,315 160,280

— 14,772 28,002,153

40,688 3,388 i3z

The accompanying notes in Appengix | are an Integral part of these consolidatea financial

statemeniis.
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Appendix [
Barclaycard Funding PLC and subsidiary
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004,
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 371, 2003 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 14, Z002)

1. General information

Barctaycard Funding PLC (the “Company”)} was incorporated on August 13, 1990, The Company
commenced business on November 22, 1999, Barciaycard Funding PLC and its Subsidiary,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC (“Subsidiary™), collectively comnprise the “Group”.

The principal purpose of the Group is to raise financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in
a pool of credit card receivables, which Is sold to a debt Issuer,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

{a)  Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") and in Pounds Sterling {"£™), the
currency of the United Kingdom, which is the Group's operating currency. The financial statements
are reported in accordance with US GAAP due to the Group's reporting regulrements under the
United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Securities Exchange Act™). These
financial statements are not statutory financial statements and a statement in accordance with
section 235 of the United Kingdom's Companies Act {"UKCA") for the consolidated group Is not
given. The individual UK statutory financial statements for Barclaycard Funding PLC and
Gracechurch Card Funding (Nc. 1) PLC for the period ended December 31, 2003 and year ended
December 14, 2002, have been filed with the registrar of companies in the United Kingdom.

(b) Consclidgtion

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Barclaycard Funding PLC
and Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1} PLL. Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC Is a special-
purpose vehicle established by Barclays Bank PLC solely to issue asset backed notes denominated in
United States Dollars (see footnote 5), the proceeds of which were remitted to Rarclaycard Funding
PLC In exchange for a corresponding medium term note. Because the only purpose of Gracechurch
Card Funding (No. 1) PLC is to raise financing for the Group, its financial statements are
consolidated with those of Barclaycard Funding PLC, in accordance with the requirements of FIN
46-R (footnote 2n).

The total share capitai issued by Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC is owned by Gracechurch
Card (Heldings) Limited, and its earnings and losses allccable thereto are reported as minority
interest in the acrompanying consolidated income statement, and assets and liabilitles in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Any distributable profits which Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 1) PLC generates is payable to
Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited. Up until, March 17. 2003 Gracechurch Card (Holdings)
Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of Royal Exchange Trust Company Limited. On March 17,
2003. the shares in Gracechurch Card (Holdings) Limited were transferred to SFM Corporate
Services Limited under the terms of a trust for charitable purposes (the "Trust™).

Losses which Gracechurch Card Funding (No, 1} PLC incurs are allocated firstty to the Trust's equity
at risk, which is comprised of the Trust's injtial capital investment {via Gracechurch Card (Holdings}
Limited ) plus any distributable profits receivable, reflected as minority interest. Losses in excess of
the Trust's eguity at risk are aliocated to the note holders.

fc) Asset Derecognition

Where Barclaycard Funding PLC is a transferor of financial assets to a Special Purpese Entity
("SPE"), the assets sold are derecognized and the SPE is not consolidated on its balance sheet
when the assets are: (1) legally isolated from the Group's creditors, (2) the accounting criteria for a
sale are met, and (3) the SPE is a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS") 140. When an SPE does not meet the formal definition of
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a QSPE, the decision whether or not to consolidate depends on the applicable accounting principles
for non-QSPEs, including a determination regarding the nature and amount of investment made by
third parties In the SPE.

{di Foreign Currency Transiation

All foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated Into Pounds Sterling at the exchange rates
prevalling at the end of the period. Interest Income and expense denominated in foreign currencles
are translated into Pound Sterling at the exchange rates in force when the transaction occurred.
Foreign currency translation effects are reflected on the face of the income statement, Foreign
currency transactions are economically hedged into Pounds Sterling to offset exposure to
fluctuating currency exchange rates. Although these instruments offset exposures they do not
qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133 “"Accounting for Derivative instruments and
hedging activities".

fe) Derivatives

The derfvative instrument was a cross currency swap, and was used by the Group to minimize
currency risk associated with its financing activities denominated in United States Dollars {USD).
Although this instrument was a hedge from an economic perspective, it did not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS Ne. 133 due to the lack of documentation requirements under 5FAS No.
133. The derivative was recorded on the balance sheet at falr value with changes refiected in the
income staterment. The derivative was transacted sirmultaneously with the purchase or issuance of
the undertying funding instrument. The swap was not held for trading purposes and matured i
042,

() Finonce Charges

Finance charges recelvable are recogaized In the consolidated financial statements on an accrual
basls. Finance charges are primarily related to interest and other charges on the intercompany
notes {footnote 6) and relevant charges on the Investor Cerificates (footnote 4).

{g) interest Expenses
Interest expenses are recognized in the consoiidated financial statements on an accruals basis.
Interest expenses primarily relate to the intercompany notes.

fh} Servicing Fee
The Cormpany receives a servicing fee from the Receivables Trust and pays Barclays Bank PLC for
services associated with the management of receivables and administration of associated cash flows.

() Income Taxes

Income taxes for the Group are paid to the tax authorities in the United Kingdom. There are no
deferred taxes for the periods presented in the financial statements, The tax charge is based on an
effective UK corporation tax rate of 30%.

(i} Distribution Policy
Distributions to shareholders are accounted for when approved by the Board of Directors.

(k) issue Cosis
The portion of the direct costs associated with the issue of the notes by the Subsidiary that are
attributable to the Group are capitalized and are amortized over the expected life of the notes.

i} Funding Instruments
Asset backed notes are stated al amortlsed cost restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the
nalance sheet c2%e.

fm) s of Esumiies

The preparstor of firancial siziements reguires management 1o wmake estimares and assumptions
that affect te reperied amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the
balance sheet date anc the riported amount of revenues and expenses in the reporting period,
Actual results may differ from ire estimates used in the financiai statements,
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{n) Recent Accounting Developments

i

(i

Consotidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No.46 “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities -
An Interpretation of ARB No, 51" (“FIN 46"). The pronouncement was revised in
December 2003 and re-issued as FIN 46-R. This pronouncement modifies the framework
for determining comsolidation of certain entities that meet the definition of a variabie
interest entity (“VIE”). This is met where the entity either does not have sufficient equity
of the appropriate nature to support its expected josses, or its equity investors lack
certain characteristics which would be expected to be present within a controlling
financial interest. Entities which do not meet this definition would continue to apply the
voting Interest model.

The provisions of FIN 46-R are immediately effective for \ViEs created after lanuary 31,
2003, The standard must be apptied to all entities beginning in the first fiscal year after
June 15, 2003, The Company has adopted FIN 46-R and the adoption did not have a
material effect on the Group’s financlal position or results of operations.

FIN 46-R requires transitional disclosure, which includes the maximum risk of loss an
entity can incur in relation to VIEs that it has a significant interest in. The maximum
exposure to loss represents a "worst case” scenaric in the event that all such vehicles
simultaneously fail, It does not provide an indication of ongoing exposure, which is
managed within the Group’s risk management framework,

Barclaycard Funding PLC is involved with variable interest entities Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 1) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {No, 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding
(No, 3) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4} PLC, Gracéchurch Card Funding (No. 5)
PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding [No. ) PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding {No, 7) PLC.

The proceeds of the serles 99-1 notes were used by Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 1)
PLC to purchase, respectively, corresponding serfes of medium term notes issued by
Barclaycard Funding PLC. The purchase was deemed a financing transaction between the
two parties and consequently the financial statements of Gracechurch Card Efunding {No.
1) PLC were consolidated into those of Barclaycard Funding PLC. The series 99-1 notes
are no longer in issue (see footnote 5).

The proceeds of the series 02-1, 03-1, 03-2, 03-3, 04-1 and 04-2 notes were used by
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (Mo, 4) PLE, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5} PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC and Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC
respect/vely to each purchase from Barclaycard Funding PLC one limited recourse
medium term note certificate, being an equitable right in the invester interest. The
structure of these transaction achieved the QSPE status under US GAAP and hence
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding {Ne. 3) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 5) PLC,
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC and Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC are
not consolidated.

The wvariable interest entities that the Company s fnvolved with are used to raise
financing via the purchase of a beneficial interest in a pool of credit card receivables.

The total assets of these wvehicles as at December 31, 2004 are £3,341,988242
(December 31, 2003 : £2,524,067,873) of which £13,519 (December 31, 2003 : £13,519)
are already consolidaled by the Croup under US GAAP. As at December 31, 2004
maximum exposure to loss is £3,326,475.079 (December 31, 2003 ; £2,512,778,653).

Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity

ln May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 130, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instrurnents with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financlal instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity, and imposes certain additional disclosure
requirements. SFAS No.150 is effective for financial instruments entered Inte or modified
after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective luly 1, 2003, and does not have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated financla! staterments.
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3. Change in Fiscal Year

During the period to 31 December 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved a change in
the fiscal year end of the Company from December 14 to December 31 to align the fiscal year end
with that of Barclays Bank PLC. As the period from December 15, 2002 to December 31, 2002 is
less than ane month It has heen covered In the annual report for December 31, 2003,

In compiling the consolidated statement of changes in sharehoiders' equity and the consolidated
statement of cashflows for the year to December 31, 2003 the opening balances are as at
December 15, 2002.

4. Derecognition of assets and liabilities

Gracechurch Cord Funding (No. 2} PLC

On October 24, 2002, Gratechurch Car¢ Funding {No. 2) PLC purchased for £643,624,895 the
beneficial Interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificale from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £643,624,895 to
the Receivables Trustee {the "Trustee"), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card recelvables (the "Receivables") by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC the rate of return on which Is at a varlable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee te Gracechurch Card
Funding (No. 2) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on October 15, 2007. The receivables and the {imited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,
2004,

The £643,624,895 medium term note certlficate has the following interest rates:

®  First interest perlod October 24 to December 15 2002, interest rate applicable was the
average of one and two month Libor plus 0.19345%

&  Second interest period. month to lanuary 15 2003, interest rate applicable was one month
Libor plus 0.19345%

&  Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable Is three month Libor
plus 0.19345%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC

On April 8, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 3} PLC purchased for £637,064,407 the beneficial
interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a I'mited recourse medium term
note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £637,064,407 to the Receivables
Trustee (the "Trustee”), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate, in order te fund
the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables™) by the Trustee from Barclaycard, a
division of Barclays Bank PLL. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional beneficial interest
in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the Receivables acquired
from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Cracechurch Card Funding (No. 3) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variabte rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Croup will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. 3) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on March 15, 2008. The receivables and the limited recourse
miedium terrs ncte certificaie hgve peen derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,

2204,

e 837,044 407 meaiurs tevm noie certificate has the following interest rates:

®  Fstoonterist perioc Aprid £ 1o June 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the average of two
and three month Liocr s 0.20214%
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e Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate apolicable is three month Libor
plus 0.20214%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC

On June 19, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 4) PLC purchased for £5994485G7 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
meditsm term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £599,448,507 to
the Receivables Trustee {the "Trustee™, an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables™) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficiai interest in the assets of the Recelvables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 4) PLC the rate of return on which is at a varlable rate of interest,
as outlined below, At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of Its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Cracechurch Card
Funding (No. 4) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has pot received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on June 15, 2006. The receivables and the limited recourse
medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,
2004,

The £599,448,507 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

&  First interest pericd lune 19 to August 15 2003, Interest rate applicable was the average of
one and two month Libor plus 0.14069%

®»  Second interest perlod to September 15, 2003. interest rate applicable Is one month Libor
plus 4.14069%

»  Third and subsequent monthly interest periods, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.14069%

Gracechurch Card Funding (No, 5) PLC

On September 18, 2003, Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 5) PLC purchased for £628,140,704 the
beneficial interests In a poot of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group, On the same day, the Group paid £628,140,704 to
the Receivables Trustee (the "Trustee”), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card recelvables (the “Receivables™) by the Trustee from
Barctaycard, a divislon of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
bereficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the invester interest to

Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 5) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,

as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts

received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card

Funding (No. 5) PLC. The Croup has no ebligation to pass on payments that it has not recelved.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on August 15, 2006. The recetvables and the limited recourse

medium term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,

2004.

The £628,140,704 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

®  First interest period Septermber 18 ta Novernber 15 2003, interest rate applicable was the
average of one and two month Libor plus 0.1129%

e  Second and subsequent monthly interest periads, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.1129%

Grocechurch Card Funding (No, 6) PLC

0On March 1%, 2004, Gracechurch Card Funding (Mo, 6) PLC purchased for E404,312,668 the
beneficial interests In 2 pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limiied recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group., On the same day, the Group paid £404,312,668 to
the Receivables Trustee (the "Trustee), an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
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in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables {the “Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trusiee secured a fraclional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate, the Group will pass amounts
received on repayment of its share of the Investor interest from the Trustee to Gracechurch Card
Funding {No. &) PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certificate is repayable on February 17, 2007. The receivables and the limited recourse

mediur term note certificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at December 31,

2004.

The £434,312,668 medium term note certificate has the following Interest rates:

e First interest period March 11 to May 17 2004, interest rate applicable was the average of
two and three month Liber plus 0.1076%

o  Second and subsequentt monthly interest periods, interest rate applicabie is three menth Libor
plus 0.1076%

Gracechurch Cord Funding (No. 7) PLC

On November 23, 2004, Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7} PLC purchased for £405405,405 the
beneficial interests in a pool of credit card receivables via the purchase of a limited recourse
medium term note certificate from the Group. On the same day, the Group paid £405,405405 to
the Receivables Trustee (the “Trustee"). an offshore trustee, in the form of an Investor Certificate,
in order to fund the purchase of credit card receivables (the “Receivables”) by the Trustee from
Barclaycard, a division of Barclays Bank PLC. This payment to the Trustee secured a fractional
beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust. The assets of the Trust comprise the
Receivables acquired from Barclaycard.

The Group passes amounts received from the Trustee in connection with the Investor interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC the rate of return on which is at a variable rate of interest,
as outlined below. At the redemption of the investor certificate. the Group will pass ameunts
received on repayment of its share of the investor interest from the Trustee to Cracechurch Card
Funding (No. 7} PLC. The Group has no obligation to pass on payments that it has not received.

The Investor Certlficate -is repayable on November 15, 2007, The recelvables and the limited
recourse medium term note ceriificate have been derecognised in the balance sheet as at
December 31, 2004.

The £405,405,405 medium term note certificate has the following interest rates:

e First interest period November 23 2004 to January 18 2005, interest rate applicable was the
average of two and three month Libor plus 0.0647%

o Second and subsequent monthly Interest periods, interest rate applicable is three month Libor
plus 0.0647%

The Investor Certificates are secured by a pool of United Kingdom credit card receivables that have
been equitably assigned by Barclays Bank PLC to the Trust. The Trust uses a portion of the interest
and principal payments that it receives on the credit card receivables held by it in trust to repay
principal and interest amounts on the investor certificates. .

The payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the Trust is dependent
upon payment of interest and repayment of princlpal due under the credit card recelvables held by
the Trust, and is therefore subject to the risk of non-payment of the credit card receivables.

All of the credit card receivables in the Trust were originated by Barclays Bank PLC and the
following factors help mitigate the risks associated with the failure of customers to settle financiat
zoligeticns

{1} Tre L3s of sopnisticates (rzdit storing systems to underwnilé aZcount nolder selection.
(2} Tha =viramely well seasc- =2 ~ature of the pool of credit card receivabtes.

. : R enerared oy b
e, emourt o1 generaied Dy tn

Y

pool.
) Tae gecyrapnic spreac innerent i the poo

-6




Credit card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the pooi of credit card receivables and the
rate of defautts by cardholders may result from a variety of social. legal, political and economic
factors in the United Kingdom. There can be no assurance that changes in social, legal, political
and economic factors will not have a material effect on the Group's future performance.

5. lntercompan); notes

On November 23, 1993, the Company paid £607,050,000 to the Receivables Trustee. This payment
to the Trustee secured a fractional beneficial interest in the assets of the Receivables Trust.

The Receivables were accounted for as an asset on the Barclays Bank PLCs balance sheet and
therefore in substance the Company recorded its payment to the Trustee as intercompany notes.

Interest on the notes was payable up to the redemption date as follows:

£546,345,000 - 3 menth LIBOR plus ¢.2375%

£30,352,000 - 3 month LIBOR plus 0.53 %

£30,352,000 - 3 month LIBOR plus 1.00 %

On November 159, 2002 notes amounting to £ 607,050,000 were redeemed in full generating a loss
of £5377.

The intercompany notes were secured by a pool of United Kingdom credlt card receivables that
have been equitably assigned by Barclays Bank PLC to the Trust. The Trust used a portion of the
interest and principal payments that It received on the credit card receivables held by it In trust to
repay principat and interest amounts on the investor certificate.

The payment of interest and repayment of principal on the advance to the Trust was dependent
upon payment of interest and repayment of principal due under the credit card recelvables held by
the Trust, and was therefore subject to the risk of non-payment of the credit card receivables.

All of the credit card recelvables in the Trust were originated by Barclays Bank PLC and the
following factors help mitigate the risks associated with the failure of customers to setile financial
obligations:

{1} The use of sophisticated credit scoring systemns to underwrite account holder selection.

{2) The extremely well seasoned nature of the pool of credit card receivables.

{3) The high amount of yield generated by the pool,

(4) The geographic spread inherent in the pooel.

Credit card use, payment patterns, amounts of yield on the poot of credit card receivables and the
rate of defaults by rardholders may result from a variety of social, legal, political and economic
factors in the United Kingdom. There ¢an be ne assurance that changes in social, legal, political
and economic factors will not have a material effect on the Group's future performance.

6. Other Assets / Accruals and Other Liabilities
The other assets and accruals and other liabiities balances at December 31, 2004 and December
31, 2003 include the following:

2004 2603
£ £
Other Assets

Prepayments and administrative expenses 14,886 1,371
Tax debtor — 5,505
14,886 6.876

Accruals and Other Liabilities
Taxation creditor 62,759 40,688
Bank Loans interest free — 16,920
Due to Barclays Bank PLC — 256,402
Due to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 2) PLC — 102,624
Due to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 7) PLC 49,000 —
Other Accruals 12,790 59,965
Dividend 140,000 100,000

264,549 576,599




7. Common Stock

2004 2003
£ £

Barclaycard Funging PLC
Authorised:
37,500 A ordinary shares of £1 each and 12,500 B ordinary shares of £1 each 50,000 50,000
Issued:
2 A ordinary shares of £1 each allotted, called up and fully paid 2 2
37,498 A ordinary shares of E1 each allotted and called and quarter paid 9375 9,375

12,500 B ordinary shares of £1 each allotted and called and quarter paid 3125 3325
Crdinary shares of £1 each 12,502 12,502

Barclays Bank PLC own 75% of the issued share capital of Barclaycard Funding PLC representing
51% issued voting share capital and 49% entitlement to distributablie profits.

Structured Financial Management Limited own 49% of the issued voting share capital and are
entitled to 51% of the distributable profit.

8. Related Party Transactions

The Group considers related parties to be entitles which the Group can significantly influence or
has an ownership interest in that allows It influence to an extent that the other party might be
prevented from fully pursuing ils own separate Interests. Examples of related parties include
affiliates of the company; entitles for which investments are accounted for by the equity method by
the company; trusts for the benefit of employees, principal owners of fhe enterprise; its
management; and members of the immediate families of principal owners of the enterprise and its
managernent.

Parties are considered to be related if one party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or s under common control with an enterprise.

Barcoser Limited and Barometers Limited are Barclays Bank PLC group companies whose business
is the provision of corporate directorship services for Barclays Bank subsldiaries.

The Company enters into various transactions with affiliates. At December 31, 2004 and December
31, 2003, in addition to the Intercompany notes, the following are the balances related to
transactions with affiliates:

12/31/2004 12/31/2003

£ £
Assets
Cash - {Barciays Bank PLC) 280,583 601,315
Liabilities
Accruals and Qther Liabilities - (Barclays Bank PLC) 68,600 322322

For the year to December 31, 2004, period to December 31, 2003 and year to December 14, 2002
the following balances relate to transactions with affiliates.

2004 2003 2002
£ £ £

Income / Expense
Interest income - (Barclays Bank PLC) 270450 273,109 24,634,224
Interest expense — {Barclays Bank PLC) —_ 14,772 24,077 409
Servicing fees income - (Barclays Bank PLC) 21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
Servicing fees expense - (Barclays Bank PLC) 21,603,736 11,670,803 4,575,734
Realised loss on derivatives — {Barclays Bank PLC) -—_ - 54,583,230

During the vear, the Company sold a £404,312,668 investor interest in the Receivables Trust to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC and a £405405,405 investor interest in the Receivables
Trust to Gracechurch Card Funding {No. 7) PLC acting as a conduit for resuitant revenue streams,
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accrued £15.476,007 interest to Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 6) PLC and £2,070,33) interest to
Gracechurch Card Funding (No, 7) PLC.

9. Capital Commitments and Cantingent Liabitities
There were no outstanding capital commitments, guarantees or contingent liabilities at December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,

10. Derivatives and Financial Instruments

The Group enters Into cross currency swaps. The purpose of these transactions is to manage the
currency risk arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance.

The net loss/gain reflected is attributable to the recognition of gains/losses on derivatives entered
into for hedging purposes (economic hedges). Because the hedge documentation requirements
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities™ ("SFAS No. 133") were not met, the Group is reguired to record the
changes in the fair value of the derivatives in the income statement.

Currency risk - all of the Group's assets and associated income are denominated in Pounds
Sterling, although scme of the asset-backed notes issued by the Subsidiary and associzted interest
expense are denominated US dollars. The Greup's policy is to match this currency income and
expense by the use of cross currency swaps.

Debt Maturity Analysis

2004 2003
£ £
Less than one year — 16,920

11, Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Disclosures in the table below are in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS™) No, 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”.

Falr values have been estimated using quoted marked prices where available, Where no ready
markets exist and hence quoted market prices are not available, appropriate techniques are used to
estimate fair values which take account of the characteristics of the instruments, including the
expected future cash flows, market interest rates and prices avallable for similar instrurnents. There
were no instruments listed below that quoted market prices were used to estimate fair value.

The estimated falr value and recorded carrying values of the financiai instruments as of December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 are as follows:

1273172004 12/2172004 1273172003 12/31/2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount vaive Amount value
£ £ £ £
Non-trading assets
Cash 280,583 280,583 601,315 601,315
Accrued finance charges receivable 18,104 18,104 10,955 10,995
Other assets 14,886 14,886 6.876 6876
Non-trading Liabilities
Accruals and Other llabilities 264,549 264,545 576,599 576,599

The Group had no trading assets or liabilities at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003.
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Other Serles Issued and Outstanding
The table below sets forth the principal characteristics of the other serles previously issued by
other lIssuers, In connection with the recelvables trust and the receivables assigned by the
transferor. For more information with respect to any series, any prospective investor should centact
Barclays Capital, 5 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London E14 4BB, United Kingdom,
Attention Securitisation Group. Barclaycard will pravide, without charge, to any prospective
purchaser of the notes, a copy of the disclosure document for any such other publicly-issued series,

Series 99-1
Sterling

Class Principal 8atance Equivalent’  Interest Rote
Ctass A $900,000,000 £546,345,000 One month USD LIBOR + 0.18%
Class B $50,000,000 £30,352,500 QOne month USD LIBOR + 0.43%
Class C $50,000,000 £30,352,500 One month USD LIBOR + 0.90% .
Total $1,000,000,000 £607.050,600
Closing Date: : 23 Novemnber, 1999
Scheduled Redernption Date: 15 November 2002°
Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 November 2004
Series 02-1

Principal Steriing
Class Balance Equivalent®  Interest Rate
Class A $900,000,000 £579,262,406 One month USD LIBOR + 0.12%
Class B $50,000,000 £32,181,245  One month USD LIBOR + 0.45%
Class € 350,000,000 £32,181,245 One month USD LIBOR + 1.15%
Total £1,000.000,000 {643,624 896
Clesing Date: 24 October, 2002
Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 October 2007
Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 Cctober 2005
Series 03-1

Principal Steriing
Class Balance Equivalent® Interest Rate
Class A 1900,000,000 £573,357,966 One month USD LIBOR + 0.11% .
Class B - 150,000,000 £31.853,220 One month USD LIBOR + 0.37%
Class C $50,000,000 £31,853,220 One manth USD LIBOR + 1.27%
Totat a $1.000,000,000 £637,064,407
Clesing Date: 8 April 2003

Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 March 2008

Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 March 2010




Series §3-2
Principal Steriing

Class Bolance Equivalent®
Class A $900,000,000 £539,503 656
Class B $50,000,000 £29,972,425
Class C $50,000,000 £29,972,425
Total £1,000,000,000 £599,448,507
Cipsing Date: 13 June 2003
Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 June 2006
Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 June 2008
Series 03-3 .

Principal Sterfing
Closs Belance Equivatent’
Class A 3600.000,000 £376,884.422
Class Az $300,000,666 £188.442.211
Class B $50.000,000 £31,407,035
Class C $50,000,00¢ £31.,407,035
Tetal $1,000,000,000 E628.140,704
Closing Date; 18 September 2003
Scheduted Redemption Date: 15 August 2006
Legal Final Redernption Date: 15 August 2008
Series 04-1

Frincipal Sterling
Class Bolance Equivalent®
Class A £670.000,000 £363,881.401
Class B $37.500,000 £20,215,633
Class € $37,500,000 £2(,215,633
Total $750,000,000 £404 312,668
Closing Date: 4 March 2004

Scheduled Redemption Date:
Legal Fina! Redemption Date:

15 February 2007
17 February 2009

Appendix |

Interest Rate
One maonth USD LIBOR + 0,05%

One month USD LIBOR + 0,30%
One month USD LIBOR + 1.10%

interest Rate
Cne month USD LIBCR + 0.05%

2.7(0%
One month USC LIBOR + (.23%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.93%

interest Rate

One month USD LIBOR + 0.03%
One month USD LIBOR + 0.19%
One menth USD LIBOR + 0.45%




Appendix |

Serles 04-2 .
Principol Srerfrng

Class Balance Equivafent”  Interest Rate

Class A $675,000,000 £364.864.865 One month USD LIBOR + 0.02%

Class B $37.500.000 £20.270,270 One month USD LIBOR + 0.19%

(Class C 337,500,000 £20,270,270  One month USD LIBOR + 0.39%

Total $750,000,000 £405,4059,405

Closing Date: 17 November 2004

Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 Novernber 2007
Legal Final Redemption Date: 16 November 2009

Series 05-1 .

Principal Sterting
Class Baionce Equivalent®  Interest Rate
Class A $1.350,000,000 £742,288,448 One month USD LIBOR + 0.01%
Class B $75,000,000 £41,238,247 One month USD LIBGR + 0.14%
Class $75,000,000 £41,238,247  One month USD LIBOR + 0.33%
Taotal £1,500.000,000 £824,764,942
Closing [ate: 21 lune 2005

Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 June 2008
Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 June 2010

Series 05-2

Princlpal Sterling
Ciass Balonce Equivalent® interest Rate
Class A $1,350,000,000 E733,715591  One month USD LIBOR + 0.01%
Class B 575,000,000 £40,761,977  One month USD LIBOR + 0.15%
Class C $75,000,000 £40,761,977 One month USD LIBOR « 0.31%
Total $1,500,000,000 £815,239,545
Clesing Date: 20 September 2005

Scheduled Redemption Date: 15 September 2008
Legal Final Redemption Date: 15 September 2010




Series 03-3

Class

Class A}
Class A2
Class B1
Class B2
Class C1
Class {2

Total

Closing Date:
Scheduled Redemption Date:
Legal Final Redemption Date:

Principci
Balance
€650,000,000
£700,000,000
€72,500,000
£15,000,000
€68,000,000
£18,000,000

20 October 2005
15 Oclober 2010
15 October 2012

Sterling
Equivalent’®
£444,600.000
£700,000,000
£49.5%0,000
£15,000,000
£46,512,000
£18,000.000

£1,273,702,000

Interest Roie

3 Monts EURIBOR + 0.08%

3 Month Steriing LIBOR + 0.08%
3 Month EURIBOR + 0.25%

3 Month Sterling LIBOR + 0.25%
3 Month EUREBOR + 0.45%

3 Month Sterling LIBOR + 0.45%

! sterling equivalent ebtalned by converting dollars to sterfing at the exchange rate of E0.60705 to $1.
? serles 99-1 was repaid in full on 15 November 2002
2 sterling equivalent obtalned by converting dollars to sterling at the exchange rate of £0.643625 to §1.
* steriing equivalent chtzined by converting dollars to sterding at the exchange rate of $1.5697 ta £1.

* sterfing equivalent ohtained by converting doffars ta sterling at the exchaige rate of $1.597 1o £1.

® sterling equivalent obtalned by converting dallars 1o sterling at the exchange rate of $1.855 to £1.

7 sterling equivalent obtalned by converting doilars to sterfing at the exchange rate of $1.85 to £1.

* sterling equivalent ohtalned by canverting dollars to sterling at the exchange rate of 51.81587 (o £1.

? sterling equivalent obtalned by converting dollars to sterling at the sxchange rate of $1.83995 to E1.
1 steding equivalent obtained by converting euras to sterling at the exchange rate of 1€ = £0.584.




Gracechurch Card Funding (No. 11) PLC
Issuer
Barclays Bank PLC

Transferor, Servicer and Trust Cash Manager

$900,000,000 Class A Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes .
$50,000,000 Class B Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes
£50,000,000 Class C Floating Rate Asset-Backed Notes

Prospectus

Underwriters of the Class A Notes
Barclays Capital

BNP Paribas Citigroup Goldman Sachs & Co
Merrill Lynch & Co Morgan Stanley

Underwriter of the Class B Notes and Class C Notes
Barclays Capital
UBS Investment Bank

You sheuld rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorised .
anyone to provide you with different information.

we are not offering the notes where the offer is not permitted.

Dealers will deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters of the notes and with respect to their

unsold allsiments Sr subscriptions. In addition, all dealers selling the notes may be required to

deifver & orospectus until 27 February 2006.
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